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for the CA Final examination. This suﬁject is of utmost importance in the ﬁe[cf (f accounting
and finance and mastering it will sigm’ﬁcantfy enhance your Jorq(essionaf competence.

Financial ﬁgaom'ng Jo[ays a crucial role in jarovia(ing stakeholders with reliable and relevant
information about the financia[ Jaosition, Jaerformance, and cash ﬂows of an enu'ty. We will
delve into the concgptua[ fmmeworﬁ, which serves as the foumfau’on for accounu’ng standards.

We will also cover the a}a}?(icaﬁfe Indian ?lccounu’ng Standards that govern ﬁnancia[
reyorting. This includes standards related to revenue recogniu’on, lease accounting, ﬁnancia[

instruments, and consolidation of ﬁnancia( statements, amony others.

It is essential to stay u}acfawc{ with the latest cfeve[o}aments in financia( regpom’ng. ‘J-[ence, we
recommend reﬁarring to Jorofessiona( _pronouncements, regu(arory u}ocfaws, and amendments
to accounting standards issued Ey the relevant authorities. You should also read annual
reports of [isted entities to understand the ]omcu’ca[ a}a}aﬁcaﬁon of what you learn in Financial
Reporting.

Remember, ﬁnancia( r«z}oom'ng is not onfy a suﬁj’ect for examination but a vital skillset that
will serve you tﬁrougﬁout your yr(yfessiona[ career. Embrace this op}aortunity to strengtﬁen

your Enowfecfge and }omcu’ca( a}ojofication of financia[ re}oorting pm’nci}ofes.

As you prepare for the examination ensure that you understand tﬁings conce}otua@ and
]omcu’ce quesu’ons instead of just reacfing or watcﬁing the solutions. We wish you the best of

[UCE in yOH?’ stuc[ies ana(ﬁwure 6”6[6@\/0141’5.

CA Sumj Lakhotia
Director & Tacuﬁy,
1Fin 6y Qna(igolleam



Index

 # i Chapter ... .. iPageNo |
_1!IntroductiontoAs . i1l1-115
2iIndAS2Inventories  121-210
. 3:IndAS16 Property, Plant & Equipment @ 3.1-3.23 |
_4.:IndAS 38 Intangible Assets @ 41-4.26
. _5:IndAS40 Investment Property 1} 51-59 |
_6.:Ind AS 23 BorrowingCosts @ 6.1-6.12
_7.IndAS20 GovernmentGrants __ 171-715
8.Ind AS 36 Impairment of Assets & 8.1-829 |
9. Ind AS 105 NCA Held for sale & discontinued ops. | 9.1-915
'10:IndAS116 leases 1101-1032
11 Ind AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities & Cont. Assets  : 11.1-11.22 .
.12 /Ind AS 19 Employee Benefits ~ 1121-12.24 |
13 | Conceptual Framework for FR under INDAS ~~~ ©13.1-13.6
14 Ind AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements ~ 114.1-14.21 |
. 151 Ind AS 7 Cash Flow Statements ~~~~~~ +151-15.17 |
16 ; Ind AS 115 Revenue from Contract with Customers ~ :16.1-16.44 .
| | Ind AS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting | |
17 | Estimatesand Errors 0 17.1-17.13 |
. 18 | Ind AS 10 Events after the reporting period ~~ 118.1-18.10 |
19 ! Ind AS 113 Fair Value Measurements ~~~ 19.1-19.11
20 IndAS 102 Share based payments  120.1-20.17
21 Ind AS 41 Agriculture 21.1-21.8 |
22 IndAS12IncomeTaxes  1221-2215
' 23 Ind AS 21 The effect of changes in Foreign Exchange Rates  : 23.1-23.15 |
24 | Ind AS 24 Related Party Disclosures @ 24.1-24.12 .
| 25 Ind AS 33 Earnings Per Share @ 25.1-25.16 |
26 ! Ind AS 34 Interim Financial Reporting & 26.1-26.10
27 IndAS 108 Operating Segments  27.1-27.6
. 28  Ind AS 101 First time adoption of IndAs ¢ 28.1-28.15
29 Financial Instruments 29.1-29.52
. 30 Business Combinations @ 30.1-30.39 |
31 Consolidated Financial Statements @ 31.1-31.34
32 Analysis of Financial Statements ~ 1321-326
33 ! Professional & Ethical Duty of CA 33.1-33.17

——————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————



INTRODUCTION TO INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

1 Introduction

1.1 Financial Statement

A set of Financial statements

key tool of communication about

Useful to stakeholders in making economic decisions

changes in financial
position of an entity

Financial position ][ Financial performance and ][

1.2  Accounting Standard (AS)
> AS provides principles and rules that must be followed fo ensure accuracy, consistency, standardize
the diverse accounting policies and comparability of financial statements
> ensure that FS should be understandable, relevant, reliable and comparable.
> set of documents that lay down the principles covering various aspects, such as, recognition,
measurement, presentation & disclosure of accounting transaction in the FS
> AS enables stakeholders to get the reliable and comparable accounting data and investors to make
more informed economic decisions.
1.3  Accounting Standard Board (ASB)
ASB of the ICAT:
> Established - 1977
» involved in the formulation of AS and standard setting process of the country.

National Government of India,
. Ade €t of Financial through MCA issice:?IAs
ecommends draft o Reporti -

AS post incorporating [ Ae;;ﬁr ”J:g | notifies AS or Ind-AS || for non-
th bli + uthority for corporate entities corporate
e puo lc commente (NFRA) and under Companies Act titi
on exposure draft to then ard entities

2 Prior to Introduction of IND AS in India - AS

2.1 Accounting Standards
» Ind AS are Accounting Standards converged with IFRS
» Prior to Ind AS, ASB issued AS to deal with reporting matters
» AS are applicable to
a) companies other than those following Ind AS,
b) SMCs (Small and Medium Sized Companies) and
c) non-corporate entities.

Note:

IFRS - International Financial Reporting Standards

AS - Accounting standards

FS - Financial Statement

2.2 Limitations of Accounting Standards

With the increase in Globalisation, Cross border transactions, flow of foreign funds and internationalisation
of business, Accounting Standards could not deal with increasing complexities.

a. Capital raised in the form of complex financial instruments like optionally convertible / compulsorily
convertible shares / debentures etc.

Introduction to AS 1FIN by IndigoLearn 1.1



b. Various derivative instruments embedded in the foreign currency bonds / equity instruments ,
commodity derivatives etc.

Group restructuring, business acquisitions, mergers, demergers, slump sale etc.

Complex revenue arrangements and business models with innovating emerging digital economy

Diverse stock-based compensation with innovative remuneration models for C-suite

Complex tax provisions and impact thereof in determination of current and deferred tax

Different ways to provide shareholders' return and various modes of shareholder’s investments in kind
in the event of group reorganisation.

O e oo

The recognition and disclosure requirements in ASs for Aspects like revenue, related party transactions,
segment reporting, business combinations are limited. Further Accounting standards did not have necessary
guidance for complex transactions like financial instruments.

3 Emergence of Global Accounting standards

1973: The International Accounting Standards Committee (IASC) is formed, consisting of professional
accountancy bodies from various countries. Its goal is to harmonize global financial reporting practices.

Late 1990s: After 25 years, the IASC recognizes the need for a change in structure to converge national
accounting standards. The International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) is formed on July 1, 2000,
operating under the new International Accounting Standards Committee Foundation (IASCF, now IFRS
Foundation).

Early 2000s: The International Organisation of Securities Commissions (IOSCO) recognizes the importance
of internationally accepted standards for cross-border securities of ferings. In 2000, IOSCO recommends
the use of 30 TASC 2000 standards for multinational issuers.

July 19, 2002: The European Parliament and the European Council of Ministers pass a regulation requiring
the adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) for all EU listed companies from 2005.

Post-2002: IFRS and US Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (US GAAP) emerge as two prominent
and widely adopted accounting standards globally.

620 Involvement: The Group of 20 (620) expresses interest in improving the global financial system and
supports the convergence of accounting standards. The 620 includes major economies like the United
States, China, India, and the European Union.

Joint Convergence Project (2002): IASB and US Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) launch a
joint convergence project to eliminate differences between IFRS and US GAAP. The project begins with
the Norwalk Agreement in October 2002.

Present: IFRS, along with US GAAP, is recognized as one of the two globally accepted financial reporting
frameworks. According to IASB research, 167 jurisdictions now require the use of IFRS for all or most
publicly listed companies, and an additional 12 jurisdictions permit its use. The goal of a single set of high-
quality global accounting standards remains a work in progress.

4 Global Accounting Standards in India

¢ Modern economies rely on global transactions and free international capital flow.

o Investors seek diversification and investment opportunities worldwide.

e Companies engage in cross-border activities, raising capital, conducting transactions, and establishing
international operations.

¢ Challenges for Indian companies in cross-border activities include increased compliance costs due to
diverse national accounting standards.

e Adhering to local accounting standards results in significant differences in financial information
presentation.

Introduction to AS 1FIN by IndigoLearn 1.2



e Variations in national accounting standards add complexity and risk to financial statements preparation
and decision-making.

e Detailed examination is required to address minor differences that impact reported financial
performance and position.

o Examples include differing approaches in the valuation of non-current investments under
Accounting Standards (AS) and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

¢ Need to revamp Indian AS arises due to limitations in dealing with emerging business transactions and
structures.

e International investors often prefer financial information produced under IFRS, reflecting concerns
about the understanding of the Indian accounting framework.

e India committed fo the convergence of its accounting standards with IFRS at the 620 summit in 2009,
signaling a proactive move towards aligning with global financial reporting norms.

5 Benefits of Global Accounting standards

[ Global Accounting Standards
High-quality, Internationally recognised set of accounting standards to financial markets around
the world.
a Y4 Y )
Transparency - -
) ) ) Accountability Efficiency
> by enhancing the international . . . .
comparability and quality of > reducing the mFormq’rlon > by helpmg mveg’rgrs to
financial information gap between the providers identify opportunities and
L ’ of capital and the people risks across the world,
> enabling investors and other to whom they have thus improving capital
m?rke’rdparhapa‘n’rz to make entrusted their money allocation
informed economic decisions.
AN U\ J

Company which has operations in multiple countries, it became easy for them
» to consolidate their operations,
> track operational key performance indicators, and
» reduce the number of different reporting systems.

6 Convergence vs Adoption of IFRS

Adoption of IFRS
> applying IFRS in the same manner and would be 100% compliant with the guidelines issued by TASB.

Convergence with IFRS

> Dictionary definition of Convergence > to move towards each other or meet at the same point from
different directions

> The National accounting standards setter would work with IASB fo develop high quality AS over the
time.

» Adopted IFRS with some exceptions, and work with IASB towards those exceptions to reach at a point
wherein there are no differences left.

Countries have choice to fully implement IFRS without any convergence. However, it is impossible for IASB to
consider the individual factors of each country. Hence, such countries decide to converge to IFRS with limited
exceptions. These exceptions are regularly looked upon and in order to meet at a point where no exceptions
are left.

Countries like Canada, Bahrain, Cambodia etc have adopted IFRS while countries like India, China, Hongkong
etc have converged with IFRS.

Introduction to AS 1FIN by IndigoLearn 1.3



7

Process of development and finalization of Ind AS

Deliberation and Circulation of Draft Ind
IASB issues new IFRS or S consideration of draft Ind S AS to the Council
updates the existing one AS in line with IFRS by members of ICAI and
ASB specified outside bodies
!
\4
Meeting with the Incorporation of Comments
representative of the S FromPCouncil and outside || Issue of Exposure Draft
specified outside bodies to . for Public Comments
. - bodies
ascertain their views
!
\4
Consideration of comments Final draft sumbission to
received on the Exposure S NFRA with S NFRA (MCA) notifies Ind
Draft and finalisation of . AS under Companies Act
. recommendations
final draft
8 Transition from AS to IND AS
[ Convergence of Ind AS with IFRS ]
[ at the G20 summit in 2009. |
[ MCA issued a roadmap for implementation beginning April 2011. ]
[ However, suspended due to unresolved tax and other issues. ]

In the presentation of the Union Budget 2014 -15, the Honourable Minister for Finance,
Corporate Affairs and Information and Broadcasting proposed the adoption of Ind AS.

would be notified separately.

The Minister clarified that the respective regulators will separately notify the date of
implementation for banks and insurance companies. Also, standards for tax computation

In accordance with the Budget statement, the MCA has notified the Companies (Ind AS)
Rules 2015 vide its G.S.R dated 16th February 2015.

[ The IASB issues new/revised IFRS on a regular basis. ]

Ind AS IAS/IFRS Title of Ind AS/ IFRS AS/GN AS/GN Title

101 IFRS 1 First Time Adoption of - -
Indian Accounting Standards

102 IFRS 2 Share Based Payment GN Guidance Note on Accounting

for Share- based Payments

103 IFRS 3 Business Combinations AS 14 Accounting for Amalgamations

104 IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts - -

105 IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for | AS 24 Discontinuing Operations
Sale and Discontinued
Operations

106 IFRS 6 Exploration for and GN 15 Guidance Note on Accounting
Evaluation of Mineral for Oil and Gas Producing
Resources Activities

107 IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: - -
Disclosures

108 IFRS 8 Operating Segments AS 17 Segment Reporting

Introduction to AS

1FIN by IndigoLearn
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Ind AS IAS/IFRS Title of Ind AS/ IFRS AS/GN AS/GN Title
109 IFRS 9 Financial Instruments - -
110 IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial AS 21 Consolidated Financial
Statements Statements
111 IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements AS 27 Financial Reporting of
Interests in Joint Ventures
112 IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in - -
Other Entities
113 IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement - -
114 IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral GN Accounting for Rate Regulated
Accounts Activities
115 IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with | AS7 Construction Contract Revenue
customers AS 9 Recognition
116 IFRS 16 Leases AS 19 Leases
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts
1 IAS1 Presentation of Financial AS 1 Disclosure of Accounting
Statements Policies
2 TIAS 2 Inventories AS 2 Valuation of Inventories
7 IAS7 Statement of Cash Flows AS 3 Cash Flow Statements
8 IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes | AS 5 Net Profit or Loss for the
in Accounting Estimates and Period, Prior period I'tems and
Errors Changes in Accounting Policies
10 IAS 10 Events after the Reporting | AS 4 Contingencies and Events
Period Occurring After the Balance
Sheet date
12 IAS 12 Income Taxes AS 22 Accounting for Taxes on
Income
16 IAS 16 Property, Plant and AS 10 Property, Plant and
Equipment Equipment
19 TAS 19 Employee Benefits AS 15 Employee Benefits
20 IAS 20 Accounting for Government AS 12 Accounting for
Grants and Disclosure of Government Grants
Government Assistance
21 IAS 21 The Effects of Changes in AS 11 The Effects of Changes in
Foreign Exchange Rates Foreign Exchange Rates
23 IAS 23 Borrowing Costs AS 16 Borrowing Costs
24 IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures AS 18 RelatedParty Disclosures
IAS 26 Accounting & reporting by
Retirement benefit plans
27 IAS 27 Separate Financial - -
Statements
28 IAS 28 Investment  in Associates | AS 23 Accounting for Investment in
and Joint Ventures Associates in Consolidated
Financial Statements
29 IAS 29 Financial Reporting in - -
Hyperinflationary Economies
32 IAS 32 Financial Instruments: - -
Presentation
33 TAS 33 Earnings per Share AS 20 Earnings per Share
34 IAS 34 Interim Financial AS 25 Interim Financial
Reporting Reporting
36 IAS 36 Impairment of Assets AS 28 Impairment of Assets
37 IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent AS 29 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets Assets

Introduction to AS
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Ind AS IAS/IFRS Title of Ind AS/ IFRS AS/GN AS/GN Title

38 TAS 38 Intangible Assets AS 26 Intangible Assets
40 IAS 40 Investment Property AS 13 Accounting for Investments
41 IAS 41 Agriculture - -

Ind AS are numbered in line with IAS/IFRS
TIAS 1-41:Ind AS 1-41 [IAS were issued till 2000]
IFRS 1 onwards - Ind AS 101 onwards [IFRS issued post 1*" July 2000]

Ind AS have following components and they are generally structured as follows:
I.  Objective - Main purpose of Ind As
IT.  Scope - What standard intends to cover and not fo cover
III.  Definitions - Definition of various terms used in the standard
IV.  Content of the Standard - Main principle of the standard
a. Recognition,
b. Measurement,
c. Subsequent measurement
d. along with any other standard specific contents
V.  Disclosure
a. Qualitative / Quantitative information of particular
i. asset/
i. liability /
iii. income /
iv. expense should be presented in FS.
VI.  Transitional provisions and effective date
VII. Appendices - Integral part of standard, mainly consist of:
a. Explanation on industry specific issues which require detailed guidance.
For e.g.: Appendix to Ind AS 16 contains treatment of stripping costs in the production phase
of a surface mine
b. Application Guidance - These are mainly in standards which are converged from International
Financial Reporting Standards (Ind AS 101 and onwards). It contains detailed guidance in
applying the principles mentioned in the standard
c. Defined terms - It mentions definition of terms mentioned in the standard
d. References to matters contained in other Ind AS - It lists the appendix which is a part of
another Indian Accounting Standard and makes reference to the particular standard.
e. Comparison with IFRS - Differences with IFRS are explained in this section
f. IFRIC and SIC applicable and relevant for the respective Ind AS

9 Roadmap for Applicability of Ind AS
MCA has notified the Companies (Ind AS) Rules, 2015 vide its 6.S.R dated 16 Feb, 2015.
» 39 Ind AS and has laid down an Ind AS transition roadmap for companies and non- banking finance
companies excluding banking companies and insurance companies.
> proposed phase-wise approach for mandatory transition to Ind AS.

9.1 Applicability of Ind As for Listed Companies

Applicability of Ind AS to Listed entities in the following two phases:

Phase 1 Phase 2

Applicability:
listed or in process - on listed or in process - on any
any stock exchange in stock exchange in India or
India or outside India and outside India and NW<500
NW>500 Crs Crs)

(a) Equity or Debt securities

Introduction to AS 1FIN by IndigoLearn 1.6



Applicability of Ind AS to Listed entities in the following two phases:
Phase 1 Phase 2

250 crs or more,
but less than 500 crs

(c) Includes Holding, subsidiary, associate or Joint Venture of
Companies already covered under sub clause (a) & (b) above

(b) Net worth 500crs or more

Accounting period:
Accounting Period beginning on or

e 1°" Apr, 2016 15" Apr, 2017
Opening balance sheet as on 1*" Apr, 2015 1*" Apr, 2016
Comparative for 315" Mar, 2016 315" Mar, 2017
Financial statement for the FY 2016-17 FYy 2017-18

The Companies (Ind AS) Rules, 2015 clarifies,
» Non-applicable of road map
o companies whose securities are listed or are in the process of being listed
o on SME (Small and Medium Enterprise) exchange as referred to in Chapter XB or
o on the Institutional Trading Platform without initial public offering in accordance with the
provisions of Chapter XC of the SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2009.
> Option for Early adoption of Ind AS
o for their FS for accounting periods beginning on or after 1st April 2015, with the comparatives
for the periods ending on 31st March 2015 or any time thereafter.
Non-applicable of Ind AS - Unlisted companies whose NW<250 Crs
o Follow AS as per its applicability discussed above.
o Can voluntary adopt Ind AS.

As per clause 57 of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013
Net worth means
o the aggregate value of the paid-up share capital and all reserves created out of the

profits and securities premium account,

o after deducting the aggregate value of the accumulated losses, deferred expenditure and
miscellaneous expenditure not written off, as per the audited balance sheet,

o but does not include reserves created out of revaluation of assets, write-back of
depreciation and amalgamation

or calculation of Net worth

> Consider stand-alone financial statements of the company as on 31st Mar 2014 or the first audited FS
for accounting period which ends after that date;

» If Company is not in existence on 31st March 2014 or an existing company falling under threshold first
time after 31st Mar, 2014

- Consider audited SFS ending after that date, in respect of which it meets the thresholds.

» If threshold is met at the end of accounting year, Ind AS is applied from next financial year. In other

words check the threshold as at the end of previous accounting period.

9.2 Key Matters on Transition

Comparative All companies applying Ind AS are required o present comparative information as per
Financial Ind AS for one year. To comply with this requirement, Ind AS will be applicable from

Information the beginning of the previous period

Ind AS Companies shall prepare their first set of financial statements in accordance with the
Applicability Ind AS effective at the end of its first Ind AS reporting period.

Introduction to AS 1FIN by IndigoLearn 1.7



Consistent A Company shall be required to follow the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) for
application of all the subsequent financial statements even if any of the criteria specified in the
Ind AS Rules does not subsequently apply to it.
Applicability for | If Ind AS is applicable to a company, it would also be applicable to its holding company,
Group Companies | subsidiary company, associate company and joint venture.
Overseas group | Overseas subsidiary, associate, joint venture and other similar entities of an Indian
companies company may prepare its standalone financial statements in accordance with the
requirements of the specific jurisdiction.

e provided that such Indian company shall prepare its consolidated financial

statements in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)

SFS/CFs Ind AS once required to be complied with in accordance with these rules, shall apply to
both stand-alone financial statements and consolidated financial statements.

9.3 Applicability of Ind As for Non-Banking Financial Company

T ———

Non-Banking Financial Company as

> defined in clause (f) of sec 45-1 of the RBI Act, 1934 and

> includes Housing Finance Companies, Merchant Banking companies, Micro Finance
Companies, Mutual Benefit Companies, Venture Capital Fund Companies, Stock Broker or
Sub-Broker Companies, Nidhi Companies, Chit Companies, Securitisation and
Reconstruction Companies, Mortgage Guarantee Companies, Pension Fund Companies,
Asset Management Companies and Core Investment Companies

Ind AS applicability to NBFC
NBFCs to apply Ind AS in the following two phases:

Phase 1 Phase 2
Applicability:
Listed orin process Unlisted
(a) Net worth 500crs or more 250 crs or more,
Less than 500 crs | but less than 500
crs
(b) Includes Holding, subsidiary, associate or Joint Venture of NBFCs

already covered under sub clause (a) above
(other than companies already covered under Ind AS roadmap
for Non-Financial companies)
Accounting period:
Accounting Period beginning

o or 1°" Apr, 2018 1°" Apr, 2019
Opening balance sheet as on  1°" Apr, 2017 1*" Apr, 2018
Comparative for 315" Mar, 2018 315" Mar, 2019
Financial statement for the @ FY 2016-17 FY 2017-18

Clarification on calculation of Net Worth:
> Consider stand-alone financial statements of the NBFCs as on 31st March 2016 or the first audited
FS for accounting period which ends after that date;
> not in existence on 31st March 2016 or an existing NBFC falling first time
- Consider SFS ending after that date, in respect of which it meets the thresholds.

Example:
NBFC meeting threshold for the first time ason = Ind AS applicable for FY
31°" Mar, 2019 FY 2019-20 onwards

Introduction to AS 1FIN by IndigoLearn 1.8



31°" Mar, 2020 FY 2020-21 onwards
Voluntary application of Ind AS is not permitted for NBFCs.

Application of Ind AS to non-finance companies whose parent / subsidiary or associate or joint venture is a
NBFC:

Standalone FS:

companies shall apply AS or Ind AS on the basis of respective standard applicable to them.

Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements:

Its subsidiaries, Required to provide FS data by S/A/JV (for

Parent Company associates and joint - . .
ventures (S/A/IV) consolidation purposes) in accordance with

Non-finance company Accounting policies followed by the parent company

NBFC > AS - Ind AS i.e in line with AS
Non-finance NBFC Accounting policies followed by the parent company
company > Ind AS i.e in line with Ind AS

9.4  Applicability of Ind As for Banking and Insurance Companies

> As per the Companies (Ind AS) (Amendment) Rules, 2016 - as notified by the RBI and Insurance
Regulatory Development Authority (IRDA) respectively.

> As the same are yet to be notified, Ind AS is not applicable to Banking and Insurance Companies
presently.

> Shall not be allowed to voluntarily adopt Ind AS.

» Ind AS compliant FS for the purpose of preparation of CFS by its parent/investor, as required by the
parent to comply with the existing requirements of law.

9.5 Applicability of Ind As for Mutual Funds
> As per regulatory framework for operating and functioning of MFs by SEBI (MF) Regulations, 1996
» On 25 January 2022, SEBT (Mutual Funds) (Amendment) Regulations, 2022 notifies
o FSand accounts of MF schemes will be prepared in accordance with Ind AS.
> Circular (dated 4 February 2022) provides
o certain guidelines on accounting with respect to Ind AS for MFs.
o specific formats of the FS to be prepared for the MF schemes under Ind AS
o Applicable from 1 April 2023.

10 IND AS Relevant Statutory provisions
10.1 Relevant sections referring to Ind AS in the Companies Act, 2013 and rules

Ind AS

> initially notified under the Companies (Ind AS) Rules, 2015.
> Post that it includes the amendments / changes in the Ind AS.
Following are provisions of the Companies Act 2013, which gives reference to Ind AS:
Section States / suggests
CG may prescribe the standards of accounting or any addendum thereto,
> as recommended by the ICAT, constituted under section 3 of the CA Act, 1949 (38
of 1949),
Sec 133 » in consultation with and after examination of the recommendations made by the
NFRA.
Under the power given to the CG under section 133 > notified the Companies (Ind AS)
Rules, 2015.
FS shall give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company or companies,
Sec 129 comply with the AS notified under sec 133 and shall be in the form or forms as may be
provided for different class or classes of companies in Schedule ITT
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Statement that the applicable AS had been followed with proper explanation relating to
Sec 134 (5) material departures shall be given in the Director Responsibility statement
- Yo be issued under sec 134 (3) (c) in the Director's report to be published in AGM
Sec 143 auditor has to opine whether the FS comply with the AS

Power to compromise or make arrangements with creditors and members and Sec 232 -
Merger and amalgamation of Companies, the scheme of compromise or arrangement is to be
sanctioned by the tribunal
- only after obtaining a certificate from the company’'s auditor that the accounting
treatment given proposed in the scheme of compromise or arrangement is in
conformity with the AS mentioned in Sec 133.
Reduction of Share Capital, which states that no application for reduction of share capital
shall be sanctioned by the Tribunal
unless the accounting tfreatment, proposed by the company for such reduction is in
conformity with the AS specified in sec133 or any other provision of this Act and
- a certificate to that effect by the company's auditor has been filed with the
Tribunal.

Sec 230

Sec 66

10.2 Relevant SEBI Rules and Regulations
e Circular dated 30th November 2015 provides
» Format for publishing quarterly FS.
» Point 5 of the circular clarified that Companies adopting the Ind AS in terms of Companies (Ind AS)
Rules, 2015 notified by the MCA on 16th Feb, 2015 while publishing quarterly / annual financial results
under Regulation 33 of the Listing Regulations, 2015,
- shall ensure that the comparatives filed along with such quarterly/annual financial results are
also Ind AS compliant.
e Disclosures in offer documents under SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018 - The applicability of Ind AS
for financial information (last 3 years financials - year wise)

e Revised formats for financial results and implementation of Ind AS by Listed Entities applicable for
period ending on or after 31°" Marcy 2017.

11 Format of Division IT to Schedule III to the companies Act - Structure

11.1 Schedule IIT to the Companies Act, 2013
> notified on 29th August

> Format of FS for every company registered under the Act

Financial Statements as defined under Companies Act, 2013 include
o Balance Sheet,
Statement of Changes in Equity for the period if applicable,
the Statement of Profit and Loss for the period,
Cash flow statement for the period and
Notes.

O O O O

11.2 'Division IT' to Schedule IIT
'Division IT' - 'Ind AS Schedule IIT' - Newly inserted to Schedule IIT
> gives a format of FS for companies that are required to comply with the Companies (Ind AS Rules,
2015, as amended from time to time.
> would apply while preparing its first and subsequent Ind AS Financial Statements
> Non-applicability
o any insurance or banking company or to any other class of company for which a form of BS and
P&L has been specified in or under any other Act governing such class of company
o NBFCs that adopt Ind AS of Companies (Ind AS) Rules, 2015 notified in Companies (Ind As)
(Amendment) Rules, 2016 as amended from time to time.
'Division IT' - 'Ind AS Schedule IIT is divided into following three parts:
Part I Part IT Part ITI
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Format of Format of

o Balance Sheet and o Statement of Profit and Loss General
o Statement of Changes in Equity and Instructions for
and o notes related to it preparation of CFS

o hotes related to them

12 Guidance note on Division IT to Schedule III to the Companies act, 2013

Guidance Note on Division IT to Schedule IIT to the Companies act, 2013
> Latest > issued in January, 2022
>  Aims
o to provide guidance and
o to deal with practical issues that may arise in implementation of Amended Division-II to
Schedule IIT to the Companies Act, 2013
Following are the some of key guidance stated in gquidance note, read in conjunction with Guidance Note issued
on the subject:
12.1 Property, Plant and Equipment:
Land and Building
Under the Ind

AS Schedule TIT paragraph 37 of Ind AS 16 Conclusion

presented as two - grouping land and building under same class present land and building

separate classes for revaluation purposes separately as given in Ind AS

of PPE - states that a class of PPE is a grouping of Schedule TIITI &  such
assets of a similar nature and use in an presentation needs to be
entity's operations followed consistently

Note: As per Ind AS Schedule ITI,

> capital advances/ advances for purchase of capital assets
o should be included under other non- current assets
o Not under capital work-in-progress

12.2 Non-current Investment:

Under each sub-
classification of

Investments
|
[ |
Required to disclose Ind AS Schedule III
details of investments requires disclosure of
including the
[ I |
(> Names ) f ( )
Aggregate amount o Market value of
> the nature and quoted & Unquoted Quoted Investment
> extent of the investments L )
investment in each
body corporate which P N
is a subsidiary, include aggregate amount of ‘fair value’ as at each
associate, joint carrying value of these reporting date.
venture and structured investments as at the reporting L )
Qen’rlfy. ) date as included in the FS
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In some cases the company may determine that the quoted price may not be fair value (for e.g
due to reduction in volume). In such case, quote value would be disclosed as per Sch III even
though the same may not be representative of Fair value.

As per Ind AS Schedule ITI, aggregate amount for impairment in value of investments should
be disclosed separately. Investment in partnership firm would be disclosed separately. LLP
investments would be clubbed with other investments.

Note: Any application money paid towards securities, where security has not been allotted on
the date of the Balance Sheet, shall be disclosed as a separate line item under ‘other non-
current financial assets'. In case the investment is of current investment in nature, such share
application money shall be accordingly, disclosed under other current financial assets

12.3 Trade Receivables:

A Receivable

classified as 'Trade Receivable', If it is

company has a right to an amount of
consideration that is unconditional (Requires
only passage of time)

rendered in the normal course of business
and

due on account of goods sold or services } [

| J

Note: Amounts due, other than arising out of sale of goods or rendering of services - cannot be included
within Trade Receivables. These are classified as other financial assets. For e.g insurance claims.

[ Amounts due under contractual rights ]

[ classified as "other financial assets" and disclosed nature-wise ]

Eg: insurance claims, sale of Property, Plant and Equipment, contractually reimbursable
expenses, etfc

needs to be

determined from

the due date of Due date Agreement exists - Agreed
. the invoice. between due date

Ageing of the : (Date on which| |petween buyer
frade the payment of and supplier Not exists -
receivables an invoice falls (Either orally Transaction
due) or in written) date
Schedule ITT:

» Schedule IIT requires split of trade receivables between 'disputed’ and ‘undisputed’

> Dispute means disagreement between two parties demonstrated by some positive evidence which
supports or corroborates the fact of disagreement

» It should be considered while assessing the credit risk associated with respective party while
computing the impairment loss.

12.4 Other Non-Current Financial Assets
Finance lease receivables

Schedule ITT Guidance note
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Clarifies the presentation finance lease receivable
» Its Non - current portion under ‘Other non - current financial
assets’
> Tts Current portion under ‘Other current financial assets'.

does
specify  about
its presentation

12.5 Current Assets
As per Ind AS Schedule ITT
- all items of assets and liabilities are to be bifurcated between current and non-current portions.
- Some items presented under the "non-current, may not have a corresponding "current” head under the
format given in Ind AS Schedule III.
Since Ind AS Schedule IITI permits the use of additional line items = in such cases classified under the
"Current” category as a separate line item and other relevant disclosures should be made.

12.6 Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents

Ind AS Schedule
III
not defined Cash is defined to include cash on hand and demand deposits with banks.

Ind AS7

Cash Equivalents are defined as short term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

As per para 8 of Ind AS 7
> where bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand form an integral part of an entity's cash
management
> bank overdrafts are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents.
» A characteristic of such banking arrangements is that the bank balance often fluctuates from being
positive to overdrawn.
Bank overdraft
> Tt is not appropriate to include bank overdraft as a component of cash and cash equivalents for
the purpose of presentation in the balance sheet, unless the offset conditions as given in paragraph
42 of Ind AS 32 are complied with.
> Bank overdraft, in the balance sheet, should be included as 'borrowings’ under Financial Liabilities.

12.7 Current Tax Assets
Current Tax Asset (Excess Tax Paid) = Tax amount paid (Current & prior period) — Taxdue for those periods

Based on meet of Definition Under Current
of Current asset Yes Assets
Presentation of
Current Tax (Expected to be recovered
asset / realised within one year
from the balance sheet Under Non-
date) Current assets

12.8 Equity Share Capital

The accounting definition of ‘Equity’ is principle based as compared to the legal definition of ‘Equity’ or
‘Share’, such that any contract that evidences residual interest in an entity’s net asset is termed as ‘Equity’
irrespective of whether it is legally recognized as a ‘Share’ or not.

Note:
> All instruments (including convertible preference shares and convertible debentures) - considered as
'Equity’ for the purpose of Ind AS Schedule III & termed as 'Instruments entirely equity in nature’, If
that
o meet the definition of 'Equity’ as per Ind AS 32 in its entirety and
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o when they do not have any component of liability

12.9 Borrowings

> "Term loan" not defined in the Schedule ITT, normally have a fixed or pre-determined maturity period
or a repayment schedule.

» Terms of repayment of term loans (unless the repayment terms of individual loans within a category
are similar, in which case, they may be aggregated) and other loans (all categories listed under the
heading ‘Non - Current borrowings’ as per Ind AS Schedule III) shall be disclosed.

> Ind AS Schedule IIT

o Long-term debt - borrowing having a period of more than twelve months at the time of
origination.
o Current maturities of long-term debt
- The portion of non-current borrowings, which is due for payments within twelve months
of the reporting date is required to be classified under “current borrowings” while the
balance amount should be classified under non-current borrowings.

12.10 Trade Payable

» Amount due on account of goods purchased or services received in the normal course of business >
'Trade payable'
> Amount due under contractual obligations or which are statutory payables - Not Trade Payables. (Eg:
statutory obligations like contribution to provident fund or contractual obligations like contractually
reimbursable expenses, amounts due fowards purchase of capital goods, etc)
12.11 Current Borrowings
> Loans payable within a period of 12 months from the date of the loan & Loans payable on demand >
treated as Current borrowings.
» the period and the amount of defaults of such loans are existing as at the date of the Balance Sheet
should be disclosed (item-wise).
> In addition to Ind AS Schedule IIT requirements for presenting ‘current maturities of long-term
borrowings’ under current borrowings - Companies shall provide the amount of non-current as well as
current portion for each of the respective category of non-current borrowings either by way of a note
or a schedule or a cross- reference, as appropriate.
12.12 Other Current Liabilities
» Trade Deposits and Security Deposits, which do not meet the definition of financial liabilities,
should be classified as ‘Others’ grouped under this head.
> Others may also include liabilities in the nature of statutory dues such as Withholding taxes,
Service Tax, VAT, Excise Duty, Goods and Services Tax (6ST), etc.

12.13 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

» A contingent liability in respect of guarantees arises when a company issue guarantees to another
person on behalf of a third party
E.g. when it undertakes to guarantee the loan given to a subsidiary or to another company or gives
a guarantee that another company will perform its contractual obligations.
> However, where a company undertakes to perform its own obligations, and for this purpose issues,
what is called a "guarantee", it does not represent a contingent liability and it is misleading to show
such items as contingent liabilities in the Balance Sheet.
o For various reasons, it is customary for guarantees to be issued by Bankers
e.g. for payment of insurance premium, deferred payments to foreign suppliers, letters of
credit, efc.
o For this purpose, the company issues a "counter-guarantee" to its Bankers.
- Such "counter-guarantee" is not really a guarantee at all
- but is an undertaking to perform what is in any event the obligation of the company,
namely, fo pay the insurance premium when demanded or to make deferred
payments when due.
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» Hence, such performance guarantees and counter quarantees should not be disclosed as contingent
liabilities.

12.14 Revenue from Operations and other operating income

Revenue should be presented

Indirect taxes such as Sales tax, GST

etc are generally collected from the

customer on behalf of the government
in majority of the cases

If company is acting as

|
[ |

Principal Agent

(Responsible for paying tax on

simply collecting and ing tax on
its own account) (simply collecting and paying tax o

behalf of government authorities)

Grossed up for the tax billed to
the customer and the tax payable Net of taxes
should be shown as an expense

> "“Other operating revenue" is not defined, but include
o Revenue arising from a company's operating activities,
i.e., either its principal or ancillary revenue-generating activities,
o but not revenue arising from sale of products or rendering of services.
> “other operating revenue” or "other income" is to be decided based on
o the facts of each case and
o detailed understanding of the company's activities.

12.15 Exceptional Items

> The term 'Exceptional items' is neither defined in Ind AS Schedule IITI nor in Ind AS.

» However, Ind AS 1 has reference to such items.

» An entity considers factors including materiality and the nature and function of the items of
income and expense. It indicates circumstances that would give rise to the separate disclosures of
items of income and expenses and include:

o Write-downs of inventories o net realisable value or of property, plant and equipment
to recoverable amount, as well as reversals of such write-downs;
o restructurings of the activities of an entity and reversals of any provisions for the
costs of restructuring;
disposals of items of property, plant and equipment;
disposals of investments;
discontinued operations;
litigation settlements; and
other reversals of provisions.

O O O O O

Introduction to AS 1FIN by IndigoLearn 1.15



AS 2

INVENTORIES

1. Introduction

1.1  Objective
e To prescribe accounting treatment of inventories.
e Determination of cost of inventory.
e Subsequent recognition as an expense.
e Provides guidelines on cost formulas.
1.2 Scope
Standard applies to all inventories except

(a) | Financial Instruments IndAS 109

(b) | Biological Assets related to Agriculture & Agriculture Produce at the point of | IndAS 41
Harvest. Note : Produce post harvest will be covered under IndAS-2 and
cost will be the value determined as per IndAS-41

(¢) | Measurement of inventories held by Recognition and
- Producers of agricultural & forest products, minerals etc to the extent disclosures
meausred at NRV in line with industry practice criteria applies

- Commodity broker-traders who measure inventories at FV less cost to sell

2. Definitions

2.1 Inventories

( )
Inventories are
assets
. J
| l
( ) G ) ( . )
Held for sale in the In the process of In thl? fozmbOf mate”a'sdo,r
H : supplies to be consumed In
ordinary course of production for such the production process or
business sale rendering of services
. J . J . J
. : Raw material and
Finished Goods Work in Progress .
supplies

2.2 Net Realisable Value (NRV)
NRV is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated cost of completion
and the estimated costs necessary o make the sale.

2.3 Fair Value
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

3. Measurement

Golden Rule - Inventories are measured at lower of cost and net realisable
value.
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3.1 Cost of Inventories

PARTICULARS AMOUNT
Cost of Purchases

Purchase Price XXX

(*) Import duties & other taxes XXX

(*)Transport & handling charges XXX

(*) Other Costs to bring the inventory to present location XXX

& condition XXX

(-)Trade discounts, rebates & other similar items XXX XXX
Cost of Conversion

Direct material XXX

(+) Direct labour XXX

(+) Other direct costs XXX

(+) Overheads (Fixed* as well as variable overheads) XXX XXX
Other Costs

Costs incurred to bring the inventories to their present

location & condition XXX

(*) Borrowing Cost under Ind AS 23 XXX XXX
Cost of Inventory XXX

3.2 Overhead
Fixed overhead is allocated based on predetermined overhead recovery rate (ORR) computed as below.

Budgeted Fixed OH
Planned or Normal Production

CActuaI Production)

|
! v

Pre Determined ORR =

N a
> Planned /Normal <= Planned/Normal
Production Production
_J \_
Recompute ORR Predetermined ORR
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3.3 Net Realisable Value

Estimated Selling Price XXX

(-) Estimated costs to complete (XXX)

(-) Estimated Costs to Sell (XXX)
Net Realisable Value XXX

o Estimates of NRV should be based on most reliable evidence available.

e Events occuring after balance sheet should be considered to the extent they provide additional
evidence of events existing on balance sheet date.

e Price reductions in future should not be considered to determine NRV.

o If inventory is held for a firm contract to sell, the contracted price can be an evidence of NRV.

Write down of inventories should be done on an item to item basis and not
on global basis.

3.4 Joint Products & By Products

Joint Products - Two or more products produced from a single process using common inputs. Each product
has significant value. Example - Petrol, Diesel, Gas produced on refining crude.

Joint costs are allocated on the basis of relative sales value / NRV at split of f point.
By Products - These are low value produces - generally considered as scrap.

NRV of by products is reduced from joint costs if the by products are immaterial. If the by products are
material, consider as Joint Products.

3.5 Cost measurement techniques

Retail Method Standard Cost Method
Cost of Inventory = Standard cost is set considering standard usage
Expected Sales Value of
(-) Normal Gross Profit Margin - Material
- Labour
- Overhead

- Capacity utilisation
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3.6 Cost Formula

Valuation
Methods

Inventory
Ordinarily Not
Interchangeable

Inventory
Ordinarily
Interchangeable

Non
Historical
Cost

Specific
|dentification
of Cost

Historical
Cost

INndAS 2

Used in
Projects, Job
Work

Standard
Cost

Weighted

Retail Method
Average

FIFO

An entity shall use same cost formula for all inventories having a similar nature and use to the entity.
For inventories with a different use , different cost formula can be used.

3.6.1 FIFO Method
- Assumption of cost flow : Inventory purchased first is sold first.
- Goods in Inventory are valued using the latest rates
3.6.2 Weighted Average Rate
- Cost is determined using a weighted average rate of goods received.

- The weighted average can be a periodic weighted average or a moving weighted average.

3.7 Raw Material Valuation

Raw Material
Valuation

Selling Price < Cost

Selling price > Cost

Value at cost

Decline in price
of materials

Valued at
replacement cost

Written down
to NRV
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4. Recognition of Expenses

Expense charged to P&L = Carrying amount of inventories sold + write down of inventories - reversals of
write down.

The cost of some inventories may be allocated to other asset accounts. For example, inventory used as a
component of self-constructed property, plant or equipment. Inventories allocated to another asset are
recognised as an expense during the useful life of that asset through charging of depreciation on that asset
(Ind AS 16)

5. Disclosures

Accounting policies including cost formula used.

Analysis of carrying amount of inventory & carrying amount in classifications appropriate to the
entity
Carrying amount of inventories carried at fair value less cost to sell
Carrying amount of inventories pledged as security
Amounts recognised in profit or loss
o Recognised as expense
o Worite down of inventory
o Reversals of write down

6. IndAS2vs AS2

There are no significant differences between the two standards

e IndAS 2 deals with recognition of expenses which is not dealt by AS-2

e IndAS 2 Explains inventories of service providers

e AS 2 deals with treatment of spare parts

e Ind AS 2 is not applicable to inventories of brokers/traders

e IndAS 2 covers concept of Fair value which is not covered by AS-2

e Agricultural produce are excluded from measurement aspects under IndAS-2. Under AS-2 these
are fully excluded

Illustrations

1. Illustration (RTP Nov 20)

A company normally produced 1,00,000 units of a high precision equipment each year over past several years.
In the current year, due to lack of demand and competition, it produced only 50,000 units. Further
information is as follows:

e Material = Rs. 200 per unit;

e Labour = Rs. 100 per unit;

e Variable manufacturing overhead = Rs. 100 per unit;
e Fixed factory production overhead =Rs. 1,00,00,000;
o Fixed factory selling overhead = Rs. 50,00,000;

e Variable factory selling overhead = Rs. 150 per unit.

Calculate the value of inventory per unit in accordance with Ind AS 2. What will be the treatment of fixed
manufacturing overhead?
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2. Illustration

In a manufacturing process of Mars Itd, one by-product BP emerges besides two main products MP1 and MP2
apart from scrap. Details of cost of production process are here under:

Item Unit Amount Output Closing Stock
31-03-X1
Raw material 14500 |1,50,000 MP 1-5,000 units 250
Wages - 90,000 MP II - 4,000 units 100
Fixed overhead - 65,000 BP- 2,000 units
Variable overhead - 50,000

Average market price of MP1 and MP2 is Rs. 60 per unit and Rs. 50 per unit respectively, by- product is sold
@ Rs. 20 per unit. There is a profit of Rs. 5,000 on sale of by-product after incurring separate processing
charges of Rs. 8,000 and packing charges of Rs. 2,000, Rs. 5,000 was realised from sale of scrap.

Required: Calculate the value of closing stock of MP1 and MP2 as on 31-03-20X1.

3. Illustration

The following information relates to 20X1-20X2

Date Particular Unit Cost Total Cost
p.u.
April Inventory 200 10 2,000
May Purchases 50 1 550
September Purchases 400 12 4 800
February Purchases 350 14 4900
Total 1,000 12,250
June Sales 150
October Sales 300
November Sales 150

Physical inventory at 31.03.20X2 400 units. Calculate ending inventory value and cost of sales using:
a. FIFO
b. Weighted Average

Under periodic and perpetual inventory system

4. Illustration (RTP May 2018)

On 31 March 20X1, the inventory of ABC includes spare parts which it had been supplying to a number of
different customers for some years. The cost of the spare parts was Rs. 10 million and based on retail prices
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at 31 March 20X1, the expected selling price of the spare parts is Rs. 12 million. On 15 April 20X1, due to
market fluctuations, expected selling price of the spare parts in stock reduced to Rs. 8 million. The
estimated selling expense required to make the sales would Rs. 0.5 million. Financial statements were
authorised by Board of Directors on 20th April 20X1.

As at 31st March 20X2, Directors noted that such inventory is still unsold and lying in the warehouse of the
company. Directors believe that inventory is in a saleable condition and active marketing would result in an
immediate sale. Since the market conditions have improved, estimated selling price of inventory is Rs. 11
million and estimated selling expenses are same Rs. 0.5 million.

What will be the value inventory at the following dates:

e 315" March 20X1

e 315" March 20X2

B. Illustration (RTP May 20)

The following is relevant information for an entity:

o Full capacity is 10,000 labour hours in a year.

o Normal capacity is 7,500 labour hours in a year.

o Actual labour hours for current period are 6,500 hours.

o Total fixed production overhead is Rs. 1,500.

o Total variable production overhead is Rs. 2,600.

o Total opening inventory is 2,500 units.

o Total units produced in a year are 6,500 units.

o Total units sold in a year are 6,700 units.

o The cost of inventories is assigned by using FIFO cost formula.

How overhead costs are to be allocated to cost of goods sold and closing inventory?

6. Illustration

UA Ltd. purchased raw material @ Rs. 400 per kg. Company does not sell raw material but uses in production
of finished goods. The finished goods in which raw material is used are expected to be sold at below cost. At
the end of the accounting year, company is having 10,000 kg of raw material in inventory. As the company
never sells the raw material, it does not know the selling price of raw material and hence cannot calculate the
realizable value of the raw material for valuation of inventories at the end of the year. However,
replacement cost of raw material is Rs. 300 per kg. How will you value the inventory of raw material?

7. Illustration

Sun Ltd. has fabricated special equipment (solar power panel) during 20X1-20X2 as per drawing and design
supplied by the customer. However, due to a liquidity crunch, the customer has requested the company for
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postponement in delivery schedule and requested the company to withhold the delivery of finished goods
products and discontinue the production of balance items.

As a result of the above, the details of customer balance and the goods held by the company as work-in-
progress and finished goods as on 31-03-20X3 are as follows:

e Solar power panel (WIP) Rs. 85 lakhs
e Solar power panel (finished products) Rs. 55 lakhs
e Sundry Debtor (solar power panel)  Rs. 65 lakhs
The petition for winding up against the customer has been filed during 20X2-20X3 by Sun Ltd. Comment

with explanation on provision to be made of Rs. 205 lakh included in Sundry Debtors, Finished goods and
work-in-progress in the financial statement of 20X2-20X3.

8. Illustration

Night Ltd. sells beer to customers; some of the customers consumes the beer in the bars run by Night
Limited. While leaving the bars, the consumers leaves the empty bottles in the bars and the company takes
possession of these empty bottles. The company has laid down a detailed internal record procedure for
accounting for these empty bottles which are sold by the company by calling tenders.

(i) Decide whether the stock of empty bottle is an asset of the company:;

(ii) If so, whether the stock of empty bottles existing as on the date of

Balance Sheet is to be considered as inventories of the company & valued as per Ind AS-2 or to be treated
as scrap and shown at realized value with corresponding credit to '‘Other Income™?

9. Illustration

ABC Ltd. buys goods from an overseas supplier. It has recently taken delivery of 1,000 units of component X.
The quoted price of component X wasRs.1,200 per unit but ABC Ltd. has negotiated a trade discount of 5%
due to the size of the order.

The supplier offers an early settlement discount of 2% for payment within 30 days and ABC Ltd. intends to
achieve this.

Import duties (basic custom duties) ofRs.60 per unit must be paid before the goods are released through
custom. Once the goods are released through customs, ABC Ltd. must pay a delivery cost 0fRs.5,000 to have
the components taken to its warehouse. Calculate the cost of inventory

10. TIllustration

ABC Ltd. manufactures control units for air conditioning systems. Each control unit requires the following:
e 1 component X at a cost 0fRs.1,205 each
e 1 component Y at a cost 0fRs.800 each
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e Sundry raw materials at a cost 0fRs.150 each
The company faces the following monthly expenses:
e Factory rentRs.16,500
e Energy costRs.7,500
¢ Selling and administrative costsRs.10,000
e Each unit takes two hours to assemble. Production workers are paid Rs.300 per hour.
e Production overheads are absorbed into units of production using an hourly rate. The normal level of
production per month is 1,000 hours.
Determine the cost of inventory.

11. Illustration

ABC Ltd. manufactures and sells paper envelopes. The stock of envelopes was included in the closing
inventory as of 31st March, 20X1, at a cost 0fRs.50 per pack.

During the final audit, the auditors noted that the subsequent sale price for the inventory at 15th April,
20X1, wasRs.40 per pack.

Furthermore, enquiry reveals that during the physical stock take, a water leakage has created damages to
the paper and the glue. Accordingly, in the following week, ABC Ltd. has spent a total 0fRs.15 per pack for
repairing and reapplying glue to the envelopes.

Calculate the net realizable value

12. TIllustration

At the end of its financial year, Company P has 100 units of inventory on hand recorded at a carrying amount
of Rs.10 per unit. The current market price is Rs.8 per unit at which these units can be sold.

Company P has a firm sales contract with Company Q to sell 60 units at Rs.11 per unit, which cannot be
settled net.

Estimated incremental selling cost is Rs. 1 per unit. Determine the Net Realisable Value (NRV) of the
inventory of Company P.

13. TIllustration

In Year 2, A business has four items of inventory. A count of the inventory has established that the amounts
of inventory currently held, at cost, are as follows:

Cost Estimated Sales Price Selling costs
Inventory Item Al 8,000 7,800 500
Inventory Item A2 14,000 18,000 200
Inventory Item Bl 16,000 17,000 200
Inventory Item Cl 6,000 7,500 150

Determine the value of closing inventory in the financial statements of a business.

14. TIllustration
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A dealer has purchased 1,000 cars costing Rs.2,80,000 each on deferred payment basis as 25,000 per month
per car to be paid in 12 equal instalments.

At year end 31 March 20X1, twenty cars are in stock. What would be the cost of goods sold, finance cost
and inventory carrying amount?

15. TIllustration

Particulars Kg Rs.

Opening Inventory Finished Goods 1,000 25,000

Raw Materials 1,100 11,000
Purchases 10,000 1,00,000
Labour 76,500
Overheads (Fixed) 75,000
Sales 10,000 2,80,000
Closing Inventory Raw Materials 900

Finished Goods 1,200

The expected production for the year was 15,000 kg of finished product.

Due to fall in the market demand the sales price for the finished goods was Rs.20 per kg and the
replacement cost for the raw material was Rs.9.50 per kg on the closing day.

You are required to calculate the closing inventory as on that date.
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Ind AS 16
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

1. Introduction

1.1  Objective
e To prescribe accounting treatment of property, plant and equipment.
e Recognition of assefts.
e Determination of carrying amont and depreciation charges
e Depreciation, retirement and disposal accounting.
1.2 Scope
PPE are generally grouped into various classes like land and buildings, machinery, ships, aircrafts, furniture,
bearer plants etc.
This standard does NOT deal with the following.

(a) | PPE classified as held for sale Dealt as per Ind AS 105

(b) | Biological assets related to agricultural activity other | Dealt as per Ind AS 41
than bearer plants

(c) | Recognition and measurement of exploration and | Dealt as per Ind AS 106
evaluation assets

(d) | Mineral rights and mineral reserves such as oil, natural | No Ind AS exists. Industry rules and

gas and similar non-regenerative resources regulations are followed.

This Standard applies to property, plant and equipment used to develop or maintain the assets described in

(b)-(d).

Investment property under Ind AS 40 shall use the cost model under this standard for owned investment

property.
2. Definitions

2.1 Property, Plant and Equipment

Property Plant and
Equipment are

Held for use in

Tangible items production or supply/ Expected to be used
g Rental/ Administrative more than one period
Purposes

2.2 Bearer Plant
Bearer plant is a living plant that
(a) Isused in the production/supply of agricultural produce
(b) Is expected to bear produce for more than a period of twelve
months
(c) Has a remote likelihood of being sold as an agricultural produce,
except for incidental scrap sales.
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2.3 Carrying Amount

Gross Book Value XXX
(-) Accumulated Depreciation XXX
(-) Accumulated Impairment Loss XXX
Carrying Amount XXX

3. Recognition

General Criteria for
recognition of PPE

Probable that future
economic benefits Cost of item can be
associated with the item will measured reliably
flow to the entity

Spare parts, stand-by equipment, and servicing equipment:

Recognised in accordance with this Ind AS when they meet the definition of PPE. Otherwise, such items are
classified as inventory (Ind AS 2) and charged to statement of profit or loss when it is issued for usage.
Aggregation of individually insignificant items:

It may be appropriate to aggregate individually insignificant items, such as moulds, tools and dies, and to
apply the recognition criteria to the aggregate value.

Other important points:

Ttems of PPE may be acquired for safety or environmental reasons. These may be necessary for an entity to
obtain the future economic benefits from its other assets. (Indirect benefits)

Such items of property, plant and equipment qualify for recognition as assets because they enable an entity
to derive future economic benefits from related assets more than what could be derived had those items
not been acquired.

4. Measurement at Recognition

An item of property, plant and equipment that qualifies for recognition as an asset should be initially
measured at its cost.Amount to be capitalised is based on the nature of consideration paid for the asset.

Asset is acquired by

Payment by _cash/ for Self Construction Exchange of Non
credit monetary assets

4.1 If asset is purchased by payment of cash or credit.
The cost of an item of PPE comprises
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Purchase Price XXX
Add:

Non-refundable taxes and duties XXX
Initial delivery and handling charges XXX
Cost of site preparation XXX
Installation & Assembly costs XXX
Professional Fees XXX
Borrowing costs (If permitted by Ind AS 23) XXX
Costs of testing - Net Sale Proceeds XXX

*If net sale proceeds is greater than cost of testing, the amount is deducted from the
cost.
Present Value of Decommissioning, restoration costs (In accordance with Ind AS 37) | xxx

Any directly attributable cost to bring the asset to the location and condition, | xxx
necessary to operate for its purpose intended by the management

Less:

Government grant received specific to the asset (Ind AS 20) XXX
Trade discounts and rebates (If included in above costs) XXX
Cost of PPE to be capitalised XXXX

5.1.1 Exclusions from Cost of PPE
(a) Costs of conducting business in a new location or with a new class of customer (including costs of staff
training)
(b) Costs incurred in introducing a new product or service.
(c) Cost of opening a new facility
(d) Administrative and other general overhead costs

The income and related expenses of incidental operations are recognised in
profit or loss

42 Self - Constructed PPE
The cost of a self-constructed asset is determined using the same principles as for an acquired asset.
Inclusions:
> Costs of construction that directly relate to the specific assets
> Costs that can be attributable or allocated to the construction activity.
> Borrowing costs if PPE is a qualifying asset as per Ind AS 23
Exclusions:
> Internal profits (Always take cost of construction and not sale price)
» The cost of abnormal amounts of wasted material, labour, or other resources incurred in self-
constructing an asset.
4.3 PPE is acquired by exchange of non-monetary assets
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commercial substance?
I

D

FV of Asset acquired or given up
can be measured reliably?

[ Does the transaction have ]

Yes No
Carryin

Fv NG |
Amount

If both the above conditions are satisfied, PPE is measured at
(a) Fair value of asset given up (1" Preference)
(b) Fair value of asset received
If both are available, consider whichever is more clearly evident.

If above conditions are not satisfied, PPE is measured carrying amount of the asset given up.

Commercial Substance:

An exchange transaction has commercial substance if:

(a) The risk, timing, and amount of the cash flows of the asset received are significantly different from
the cash flows of the asset transferred.

(b) There is a significant effect on the present value of the after tax cash flows that an entity expects
to arise from the continuing use and disposal of the asset due to exchange transaction.

Fair Value of the Asset:

The fair value of an asset is reliably measurable if:

a) The variability in the range of reasonable fair value measurements is not significant for that asset

b) The probabilities of the various estimates within the range can be reasonably assessed and used when
measuring fair value.

If the PPE is acquired by issuing shares of the entity, it will be dealt
separately by Ind AS 102 - Share based payments

4.4  Cost of Bearer Plants
All the cost of activities necessary to cultivate the bearer plants before they are in the location and
condition necessary to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

5. Cessation of Capitalisation

Recognition of costs to carrying amount of

PPE ceases
when Costs incurred in using or redeploying an item are not included in the item
is in the the carrying amount of that item

Ind AS 16 1Fin by IndigoLearn 3.4



http://www.indigolearn.com/

e location and
e condition
e necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
e infended by management.
For Example, Initial operating losses, cost of relocating or reorganising entity’'s operations are not included
in the cost of PPE.
6. Subsequent Costs

Subsequent Costs

Day to day repairs Replacement of Major inspections
and maintenance parts of PPE and overhaul

6.1 Repair and maintenance

Recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

6.2 Replacement of parts of PPE

Parts of some items of PPE may require replacement at regular intervals.

ntity should capitalise the cost of replacement as a component of

PPE and depreciate such cost over its useful life.
The carrying

amount of

those parts
that are replaced should be derecognised.

6.3  Major Inspections or overhauls
A condition of continuing to operate an item of property, plant, and equipment (for example, an aircraft) may
be performing regular major inspections for faults regardless of whether parts of the item are replaced.

When each major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the
carrying amount of the item of property, plant, and equipment as a
replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. Any remaining carrying
amount of the cost of the previous inspection is derecognised.

The inspection costs are recognised irrespective of whether the cost of the previous inspection was
identified in the transaction in which the item was acquired or constructed.

If necessary, the estimated cost of a future similar inspection may be used as an indication of what the cost
of the existing inspection component was when the item was acquired or constructed.

7. Deferred credit period

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is the cash price equivalent at the recognition date.
The difference between the cash price equivalent and the total payment is recognised as interest over the
period of credit unless such interest is capitalised in accordance with Ind AS 23.
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8.

Depreciation

8

The depreciable amount of an asset should be allocated on a systematic basis over its useful life.

Historical cost/ Revalued Amount XXX
Less: Estimated residual value XX
Depreciable Amount XXX

The depreciation charge for each period should be recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless it
is included in the carrying amount of another asseft.

Commencement of | When the asset is available to use.
Depreciation i.e., when it is in the location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by the management.

Cessation of | Ceases at the earliest of

Depreciation (a) The asset is classified as held for sale or included in disposal
group that is classified as held for sale (As per Ind AS 105)

(b) Date on which the asset is derecognised.

Depreciation does not cease when the asset becomes idle or is retired from
active use unless the asset is fully depreciated.

.1 Component Accounting for depreciation

An asset may consist of different and significant physical components. If an item of PPE comprises two or
more significant components, with substantially different useful lives, usage, or flow of economic benefits,
then each component should be recognised and depreciated separately over its individual useful life.

When significant component is replaced or restored, the old component is derecognised, and the cost of
new component is capitalised.

Land and buildings are separable assets and are accounted for separately,
even when they are acquired together.

If the cost of land includes the costs of site dismantlement, removal, and restoration, that portion of the
land asset is depreciated over the period of benefits obtained by incurring those costs.

A combination of more than one depreciation method is sometimes used depending upon type, nature of
circumstances for significant parts one PPE.

For Example:

Entity can follow WDV method for aircraft engine whereas SLM for aircraft body.

In some cases, the land itself may have a limited useful life, in which case it is
depreciated in a manner that reflects the benefits to be derived from it.
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8.2 Factors Determining Depreciable Amount

Factors determining depreciable
amount

Historical cost/ [ Expected useful life ] [ Estlmaz/z?uiegdual ]
Revalued Amount

Depreciable amount is determined based on the following three factors
(a) Historical cost/ Revalued Amount

(b) Expected useful life of the depreciable asseft.

(c) Estimated residual value of the depreciable asset.

8.2.1 Useful life of an asset -
Useful life is
(a) the period over which an asset is expected to be available for use by an entity
(b) the number of production or similar units expected to be obtained from the asset by an entity.

The following factors are considered in determining the useful life of an asset
>  Expected usage of the asset.
>  Expected physical wear and tear (Depends on operational factors)
»  Technical or commercial obsolescence arising from changes or improvements in production,
or from a change in the market demand for the product or service output of the asset.
>  Legal or similar limits on the use of the asset.

The useful life of an asset may be shorter than its economic life. The
estimation of the useful life of the asset is a matter of judgement based on
the experience of the entity with similar assets

8.2.2 Residual Value
It is an estimated amount, which can be recovered from the asset at the end of its useful life. Residual
value is a current estimat based on similar assets which would have reached the end of their useful life.
The estimation is made by the management at the time of acquisition. If the estimated residual value is
insignificant, value is considered as NIL.

et

The residual value and the useful life should be reviewed at least at the end
of financial year. Any change from expectations should be accounted for as
a change in an accounting estimate (Ind AS 8)

Remaining depreciable amount should be depreciated over the remaining
revised useful life.
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Different

Scenarios
I
I |

Residual Value > Fair Value of the

Carrying Asset > Carrying

Amount Amount

Depreciation Depreciation

charge = Zero, Charged

8.3 Depreciation Method

The depreciation method used shall reflect the pattern in which the asset's future economic benefits are
expected o be consumed by the entity.

For Example:
Straight line depreciation Constant charge over the useful life
Diminishing Balance Method Decreasing charge over the useful life
Units of Production method Charged based on expected use or output

The management should consider true & fair view, prudence, substance
over form and materiality while selecting depreciation method.

Depreciation charge can be zero if the entity follows number of units
production basis for depreciation and if no production happens in a
particular year. (But needs to test for impairment as per Ind AS 36)

Depreciation method should not be based on ratio of revenue as revenue
generated depends upon demand, supply, inflation, sales volume, and
prices.
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8.4 Depreciation of an addition/ extension to an existing PPE

Addition/Extension to an
existing asset

Cannot be used Independent &
independently hag separate
identity
Depreciate over Depreciate
the remaining independently on
useful life of the basis of its own
existing asset useful life

9. Impairment

Entity must calculate the recoverable amount in accordance with Ind AS 36.

Compensation from third parties for items of PPE that were impaired, lost or given up shall be included in
profit or loss when the compensation becomes receivable.

10. Measurement After recognition

Measurement after recognition

Cost Model Revaluation Model

10.1 Cost Model

(-) Accumulated Depreciation XXX
(-) Accumulated Impairment Loss XXX
Carrying Amount XXX

10.2 Revaluation Model

(-) Subsequent Accumulated Depreciation XXX
(-) Subsequent Accumulated Impairment Loss XXX
Carrying Amount XXX

Revaluations are required fo be carried out with sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying amount
does not differ materially from that which would be determined using fair value at the end of the
reporting period.
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8.2.1 Frequency of revaluations
The frequency of revaluations depends upon the changes in fair values of the items of property, plant and
equipment being revalued.
If PPE experience significant and volatile changes in fair value, there must be annual revaluation.
Otherwise, it may be necessary to revalue the item only every three or five years.

8.2.2 Accumulated Depreciation at the date of revaluation

Treatment

Depreciation

precial Restatement
Elimination Approach
Approach PP

Accumulated Restated

depreciation is
eliminated against
the gross carrying
amount

proportionately
with the change in
carrying amount

Restatement approach is used when an asset is revalued by means of
applying an index to determine depreciated replacement cost

8.2.3 Limit on Revalued Amount -
The revalued amount should not be more than the recoverable amount (As per Ind AS 36)

8.2.4 Revaluation to be made for entire class of assets -
Revaluation should be performed for an entire class of PPE.
For Example: If the entity takes a decision to revalue its buildings, it should revalue all the buildings of the
entity. i.e., revaluation of selective assets within a class is not permitted.
The entity can divide the PPE into classes based on the nature of items such as land, land and buildings,
machinery, ships, aircraft, motor vehicles, furniture and fixtures, office equipment, bearer plants.

The items within a class of PPE are revalued simultaneously to avoid
selective revaluation of assets and the reporting of amounts in the financial
statements that are a mixture of costs and values as at different dates.

8.2.5 Revaluation Accounting
The entity can do revaluation any number of times and it can be upward or downward revaluation.
First Time Revaluation:
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First time

revaluation
Upward Downward
Revaluation - Revaluation -
Gain Loss

"Other
Comprehensive

" : Charged to P&L
Income" as revaluation

surplus
Upward Revaluation PPE A/c Dr
To Revaluation Surplus A/c (OCT)
Downward Revaluation Profit & Loss A/c Dr
To PPE A/c

Subsequent Revaluation:
(a) If first time is upward revaluation

1st Upward
Upward Downward
Add to Revaluation Use existing Balance to P&L
Surplus surplus

Subsequent upward revaluation - Further increase should be recognised in "Other Comprehensive
Income" (OCI) and accumulated in equity under revaluation surplus.

PPE A/c Dr

To Revaluation Surplus A/c (OCT)

Subsequent downward revaluation - Utilise the available revaluation surplus and remaining balance
should be charged to statement of profit and loss.
Revaluation Surplus A/c Dr (OCI)
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Statement of Profit & Loss A/c Dr (Balancing Figure)
To PPE A/c
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(b) If first time is downward revaluation

1st Downward

Upward Downward

Credit to P&L to Balance to Rev.

extent of earlier Debit to P&L
Surplus
charge

Subsequent downward revaluation - Further decrease should be transferred to statement of profit
and loss.

Profit and Loss A/c Dr

To PPE A/c

Subsequent upward revaluation - Credit the statement of profit and loss to the extent it was
charged in earlier revaluation and remaining balance should be credited to "Other Comprehensive
Income" and accumulated in equity under revaluation surplus.

PPE A/c Dr
To Profit & Loss A/c (To the extent charged earlier)
To Revaluation surplus (balancing Figure) (OCT)

The effects of taxes on revaluation are recognised and disclosed as per Ind
AS 12 - Income taxes

Treatment of Revaluation Surplus:
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Treatment of Revaluation
Surplus

[ Option 1 - \ / \

Option 2 -

The surplus may be trasnferred
as the asset is used by an entity.

The revaluation surplus may be

transferred directly to retained
earnings when the asset is

derecognised. Surplus = Depreciation based on

\ j the revalued carrying amount of

the asset (-) Depreciation based
on the asset’s original cost

- J

Transfers from revaluation surplus to retained earnings are not made

through profit or loss.

11. Derecognition

The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment should be derecognised
(a) on disposal
(b) When no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in
profit or loss when the item is derecognised.

Gain/Loss from derecognition of PPE = Net disposal proceeds - Carrying
Amount.

Gains shall not be classified as revenue.

In determining the date of disposal of an item of PPE, an entity applies the criteria in Ind AS 115 (date
recipient obtains control over PPE) for recognising revenue. Ind AS 116 applies to disposal by a sale and
leaseback.

Transfers from revaluation surplus to general reserve should not be made
through statement of profit and loss.

12. Disclosure

(i) The financial statements should disclose, for each class of property, plant, and equipment:
a. The measurement bases used for determining the gross carrying amount

Ind AS 16 1Fin by IndigoLearn 3.14



http://www.indigolearn.com/

b. The depreciation methods used
The useful lives or the depreciation rates used

C.

d. The gross carrying amount and the accumulated depreciation (aggregated with accumulated
impairment losses) at the beginning and end of the period.

(ii) Entity is also required to provide a reconciliation of the carrying amount at the beginning and end of the

period showing:

a.

b.

S o

additions

Assets classified as held for sale or included in a disposal group classified as held for sale in
accordance with Ind AS 105 and other disposals

Acquisitions through business combinations

Increases or decreases resulting from revaluations and from impairment losses recognised or
reversed in other comprehensive income;

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss in accordance with Ind AS 36;

Impairment losses reversed in profit or loss in accordance with Ind AS 36;

Depreciation;

The net exchange differences arising on the translation of the financial statements from the
functional currency into a different presentation currency, including the translation of a
foreign operation into the presentation currency of the reporting entity; and

Other changes

(iii) The financial statements should also disclose

a. The existence and amounts of restrictions on title, and property, plant and equipment pledged

as security for liabilities

The amount of expenditures recognised in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and
equipment in the course of its construction;

The amount of contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment;
and

If it is not disclosed separately in the statement of profit and loss, the amount of
compensation from third parties for items of property, plant and equipment that were impaired,
lost or given up that is included in profit or loss.

(iv) If items of property, plant and equipment are stated at revalued amounts, the following should be

disclosed

a.
b.

the effective date of the revaluation;

Whether an independent valuer was involved;

For each revalued class of property, plant and equipment, the carrying amount that would have
been recognised had the assets been carried under the cost model; and

The revaluation surplus, indicating the change for the period and any restrictions on the
distribution of the balance to shareholders.

(v) Entities are encouraged but not required, to disclose the following amounts:

a.
b.

Ind AS 16

The carrying amount of temporarily idle property, plant and equipment
The gross carrying amount of any fully depreciated property, plant and equipment that is still
in use
The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment retired from active use and not
classified as held for sale in accordance with Ind AS 105; and
When the cost model is used, the fair value of property, plant and equipment when this is
materially different from the carrying amount.
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13. Changes in Existing Decommissioning Restoration & Similar Liabilities (Appendix A)

13.1 Applicability of Appendix A to Ind AS 16?

Applicable to changes in measurement of any
existing de-commissioning, restoration or similar
liability that is both

KRecognised as part of the\ Recognised as a liability in
cost of an item of PPE accordance with Ind AS 37

or

As part of the cost of a
right-of-use asset in

qcordance with Ind AS 116)

This Appendix addresses how the effect of the following events that change the measurement of an existing
decommissioning, restoration or similar liability should be accounted for:
a. A change in the estimated outflow of resources embodying economic benefits required to settle the
obligation
b. A change in the current market-based discount rate
c. Anincrease that reflects the passage of time (unwinding of the discount)

13.2 Accounting Guidance in Appendix A

If related asset is measured using cost model:
i.  Changes in liability shall be added to or deducted from the cost of the asset in the current period
and related provision is adjusted accordingly.
ii.  Decrease in liability cannot exceed the carrying amount of the asset.

If Decrease in Liability > Carrying Amount, excess is recognised as income

iii.  If changes in liability results in addition to the cost of PPE, consider whether this is an indication
that the new carrying amount of the asset may not be fully recoverable. If it is such an indication,
test for impairment as per Ind AS 36 and account for impairment loss.

If related asset is measured using Revaluation model:

i.  Any increase in liability is adjusted against revaluation surplus ( to the extent of balance available).
Any excess is recognised in the statement of profit and loss
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ii.  Any decrease in liability is recognised in revaluation reserve. If any revaluation deficit is charged to
profit and loss in the prior periods, to that extent, it is recognised as income in the statement of
profit and loss.

If Decrease in Liability > Carrying Amount, excess is recognised as income in
the statement of profit and loss

iii.  Any change in liability would require the asset to be tested for impairment to ascertain if there is
any change in fair value.
iv.  Change in the revaluation surplus arising from a change in liability shall be presented as a separate
line item in the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income
Common points for both cost and revaluation model:

The adjusted depreciable amount of the asset is depreciated over its useful life. Therefore, once the
related asset has reached the end of its useful life, all subsequent changes in the liability shall be
recognised in profit or loss as they occur.
The periodic unwinding of the discount shall be recognised in profit or loss as a finance cost, as it occurs.
Capitalisation under Ind AS 23 is not permitted.

14. Ind AS 16 vs AS 10

Ind AS 16 AS 10
Does not deal with Assets held for sale as Deals with accounting for items
they are governed by Ind AS 105 retired from active use & held for
sale

Provides guidance on measuring 'Stripping cost’ | Does not have this guidance
of a production phase of a surface mine.

Ind AS 16 - Property Plant & Equipment
ILLUSTRATIONS

1. Illustration

On 1st April of year 1, XYZ Ltd. acquired a machine under the following terms:

Amount (in )
List price of machine 80,00,000
Import duty 5,00,000
Delivery fees 1,00,000
Electrical installation costs 10,00,000
Pre-production testing 4,00,000
Purchase of a five-year maintenance contract with vendor 7.,00,000

In addition to the above information XYZ Ltd. was granted a trade discount of 10% on the initial list price of
the asset and a settlement discount of 5% if payment for the machine was received within one month of
purchase. XYZ Ltd. paid for the plant on 20th April of year 1. At what cost the asset will be recognised?
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2. Illustration

Moon Ltd incurs the following costs in relation to the construction of a new factory and the introduction of
its products to the local market.
You are required to calculate the amount which can be capitalised as per Ind AS 16

Particulars Zin 000
Cost Incurred

Site preparation costs 150

Direct Material 2,000

Direct labour cost, including Rs. 10,000 incurred during an | 1160
industrial strike

Testing of various processes in factory 200
Consultancy fees for installation of equipment 300
Relocation of staff to new factory 450
General overheads 550
Estimated costs to dismantle (at present value) 200

3. Illustration

The term of an operating lease allows a tenant, XYZ Ltd. to tailor the property to meet its specific needs by
building an additional internal wall, but on condition that the tenant returns the property at the end of the
lease in its original state. This will entail dismantling the internal wall. XYZ Ltd. incurs a cost of Rs.
25,00,000 on building the wall and present value of estimated cost to dismantle the wall is Rs. 10,00,000. At
what value should the leasehold improvements be capitalised in the books of XYZ Ltd.

4. Tllustration

X Limited started construction on a building for its own use on 1st April, 20X0. The following costs are

incurred

Particulars Amount in ¥
Purchase price of land 30,00,000

Stamp duty & legal fee 2,00,000

Architect fee 2,00,000

Site preparation 50,000

Materials 10,00,000

Direct labour cost 4.00,000

General overheads 1,00,000

Other relevant information:

Material costing Rs. 1,00,000 had been spoiled and therefore wasted and a further Rs. 1,50,000 was spent
on account of faulty design work. As a result of these problems, work on the building was stopped for two
weeks during November, 20X0 and it is estimated that Rs. 22,000 of the labour costs relate to that period.
The building was completed on 1st January, 20X1 and brought in use 1st April, 20X1. X Limited had taken a
loan of Rs. 40,00,000 on 1st April, 20X0 for construction of the building. The loan carried an interest rate
of 8% per annum and is repayable on 1st April, 20X2.

Calculate the cost of the building that will be included in tangible non-current asset as an addition.

Ind AS 16 1Fin by IndigoLearn 3.18



http://www.indigolearn.com/

5. Illustration

ABC Ltd. is installing a new plant at its production facility. It has incurred these costs:

Cost of the plant (cost per supplier's invoice plus | 25,00,000

taxes)

Initial delivery and handling costs 2,00,000
Cost of site preparation 6,00,000
Consultants used for advice on the acquisition of the | 7,00,000
plant

Interest charges paid fo supplier of plant for | 2,00,000
deferred credit

Net present value of estimating dismantling costs to | 3,00,000
be incurred after 7 years

Operating losses before commercial production 4,00,000

Please advise ABC Ltd. on the costs that can be capitalized in accordance with Ind AS 16.
6. Illustration

Pluto Ltd owns land and building which are carried in its balance sheet at an aggregate carrying amount of Rs.
10 million. The fair value of such asset is Rs. 15 million. It exchanges the land and building for a private jet,
which has a fair value of Rs. 20 million and pays additional Rs. 3 million in cash.

Show the necessary treatment as per Ind AS 16 and pass journal entry for the transaction

7. Illustration

A shipping company is required by law to bring all ships into dry dock every five years for a major inspection
and overhaul.

A ship which cost Rs. 20 million with a 20-year life must have major overhaul every five years. The estimated
cost of the overhaul at the five-year point is Rs. 5 million

8. Illustration

An entity acquired an asset 3 years ago at a cost of Rs. 5 million. The depreciation method adopted for the
asset was 10 percent reducing balance method.

At the end of Year 3, the entity estimates that the remaining useful life of the asset is 8 years and
determines to adopt straight -line method from that date so as to reflect the revised estimated pattern of
recovery of economic benefits.

Show the necessary treatment in accordance of Ind AS 16. Calculate the depreciation charge for respective
years.

9. Illustration

An asset which cost Rs. 10,000 was estimated to have a useful life of 10 years and residual value % 2,000.
After two years, useful life was revised to 4 remaining years.
Calculate the depreciation charge for the years 1,2,3.

10. Illustration

MS Ltd. has acquired a heavy machinery at a cost of Rs. 1,00,00,000 (with no breakdown of the component
parts). The estimated useful life is 10 years. At the end of the sixth year, one of the major components, the
turbine requires replacement, as further maintenance is uneconomical. The remainder of the machine is
perfect and is expected to last for the next four years. The cost of a new furbine is Rs. 45,00,000. The
discount rate assumed is 5%.

Can the cost of the new turbine be recognised as an asset, and, if so, what treatment should be used?
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11. Illustration

On 1st April, 20X1, Sun Itd purchased some land for Rs. 10 million (including legal costs of Rs. 1 million) in
order to construct a new factory. Construction work commenced on 1st May, 20X1. Sun Itd incurred the
following costs in relation with its construction

» Preparation and levelling of the land - Rs. 3,00,000.

> Purchase of materials for the construction Rs. 6.08 million in total.

» Employment costs of the construction workers - Rs. 2,00,000 per month.

> Overhead costs incurred directly on the construction of the factory - Rs. 1,00,000 per month.

> Ongoing overhead costs allocated to the construction project using the company's normal overhead
allocation model - Rs. 50,000 per month.

> Income received during the temporary use of the factory premises as a car park during the

construction period - Rs. 50,000.

> Costs of relocating employees to work at the new factory - Rs. 3,00,000

» Costs of the opening ceremony on 31st January, 20X2 - Rs. 1,50,000.
The factory was completed on 30th November, 20X1 (which is considered as substantial period of time as
per Ind AS 23) and production began on 1st February, 20X2. The overall useful life of the factory building
was estimated at 40 years from the date of completion. However, it is estimated that the roof will need to
be replaced 20 years after the date of completion and that the cost of replacing the roof at current prices
would be 30% of the total cost of the building.

At the end of the 40-year period, Sun Ltd has a legally enforceable obligation o demolish the factory and
restore the site to its original condition. The directors estimate that the cost of demolition in 40 years'
time (based on prices prevailing at that time) will be Rs. 20 million. An annual risk adjusted discount rate
which is appropriate to this project is 8%. The present value of Rs. 1 payable in 40 years' time at an annual
discount rate of 8% is Rs. 0.046.

The construction of the factory was partly financed by a loan of Rs. 17.5 million taken out on 1st April, 20X1.
The loan was at an annual rate of interest of 6%. Sun Ltd received investment income of Rs. 100,000 on the
temporary investment of the proceeds.

Required:

Compute the carrying amount of the factory in the Balance Sheet of Sun Ltd at 31st March, 20X2. You
should explain your treatment of all the amounts referred to in this part in your answer

12. Tllustration

Original Cost %1,00,000
Useful Life 10 Years
Depreciation Straight Line
Model Cost

At the end of 4 years, entity applies revaluation model. After 4 years, the fair value of the machinery is %
80,000. Show accounting treatment.
13. Tllustration

Show accounting treatment under revaluation model

Case 1 -

Particulars Year 1 Year 2
Carrying Amount | ¥1,00,000 % 90,000
Fair Value %1,20,000 ¥1,00,000
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Case 2 -

Particulars Year 1 Year 2
Carrying Amount Z1,00,000 % 90,000
Fair Value %1,20,000 Z.80,000
Case 3 -

Particulars Year 1 Year 2
Carrying Amount Z1,00,000 % 90,000
Fair Value ¥1,20,000 265,000
Case 4:

Particulars Year 1 Year 2
Carrying Amount Z1,00,000 % 80,000
Fair Value 290,000 % 85,000

14. Tllustration

Treatment of Revaluation Surplus & Excess depreciation

Particulars Amount
Original Cost %1,00,000
Useful Life 10 Years
Depreciation Straight line
Model Cost

At the end of 4 years, entity applies revaluation model. After 4 years, the fair value of the machinery is %
80,000.
15. Tllustration

H Limited purchased an item of PPE costing X 100 million which has useful life of 10 years. The entity has a
contractual decommissioning and site restoration obligation, estimated at ¥ 5 million to be incurred at the
end of 10th year. The current market-based discount rate is 8%.

The company follows SLM method of depreciation. H Limited follows the Cost Model for accounting of PPE.
Determine the carrying value of an item of PPE and decommissioning liability at each year end when (a) There
is no change in the expected decommissioning expenses, expected timing of incurring the decommissioning
expense and / or the discount rate

(b) At the end of Year 4, the entity expects that the estimated cash outflow on account of decommissioning
and site restoration to be incurred at the end of the useful life of the asset will be X 8 million (in place of 2
5 million, estimated in the past).

Determine in case (b), how H Limited need o account for the changes in the decommissioning liability?

16. Illustration

A Ltd. purchased some Property, Plant and Equipment on 1st April, 20X1, and estimated their useful lives for
the purpose of financial statements prepared on the basis of Ind AS: Following were the original cost, and
useful life of the various components of property, plant, and equipment assessed on 1st April, 20X1:

Property, Plant and | Original Cost Estimated

Equipment useful life

Buildings 15,000,000 15 Years

Plant and machinery 10,000,000 10 Years

Furniture and | 3,500,000 7 Years
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fixtures

A Ltd. uses the straight-line method of depreciation. On 1st April, 20X4, the entity reviewed the following
useful lives of the property, plant, and equipment through an external valuation expert:

Buildings 10 years
Plant and machinery 7 Years
Furniture and fixtures 5 Years

There were no salvage values for the three components of the property, plant, and equipment either initially
or at the time the useful lives were revised.

Compute the impact of revaluation of useful life on the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ending
31st March, 20X5.

17. Illustration

An item of PPE was purchased for X 9,00,000 on 1st April, 20X1. It is estimated to have a useful life of 10
years and is depreciated on a straight-line basis. On 1st April, 20X3, the asset is revalued to ¥ 9,60,000. The
useful life remains unchanged as ten years. Ignore impact of deferred taxes.

Show the necessary treatment as per Ind AS 16 to calculate depreciation and revaluation surplus for 20X3-
20X4
18. Tllustration

An entity has a nuclear power plant and a related decommissioning liability. The nuclear power plant started
operating on 1st April, 2XX1. The plant has a useful life of 40 years. Its initial cost was % 1,20,000 which
included an amount for decommissioning costs of 310,000, which represented X 70,400 in estimated cash
flows payable in 40 years discounted at a risk-adjusted rate of 5 per cent. The entity's financial year ends
on 31st March. On March, 2X11, the net present value of the decommissioning liability has decreased by
8,000. The discount rate has not yet changed.

How the entity will account for the above changes in decommissioning liability in the year 2X11, if it adopts
cost model?

19. Tllustration

An entity has a nuclear power plant and a related decommissioning liability. The nuclear power plant started
operating on 1st April, 20X1. The plant has a useful life of 40 years. Its initial cost was % 1,20,000. This
included an amount for decommissioning costs of ¥ 10,000, which represented ¥ 70,400 in estimated cash
flows payable in 40 years discounted at a risk-adjusted rate of 5 per cent. The entity's financial year ends
oh 31st March. Assume that a market-based discounted cash flow valuation of 2 1,15,000 is obtained at 31st
March, 20X4. This valuation is after deduction of an allowance of % 11,600 for decommissioning costs, which
represents no change to the original estimate, after the unwinding of three years’ discount. On 31st March,
20X5, the entity estimates that, as a result of technological advances, the present value of the
decommissioning liability has decreased by ¥ 5,000. The entity decides that a full valuation of the asset is
needed at 31st March, 20X5, in order to ensure that the carrying amount does not differ materially from
fair value. The asset is now valued at ¥ 1,07,000, which is net of an allowance for the reduced
decommissioning obligation.

How the entity will account for the above changes in decommissioning liability if it adopts revaluation model?

20. Illustration

M Ltd. is setting up a new factory outside the Delhi city limits. To facilitate the construction of the factory
and its operations, M Ltd. is required to incur expenditure on the construction/ development of electric
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substation. Though M Ltd. incurs (or contributes to) the expenditure on the construction/ development, it
will not have ownership rights on these items, and they are also available for use to other entities and public
at large. Whether M Ltd. can capitalize expenditure incurred on these items as property, plant, and
equipment (PPE)? If yes, then how should these items be depreciated and presented in the financial
statements of M Ltd. as per Ind AS?

21. Tllustration

Flywing Airways Ltd is a company which manufactures aircraft parts and engines and sells them to large
multinational companies like Boeing and Airbus Industries.

On 1 April 20X1, the company began the construction of a new production line in its aircraft parts
manufacturing shed.

Costs relating to the production line are as follows (‘000):

Costs of materials (list price less a 20% trade discount) 10,000

Recoverable GST not included in the purchase cost 1,000

Employment costs of the construction staff for the three | 1,200
months to 30 June 20X1

Other overheads directly related to the construction 900

Payments to external advisors relating to the construction | 500

Expected dismantling and restoration costs 2,000

The construction staff was engaged in the production line, which took two months to make ready for use and
was brought into use on 31 May 20X1.

The other overheads were incurred in the two months period ended on 31 May 20X1. They included an
abnormal cost of Rs.3,00,000 caused by a major electrical fault.

The production line is expected to have a useful economic life of eight years. At the end of that time
Flywing Airways Ltd is legally required to dismantle the plant in a specified manner and restore its location
to an acceptable standard. The amount of Rs.2 million mentioned above is the amount that is expected to be
incurred at the end of the useful life of the production line. The appropriate rate to use in any discounting
calculations is 5%. The present value of Re.1 payable in eight years at a discount rate of 5% is approximately
Re.0-68.

Four years after being brought into use, the production line will require a major overhaul to ensure that it
generates economic benefits for the second half of its useful life. The estimated cost of the overhaul, at
current prices, is Rs.3 million. The Company computes its depreciation charge on a monthly basis.

No impairment of the plant had occurred by 31 March 20X2.

Analyze the accounting implications of costs related to production line to be recognized in the balance sheet
and profit and loss for the year ended 31 March, 20X2.
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Ind AS 38

Intangible Assets

1 ZIntroduction

IND AS 38 prescribes the accounting treatment for intangible assets that are not dealt with specifically by

another Standard.

An asset is a resource controlled by an entity as a result of past events and from which future economic
benefits are expected to flow to the entity.

Intangible Asset An identifiable non-monetary asset without physical substance

Control on Asset

Authority to get future Not let others get future
economic benefits economic benefits

The future economic benefits include:
e Revenue from the sale of products or services;
e Cost savings; or
e Other benefits resulting from the use of the asset by the entity.

1.1 Examples of Intangible Items

-

Intangible Items ]
\.

| | ] ] ]
[Marketing] Customer [Technology] [Contract] [Artistic ]

related related related Based related
( N N ) ( N )
|| Trade Mark ||| Customer || | Trade | | Franchise || | Musical
Lists secrets Agreements Works
\. J| \ /| \ J \. |\ J
( N N A ( N A
|| Newspaper || | Customer || | .. . || Employment || | Magazines,
mastheads Contracts Contracts Newspapers
\. J| \ /| \ J \. |\ J
( N A ( N A
Internet Customer Plays, operas
—  Domain — . .| Databases —  License || Tays, op
N Relationship and ballets
ames
\. /| \ J \. J| J
N " Non- | ( A ( N A
on- contractual Computer Lease Pictures &
— competitive | — — —
customer Software Agreements photographs
agreements . .
\ ) \_relationship / | ) \ ) U )
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Intangible items like customer lists, market share, customer relationships can be considered as Intangible
Assets only if the entity can exercise control over these to generate future economic benefits, which is very
rare. They should be separable or contractual and able to be sold at a value independently.

2 Intangible Assets - Elements

2.1 Identifiability

An Intangible Asset should be identifiable to distinguish it from
goodwill for it be considered under IND AS 38. An entity must be
able to separate the intangible asset from other assefts.

Ex: A copyright of a movie is separable from the identity of a

Goodwill is the difference ’
between the purchase price
of a business and the fair
value of its assets, net of
liabilities [Refer INndAS 103]

sold independently. - -J

entertainment company or other assets in the company and it can be

Conditions for
Identifiability

Arises from
Separable contractual / legal
rights

An asset is identifiable if its either:

o separable, from the entity and sold, transferred, licensed, rented or exchanged, either individually or
together with a related contract, identifiable asset or liability, not considering the company's intention;
or

o arises from contractual or other legal rights, even if such rights are not transferable or separable
from the entity.
Goodwill is not separately identifiable asset unless purchased.

2.2 Non-monetary

The classification of monetary assets and non-monetary assets is based on respective realizability of the
assets in ferms of money.

Monetary assets are assets whose economic benefits are determined in terms of currency units. Assets whose
economic benefits will not be received in the form of fixed determinable units of currency are known as non-
monetary assets.

Examples

Monetary - Account receivables

Non-Monetary - PPE

2.3 Non-physical substance
An Intangible Asset does not have physical substance - it should not be tangible i.e it should not perceptible
by touch.
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But sometimes some Intangible Assets are associated with physical substance / tangible item for storage

purpose. Ex: soffware stored on a CD or a patent signed on the paper. In such circumstances, since the physical

substance is insignificant, the CD with software will be considered as Intangible .
Asset.

If the tangible part is significant, it will be

considered under IND AS 16 as Property,

i ’ Plant & Equipment. Ex: smart phone with

3 operating system.

Monetary assets like Account Receivables, Deposits with Bank etc are not considered to be intangible assets.

3 Recognition of Intangible Asset

Recognition Conditions
(same as IND AS 16)
I
I l
(1) Future Economic
[ Benefits (2) Costs
[ Probable ] [ Measured reliably ]
An item fo be recognised as Intangible Asset, it should
. meet definition criteria :
0 hon-monetary, _O_
o non-physical, N
o identifiable An intangible item should
. meet recognition criteria meet both definition and

o future economic benefits to flow into the entity and

recognition criteria to be
control on benefits established

. considered as IA.
o costs measured reliably

This recognition criteria applies to:
. Initial costs incurred to
o acquire an intangible asset or
o internally generate an intangible asset; and
. subsequent costs incurred to add to / replace part of / or service intangible asset.
It is assumed that the subsequent costs on intangible assets are generally for maintaining existing future
economic benefits and are expensed unless the recognition criteria is met.
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[ Expenses on Intangible Assets }

I
| |

Initial Costs } [SubsequentCosts}

I

Capitalised
oo | | rediorauure

to expenditure arise

4 Measurement of Intangible Assets

Intangible Assets may be acquired or self-generated. In case of independent / separate acquisition of an
intangible asset, it is assumed that future economic benefits will flow into the entity. There is no requirement
for checking the viability of the economic benefits from such independent acquisition of intangible asset.

4.1 Costs for Acquired Intangible Assets

Purchase Price XXX
Add:

Non-refundable taxes and duties XXX
Installation costs XXX
Professional Fees XXX
Borrowing costs (If permitted by Ind AS 23) XXX

Any directly attributable cost to bring the asset to the location and condition, | xxx
necessary to operate for its purpose intended by the management

Less:

Government grant received specific to the asset (Ind AS 20) XXX
Trade discounts and rebates (If included in above costs) XXX
Cost of Intangible Asset XXXX

Cessation of Capitalisation of Costs.

Capitalisation of intangible asset stops when the asset is ready for its intended
use.
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4.2 Costs for Internally Generated Assets

4.2.1 Goodwill %
Internally generated qoodwill is not recognised as an asset because it IND AS 38 prohibits

the recognition of
internally  generated

does not meet the definition criterion nor the recognition criterion of an
intangible asset i.e.

e it is not separable nor

e doesn't arise from contractual or other legal rights goodwill as an asset.

P S—

e cannot be measured reliably at cost. —_— ~

Internally generated goodwill cannot be measured reliably as there are many factors that affect the fair
value.

Goodwill can also arise from business combination. Such a goodwill can be recognised in the books of accounts
as the acquisition price for business over and above the fair value of the net assets acquired (IND AS 103)
Internally generated Brands, mastheads, publishing titles, customer lists and items similar in substance
shall not be recognised as intangible assets as per the standard,

4.3 Internally generated Intangible Assets other than Goodwill

Internally generated IA

Research ] Development

Capitalised if 6 conditions

Expensed met

Research Phase -
e It is astage where new scientific or technical knowledge and understanding is obtained.
e Formulation, design evaluation and final selection of possible better alternatives is undertaken.
e In the research phase of an internal project, an entity cannot demonstrate that an intangible asset
exists that will generate probable future economic benefits.
e Therefore, this expenditure is recognised as an expense when it is incurred.

|
A\
Development Phase - It is the stage where research findings are 'O'
A b
applied and feasibility of production of new or substantially &

improved items is decided. Design, construction and testing of pre- If expense on Research and

production or pre-use prototypes and models is done. This stage is Development cannot be

before the commercial production is undertaken. separated then it shall be
expensed

Six Conditions for Capitalising Development Expenses:

Expenses arising out of development will be capitalised if an entity

can demonstrate all of the following
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Technical feasibility for completion of Intangible asset to make it available ]
for use or sale

> Intention of entity to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it

> Ability to use or sell the intangible asset.

> Demonstrate generation of probable future economic benefits

Adequate resources (like technical, financial or others) are available
to complete the development.

Measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset |
during its development.

7

5 Costs - Intangible Asset - internally generated

The cost of an internally generated intangible asset comprises all directly attributable costs necessary to
create, produce, and prepare the asset to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

All costs till the date of recognition of the intangible asset are expensed to the statement of profit and loss.
All cost from the date of recognition till the date the asset is ready to be put o use are capitalised.

Started work Recognised as Asset ready
on the Asset Intangible Asset for use

All costs All costs during
Charged this period to
to PSL be capitalised

5.1 Inclusions
Directly attributable costs -
¢ Direct material
e Cost of services directly used
e Employee costs
e Legal expenses essential for the intangible asset (filing of patent application)
e Other intangible assets (patents & licenses) used for making the intangible asset ready for use
e Borrowing costs as permissible under Ind AS 23
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5.2 Exclusions
The following costs are excluded from the capitalisation for intangible asset:
e Selling Overheads
e Indirect Costs
e Initial operating losses
e Losses due to inefficiency
e Staff training costs

6 Intangible Assets in exchange of non-monetary asset

Intangible assets may be acquired in exchange for

e anon-monetary asset or assets, or

e acombination of monetary and non-monetary assets.
The capitalisation cost of an intangible asset exchanged for non-monetary asset depends on the commercial
substance of the transaction.

An exchange transaction has commercial substance if:

(@)  risk, timing and amount of the cash flows of the asset received is different from
that of the cash flows of the asset transferred,;

(b)  entity's operations significantly affected by the transaction;

Fair Value (FV)
measurable of
asset given up?

Yes No

FV measurable
of 1A acquired?

Yes No
IAValued at FV  |A valued at FV IA valued at IA valued at
of asset given of asset carrying carrying
up acquired amount amount

Ind AS 38 1FIN by Indigo Learn 4.7



7 Intangible Assets in the form of Govt. Grant

An intangible asset may be acquired free of charge, or for nominal consideration, by way of a government
grant.

Such assets should be valued or capitalised in accordance with IND AS 20, i.e intangible assets received as
grant at nominal consideration or free should be valued at nominal value or fair value.

Any expenditure incurred in relation to such asset that is directly attributable to preparing the asset for its

intended use can also be capitalised along with nominal or fair value.

8 Intangible Assets acquired as Business Combination

When an intangible asset is acquired in a business combination, the cost of that intangible asset is /ts fair
value at the acquisition date.
An acquirer recognises an identifiable intangible asset acquired at the acquisition date, separately from
goodwill, even if the asset was not recognised by the acquiree before.
Even in-process research and development project of the acquiree can be valued by the acquirer if

e the project meets the definition of an intangible asset after acquisition; and

o asset is separately identifiable.
The acquirer may recognise a group of similar and related intangible assets as a single asset if the individual
assets have similar useful lives.

9 Expenditure on Intangible Asset should be expensed

Expenditure on Intangible Asset should be charged to statement of
profit and loss i.e. expensed, unless it meets the recognition criterion. di
Expenditure on an intangible item will be capitalised if: to P&L, an expenditure on

o it meets the definition and recognition criteria and becomes Intangible Asset cannot be
part of cost; or recapitalised.

Once expensed or charged

e the item is acquired in a business combination and cannot be

(

recognised as an intangible asset. Goodwill be recognised

9.1 Expenditure always expensed:

e Research expenditure (except when it is acquired as part of a business combination)
e Start up costs
o Establishment (legal & secretarial) costs
o Incorporation costs
o Starting new operations or products
e Training costs
e Advertising and promotional expenses
¢ Reorganising or relocating expenses

9.2 Expenses which do not create intangible Asset.
Any expense which does not create intangible assets should be expensed as below.
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When to expense?

|
| |

Related to Goods Related to Services
Expense when entity has right to Expense when entity receives
receive goods services

An entity need not expense advance paid for goods or prepaid expenditure related to services in the year of
payment.

Important Note - Once an expense is recognised, it cannot be capitalised back as intangible asset in future.

10 Amortisation

e Systematic allocation A Depreciable Amount

= Costs - Residual
value

Amortisation is O,

e Of depreciable amount
e Over the useful life of the Intangible Asset

10.1 Residual Value
Residual value is usually the excess of current estimated realisable
value over the estimated disposal costs assuming the asseft is at its end of the useful life today.

Generally, Residual Value (RV) of an intangible asset is assumed to be zero

Exception - Third party commitment to purchase or an active market exists

Reviewed End of each period
Change in estimate of RV Account as per Ind AS 8
If RV is higher than carrying Amount Amortisation amount = 0
If RV again falls below Carrying amount Restart amortisation

10.2 Useful life of an Intangible Asset
The accounting for an intangible asset is based on its useful life.
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[ Useful life } \Of
| /_\
©

| | ‘Indefinite’ does not
{ Finite } [ Indefinite } mean ‘infinite’

No limit to the period of use
of the intangible asset and
its expected benefits

Limited defined period of
benefit to entity

Amortisation done over ]

useful life [ Amortisation not possible

An intangible asset is considered to have indefinite useful life when there is no foreseeable limit to the period
over which the asset is expected to generate net cash inflows for the entity

10.2.1 Factors to determine the useful life

( )
+ Expected usage of the asset by the entity and can it be
Usage managed by another team.
N J
( ) . — :
. * Product life cycles for the asset and public information
Procuct Life Cycle on estimates of useful life of similar asset used in a
similarwav
N J >HRHEEWaY
( )

+ Technical, technological , commercial or other type of
Obsolescence obsolescence

Industrial and changes in market demand for the products or service
market changes from the output

( 1 [ industrial stability in which the asset operate and >
S

N J
4 ) . : :
* Expected actions by competitors or potential

Competitors competitors

N J

( ) - : : :
Maintenance * Level of maintenance gxpendlture required tQ obta!n th

Expenses expected future benefits and management's intention to
L ) reach such level
( ) |+ Period of control over the asset and legal or similar
Control over Asset limits on the use of assets, like expiry dates of related
leases
N J
( * Whether the useful life is dependent on the useful lives
Interdependence of other assets of the entity
N
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10.2.2 Useful life dependent on Contracts

The useful life of an intangible asset arising from contractual or other legal rights shall not exceed the period
of the contractual or other legal rights, but may be shorter depending on the period over which the entity
expects fo use the asset.

Useful life < Contractual period

Renewal costs are considered significant or not-significant in comparison with the additional economic benefits

received by the entity during the renewal period.

{ Cost of Renewal }

I
I I

[ Significant } { Not significant }
Consider it as new intangible Include renewal period into
asset original useful life

Expense the renewal cost

10.3 Amortisation Period

Amortisation is done for an intangible asset only if the intangible asset has finite useful life.

[ Amortisation Period }

I
I I

Commencement Cessation
(Start) (Stop)
When Earlier of
I
. I I.
When Asset is ready Asset held for Sale Asset is de-
for use recognised

(as per IND AS 105)

(as per IND AS 16) (as per IND AS 38)
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Amortisation does not cease when the intangible asset is no longer used, unless the asset has been fully
depreciated or is classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale)
in accordance with Ind AS 105.

The amortisation period for an intangible asset with a finite useful life should be reviewed at least at each
financial year-end. If the expected useful life of the asset is different from previous estimates, the
amortisation period should be changed accordingly. Such change is accounted for as a change in accounting
estimates in accordance with Ind AS 8.

10.4 Amortisation Methods
The amortisation method used should reflect the pattern in which

the asset’s future economic benefits are expected to be consumed If that pattern cannot be

determined reliably, the
straight-line method
should be used.

by the entity i.e. the consumption of economic benefit's pattern should
be matched with the amortisation amount pattern.

Entity determines the predominant limiting factor inherent in an
intangible asset and based on such factor, chooses the amortisation
method. These methods include the straight-line method, the
diminishing balance method and the units of production method.

(

Revenue cannot generally determine the pattern of consumption, and thus revenue cannot be used as basis

for amortisation.
Exception if
e the contract specifically states that the revenue as the limiting factor (For eg asset can be used upto

a certain amount of revenue generated) or
e revenue has high correlation with the consumption pattern,
then amortisation can be based on revenue.

The amortisation method should be reviewed at least at each financial
If that pattern cannot be

year-end. If there has been a change in the expected pattern of
determined reliably, the

consumption of the future economic benefits, amortisation method can be
changed and such change is considered as change in accounting estimates straight-line method
as per IND AS 8. should be used.

Amortisation is usually recognised in profit or loss. Sometimes they are

(

absorbed in producing other assets like inventories.
Amortisation of an intangible asset with a finite useful life does not cease when the intangible asset is no
longer used.

10.5 Intangible Assets with Indefinite Useful Lives

An entity is required to test an intangible asset with an indefinite useful life for impairment by comparing its
recoverable amount with its carrying amount

(a) annually; and

(b) whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.

The change from indefinite to finite is considered as a change in an accounting estimate in accordance with
Ind AS 8.

When the entity reassesses the useful life of an intangible asset as finite, it has to tests the asset for
impairment and recognising any excess of the carrying amount over the recoverable amount as an impairment
loss.
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Periodic review

(every financial year)

[
I I I I

Amortisation method} [ Residual Value} [ Useful Life } [ Impairment }

11 Subsequent Measurement

Initial recognition is always at cost

Measurement ]

|
| |

Initial [ Subsequent ]
[
L |
At cost Cost Model [ Revaluation Model
Fair Value
Cost (-) subsequent accumulated
(-) Accumulated Amortisation amortisation
(-) Impairment Loss (-) subsequent impairment
loss

11.1 Revaluation Model

The revaluation model does not allow:
(a) the revaluation of intangible assets that have not previously been recognised as assets (i.e treated as
expenses); or
(b) the initial recognition of intangible assets at amounts other than cost.
e Model must be followed by class of assets
e Carrying value should not differ significantly from the fair value
e Intangible assets received as government grants can be revalued.

11.2 Active Market
Fair value of the asset can be measured by reference to an active market at a subsequent measurement date.

If there is no active market or the active market is unable to determine the fair value, then the IA will be
revalued at earlier measured cost or earlier fair value.
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{ Active Market J

I l
Present ] [ Doesn't Exist ] [ Ceases to Exist
( ) ( )
Fair value can be Do not apply Use latest revalued
determined revaluation model amount
. J . J
( ) ( )
. Carrying Value at Check for
Apply Revaluation Model Cost Model Impairement
. J . J

11.3 Accounting under Revaluation Model
The increase in carrying amount shall be recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of revaluation surplus. If an intangible asset's carrying amount is decreased as a result of a
revaluation, the decrease shall be recognised in profit or loss.

First Time Revaluation

Increase in value Intangible Asset A/c Dr.

(Fair Value > Carrying Amount) To Revaluation Surplus A/c

Decrease in value P&L A/c (loss) A/c Dr.

(Carrying amount > Fair value) To Intangible Asset A/c
Subsequent Revaluation

Increase in value If no downward revaluation earlier:

(Fair Value > Carrying Amount) Intangible Asset A/c Dr.

To Revaluation Surplus A/c
If downward revaluation earlier, to the

extent of loss:
Intangible Asset A/c Dr.
To P&L A/c
Decrease in value If no upward revaluation earlier:
(Carrying amount > Fair value) P&L A/c (loss) A/c Dr.

To Intangible Asset A/c
If upward revaluation earlier, to the extent
of upward revaluation :
Revaluation Surplus A/c  Dr.

To Intangible Asset A/c

11.4 Presentation of Revaluation Amount
Revaluation amount can be presented either on
e Net basis - accumulated amortisation is adjusted to the gross carrying amount and the adjusted net
carrying amount will be restated with the revaluation amount added.
e Gross basis - increase the gross carrying amount and the amortisation value proportionately.
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12 Derecognition of Intangible Asset

Intangible Asset is recognised when entity ascertains that the future economic benefits would flow
to the entity.

Intangible Asset is derecognised when

o no future economic benefits are expected to flow into the entity or

o the asset is disposed by the entity

The difference between carrying amount and disposal proceeds is recognised in P&L.

Disposal proceeds is determined in line with principles given under Ind AS 115

If intangible assets are sold as leaseback, gain / loss is recognised as per IND AS 116, otherwise gain
or loss are recognised in statement of profit or loss.

13 Disclosure

13.1 General Disclosures

An entity shall disclose the following for each class of intangible assets, distinguishing between internally

generated intangible assets and other intangible assets:

(a) Useful life of IA - indefinite or finite (useful life, Amortisation rates)
(b) Amortisation methods - SLM, WDV, others;
(c) Gross carrying amount, accumulated amortisation, accumulated impairment losses
e beginning of the period
e end of the period;
(d) Line item(s) of P&L statement which includes amortisation
(e) Reconciliation (carrying amount) - beginning and end of the period showing:
(i) Additions
*  Internal development additions,
*  Acquired additions
o separately
o business combinations;

(ii) Disposals
. TA held for sale
. other disposals;

(iii) increases or decreases from
* revaluations
* impairment losses recognised or reversed in other comprehensive income
(iv) impairment losses recognised in P&L during the period
(v) impairment losses reversed in P&L during the period
(vi)  any amortisation recognised during the period;
(vii)  net exchange differences arising on translation (into presentation currency) of
+ financial statements
+ foreign operation;
(viii)  other changes in the carrying amount during the period

Opening Movements Closing
Balance +/-) Balance

Additions | Disposal | Amortisation | Impairment | Revaluation | Exchange
difference
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13.2 Specific Disclosures
@ Intangible Assets with indefinite useful life
e carrying amount of that asset
e reasons supporting indefinite useful life.

ofactor(s) that played a significant role in determining so

(i) Individual IA material to financial statements
e description,
e  carrying amount and
e remaining amortisation period
(iii)  TA acquired as Govt. Grant and initially recognised at fair value
e fair value initially recognised for these assets;
e  their carrying amount; and

e measured after recognition under the cost/revaluation model

(iv) Title Restrictions & Capital Commitments
e existence
e carrying amounts
(v) Pledged as Securities - Carrying amounts
(vi) Contractual commitments for the acquisition of IA
(vii)  IA under Revaluation Model
o Every class of TA
o Effective date of revaluation
o Carrying amount of revaluation
o Carrying amount of revalued asset as per Cost model
e Revaluation Surplus
o Beginning and ending amount
o Changes
o Restriction on distribution to shareholders
e Methods & assumptions for estimating fair values

(viii)  Research and Development Expenditure - An entity shall disclose the aggregate amount of research

and development expenditure recognised as an expense during the period.

13.3 Voluntary Disclosure
An entity can disclose the following information:

a) a description of any fully amortised intangible asset that is still in use; and

b) a brief description of significant intangible assets controlled by the entity but not recognised as assets

because they did not meet the recognition criteria in this Standard or because they were acquired or

generated before this standard was effective.

14 Exclusions from IND AS 38

Exclusions
Inventory
Deferred Tax Assets
Leases of Intangible Assets
Financial Assets
Assets arising out of employee benefits
Goodwill on business combination
Deferred acquisition cost and Intangible Asset from insurance contract
Non-current assets held for sale
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12
116
32
19
103
104
105
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Assets arising from contracts with customers

Mineral oils and ores

115
106

Amortisation method for intangible assets arising from service concession

arrangements in respect of toll roads recognised in the financial
statements before the beginning of the first Ind AS financial reporting

period as per the previous GAAP

Y
S

_

Rights under license agreement excluded under IND AS 116 will be dealt

by IND AS 38
v
15 IND AS 38 vs AS 26
Basis of AS 26 IND AS 38
differences
Definition of IA e Identifiable ¢ identifiable

Identifiability

Recognition  for
Separately
Acquired
Intangible Assets
Amortisation
Method

Payment deferred
beyond normal
credit

IA under business

combination

Subsequent
expenditures
IA acquired under

on

business
combination

IA acquired under
exchange

Ind AS 38

e non-monetary asset
o without physical substance
e held for
o use in the production or
supply of goods or services,
o for rental to others,
for administrative purposes
'identifiability".
Separability from  goodwill

Does not define
not a
necessary condition

Criterion of probable inflow of expected
future economic benefits is always

considered satisfied

No such guidelines

No such consideration

No such provision in AS 26

AS 14 deals with Amalgamation in nature

of purchase
No such guidance

No mention of treatment

1FIN by Indigo Learn

e non-monetary asset
e without physical
substance

Asset's purpose to hold for use is not a part
of definition

Provides detailed guidance in respect of
identifiability.

No such provision

Revenue based amortisation not

appropriate
Considered

Dealt in detail

Guidance available for treatment

Specific mention of treatment
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IA acquired free
of cost or at
nominal price
Useful life of IA

Use nominal value or cost of acquisition
only. Fair value not considered.

Useful life always finite and presumption
- use life cannot exceed 10 years
Expenses to be
recognised

No detailed guidelines

Contractual &
Legal Rights
Residual value

Does not include such a provision
Residual value increase not available

IA held for sale / | Covered

retired from use

Exclusions Paragraph 5 of AS 26, does not apply to
accounting issues of specialised nature
that arise in respect of accounting for
discount or premium relating to
borrowings and ancillary costs incurred
in connection with the arrangement of
borrowings, share issue expenses and
discount allowed on the issue of shares

Exclusions No such exclusion

Valuation Model  Revaluation model is not permitted.

as Accounting

policy

16 Summary of IND AS 38

Value IA at fair value or hominal value

IA's useful life can be finite or indefinite.

Detailed guidelines available

Useful life may be less than legal life

Provision for increase in residual value
available

Not covered (they are covered by Ind AS
105)

Discount or premium relating to

borrowings and ancillary costs are not
considered as they are dealt with by other
Ind AS

Toll road service concession agreement
excluded

Either the cost model or the revaluation
model

Intangible Assets - An identifiable non-monetary asset without physical substance

An item fo be recognised as Intangible Asset, it should
. meet definition criteria
0 hon-monetary,
o non-physical,
o identifiable an
. meet recognition criteria

o future economic benefits to flow into the entity and

control on benefits established
o costs measured reliably
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" An intangible item should
meet both definition and

recognition criteria to be
considered as IA.
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Expenses on Intangible
Assets

I
I I

{ Initial Costs } { Subsequent }
Costs

I
I |

Capitalised
{ Capitalised } Charged to P
P&L if additional future economic

benefits due to expenditure arise

Goodwill

|
| |

[ Research ] [ Development ]

Capitalised if 6
I Expensed I [ conditions met I

[ Internally generated IA, other than ]

|
Realible

measurement

of Expenditure

Technical Entity's Ability to Probable Adequate
feasibility intention use / sell FEB Resources

Costs
All costs till the date of recognition of the intangible asset are expensed to the statement of profit and loss.
All cost from the date of recognition till the date the asset is ready to be put to use are capitalised.
Intangible Asset exchanged for non-monetary asset

Exchange has commercial substance -

1" Priority - IA recognised at FV of asset given up

2" Priority - FV of asset acquired if more evident

If FV not determinable or exchange lacks commercial substance - Carrying amount of asset given up.
Amortisation

Period

I
I I

[ Amortisation }

[ Commencement ] [ Cessation ]
[ When ] [ Earlier of ]
I
I A is d
sset is de-
When Asset is Asset held for Sale recognised
ready for use (as per IND AS 105) (as per IND AS 38)
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Measurement

Initial Subsequent
|
|
At cost ‘ Cost Model \ Revaluation Model
Fair Value
Cost (-) subsequent accumulated
(-) Accumulated Amortisation amortisation
(-) Impairment Loss (-) subsequent impairment
loss

De-recognition

Intangible Asset is derecognised when
o no future economic benefits are expected to flow into the entity or
o the asset is disposed by the entity

1. Illustration

Jupiter Ltd acquires new energy efficient technology that will significantly reduce its energy costs for
manufacturing. Which costs can be considered for capitilisation?

Costs incurred include
(Rs.)

Cost of new solar technology 10,00,000
Trade discount provided 1,00,000
Training course for staff in new technology 50,000
Initial testing of new technology 35,000
Losses incurred while other parts of plant shut down during 25,000
testing and training

2. Illustration

16.1.1 Venus India Private Ltd acquired a software for its internal use costing Rs.10,00,000. The amount
payable for the software was Rs. 600,000 immediately and Rs. 400,000 in one year time.

16.1.2 The other expenditure incurred were:-

16.1.3- Purchase tax: Rs. 1,00,000
16.1.4- Entry Tax: 10% (recoverable later from tax department) Legal fees: Rs. 87,000
16.1.5- Consultancy fees for implementation: Rs. 1,20,000 Cost of capital of the company is 10%.

16.1.6 Calculate the cost of the software on initial recognition using the principles of Ind AS 38 Intangible
Assets.
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3. Illustrations

A Company is preparing its accounts for the year ended 31st March, 20X2 and is unsure how to treat the
following items.

1. Company has completed a big marketing and advertising campaign costing Rs. 2,40,000. The finance
director had authorised this campaign on the basis that it would create Rs. 5,00,000 of additional
profits over the next three years.

2. A new product was developed during the year. The expenditure aggregated Rs. 1,50,000 of which Rs.
1,00,000 was incurred prior o 30th September, 20X1, the date on which it became clear that the
product was technically viable. The new product will be launched in the next four months and its
recoverable amount is estimated at Rs. 70,000.

3. Staff participated in a training programme which cost the company Rs. 300,000. The training
organisation had made a presentation to the directors of Baxter outlining that the incremental profits
to the business over the next twelve months would be Rs. 500,000.

What amounts should appear as assets in Venus Ltd. Balance sheet as at 31st March, 20X2?

4. TIllustrations

Sun Ltd acquired a software from Earth Ltd. in exchange for a telecommunication license.

*The telecommunication license is carried at Rs. 5,00,000 in the books of Sun Ltd.

*The Software is carried at Rs. 10,000 in the books of the Earth Ltd which is not the fair value.
Advise journal entries in the following situations in the books of Sun Ltd and Earth Ltd:

1) Fair value of software is Rs. 5,20,000 and fair value of telecommunication license is Rs. 5,00,000.

2) Fair Value of Software is not measurable. However similar Telecommunication license is transacted
by another company at Rs. 4,90,000.

3) Neither Fair Value of Software nor Telecommunication license could be reliably measured.

5. Illustrations

16.1.7 X Ltd. acquired a patent right of manufacturing drug from Y Ltd. In exchange X Ltd. gives its
intellectual property right fo Y Ltd. Current market value of the patent and intellectual property rights
are Rs. 20,00,000 and Rs. 18,00,000 respectively.

At what value patent right should be initially recognised in the books of X Ltd. in following two situations?
(a) X Ltd. did not pay any cash to Y Ltd.
(b) X Ltd. pays Rs. 2,00,000 to Y Ltd.

6. Illustrations

16.1.8 An entity is developing a hew production process.
16.1.9 During 20X1-20X2, expenditure incurred was Rs. 1,000, of which

16.1.10 . Rs. 900 was incurred before 1st March, 20X2 and
16.1.11 . Rs. 100 was incurred between 1st March, 20X2 and 31st March, 20X2.
16.1.12 The entity is able to demonstrate that at 1st March, 20X2, the production process met the

criteria for recognition as an intangible asset.

16.1.13 The recoverable amount of the know-how embodied in the process (including future cash
outflows to complete the process before it is available for use) is estimated to be Rs. 500.

16.1.14 During 20X2-20X3, expenditure incurred is Rs. 2,000. At the end of 20X3, the recoverable
amount of the know-how embodied in the process (including future cash outflows to complete the
process before it is available for use) is estimated to be Rs. 1,900.
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16.1.15 Explain the accounting treatment of expenditure incurred in 20X1-20X2 and 20X2-20X3 as
per relevant Ind AS.

16.1.16
7. Illustrations

16.1.17 On 31st March, 20X1, Earth India Ltd. paid Rs. 50,00,000 for a 100% interest in Sun India
Ltd. At that date Sun Ltd.'s net assets had a fair value of Rs. 30,00,000.
16.1.18 In addition, Sun Ltd. also held the following rights:

*  Trade Mark named "GRAND" - valued at Rs. 180,000 using a discounted cash flow technique.
*  Sole distribution rights to an electronic product; future cash flows from which are estimated to be
Rs. 150,000 per annum for the next 6 years.
10% is considered an appropriate discount rate.
The 6-year, 10% annuity factor is 4.36.
Calculate goodwill and other Intangible assets arising on acquisition.

8. Illustrations

X Limited engaged in the business of manufacturing fertilisers entered into a technical collaboration
agreement with a foreign company Y Limited.

As a result, ¥ Limited would provide the technical know-how enabling X Limited to manufacture fertiliser in a
more efficient way. X Limited paid Rs. 10,00,00,000 for the use of know-how for a period of 5 years.

X Limited estimates the production of fertiliser as follows:

Year (In metric tons)
Y4 50,000
2 70,000
3 1,00,000
4 1,20,000
5 1,10,000

At the end of the 1st year, it achieved its targeted production. At the end of 2nd year, 65,000 metric tons
of fertiliser was being manufactured, and X Limited considered to revise the estimates for the next 3 years.
The revised figures are 85,000, 1,05,000 and 1,15,000 metric tons for year 3, 4 & 5 respectively.

How will X Limited amortise the technical know-how fees as per Ind AS 38?

9. Illustrations

X Pharmaceutical Ltd. seeks your opinion in respect of following accounting transactions:
1. Acquired a 4 year license to manufacture a specialised drug at a cost of Rs. 1,00,00,000 at the start
of the year. Production commenced immediately.
2. Also purchased another company at the start of year. As part of that acquisition, X Pharmacy Ltd.
acquired a brand with a fair value of Rs. 3,00,00,000 based on sales revenue. The life of the brand is estimated
at 15 years.
3. Spent Rs. 1,00,00,000 on an advertising campaign during the first six months. Subsequent sales have
shown a significant improvement and it is expected this will continue for 3 years.
4. It has commenced developing a hew drug 'Drug-A’. The project cost would be Rs. 10,00,00,000. Clinical
trial proved successful and such drug is expected to generate revenue over the next 5 years.

e Cost incurred (accumulated) till 31st March, 20X1 is Rs. 5,00,00,000.

e Balance cost incurred during the financial year 20X1-20X2 is Rs. 5,00,00,000.
5. It has also commenced developing another drug 'Drug B'. It has incurred Rs. 50,00,000 towards
research expenses till 31st March, 20X2. The technological feasibility has not yet been established.
How the above transactions will be accounted for in the books of account of X Pharmaceutical Ltd?
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10. Illustrations

X Ltd. is engaged in the business of publishing Journals. They acquired 100% stake in Y Ltd., a company in the
same industry. X Ltd. paid purchase consideration of Rs. 10,00,00,000 and fair value of net assets acquired is
Rs. 8,50,00,000.

The purchase consideration includes payment for the following as well:

(a) Rs. 30,00,000 for obtaining the skilled staff of Y Ltd.

(b) Rs. 50,00,000 by way of payment towards ‘Non-compete Fee' so as to restrict ¥ Ltd. fo compete in the
same line of business for next 5 years.

However, the above items (a) and (b) are not forming part of the net assets acquired of Rs. 8,50,00,000.
How should the above transactions be accounted for by X Ltd?

11. Illustrations

X Ltd. purchased a franchise from a restaurant chain at a cost of Rs.1,00,00,000 and the franchise has 10
years life.

In addition, the franchise agreement mentions that the franchisee would also pay the franchisor royalty as a
percentage of sales made.
Can the franchise rights be treated as an intangible asset under Ind AS 38?

12. Illustrations

16.1.19 An entity regularly places advertisements in newspapers advertising its products and includes
a reply slip that informs individuals replying to the advertisement that the entity may pass on the
individual's details to other sellers of similar products, unless the individual ticks a box in the
advertisement.

16.1.20 Over a period of time the entity has assembled a list of customers' names and addresses. The
list is provided to other entities for a fee. The entity would like to recognise an asset in respect of
the expected future economic benefits to be derived from the list. Can the customer list be treated
as an intangible asset under Ind AS 38?

13. Illustrations

A software company X Ltd. is developing new software for the telecom industry. I+ employs 100 employs
engineers trained in that particular discipline who are engaged in the development of the software.

X Ltd. feels that it has an excellent HR policy and does not expect any of its employees to leave in the near
future. It wants to recognise these set of engineers as a human resources asset in the form of an intangible
asset.

What would be your advice to X Ltd?

14. Illustrations

X Ltd. purchased a standardised finance software at a list price of Rs. 30,00,000 and paid Rs. 50,000 towards
purchase tax which is nhon-refundable.

In addition to this, the entity was granted a trade discount of 5% on the initial list price. X Ltd. incurred cost
of Rs. 7,00,000 towards customisation of the software for its intended use. X Ltd. also purchased a 5-year
maintenance contract with the vendor company of Rs. 2,00,000.
At what cost the intangible asset will be recognised?
15. Illustrations
X Limited in a business combination, purchased the net assets of Y Limited for Rs. 4,00,000 on 31st March,
20X1.
The assets and liabilities position of Y Limited just before the acquisition is as follows:

Assets ‘ Cost (in Rs.) ‘
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Property, Plant & Equipment 1,00,000
Intangible asset 1 20,000
Intangible asset 2 50,000
Cash & Bank 1,30,000
Liabilities

Trade payable 50,000

The fair market value of the PPE, intangible asset 1 and intangible asset 2 is available and they are Rs. 1,50,000,
Rs. 30,000 and Rs. 70,000 respectively.

How would X Limited account for the net assets acquired from Y Limited?

16. Illustration

X Ltd. acquired Y Ltd. on 30th April, 20X1. The purchase consideration is Rs. 50,00,000. The fair value of the
tangible assets is Rs. 45,00,000. The company estimates the fair value of “in-process research projects” at
Rs. 10,00,000. No other Intangible asset is acquired by X Ltd. in the transaction.

Further, cost incurred by X Ltd. in relation to that research project is as follows:

(a) Rs. 5,00,000 - as research expenses

(b) Rs. 2,00,000 - to establish technological feasibility

(c) Rs. 7,00,000 - for further development cost after technological feasibility is established.
At what amount the intangible asset should be measured under Ind AS 38?

17. Illustration

X Ltd. is engaged is developing computer software. The expenditures incurred by X Ltd. in pursuance of its
development of software is given below:

(a) Paid Rs. 2,00,000 towards salaries of the program designers.

(b) Incurred Rs. 5,00,000 towards other cost of completion of program design.

(c) Incurred Rs. 2,00,000 towards cost of coding and establishing technical feasibility.

(d) Paid Rs. 7,00,000 for other direct cost after establishment of technical feasibility.

(e) Incurred Rs. 2,00,000 towards other testing costs.

(f) A focus group of other software developers was invited to a conference for the introduction of this
new software. Cost of the conference aggregated to Rs. 70,000.

On 15th March, 20X1, the development phase was complete and a cash flow budget was prepared and based on
which net profit for the year was estimated to be equal Rs. 40,00,000. How X Ltd. should account for the
above mentioned cost?

18. Illustration

Expenditure on a new production process in 20X1-20X2:

Rs.
1st April to 31st December 2,700
1st January to 31st March 900

3,600

The production process met the intangible asset recognition criteria for development on 1st January, 20X2.
The amount estimated to be recoverable from the process is Rs. 1,000.

Expenditure incurred for development of the process in FY 20X2-20X3 is Rs. 6,000. Asset was brought into
use on 31st March, 20X3 and is expected to be useful for 6 years.

What is the carrying amount of the intangible asset at 31st March, 20X2 and 31st March, 20X3. Also
determine the charge to profit or loss for 20X1-20X2?

At 31st March, 20X4, the amount estimated o be recoverable from the process is Rs. 5,000.
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What is the carrying amount of the intangible asset at 31st March, 20X4 and the charge to profit or loss
for 20X3-20X4 on account of impairment loss?
19. Illustration

XLtd. purchased a patent right on 1st April, 20X1, for Rs. 3,00,000; which has a legal life of 15 years. However,
due to the competitive nature of the product, the management estimates a useful life of only 5 years. Straight-

line amortisation is determined by the management to be the best method.

As at 1st April, 20X2, management is uncertain that the process can actually be made economically feasible,
and decides to write down the patent to an estimated market value of Rs. 1,50,000 and decides to amortise
over 2 years.

As at 1st April, 20X3, having perfected the related production process, the asset is now appraised at a value
of Rs. 3,00,000. Furthermore, the estimated useful life is now believed to be 4 more years.

Determine the value of intangible asset at the end of each financial year?

20. Illustration

One of the senior engineers at XYZ has been working on a process fo improve manufacturing efficiency and,
consequently, reduce manufacturing costs. This is a major project and has the full support of XYZ’s board of
directors.

The senior engineer believes that the cost reductions will exceed the project costs within twenty-four months
of their implementation.

Regulatory testing and health and safety approval was obtained on 1 June 20X5. This removed uncertainties
concerning the project, which was finally completed on 20 April 20X6. Costs of Rs. 18,00,000, incurred during
the year till 31st March 20X6, have been recognized as an intangible asset.

An offer of Rs. 7,80,000 for the new developed technology has been received by potential buyer but it has
been rejected by XYZ. Utkarsh believes that the project will be a major success and has the potential to save
the company Rs. 12,00,000 in perpetuity.

Director of research at XYZ, Neha, who is a qualified electronic engineer, is seriously concerned about the
long-term prospects of the new process and she is of the opinion that competitors would have developed new
technology at some time which would require to replace the new process within four years. She estimates that
the present value of future cost savings will be Rs. 9,60,000 over this period. After that, she thinks that
there is no certainty about its future.

What would be the appropriate accounting treatment of aforesaid issue?

21. Illustration (Nov 2019 Question Paper)

MNC Ltd. is in process of setting up a medicine manufacturing business which is at very initial stage. For this
purpose, MNC Ltd. as part of its business expansion strategy acquired on 1st April, 2019, 100% shares of
Akash Ltd., a company that manufactures pharmacy products. The purchase consideration for the same was

by way of a share exchange valued at Rs. 38 crore. The fair value of Akash Ltd.'s assets and liabilities were
Rs. 68 crore and Rs. 50 crore respectively, but the same does not include the following:

(i) A patent owned by Akash Ltd. for an established successful new drug that has a remaining life of 6
years. A consultant has estimated the value of this patent to be Rs. 8 crore. However, the outcome of clinical
trails for the same are awaited. If the trails are successful, the value of the drug would fetch the estimated
Rs. 12 crore.

(i) Akash Ltd. has developed and patented another new drug which has been approved for clinical use. The
cost of developing the drug was Rs. 13 crore. Based on early assessment of its sales success, a reputed valuer
has estimated its market value at Rs. 19 crore. However, there is no active market for the patent.

(iii)  Akash Ltd.'s manufacturing facilities have received a favourable inspection by a government
department. As a result of this, the company has been granted an exclusive five-year license on 1st April, 2018
to manufacture and distribute a new vaccine. Although the license has no direct cost to the Company, its
directors believe that obtaining the license is valuable asset which assures guaranteed sales and the cost to
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acquire the license is estimated at Rs. 7 crore of remaining period of life. It is expected to generate at least
equivalent revenue.
Suggest the accounting treatment of the above transactions with reasoning under applicable Ind AS in the
books of MNC Ltd.

22. Illustration

ABC Pvt. Ltd., recruited a player. As per the terms of the contract, the player is prohibited from playing for
any other entity for coming 5 years and have to in the employment with the company and cannot leave the
entity without mutual agreement.

The price the entity paid to acquire this right is derived from the skills and fame of the said player. The entity
uses and develops the player through participation in matches.

State whether the cost incurred to obtain the right regarding the player can be recognised as an intangible
asset as per Ind AS 38?
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Ind AS 40
Investment Propert

1. Introduction

1.1 Objective
e To prescribe acceounting treatment of Investment Property and owner occupied property.
e Recognition of Investment Property
e Determination of carrying amont and depreciation charges

1.2 Scope
This standard does NOT deal with the following.

(b) Biological assets related to agricultural Dealt as per IndAS
activity 16/ 41

(d) Mineral rights and mineral reserves such as No Ind AS exists.
oil, natural gas and similar non-regenerative Industry rules and
resources regulations are

followed.

2. Definitions

2.1 Investment Property

Investment
Property is
[ I ]
Held by the
Property owner or to earn
- Land lessee
- Building
)
or both
— Rentals
—
)
| | Capital
Appreciation
The following are not Investment Property
Property held for use in the production or PPE - Ind AS 16
supply of goods or for administrative purpose (Including future owner occupied
(Including property occupied by employees) properties, property occupied by
employees)

ROU Asset - Ind AS 116
This is called as owner occupied property.

Property held for sale in ordinary course of Inventory under Ind AS 2
business
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2.2

2.3

Dual purpose property

Property held
for more than
1 purpose
I
———
Split Split not
possible possible
[ 1
Owner Rental Owner
occupied Income occupied
portion - Portion - portion
PPE Inv. Prop I

PPE

nt - Inv.

1
Significant - Insignifica
Prop

|

Example of cases where split is possible - A building with 10 floors which can be independently
transferred or let out. 6 floors are used for office and are classified as PPE and 4 floors are
given on rent which are classified as investment property.

In cases where ancillary or additional services are provided and are significant, then the
property may be classified as PPE. For example a hotel where rooms are given on rent along
with other hotel related services. If services are insignificant as in the case of a security
services along with office premises on rent, then office premises are classified as investment

property.
Property given on rent to group companies

If one group company gives a property on rent to another group company, then in the
standalone financial statements, the property is classified as investment property. However in
the consolidated financial statements, the property is still owner occupied since the property

is still used by the group and is not given on rent outside the group.

Nature of Investment Property

Investment property is held for earning rentals and/or capital appreciation
It generates cash independently of other assets in an entity. Hence it can be an independent

Cash Generating Unit on its own.

Examples

Land held for long term capital appreciation
Land held for currently undetermined future use

A builiding owned by the entity and leased out under an operating lease

A building which is vacant and is held for leasing out

Property under construction which would be held as investment property in future.

Carrying Amount
Gross Book Value
(-) Accumulated Depreciation

(-) Accumulated Impairment Loss

Carrying Amount
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3. Recognition

General Criteria for
recognition of IP

Probable that future
economic benefits Cost of item can be
associated with the item will measured reliably
flow to the entity

If investment property is held by a lessee then principles under Ind AS 116 would apply.

3.1 Measurement at Recognition

An owned investment property should be initially measured at its cost. The principles are
same as those given under Ind AS 16.

3.2 If asset is purchased by payment of cash or credit.
The cost of an item of PPE comprises

Purchase Price XXX
Add:

Non-refundable taxes and duties XXX
Cost of site preparation XXX
Construction cost XXX
Professional Fees XXX
Borrowing costs (If permitted by Ind AS 23) XXX
Any directly attributable cost to bring the asset to the condition, XXX
necessary to operate for its purpose intended by the management

Less:

Government grant received specific to the asset (Ind AS 20) XXX
Trade discounts and rebates (If included in above costs) XXX
Cost of Investment Property to be capitalised XXXX

5.1.1 Exclusions from Cost of IP

e Startup costs

e Operating losses incurred before the investment property achieves planned level of activity.

e Abnormal amounts of wasted material, labour and other resources. Costs incurred in
introducing a new product or service.

The income and related expenses of incidental operations are recognised in
profit or loss
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3.3 IP acquired on deferred credit terms

e Recognised at cash price equivalent
o Difference between cash price and total payments is treated as interest expense.

3.4 Self - Constructed IP

The cost of a self-constructed asset is determined using the same principles as for an
acquired asset.
Inclusions:

> Costs of construction that directly relate to the specific assets

> Costs that can be attributable or allocated o the construction activity.

> Borrowing costs if IP is a qualifying asset as per Ind AS 23
Exclusions:

> Internal profits (Always take cost of construction and not sale price)

> The cost of abnormal amounts of wasted material, labour, or other resources incurred in self-
constructing an asset.

3.5 IPis acquired by exchange of non-monetary assets

Does the transaction have
commercial substance?

DG

[ FV of Asset acquired or given up

can be measured reliably?
I

Yes No
Carryin

Fv s -
Amount

If both the above conditions are satisfied, IP is measured at
(a) Fair value of asset given up (1°" Preference)
(b) Fair value of asset received
If both are available, consider whichever is more clearly evident.

If above conditions are not satisfied, IP is measured carrying amount of the asset given up.

Commercial Substance:
An exchange transaction has commercial substance if:

(a) The risk, timing, and amount of the cash flows of the asset received are significantly
different from the cash flows of the asset transferred.

(b) There is a significant effect on the present value of the after tax cash flows that an entity
expects to arise from the continuing use and disposal of the asset due to exchange
transaction.
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Fair Value of the Asset:
The fair value of an asset is reliably measurable if:

a) The variability in the range of reasonable fair value measurements is not significant for that
asset

b) The probabilities of the various estimates within the range can be reasonably assessed and
used when measuring fair value.

4. Measurement after Recognition

An entity shall measure investment property as follows

e Ind AS 105 - If held for sale.

e Ind AS 116 - If held by a lessee as ROU Asset.

e Ind AS 16 - Under cost model in all other cases.
An entity is required to follow COST MODEL only. Revaluation model is not permitted.
An entity is required to measure the fair value for DISCLOSURE purpose.

B. Transfers

An entity shall transfer a property (reclassify) when there is a change in use.

Ind AS 40 to Ind Commencement of owner occupation or development with
AS 16 view to owner occupation.

Ind AS 40 to Ind Commencement of development with a view to sell in

AS 2 ordinary course of business.

Ind AS 16 to Ind AS End of owner occupation

40

Ind AS 2 to Ind AS Inception of operating lease o another party

40

6. Impairment

Entity must calculate the recoverable amount in accordance with Ind AS 36.
Compensation from third parties for items of IP that were impaired, lost or given up shall be
included in profit or loss when the compensation becomes receivable.

7. Derecognition

The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment should be derecognised

(a) on disposal (Sale or finance lease)

(b) When the investment property is permanently withdrawn and no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal.

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition investment property is included in profit or loss
when the item is derecognised. The entity may derecognise a component which is replaced with
a new component (for e.g painting of walls). The principles are similar to the ones given for PPE.

In determining the date of disposal of an item of IP, an entity applies the criteria in Ind AS
115 (date recipient obtains control over IP) for recognising revenue. Ind AS 116 applies to
disposal by a sale and leaseback.
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Disclosure

Accounting policy for Investment Property

When classification is difficult, the criteria it uses to distinguish investment property from
owner occupied property

The extent fo which fair value is based on vauation by an independent valuer possessing
requisite skill.

Amounts recognsied in P&L for

Rental income

©)

o Direct operating expenses related to IP generating rental income

o Direct operating expenses related to IP which did not generate rental income.

e Existence and amount of restrictions on the realisability of investment property or
remittance of income.

e Contractual obligations for purchase, repairs etc.

o Depreciation method used.

e Useful lives and depreciation rates.

e (Gross carrying amount and accumulated depreciation at beginning and end of the reporting
period.

e Reconciliation of carrying amount of investment property at beginning and end of the period

e Fair value of Investment property

o A desrciption of IP

o An explanation of why fair value cannot be measured reliably

o Range of estimates within which fair value is likely to lie.

1. TIllustration
Netravati Ltd. purchased a commercial office space as an Investment Property, in the Global
Trade Centre Commercial Complex, for Rs.5 crores. However, for purchasing the same, the
Company had to obtain membership of the Global Trade Centre Commercial Complex
Association by paying Rs. 6,25,000 as a one-time joining fee.
Netravati Ltd. wants to write off the one-time joining fees paid as an expense under
Membership and Subscription Charges and value the investment property at Rs.5 crores.
Advise.
Would you answer change if the office space was purchased with the intention of using it as an
administrative centre of the company? (SM)

2. Tllustration

X Limited purchased a building for Rs.30,00,000 on 1st May, 20X1 with an intention to earn
rentals.

The purchase price was funded by a loan, interest on which is payable @ 5%. Property transfer
taxes and direct legal costs of Rs.1,00,000 and Rs.20,000 respectively were incurred in
acquiring the building.

X Limited redeveloped the building into retail shops for rent under operating leases to
independent third parties.
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a)
b)

Expenditures on redevelopment were:
Rs. 2,00,000 planning permission.
Rs.7,00,000 construction costs (including Rs.40,000 refundable purchase taxes)

What is the cost of the building as per Ind AS 40? (SM)

Illustration

Sun Ltd acquired a building in exchange of a warehouse whose fair value is Rs. 5,00,000 and
payment of cash is Rs.2,00,000. The fair value of the building received by the Company is
Rs.8,00,000. The company decided to keep that building for rental purposes.

Calculate the amount at which the building will be recognised. (SM)

Illustration

Moon Ltd has purchased a building on 1st April, 20X1 at a cost of Rs.10 million. The building
was used as a factory by the Moon Ltd and was measured under cost model. The expected
useful life of the building is estimated to be 10 years.

Due to decline in demand of the product, the Company does not need the factory anymore and
has rented out the building to a third party from 1st April, 20X5. On this date the fair value
of the building is Rs.8 million. Moon Itd uses cost model for accounting of its investment
property. (SM)

Illustration

(a)
(b)
(c)

(d)

X Ltd owned a land property whose future use was not determined as at 31 March 20X1. How
should the property be classified in the books of X Ltd as at 31 March 20X1?

During June 20X1, X Ltd commenced construction of office building on it for own use.
Presuming that the construction of the office building will still be in progress as at 31 March
20X2

How should the land property be classified by X Ltd in its financial statements as at 31 March
20X2?

Will there be a change in the carrying amount of the property resulting from any change in use
of the investment property?

Whether the change in classification to, or from, investment properties is a change in
accounting policy to be accounted for in accordance with Ind AS 8, Accounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors?

Would your answer to (a) above be different if there were to be a management intention to
commence construction of an office building for own use; however, no construction activity was
planned by 31 March 20X2? (SM)

Illustration

X Limited has an investment property (building) which is carried in Balance Sheet on 31st
March, 20X1 at Rs.15,00,000. During the year X Limited has stopped letting out the building
and used it as its office premise. On 31st March, 20X1, management estimates the
recoverable amount of the building as Rs.10,00,000 and its remaining useful life as 20 years
and residual value is nil.
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How should X Limited account for the above investment property as on 31st March, 20X1?
(SM)

7. Illustration

In financial year 20X1-20X2, X Limited incurred the following expenditure in acquiring
property consisting of 6 identical houses each with separate legal title including the land on
which it is built.

The expenditure incurred on various dates is given below:

On 1st April, 20X1 - Purchase cost of the property Rs.1,80,00,000.

On 1st April, 20X1 - Non-refundable transfer taxes Rs.20,00,000 (not included in the
purchase cost).

On 2nd April, 20X1- Legal cost related fo property acquisition Rs.5,00,000. On 6th April,
20X1- Advertisement campaign to attract tenants Rs.3,00,000.

On 8th April, 20X1 - Opening ceremony function for starting business Rs.1,50,000.

Throughout 20X1-20X2, incurred Rs.1,00,000 towards day-to-day repair maintenance and
other administrative expenses.

X Limited uses one of the six houses for office and accommodation of its few staffs. The
other five houses are rented to various independent third parties.

How X Limited will account for all the above-mentioned expenses in the books of account?
(SM)

8. Illustration

X Ltd. is engaged in the construction industry and prepares its financial statements up to 31st
March each year. On 1st April, 20X1, X Ltd. purchased a large property (consisting of land)
for Rs. 2,00,00,000 and immediately began to lease the property to Y Ltd. on an operating
lease. Annual rentals were Rs. 20,00,000.

On 31st March, 20X5, the fair value of the property was Rs.2,60,00,000. Under the terms of
the lease, Y Ltd. was able o cancel the lease by giving six months’ notice in writing to X Ltd. Y
Ltd. gave this notice on 31st March, 20X5 and vacated the property on 30th September,
20X5. On 30th September, 20X5, the fair value of the property was Rs. 2,90,00,000.

On 1st October, 20X5, X Ltd. immediately began to convert the property into ten separate
flats of equal size which X Ltd. intended to sell in the ordinary course of its business. X Ltd.
spent a total of Rs. 60,00,000 on this conversion project between 30th September, 20X5 to
31st March, 20X6. The project was incomplete at 31st March, 20X6 and the directors of X
Ltd. estimate that they need to spend a further Rs.40,00,000 to complete the project, after
which each flat could be sold for Rs.50,00,000.

Examine and show how the three events would be reported in the financial statements of X
Ltd. for the year ended 31st March, 20X6 as per Ind AS. (SM)

9. Illustration

Shaurya Limited owns a Building A which is specifically used for the purpose of earning rentals.
The Company has not been using the building A or any of its facilities for its own use for a long
time. The company is also exploring the opportunities fto sell the building if it gets the
reasonable amount in consideration.

Following information is relevant for Building A for the year ending 31st March, 20X2:
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Building A was initially purchased at the cost of Rs.10 crores. At that time, the useful life of
the building was estimated to be 20 years; out of which 5 years have been expired as on 1st
April, 20X1. The company follows straight line method for depreciation.

During the year, the company has invested in another Building B with the purpose to hold it for
capital appreciation. The property was purchased on 1st April, 20X1 at the cost of Rs. 2
crores. Expected life of the building is 40 years. As usual, the company follows straight line
method of depreciation.

Further, during the year 20X1-20X2 the company earned/incurred following direct operating
expenditure relating to Building A and Building B:

Rental income from Building A = Rs. 75 lakhs

Rental income from Building B = Rs. 25 lakhs

Sales promotion expenses = Rs. 5 lakhs
Fees & Taxes = Rs. 1 lakhs
Ground rent = Rs. 2.5 lakhs
Repairs & Maintenance = Rs. 1.5 lakhs

Legal & Professional = Rs. 2 lakhs
Commission and brokerage = Rs. 1 lakhs

The company does not have any restrictions and contractual obligations against Property - A
and B. For complying with the requirements of Ind AS, the management sought an independent
report from the specialists so as to ascertain the fair value of buildings A and B. The
independent valuer has valued the fair value of property as per the valuation model
recommended by International valuation standards committee. Fair value has been computed
by the method by streamlining present value of future cash flows namely, discounted cash flow
method.

The other key inputs for valuation are as follows:

The estimated rent per month per square feet for the period is expected to be in the range of
Rs. 50 - Rs. 60. And it is further expected to grow at the rate of 10 percent per annum for
each of 3 years. The weighted discount rate used is 12% to 13%.

Assume that the fair value of properties based on discounted cash flow method is measured at
Rs. 10.50 crores. The ftreatment of fair value of properties is to be given in the financials as
per the requirements of Indian accounting standards.

What would be the treatment of Building A and Building B in the balance sheet of Shaurya
Limited? Provide detailed disclosures and computations in line with relevant Indian accounting
standards. Treat it as if you are preparing a separate note or schedule, of the given assets in
the balance sheet. (SM)
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Indian Accounting Standard 23
BORROWING COST
1 ZIntroduction

Ind AS 23 deals with Borrowing Costs - costs associated with Borrowed funds. Normally, such costs are taken
to Statement of Profit and Loss as they represent an expense for the entity. However, certain borrowing
costs are added to the cost of an asset.

1.1 Core Principle of Ind AS 23 .\O,.
Borrowing Costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction /& o
or production of a qualifying asset are included in the cost of that asset i.e., " Capitalisation of
it is capitalised. borrowing costs
Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which helps reflect true
they are incurred.

Ind AS 23 specifies about borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation and gives
us guidelines for commencement, suspension, and cessation of capitalisation. correct  profit/loss

for an entity.

cost of an asset and

2 Important Terms

2.1 Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs are interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Borrowing Cost
include

I I

' ' Exchange
differences on

L foreign borrowings

Interest in respect

Interest expense e
P of lease liabilities

~ Calculated using ' N " Tothe extent
. Recognised in
effective interest e ewith regarded as
method as per Ind adjustment to

AS 109 . L NgAS 116 ) . interest costs

2.1.1 Effective Interest Method
This method is covered in detail in Ind AS 109 - Financial Instruments. In short, this method considers
discount, premium, fees associated with borrowings and involves finding a rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments to the amortised cost of borrowings. It is basically, an IRR for the borrowed
amount.

Example: Company issues 10% debentures of %1,00,000 at 5% discount with a tenure of 3 years. Here,
effective interest rate will be 12.12% and interest expense for 3 years shall be as follows:

Year | Opening balance Interest Payment Closing
@12.12% balance
1 95,000 11514 10,000 96,514
2 96,514 11,697 10,000 98,211
3 98,211 11,788 1,10,000 0)

2.1.2 Exchange differences on foreign borrowings
e Company may borrow funds in a currency that is not its functional currency. E.g., an Indian company
may take US $ loan
e This may have been done to take the benefit of lower interest costs of foreign currency borrowings
o But such foreign currency borrowings may involve exchange differences
e Regarding exchange difference required to be treated as borrowing costs:
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> Adjustment amount should be equivalent to exchange loss not exceeding the difference between
cost of borrowing in functional currency vis-a-vis the cost of borrowing in a foreign currency

Example: Company borrows $ 20,000 @ 3% for 1 year on 1" Jan, 20x1 when $ 1 = 3 75. Interest and loan are
repayable on 315" Dec, 20x1. On 31°" Dec, 20x1, exchange rate is $ 1 = ¥ 78. Company could borrow % funds @
6%.

Date $ borrowed Exchange Rate 3

equivalent
1 Jan 20x1 20,000 75| 15,00,000
31°" Dec 20x1 20,000 78 | 15,60,000
Exchange Loss 20,000 3 60,000

The exchange loss in this case is ¥ 60,000 [$ 20,000 x (X 78 - 2 75)]. Interest cost on this loan is ¥ 46,800
(3% x $ 20,000 x X 78). Had the entity borrowed funds in %, the borrowing cost would have been 2 90,000 (3
15,00,000 x 6%).

¥ 43,200 is the savings in interest costs because of borrowing in $ vis-a-vis . Company will treat exchange
difference up to ¥ 43,200 (X 90,000 - % 46,800) as a borrowing cost under this Standard. Thus, the total
eligible borrowing cost is ¥ 90,000 (X 46,800 + % 43,200).

> The realised or unrealised gain to the extent of the unrealised exchange loss previously recognised
as an adjustment should also be recognised as an adjustment to interest.

Example: Company borrows $ 1,000 @ 4% on 1°" Apr, 20x1 when $ 1 = 3 40. On 31°" Mar, 20x2, exchange rate
is $ 1 =3 50. Company could borrow  funds @ 12%.

At end of year 1, exchange loss (unrealised) is ¥ 10,000 [$ 1,000 x (X 50 - X 40)]. Interest cost for year 1is 2
2,000 (4% x $ 1,000 x % 50). Had the entity borrowed funds in %, the borrowing cost would have been % 4,800
(2 40,000 x 12%).

Company will treat exchange loss (unrealised) up to % 2,800 (% 4,800 - 32,000) as a borrowing cost. So, total
eligible borrowing cost for year 1 will be ¥ 4,800 (X 2,000 + % 2,800).

At end of Year 2 - If Exchange rate $ 1= 48

Interest cost for Year 2 is 31,920 ($ 1,000 x 4% x % 48). Exchange gain (unrealised) is ¥ 2,000 ($ 1,000 x (%
50 - %48). Since in Year 1, unrealised exchange loss of ¥ 2,800 was adjusted in borrowing cost, exchange gain
of ¥ 2,000 will be adjusted in the borrowing cost in this year. (Note: Exchange gain is less than exchange loss
recognised in earlier year).

Net borrowing cost for year 2 will be (280) [% 1,920 - % 2,000]

At end of Year 2 - If Exchange rate $ 1 =3 44

Interest cost for Year 2 is 31,760 ($ 1,000 x 4% x % 44). Exchange gain (unrealised) is ¥ 6,000 ($ 1,000 x (%
50 - %44). Since in Year 1, unrealised exchange loss of ¥ 2,800 was adjusted in borrowing cost, exchange gain
upto 2,800 will be adjusted in the borrowing cost in Year 2 (Note: Exchange gain is more than exchange loss
recognised in earlier year).

Net borrowing cost for year 2 will be (21,040) [ 1,760 - % 2,800]

Part Payment [$ 600] - At end of Year 1i.e., on 31°" Mar, 20x2

Exchange rate on 31st Mar, 20x2 being $ 1 = % 50, interest cost for year 1is X 2,000 (4% x $ 1,000 x  50).
Had the entity borrowed funds in %, the interest cost would have been % 4,800 (X 40,000 x 12%).
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Realised exchange loss is 2 6,000 [$ 600 x (X 50 -  40)] and unrealised exchange loss is ¥ 4,000 [$ 400 x (%
50 - % 40)]. Total exchange loss is X 10,000.

Company will treat total exchange difference up to ¥ 2,800 (X 4,800 - ¥2,000) as a borrowing cost. So, total
eligible borrowing cost for year 1 will be % 4,800 ( 2,000 + X 2,800). Out of exchange difference of % 2,800
2,800

regarded as borrowing costs, X 1,680 [ x6,000] relates to realised exchange loss and % 1,120
2,800 '

[-—— x4,000] pertain to unrealised exchange loss.
10,000

Thus, in future years, realised or unrealised exchange gain only to extent of % 1,120 will be treated as
adjustment to interest cost.

2.2 Qualifying Asset
Qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended
use or sale.

Depending on circumstances, any of the following may be qualifying assets:
(a) inventories (d) intangible assets
(b) manufacturing plants (e) investment properties

(c) power generation facilities (f) bearer plants

2.2.1 Substantial period of time
e Ind AS 23 does not provide any guidance on what constitutes a
substantial period of time
o Specific facts and circumstances should be considered in each case

Period of 12 months or

2.2.2 Qualifying assets - Exclusions more might be

e Financial assets, and inventories that are manufactured, or otherwise | considered 'substantial
produced, over a short period of time — —
e Assets that are ready for their intended use or sale when acquired are not qualifying assets.

3 Scope of Ind AS 23

e An entity shall apply this standard in accounting for borrowing costs.

e This standard does not apply to

= actual or imputed cost of equity, including preferred capital not classified as a liability
Example: Dividend paid on equity shares, cost of issuance of equity shares, cost of preference share
capital (not classified as liability as per Ind AS 32)

2 qualifying assets that are measured at fair value
Example: Biological asset accounted for under Ind AS 41
If the assets are measured under fair value model, then capitalisation would not affect measurement of
the asset and would involve only reallocation between finance cost and fair value movement in the
Statement of profit and loss.

= inventories that are manufactured, or otherwise produced, in large quantities on a repetitive basis
even if they take a substantial period to get ready for sale
It becomes difficult in such situations to allocate borrowing costs to such inventories and monitoring
those borrowing costs until the inventories are sold.
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4 Recognition of Borrowing Costs

e Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset are capitalised as part of the cost of the qualifying asset

e Such borrowing cost are capitalised when below two conditions are satisfied:
v' it is probable that it will result in future economic benefits fo the entity; and

v' costs can be measured reliably

Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

When an entity applies Ind AS 29 Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies, it recognises as an
expense the part of borrowing costs that compensates for inflation during the same period.

4.1 Borrowing Costs eligible for Capitalisation

This includes those borrowing costs that would have been avoided if the
expenditure on the qualifying A notional borrowing
asset had not been made. cost cannot be
Example: If a company incurs an expenditure of X 1 lakh on construction of
qualifying asset by taking a 10% loan of ¥ 50,000 and using own funds of L
50,000, then borrowing costs associated with loan shall only be capitalised, Opportunity cost of own funds are
not capitalised.

capitalised. J

4.1.1 Specific Borrowing Costs
e If anentity borrows funds specifically to obtain a qualifying asset, they are known as specific borrowings.

e Specific borrowings cost eligible for capitalisation would be actual borrowing costs incurred during the

period /ess any investment income on temporary investment of those borrowings.

o Anentity may obtain borrowed funds and incur associated borrowing costs before some or all of the
funds are used for expenditures on the qualifying asseft.

o In such circumstances, funds are often temporarily invested pending their expenditure on the
qualifying asset.

o In determining amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation during a period, any investment
income earned on such funds is deducted from the borrowing costs incurred.

Investment income
on temporary
investment of those
borrowings, if any

Actual borrowing
costs incurred on
that borrowing
during the period

Borrowing costs
eligible for
capitalisation

4.1.2 General Borrowing Costs
e All borrowings that are not specific represents general borrowings.

e If Specific borrowing remains outstanding after the related asset is ready for its intended use or sale,
it becomes part of general borrowings.

e When general borrowings are used for qualifying assets, Ind AS 23 requires that, borrowing costs eligible
for capitalisation is calculated by applying a capitalisation rate to the expenditures on qualifying assets.

4.2 Calculation of capitalisation rate
Capitalisation rate is the weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to all the general borrowings of

the entity that are outstanding during the period.
Total borrowing costs on outstanding general borrowings

Capitalisation Rate =
P Total outstanding general borrowings of entity during the period

Ind AS 23 Calculation of Borrowing Cost 6.4
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Things to Note:

v Amount of borrowing costs capitalised during a period shall not exceed amount of borrowing costs incurred
during that period

v' Capitalisation rate is calculated considering all general borrowings o/s during the financial year, not
necessarily during construction period

v In some circumstances, it is appropriate to include all borrowings of the parent and its subsidiaries when
computing a weighted average of the borrowing costs; in other circumstances, it is appropriate for each
subsidiary o use a weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to its own borrowings.

4.3 Expenditure to which capitalisation rate is applied

. Amount of expenditure on a qualifying asset include only those expenditures that have resulted

o payments of cash,
o ftransfers of other assets or
o the assumption of interest-bearing liabilities.

. Expenditures are reduced by any progress payments received and grants received in connection
with the asset (Ind AS 20 Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government
Assistance).

5 Period of Capitalisation

Period of Capitalisation

Commencement Suspension Cessation

P START Huse ENGE

5.1 Commencement of Capitalisation
An entity is required to begin the capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a qualifying asset on
the commencement date.

( 3
It incurs expenditures
for the asset

\ J

4 3

Starts from date when

Commencement of entity first meets all of It incurs borrowing costs
capitalisation the following L )
conditions:

( It undertakes activities )

necessary to prepare

asset for its intended
use or sale
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Activities necessary to prepare asset for its intended use or sale

Includes technical and administrative work prior to commencement of physical
construction, such as activities associated with obtaining permits

exclude holding of an asset when no production or development that changes the
asset’s condition is taking place

5.2 Suspension of Capitalisation

Capitalisation of borrowing costs shall be suspended during extended periods in which active
development of a qualifying asset is suspended.

Such costs are costs of holding partially completed assets and do not qualify for capitalisation.

Capitalisation of borrowing cost is not suspended when temporary delay is a necessary part of the
process of getting an asset ready for its intfended use or sale
o Example: Capitalisation continues during extended period when high water levels delay
construction of a bridge, if such high-water levels are common during the construction period
in the geographical region involved.

5.3 Cessation of Capitalisation

5.3.1

Capitalisation of borrowing costs ceases when substantially all activities necessary to prepare
qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are complete.

An asset is normally ready for its intfended use or sale when the physical construction of the asset is
complete even though routine administrative work might continue.

If minor modifications, such as decoration of a property to the purchaser’'s or user's specification, are
all that are outstanding, this indicates that substantially all the activities are complete.

When construction of qualifying asset is completed in parts

If each part is capable of being used while construction continues on other parts, entity shall cease capitalising
borrowing costs when it completes substantially all the activities necessary to prepare that part for its
intended use or sale.

Example: A business park comprising several buildings, each of which can be used individually, is a qualifying
asset for which each part is capable of being usable while construction continues on other parts.

Example: An industrial plant involving several processes which are carried out in sequence at different parts
of the plant within the same site, such as a steel mill, is an example of qualifying asset that needs to be
complete before any part can be used.

6 Disclosure Requirements

Entities are required to disclose:

(a)
(b)

amount of borrowing costs capitalised during the period; and
capitalisation rate used to determine the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation
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7  Other Relevant Concepts

7.1 Dividends payable on shares classified as financial liabilities

e An entity might finance its operations in whole or in part by issue of
preference shares and in some circumstances, these will be classified as

financial liabilities (as per Ind AS 32).

e Dividends payable on these instruments would meet the definition of
borrowing costs, subject to the fulfilment of certain conditions.

7.2 Cessation of capitalisation for maturing inventories
e For maturing inventories, it is sometimes difficult o determine when 'period of production’ ends, i.e.,
when inventories are being held for sale as opposed to being held to mature.
o Example: Whisky is ‘mature’ after three years but goes on improving with age for many more years.

eneral rule: Dividends |
are not considered as‘
Borrowing Costs.

e Borrowing costs are added fo the value of such maturing inventories for as long as it can be demonstrated
that the particular item of inventory continues to increase in value on account of increasing age, rather
than because of market fluctuations or inflation.

o If this cannot be demonstrated, then the inventories should be regarded as held for sale and no further
borrowing costs should be capitalised.

7.3 Capitalising borrowing cost in g

roup financial statements

Borrowings are taken by one
company and qualifying asset is
developed by another company
within a group

e Entity carrying out development should not capitalise any
interest in its own financial statements as it has no borrowings
e Capitalise interest in the group financial statements

Intra-group borrowings

e Interest on such borrowings may be capitalised in entity's own
financial statements, but not at the group level

Amount of interest to be

capitalised

Interest capitalised should fairly reflect interest cost of the group
on borrowings from third parties that could have been avoided if
expenditure on qualifying asset were not made.

8 significant Differences between Ind AS 23 and AS 16

Basis of differences

Ind AS 23

AS 16

interest expense

Qualifying Asset | Does not require entity to apply standard to | Does not provide for such
measured at Fair | qualifying asset measured at fair value scope relaxation

Value

Calculation of | Calculation of interest expense using effective | Borrowing costs to include:

interest rate method as described in Ind AS

interest and other expenses,

Hyperinflationary
Economies

109 amortisation of discounts or
premiums, amortisation of
ancillary costs

Reporting in | When Ind AS 29 is applied, part of the | Does not contain similar

borrowing costs that compensates for inflation
should be expensed

clarification as no such
standard on Hyperinflationary
Economies

Substantial Period of | Explanation of 'Substantial Period of Time' is
Time not included

Gives explanation for meaning
of 'Substantial Period of Time'

Borrowings of the
Parent and its

Specifically provides that
in some circumstances, it is

No specific provision

Ind AS 23
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Subsidiaries for appropriate to include all

Computing Weighted | borrowings of parent and its subsidiaries when
Average computing weighted average of borrowing
costs while in other circumstances, it is
appropriate for each subsidiary to use
weighted average of the borrowing costs
applicable to its

own borrowings.

Applicability to | Excludes inventories that are manufactured/ | Does not provide for such
Inventories produced in large quantities on a repetitive | scope relaxation

basis
Disclosure of | Requires disclosure of capitalisation rate Does not have this disclosure
Capitalisation rate requirement

9 Other Points to Note

Other things to note:

e (apitalisation rate is calculated considering all general borrowings o/s during the financial
year, not necessarily during construction period

e In some circumstances, it is appropriate to include all borrowings of the parent and its
subsidiaries when computing a weighted average of the borrowing costs; in other
circumstances, it is appropriate for each subsidiary to use a weighted average of the
borrowing costs applicable to its own borrowings.

e When an entity applies Ind AS 29 Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies, it
recognises as an expense the part of borrowing costs that compensates for inflation
during the same period.

e Borrowing costs in case of maturing inventories can be capitalised if inventory continues
to increase in value on account of increasing age

e Dividends payable on shares classified as financial liabilities as per Ind As 32 are
considered as Borrowing Costs

e Things to refer in detailed notes - Capitalising borrowing cost in group financial
statements, significant differences between Ind As 23 and AS 16

ILLUSTRATIONS

1. Illustration

A telecom company has acquired a 36 license. The licence could be sold or licensed to a third party. However,
management intends to use it to operate a wireless network. Development of the network starts when the
license is acquired.

Should borrowing costs on the acquisition of the 36 license be capitalised until the network is ready for its
infended use?

2. Illustration

A real estate company has incurred expenses for the acquisition of a permit allowing the construction of a
building. It has also acquired equipment that will be used for the construction of various buildings.

Can borrowing costs on the acquisition of the permit and the equipment be capitalised until the construction
of the building is complete?
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3. TIllustration

Alpha Ltd. on 1st April, 20X1 borrowed 9% % 30,00,000 to finance the construction of two qualifying assets.
Construction started on 1st April, 20X1. The loan facility was availed on 1st April, 20X1 and was utilized as
follows with remaining funds invested temporarily at 7%.

Factory Office Building
1st April, 20X1 5,00,000 10,00,000
1st October, 20X1 5,00,000 10,00,000

Calculate the cost of the asset and the borrowing cost to be capitalised assuming that the factory building
was completed on 31°" March, 20X2.

4. Illustration
Beta Ltd had the following loans in place at the end of 31st March, 20X2:

Loan 1st April, 20X1 31st March, 20X2
18% Bank Loan 1,000 1,000
16% Term Loan 3,000 3,000
14% Debentures - 2,000

14% debenture was issued to fund the construction of Office building on 1st July, 20X1 but the development
activities has yet to be started. On 1st April, 20X1, Beta Itd began the construction of a Plant being qualifying
asset using the existing borrowings.

Expenditure drawn down for the construction was: ¥ 500,000 on 1st April, 20X1 and % 2,500,000 on 1st
January, 20X2.

Calculate the borrowing cost that can be capitalised for the plant.

B. Illustration

X Limited has a ftreasury department that arranges funds for all the requirements of the Company including
funds for working capital and expansion programs. During the year ended 31st March, 20X2, the Company
commenced the construction of a qualifying asset and incurred the following expenses:

Date Amount ()

1st July, 20X1 2,50,000

1st December, 20X1 3,00,000

The details of borrowings and interest thereon are as under:
Particulars Average Balance (%) Interest ()
Long term loan @ 10% 10,00,000 1,00,000
Working capital loan 5,00,000 65,0000

15,00,000 1,65,000

Compute the borrowing costs that need to be capitalised.
6. Illustration

An entity constructs a new head office building commencing on 1st September 20X1, which continues ftill 31st
December 20X1. Directly attributable expenditure at the beginning of the month on this asset are ¥ 100,000
in September 20X1 and ¥ 250,000 in each of the months of October to December 20X1.

The entity has not taken any specific borrowings to finance the construction of the asset but has incurred
finance costs on its general borrowings during the construction period. During the year, the entity had issued
10% debentures with a face value of % 20 lacs and had an overdraft of ¥ 500,000, which increased to ¥ 750,000
in December 20X1. Interest was paid on the overdraft at 15% until 1 October 20X1, then the rate was
increased to 16%.

Calculate the capitalisation rate for computation of borrowing cost in accordance with Ind AS 23 'Borrowing
Costs'.

7. Illustration
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X Ltd is commencing a new construction project, which is to be financed by borrowing. The key dates are as
follows:

(i) 15th May, 20X1: Loan interest relating to the project starts to be incurred

(i) 2nd June, 20X1: Technical site planning commences

(iii) 19th June, 20X1: Expenditure on the project started to be incurred

(iv) 18th July, 20X1: Construction work commences

Identify commencement date.

8. Tllustration

H Limited, a real estate company, gives immovable property on rent. It has completed on 31st May, 20X1, a
commercial complex consisting of various offices that could be rented out. It expects that the commercial
complex will be completely rented out by 30th June, 20X1.

However, due to adverse market conditions, only 10% of the commercial complex could be rented out by its
reporting date of 31st March, 20X2. H Limited wants to capitalise the eligible borrowing costs incurred up to
31st March, 20X2. Discuss.

9. Illustration

Marine Transport Limited ordered 3 ships for its fleet on 1st April, 20X0. It pays a down payment of 25% of
the contract value of each of the ship out of long term borrowings from a scheduled bank. The delivery has to
commence from the financial year 20X7. On 1st March, 20X2, the ship builder informs that it has commenced
production of one ship. There is no progress on other 2 ships. Marine Transport Limited prepares its financial
statements on financial year basis.

Is it permissible for Marine Transport Limited to capitalise any borrowing costs for the financial year ended
31st March, 20X1 or 31st March, 20X2.

10. Illustration

K Ltd. began construction of a new building at an estimated cost of X 7 lakh on 1st April, 20X1. To finance
construction of the building it obtained a specific loan of 2 2 lakh from a financial institution at an interest
rate of 9% per annum.

The company's other outstanding loans were:

Amount Rate of Interest per annum
% 7,00,000 12%

29,00,000 11%

The expenditure incurred on the construction was:

April, 20X1 % 1,50,000

August, 20X1 %2,00,000

October, 20X1 Z 3,50,000

January, 20X2 Z1,00,000

The construction of building was completed by 31st January, 20X2. Following the provisions of Ind AS 23
'Borrowing Costs’, calculate the amount of interest to be capitalized and pass necessary journal entry for
capitalizing the cost and borrowing cost in respect of the building as on 31st January, 20X2.

11. Illustration

On 1st April, 20X1, entity A contracted for the construction of a building for * 22,00,000. The land under the
building is regarded as a separate asset and is not part of the qualifying assets. The building was completed
at the end of March, 20X2, and during the period the following payments were made to the contractor:

Payment date Amount ( '000)
1st April, 20X1 200
30th June, 20X1 600
31st December, 20X1 1,200
31st March, 20X2 200
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| Total | 2,200 |

Entity A's borrowings at its year end of 31st March, 20X2 were as follows:

a. 10%, 4-year note with simple interest payable annually, which relates specifically to the project; debt
outstanding on 31st March, 20X2 amounted to % 7,00,000. Interest of ¥ 65,000 was incurred on these
borrowings during the year, and interest income of ¥ 20,000 was earned on these funds while they were
held in anticipation of payments.

b. 12.5% 10-year note with simple interest payable annually; debt outstanding at 1st April, 20X1 amounted
t0 21,000,000 and remained unchanged during the year; and

c. 10% 10-year note with simple interest payable annually; debt outstanding at 1st April, 20X1 amounted to
21,500,000 and remained unchanged during the year.

What amount of the borrowing costs can be capitalized at year end as per relevant Ind AS?

12. Illustration

In a group with Parent Company "P" there are 3 subsidiaries with following business:

"A" - Real Estate Company

"B" - Construction Company

"C" - Finance Company

e Parent Company has no operating activities of its own but performs management functions for its
subsidiaries.

e Financing activities and cash management in the group are coordinated centrally.

e Finance Company is a vehicle used by the group solely for raising finance.

e All entities in the group prepare Ind AS financial statements.

The following information is relevant for the current reporting period 20X1-20X2:

Real Estate Company

e Borrowings of ¥ 10,00,000 with an interest rate of 7% p.a.

o Expenditures on qualifying assets during the period amounted to % 15,40,000.

e All construction works were performed by Construction Company. Amounts invoiced fo Real Estate
Company included 10% profit margin.

Construction Company

e No borrowings during the period.

e Financed % 10,00,000 of expenditures on qualifying assets using its own cash resources.

Finance Company

e Raised % 20,00,000 at 7% p.a. externally and issued a loan to Parent Company for general corporate
purposes at the rate of 8%.

Parent Company

e Used loan from Finance Company fo acquire a new subsidiary.

e No qualifying assets apart from those in Real Estate Company and Construction Company.

e Parent Company did not issue any loans to other entities during the period.

What is the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation in the financial statements of each of the
four entities for the current reporting period 20X1-20X2?

13. Illustration

How will you capitalise the interest when qualifying assets are funded by borrowings in the nature of bonds
that are issued at discount?

Y Ltd. issued at the start of year 1, 10% (interest paid annually and having maturity period of 4 years) bonds
with a face value of ¥ 2,00,000 at a discount of 10% to finance a qualifying asset which is ready for intended
use at the end of year 2.

Compute the amount of borrowing costs to be capitalized if the company amortizes discount using Effective
Interest Rate method by applying 13.39% p.a. of EIR.

14 Tllustration
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Nikka Limited has obtained a term loan of 2 620 lacs for a complete renovation and modernisation of its Factory
on 1st April, 20X1. Plant and Machinery was acquired under the modernisation scheme and installation was
completed on 30th April, 20X2. An expenditure of ¥ 510 lacs was incurred on installation of Plant and
Machinery, 2 54 lacs has been advanced to suppliers for additional assets (acquired on 25th April, 20X1) which
were also installed on 30th April, 20X2 and the balance loan of X 56 lacs has been used for working capital
purposes. Management of Nikka Limited considers the 12 months period as substantial period of time to get
the asset ready for its intended use.

The company has paid total interest of ¥ 68.20 lacs during financial year 20X1-20X2 on the above loan. The
accountant seeks your advice how to account for the interest paid in the books of accounts. Will your answer
be different, if the whole process of renovation and modernization gets completed by 28th February, 20X2?
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Ind AS 20

Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance

1 Introduction

Economic help by
Government

Grants Assistance

Transfer of resources to

entity Help / Action to assist entity

Examples
e Land free of cost to set up a cold storage unit
e 50% share of construction cost for industrial plant in remote area

1.1 Importance of accounting Government grants

It is desirable fo give an indication of the extent to which the entity has benefited from such assistance
during the reporting period.

This helps investors and stakeholders in comparing the entity's financial statements with those of prior periods
and with those of other entities, where such grants were not available.

\ ! /
Ind AS 20 provides guidelines for an appropriate method of accounting of -Q-
such govt. grants so that the financial statements give a true and fair view ¥

of the financial position and performance. Ind AS 20 is based on the

accounting principle of
2 Important Terms “Matching”

2.1 Government

Central
~[ Governments ]—E \
State
[ Government ]~
. Local
Govt. Agencies \ /
National
~[ Govt. Bodies .
International

J
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2.2 Government Assistance

Government Assistance

Action by government designed to provide an economic benefit specific to
an entity or range of entities qualifying under certain criteria.

The purpose of providing Govt. Assistance is to encourage the entity to take an economic activity, which it
would have not taken, if the said assistance was not available.

Government Assistance does not include mere infrastructural development or trading constraints for
competitors

Ex: Approvals for speedy production of covid vaccination

2.3 Government Grant

e——

Government grants
Assistance by government in the form of transfers of resources to an entity
in return for past or future compliance with certain conditions relating to

the operating activities of the entity.

They are given under various names like subsidies, subventions, or premiums.
Examples:
reimbursement of 20% capital expenditure to entity investing in underdeveloped remote zone

[ Government }
(with respect to Grant)

H |
[ Transfers ] [ Expects ]

Resources Fulfillment of
Conditions

I I
l | l |

Monetary } [ mc;\lnoer;;ry } [ Past } [ Future }

2.3.1 Exclusions

assistance which cannot be reasonably valued and
transactions with government which are in the course of normal trading transactions of the entity.
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Government Grant vs Government Assistance

Basi
asis of Grant

differences

Assistance

Meaning Assistance by government in the form of
transfers of resources to an entity in
return for past or future compliance with
certain conditions relating to the operating

activities of the entity.

Action by government designed to
provide an economic benefit specific to
an entity or range of entities qualifying
under certain criteria.

Examples Subsidies, Money given for research &
development, loan at lower than market

rate.

Revolving credit facility at a market rate
of interest to an entity

3  Scope / Applicability

3.1 Scope
Ind AS 20 is applied for:
(a) accounting and disclosure of government grants; and

(b) disclosure of other forms of government assistance.
Ind AS 20
Scope
| L 1
G.OVt' Govt. Grants
Assistance
. _ |
Entity specific General . In normal
: In Special
supportive Development . course of
. . Circumstance .
Actions Actions | business
l I
Value Value not
ascertainable || ascertainable |
Covered Not Covered Not Not
covered covered covered

3.2 Ind AS 20 - Exclusions

e government participation in the ownership of the entity E.g., picking up equity stake in an entity by

the government.

e government grants that will be covered by Ind AS 41, Agriculture

e effects of changing prices or in supplementary information of a similar nature. E.g., benefits given due

to change in a benchmarked price or minimum selling price given by the government.

e income tax related benefits like income tax holidays, investment tax credits, accelerated

depreciation.
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Exclusion to Exclusion

Sales tax exemption: Expert Advisory Committee (EAC) have opined that sales tax (now 6ST) foregone by
government will be covered under Ind AS 20

4  Types Government Grants

4.1 Related to an Asset
Grants that the government provided to any qualified entity primarily to
purchase,
construct or
acquire
any long-term assefts.
The Govt. may also attach restriction of type or location of the assets or the period that those assets are to
be purchased or acquired or held.
These grants are generally presented in the statement of financial position (Balance Sheet)
Ex: Reimbursement of the capital expense or a part of capital expense for setting up a food testing lab in a
food processing zone set-up by the government

4.2 Related to Income

Grants related to other than those related to assets are called grants related to income.

These grants are generally presented in the Income Statement.

Ex: exemption to pay indirect taxes for 3 years from start of operations, if the entity is set-up in a specified
location or state

5 Recognition of Govt. Grant

5.1 Essentials for Recognition
Government grants including non-monetary grants should be recognised by an entity when, there is a
reasonable assurance that:
o the entity will comply with the conditions attached to the grants | L,
: !
¢ the grants will be received. £
Manner of receipt of
grant does not affect the
accounting treatment.
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Conditions to be
Complied

|
| |

Past Conditions Futute Conditions

Reasonable assurance not required
as these are complied before
receiving the grant

Reasonable assurance required for
compliance

A grant is accounted for in the same manner whether it is received in cash or as a reduction of a liability to

the government.

L oY

Receipt of a grant is not conclusive evidence that the conditions attaching
to the grant have been or will be fulfilled.

So, till the point, the conditions are satisfied by the entity, the grant will not be
recognised and may be disclosed as a liability in the financial statements.

5.2 Accounting Treatment for Grant

5.2.1 Recognition in the Statement of Profit and Loss
There are two approaches for accounting of grants. Ind AS 20 prescribes Income Approach.

[ Accounting for Grant ]

I
I |

[ Capital Approach ] [ Income Approach ]
( ) ( )
Grant treated as Revenue Receipt
Grant treated as Capital Receipt under Income statement (over
under Equity i,e in Balance Sheet one or more periods)
systematically
S J S J
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Government grants are recognised on a systematic basis over the periods in which the entity recognises the

related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.

For e.g., a grant received for purchase of a capital asset can be recognised over the estimated useful life of

the capital asset over which depreciation would be charged.

Recognition of Government grant in most cases is the period(s) over which an entity recognises the costs or

expenses related to a government grant.

5.2.2 Grants related to Assets

Grant related to

Depreciable Assets
[

|

Alternate | Alternate |l
Deferrred Reduce from
Income Cost of Asset

Depreciation
charged on

Transfer to P&L
reduced value

systematically on
basis of depreciation

Example: Accounting for Grant received in Cash Rs.10 lakhs for purchase of Asset

Scenario Approach I Approach IT

Deferred Income Capital Approach
Asset Asset A/c Dr. 30L | Asset A/c Dr. 30L
purchased = To Bank A/c 30L  ToBank A/c 30L
At the time of Bank A/c Dr. 10L Bank A/c Dr. 10L
Receipt of | To Govt. Grant Def Income A/c 10L To Asset A/c 10L
6rant
Deprecation Depreciation (P&L) A/c 6L Depreciation (P&L) A/c 4L
(useful life 5  To Provision for Depreciation 6L To Provision for Depreciation 4L

years) on SLM

for first year

Grant Govt. Grant Def. Income A/c Dr. 2L
recognised in| ToP&L A/c 2L
P&L

systematically

Net Effect on Depreciation Rs.6 lakhs

P&L

Deferred Revenue Rs.2 lakhs
Net debit to P&L Rs.4 Lakhs

5.2.3 Non-Depreciable Assets
Grants related to non-depreciable assets can also be recognised in the same way,

e reduce from cost of asset

Ind AS 20

1FIN by Indigo Learn

Depreciation Rs.4 lakhs
Deferred Revenue Nil
Net debit to P&L Rs.4 Lakhs

7.6



e recognise in P&L over the period of time, based on conditions to be fulfilled over a period of time or if
there are related costs to be incurred in relation to such non-depreciable asset.

5.2.4 Cash Flows for Govt. Grant presentation
Cash flows from grants and the corresponding acquisitions of the capital assets have to be disclosed on gross
basis under the Investing Activities.

5.3 Accounting for Grant Related to Income

Grant related to Income

I
I |

Alternate | Alternate I
Gross Values Net Values
Show expenses and Net off the grant
grant received at gross received from related

values expenses

5.3.1 Presentation of grant related to income
Government grants related to income are presented as:
e acredit in the Statement of Profit and Loss, (separately or under a general heading such as ‘Other
income’); or
reduction in reporting the related expense. For e.g., grant received for employment can be deducted
from the employment or the payroll cost.

5.4 Government grants cannot be recognised receipts basis
Govt. Grants are recognised on accrual basis as it is in accordance with the accrual accounting assumption (Ind
AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements)
Govt. grant can be recognised on receipt if

e Conditions to receive are already satisfied and

e No future related costs are to be incurred
Also grant received by an entity from govt. as relief or fo cover impact of losses can be recognised on receipt
or when it becomes receivable, whichever is earlier as there are no other conditions associated with it and
there are no further related costs.
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5.5 Grants received in packages

When grants are received as part of packages i.e. a set of grants given to a single entity, each grant needs fo
be

e Identified as grant related to asset or grant related to income
e Apply the recognition criteria based on
o Conditions attached to each grant

o Nature of each grant

6 Non-Monetary Govt. Grant

Non-monetary grants are those which do not involve transfer of cash or cash equivalents. Example - grant
received in form of land.
Accounting treatment

e Use fair value; or

e Use nominal value

Non-monetary Govt.

Grant
I
I I
Alternate | Alternate |l
Value asset at Fair Value Value asset at Nominal Value
Account grant at the Account grant also at
same fair value the nominal value

The fair value of the non-monetary asset is assessed and both grant and asset are accounted for at that fair
value.

Eg: transfer of land as a grant. If the fair value of the land is for e.g., Rs. 10 crores, then the grant will be
measured at Rs. 10 crores and the land would be measured at 10 crores.
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7 Grants related to Loans

i

I
I I

Forgivable Loans Concessional rate loan
(Repayment waived) (nominal / low rate of interest)
Grant to be Fair value as per Ind

recognised once AS on Financial
conditions satisfied Intruments to be
for loan forgiveness determined
Grant value = Grant received Grant Value = Fair value - Actual value

For forgiveness of loan to be considered as a government grant, the entity should have reasonable assurance,
that the conditions will be met.

What happens if the government grants a loan below the market rate of interest?
Example:
Market rate of interest is 9% p.a.,

e Government grants the loan at 3% p.a.

The benefit of a government loan at a below-market rate of interest is treated as a government grant].
Therefore, the loan shall be recognised and measured in accordance with Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement and the benefit shall be measured as the difference between the initial carrying
value of the loan determined in accordance with Ind AS 109 and the proceeds received.

The entity shall consider the conditions and obligations attached to the grant.

8 Repayment of Grant

Govt. may at times ask for the grant to be returned in case the conditions are not fulfilled or the circumstances
change.

Example: some disagreement with the government at a later stage or the

entity decided to wind-up the establishment before the qualifying N
period. -,O\-
12

Repayment of a grant related to income shall be applied first against any
unamortised deferred credit (balance in the deferred grant account) Reverse the impact of
recoghised in respect of the grant. grant received on

If there is no balance in deferred grant account, the amount paid shall repayment of Grant

be recognised immediately in P&L A/c.
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* Use balance in Deferred Grant A/c first

* Debit the P&L for the rest of the repayment

Example: Entity received Rs.5 lakhs as grant and government sought repayment after 2™ year. If Rs.2 lakhs
is recognised in P&L and there is a balance of Rs.3 lakhs in the deferred grant account at the end of second
year.
0] If full refund is required - Rs.3 lakhs debited to deferred grant account and Rs.2 lakhs would be
debited to P&L.
(i) If only Rs.2 lakh to be repaid - Rs.2 lakhs debited to deferred grant account.

8.1 Treatment for refund of grant related to asset

Repayment of a grant related to an asset shall be recognised by reducing the deferred income balance by the
amount repayable.

Depreciation amount is also adjusted due to the reversal. Reduced amount should be adjusted to P&L in the
year of repayment.

[ Add back to Asset } [ Debit it to Deferred Income}

A4

'

Credited
to

Reduced
from
Cost of
Asset

Grant
related
to Asset

Deferred
Income
A/c

8.2 Change in Estimate

If a government grant becomes repayable, it shall be accounted for as a change in accounting estimate as per
Ind AS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors.

9 Government Assistance disclosure

For those government assistance in the form of
e transactions on which value cannot reasonably placed or
e fransactions with government which cannot be distinguished from the normal trading transactions of
the entity,
the entity should disclose the
o nature,
o extent and
o duration
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of such assistance / transaction.

Disclosure is important because the entity's performance is dependent on such assistance and non-disclosure

in financial statements might be misleading for the stakeholders and investors.

10 Disclosures

The entity needs to disclose the following:

e accounting policy adopted for government grants,

e presentation methods adopted (the two approaches).

¢ nature and extent of government grants recognised in the financial statements

e government assistance from which the entity has directly benefited

e Unfulfilled conditions and other contingencies attaching to government assistance that has been

recognised.

11 IND AS 20 vs AS 12

Basis of differences

IND AS 20

AS 12

Title

Accounting for Government Grants and
Disclosure of Government Assistance

Accounting for Government Grants

Govt. Assistance

Included in scope for the purpose of Ind
AS

Does not include  government

assistance

Recognition Prohibits recognition of grants directly

in the shareholders’ funds.
Monetary grants | Cannot be credited to Capital Reserve Credited to Capital Reserve
related  to non- | Taken to P&L A/c systematically using

depreciable assets

Deferred Income A/c

Non-monetary  govt.
grant or assets given

at a concessional price

Accounted for at
o Fair value; or
o Nominal value

e Nominal value for Non-monetary
assets given free of cost

e Acquisition cost for assets given at
concessional price

Grants in the nature of
Promoter's
contribution

Not covered.

Credit to capital reserve and to be
treated as shareholder's funds

Loan at concessional
rate

Loan taken at fair value (determined as
per Ind AS 109)
Value of concession to be recognised as

Not covered

grant.
Repayment of Govt. | Treated as Change in accounting | Treated as extra-ordinary item
6rant estimate
Appendix Guidance Guidance  for  Govt.  assistance | No guidance

recognition

Ind AS 20
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Illustrations

1. Tllustration

A village of artisans in a district got devasted because of an earthquake. A Limited was operating in that
district and was providing employment fo the artisans. The government gave a grant of Rs.10,00,000 o A
Limited so that 100 artisans are rehabilitated over a period of 3 years. Government releases Rs.2,00,000.
Examine how the Government grant be realised.

2. Illustration

A Limited received from the government a loan of Rs. 50,00,000 @ 5% payable after 5 years in a bulleted
payment. The prevailing market rate of interest is 12%. Interest is payable regularly at the end of each
year. Calculate the amount of government grant.

State how the grant will be recognized in the statement of profit or loss assuming:

Case 1: The loan is an immediate relief measure to rescue the enterprise.

Case 2: The loan is a subsidy for staff training expenses, incurred equally, for a period of 4 years

Case 3: The loan is to finance a depreciable asset.

3. Illustration

A Limited wants to establish a manufacturing unit in a backward area and requires 5 acres of land. The
government provides the land on a leasehold basis at a nominal value of Rs.10,000 per acre. The fair value
of the land is Rs.1,00,000 per acre. Calculate the amount of the Government grant to be recognized by an
entity.

4. Illustration

ABC Ltd. has received the following grants from the Government of Delhi for its newly started pharmaceutical

business:
. Rs. 20 lakhs received for immediate start-up of business without any condition.
. Rs. 50 lakhs received for research and development of drugs required for the treatment of

cardiovascular diseases with following conditions:
* that drugs should be available to the public at 20% cheaper from current market price;
and
* the drugs should be in accordance with quality prescribed by the World Health
Organisation [WHO].

. Two acres of land (fair Value: Rs. 10 Lakhs) received for set up plant.
. Rs. 2 lakhs received for purchase of machinery of Rs. 10 lakhs. Useful life of machinery is 5
years. Depreciation on this machinery is to be charged on straight-line basis.

How should ABC Ltd. recognise the government grants in its books of accounts?
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B. Illustration

MNC Ltd. has received grant in the nature of exemption of custom duty on capital goods with certain conditions
related to export of goods under Export Promotion Capital Goods (EPCG) scheme of Government of India.
Whether the same is a government grant under Ind AS 20, Government Grants and Disclosure of Government
Assistance? If yes, then how the same is to be accounted for.

6. Illustration

ABC Ltd is a government company and is a first-time adopter of Ind AS. As per the previous GAAP, the
contributions received by ABC Ltd. from the government (which holds 100% shareholding in ABC Ltd.) which
is in the nature of promoters™ contribution have been recognised in capital reserve and treated as part of
shareholders™ funds in accordance with the provisions of AS 12, Accounting for Government Grants.

State whether the accounting treatment of the grants in the nature of promoters™ contribution as per AS 12

is also permitted under Ind AS 20 Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government
Assistance.

7. Tllustration

Rainbow Limited is carrying out various projects for which the company has either received government
financial assistance or is in the process of receiving the same. The company has received two grants of Rs.
1,00,000 each, relating to the following ongoing research and development projects:

0) The first grant relates to the “"Clean-river project” which involves research into the effect of
various chemicals waste from the industrial area in Madhya Pradesh. However, no major steps
have been completed by Rainbow limited to commence this research as at 31st march, 20X2.

(i) The second grant relates to the commercial development of a new equipment that can be used
to manufacture eco-friendly substitutes for existing plastic products. Rainbow Limited is
confident about the technical feasibility and financial viability of this new technology which will
be available for sale in the market by April 20X3.

In September 20X1, due to the floods near one of its factories, the entire production was lost and Rainbow
Limited had to shut down the factory for a period of 3 months. The State Government announced a
compensation package for all the manufacturing entities affected due to the floods. As per the scheme,
Rainbow Limited is entitled to a compensation based on the average of previous three months” sales figure
prior to the floods, for which the company is required to submit an application form on or before 30™ June,
20X2 with necessary figures. The financial statements of Rainbow Limited are to be adopted on 31°" May,
20X2, by which date the claim form would not have been filed with the State Government.
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Suggest the accounting treatment of, if any, for the two grants received and the flood- related compensation
in the books of accounts of Rainbow Limited as on 31°" March, 20X2.

8. Illustration

An entity opens a new factory and receives a government grant of Rs. 15,000 in respect of capital equipment
costing Rs. 1,00,000. It depreciates all plant and machinery at 20% per annum on straight-line basis.

Show the statement of profit and loss and balance sheet extracts in respect of the grant for first year under
both the methods as per Ind AS 20.

9. Illustration

A company receives a cash grant of Rs. 30,000 on 31 March 20X1. The grant is towards the cost of fraining
young apprentices. Training programme is expected to last for 18 months starting from 1 April 20X1.
Actual costs of the training incurred in
e 20X1-20X2 was Rs. 50,000 and
e 20X2-20X3 was Rs. 25,000.
State, how this grant should be accounted for?

10. TIllustration

Entity A is awarded a government grant of Rs.60,000 receivable over three years (Rs.40,000 in year 1 and
Rs.10,000 in each of years 2 and 3), contingent on creating 10 new jobs and maintaining them for three years.
The employees are recruited at a total cost of Rs.30,000, and the wage bill for the first year is Rs. 1,00,000,
rising by Rs.10,000 in each of the subsequent years.

Calculate the grant income and deferred income to be accounted for in the books for year 1, 2 and 3.

11. Tllustration

X Ltd received a Govt. grant related to Income of Rs.5,00,000 in the year 20X1. X Ltd transferred Rs.1,00,000
to the statement of profit and loss systematically in the years 20X1 and 20X2 each. Due to certain non-
fulfilment of conditions, government directed X Ltd. to repay the grant in 20X3.

How should X Ltd. reflect the grant repaid in the books of account, if

(i) the total grant of Rs.5,00,000 is repaid
(ii) the part of the grant of Rs.2,00,000 is repaid.

12. TIllustration

A Ltd. has received a grant of Rs. 10,00,00,000 in the year 20X1-20X2 from local government in the form of
subsidy for selling goods at lower price to lower income group population in a particular area for two years.
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A Ltd. had accounted for the grant as income in the year 20X1-20X2. While accounting for the grant in the
year 20X1-20X2, A Ltd. was reasonably assured that all the conditions attached to the grant will be complied
with.

However, in the year 20X5-20X6, it was found that A Ltd. has not complied with the above condition and
therefore notice of refund of grant has been served to it. A Ltd. has contested but lost in court in 20X5-
20X6 and now grant is fully repayable.

How should A Ltd. reflect repayable grant in its financial statements ending 20X5-20X6?
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Ind AS 36
IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS

1. Introduction

1.1  Objective

Prescribe the methodology that an entity applies to ensure that its assets are not carried at more
than their recoverable amount.

Recognise impairment loss if the asset is carried at more than its recoverable amount.

Specifies when an entity shall reverse an impairment loss

Disclosure requirements

1.2 Scope
Applies to accounting for the impairment of all the assets other than

(a) Inventories Ind AS 2
(b) Contract assets and assets arising from costs to obtain or fulfil a contract Ind AS 115
(c) Deferred tax assets Ind AS 12
(d) Assets arising from employee benefits Ind AS 19
(e) Financial Assets Ind AS 109
(f) Biological assets related to agricultural activity Ind AS 41
(9) Deferred acquisition costs and intangible assets arising from insurance contracts | Ind AS 104
(h) Non-current assets (or disposal groups) classified as held for sale Ind AS 105
(i) Financial Assets Ind AS 109

This standard applies to financial assets classified as

(a) Subsidiaries (Ind AS 110)
(b) Associates (Ind AS 28)
(c) Joint Ventures (Ind AS 111)

2. Definitions

Ind AS 36

Impairment Loss ]

Carrying ) - Recoverable
Amount Amount

(Cost/Revalued ) Higher of

Amount less g

Acc. [
Depreciation
& Fair value Value in use
\Amortisation)
]
‘ PV of Cash
Cost to dispose flows
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2.1

Impairment Loss
It is the amount by which carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount.

Impairment loss = Carrying Amount - Recoverable Amount

2.2 Recoverable Amount
The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value less costs
of disposal and its value in use.

2.3 Valuein Use
Present value of the future cash flows expected to be derived from an asset or cash-generating unit.

2.4 Fair Value
Price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.

2.5 Costs of Disposal
Incremental costs directly attributable to the disposal of an asset or cash-generating unit, excluding
finance costs and income tax expense.

2.6 Carrying Amount
Amount at which an asset is recognised after deducting any accumulated depreciation (amortisation)
and accumulated impairment losses thereon.

2.7 Cash Generating Unit
A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows that are
largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets. For e.g. a Hotel division
of ITC group

2.8 Corporate Assets
Corporate assets are assets other than goodwill that contribute to the future cash flows of both the
cash-generating unit under review and other cash-generating units. For e.g Corporate Head Office,
Common shared service center.

3. Depreciation vs Impairment
Depreciation/ Amortisation Impairment of Asset
(a) Reduction in the value of the asset (a) Reduction in the value of the asset
(b) It is allocation of depreciable amount on | (b) It is done only when there are indications
a systematic basis. that the asset was impaired.

4. Identifying an Asset that may be impaired

4.1 General Rule -

Assess at the end of each reporting period whether there is any indication that an asset may be
impaired.
If any indication exists, estimate the recoverable amount of the asset.
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4.2 Exceptions to the general rule

Items required to be tested for impairment
atleast annually

Intangible Assets
with indefinite useful
life

Goodwill acquired in
business
combination

Intangible Assets not
yet available for use

421 TImpairment in respect to Intangible Assets referred above -

> Impairment test may be performed at any time during an annual period, but it should be performed
at the same time every year.

> Different intangible assets may be tested for impairment at different times.

» If the above intangible assets were initially recognised during the current annual period, that
intangible asset shall be tested for impairment before the end of the current annual period.

5. Indications of Impairment

[ Indications of Impairment ]
I |
External Source [ Internal Source J Investment in
subsidiary, joint

venture or associate

5.1 External source of Information
(a) Significant decline in the market value. Because of this, fair value less cost of disposal will be reduced.
(b) Significant changes in technology, market, economic or legal environment with adverse effect on
entity.
(c) Increase in market interest rates or rate of returns. This affects discount rate used in calculating
asset's value in use and decrease asset's recoverable amount
(d) Carrying amount of net assets > Market capitalisation of entity
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Sometimes the above indications may not affect the specific company and management
may have their own strategies to overcome the challenges

For Example:

(i) Increase in short term interest rate may not have direct impact on the value in
use in long run.
(i) Increase in outflows may be compensated by increase in selling price

5.2 Internal sources of Information
(a) Obsolescence or physical damage of an asset.
(b) Significant changes in use or expected use of an asset with an adverse effect on the entity.

Once the asset meets the criteria to be classified as held for sale - it
will be out of scope of Ind AS 36 and governed by Ind AS 105

(c) Evidence is available from internal reporting that indicates that the economic performance of an
asset is, or will be, worse than expected.
For Example:

Cash outflows for operating and maintaining asset > Budgeted

Actual net cash flows or operating profits < Budgeted

Decline in budgeted net cash flows / Increase in budgeted loss

Operating losses or net cash outflows for the asset, when current period amounts are

aggregated with budgeted amounts for the future.

5.3 Investment in Subsidiary, Joint Venture and Associates - Indicators
If the investor recognises a dividend from the investment and evidence is available that
(a) Carrying amount of investment (in separate financial statements) > Carrying amount of investee's
net assets (including associated goodwill) in the consolidated financial statements.
(b) Dividend > Total Comprehensive income of investee.

6. Measurement of Recoverable Amount

The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value less costs of

disposal and its value in use.

6.1 Circumstances in which it is not necessary to calculate both an asset's fair value less costs of disposal
and its value in use

(a) If either of these amounts exceeds the asset's carrying amount, the asset is not impaired and it is
not necessary to estimate the other amount.
(b) If there is no basis for making a reliable estimate of fair value less costs of disposal, recoverable
amount is measured by reference to value in use alone.
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significant changes which affect it.

If earlier computations show that recoverable amount > carrying amount
(significantly), it need not to perform the same immediately unless there are

7. Cash Generating Unit (C6V)

If recoverable amount cannot be determined for an individual asset, it is determined for a CGU. An entity

identifies the lowest aggregation of assets (C6U) that generate largely independent cash inflows, monitored

for internal management purpose.

No impairment loss is recognised for the asset if the related cash-
generating unit is not impaired.

7.1 Existence of active market for the output produced by
asset/C6U

If an active market exists for the output produced by an asset or

CGUs shall be identified
consistently from period
to period for the same
asset or types of assets
unless a change is
justified.

group of assets, that asset or group of assets shall be identified as a CGU, even if some or all the output

is used internally. E.g Refinery producing oil sold by other divisions, Power plants generating electricity

for internal use.

If cash flows are affected by internal transfer pricing, an entity shall use management’s best estimate

of future price(s) that could be achieved in arm’s length transactions in estimating:

a) the future cash inflows used to determine the asset's or CGU value in use
b) Future cash outflows used to determine the value in use of any other assets or cash-generating

units that are affected by the internal transfer pricing.

8. Fair Value Less Cost of Disposal (FVLCD)

8.1 Fair Value

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly

transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
8.2 Cost of Disposal

Costs of disposal are incremental costs directly attributable to the disposal of an asset or CGU, excluding

finance costs and income tax expense.
For Example:

Stamp duty, costs of removing the asset, and direct incremental costs to bring an asset into condition for

its sale.

Terminal benefits to employees and costs associated with reorganising a business following the disposal of

an asset are not direct incremental costs to dispose the asseft.
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If the disposal of an asset would require the buyer to take over a liability and single fair
value less cost of disposal is available for both the asset and the liability, then

FVLCD = Price to sell asset and the liability Less cost of disposal

9. Value in Use

Value in use is the present value of the future cash flows expected to be derived from an asset or CGU

Value in Use involves following
steps

[ Estimating future cash flows ] [ Appropriatte discount ]
rate

9.1 Estimation of Expected Future cash flows

(a) Cash flow projections should be based on reasonable and supportive evidence.

(b) The estimations must be based on economic conditions that will exist over the remaining useful life
of the asset

More weightages must be given to external evidence

(c) Most recent financial budgets and forecasts that have been approved by the management to be
considered.
e Forecasts should not be based on from future restructuring or enhancing the asset's
performance.
e If entity is committed to future restructuring, include cashflows from such restructuring.
(d) Maximum period covered - 5 years (unless a longer period is justified)

(e) Cash flow projections beyond the budget period should be estimated by wusing a
steady/declining/zero/negative growth rate.

ncreasing growth rate can also be used only when it is justified.

(f) The growth rate used should not exceed the long term average growth rate of products, industry,
country etc., unless a higher rate can be justified.

(9) Estimated Cash flows are based on following two approaches.
(i) Traditional approach - Best possible outcome
(i) Expected value approach - Based on various possible outcomes.
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9.11

Inclusions

Inclusions and Exclusions from Future cash flows -

Exclusions

(i) Cash flows from the continuing use of the asset

(ii) Net cash flows to be received (or paid) for the
disposal of the asset at the end of its useful life.
(Estimated on arm's length transaction)

(iii) Day to day servicing of the asset, future
overheads that can be attributed directly, or
allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis, to the
use of the asset.

(i) Cash inflows from assets that generate
cashflows that are largely independent from the
asset under review.

Example: Receivables

(ii) Cash outflows that relate to obligations that
have been recognised as liabilities.

Example: Payables

(iii) Cash flows from entity's restructuring plans
which are not yet committed.

If committed, its estimates of future cash
outflows for the restructuring are included in a

restructuring provision in accordance with Ind
AS 37
(iv) Appropriate apportionment of (iv) Any internal charges incurred by the CGU

overheads (care should be taken for internal

corporate
for using corporate assets.

charges, if any)

(v) cash flows that are expected to arise from
improving or enhancing the asset’s performance.
(vi) Cash flows from financing activities.

(vii) Income tax receipts and payments.

Other Important Points:
(i) For estimating net cash flow at the time of disposal, entity uses prices prevailing at the date of
the estimate for similar assets that have reached the end of their useful life and have operated
under conditions similar to those in which the asset will be used.

(ii) Future cash flows reflect assumptions that are consistent with the way discount rate is
determined.
e Time value of money is considered by discounting the estimated future cash flows. Hence,
cash flows from financing activities are excluded.
(iii)  Estimates of future cash flows include future cash outflows which are necessary to maintain

current standard of performance.

When individual asset/CGU consist of components with different estimated useful life,
replacement cost of such components with shorter lives should be included in cash flows
generated by the asset/CGU.

9.1.2 Foreign currency future cash flows
(i) Future cash flows are estimated in the currency in which they will be generated and then
discounted using the discount rate appropriate for that currency.
(ii) Entity franslates the present value using the spot exchange rate at the date if calculating
value in use.
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9.2 Discount Rates

Discount Rate
|

l

Pre Tax rate

[ Reflect current market ]
assessment of

f Time Value of
Money

(Risk specific to the asset for
which future cash flows
L have not been adjusted.

Risk Specific to the asset -
(i) It is the rate if return that an investor requires to earn from the asset. If the business with
asset/CGU is risky, the entity's expectation of return is high and vice versa.

(i)  Entity should use different rates for different assets or CGUs considering risks associated.

(iii)  This asset specific rate is estimated from the rate
» Implicit in current market transactions for similar assets (or)
» Weighted average cost of capital of a listed entity that has single asset (or a portfolio)

similar in terms of service potential and risks to the asset under review.

I\ i

When asset specific rate is not directly available from the market, an entity uses other
bases such as

(@) Weighted average cost of capital (WACC) determined using CAPM technique
(b) Enterprise incremental borrowing rate
(c) Other market borrowing rates.

(iv) The above rates can be adjusted by
» Adding specific risks associated with projected cash flows
» Excluding risks that are not relevant to the projected cash flows.

Country risks, currency risks, price risks, cash flow risks also to
be considered.

9.3 Adjustment to Inflation in cash flows and Discount rate

(i) Estimates of future cash flows and the discount rate reflect consistent assumptions about price
increases attributable to general inflation.

(ii) If the discount rate includes the effect of general inflation, future cash flows are estimated in
nominal terms.
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(iii) If the discount rate excludes the effect of general inflation, future cash flows are estimated in
real terms (but includes future specific price increase or decrease)

I

The entity adjusts the cash flows from the disposal of an asset for the effect of both
future price increases due to general inflation and specific future price increase or
decrease.

If estimates of future cash flows from the asset’s continuing use and the discount rate
exclude the effect of general inflation, the entity also excludes this effect from the
estimate of net cash flows on disposal.

10. Recognition and Measurement of Impairment Loss

10.1 Individual Assets

Impairment Loss

l

No .
—{ Whether asset is carried at revalued amount?

Yes

,Recognise immediately in \| o 'Whether revaluation |
statement of profit and loss | surplus exists?

| Yes

l l

( Recognised in OCI to the ( Recognised immediately in

extent that the impairment profit or loss to the extent loss
loss does not exceed the exceeds the revaluation
amount in the revaluation . surplus

_surplus for that same asset. |

Other important points

(@) When Impairment loss > carrying amount of the asset, an entity shall recognise a liability.

(b) After recognition of impairment loss, depreciation/amortisation to be calculated on the revised carrying
amount over its remaining useful life.

(c) After recognition, any related deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined in accordance with
Ind AS 12 by comparing revised carrying amount with its tax base.
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Recoverable amount of individual asset cannot be
determined if

Asset does not generate independent Asset's value in use cannot be
cash flows estimated to be close to its
FVLCD
10.2 Cash Generating Unit
10.1.1 Carrying amount of C6U
Inclusions Exclusions

(i) Carrying amount of only those assets that | (i) Carrying amount of any recognised liability
can be attributed directly, or allocated on a | unless the recoverable amount of the cash-
reasonable and consistent basis, to the CGU | generating unit cannot be determined
and will generate future cash flows. without consideration of this liability.

R\ A—

e |If disposal of CGU would require the buyer to assume the liability,
FVLCD of CGU = Estimated selling price of assets & liability of CGU - cost of
disposal.

e Carrying amount of liability is deducted in determining CGU'’s value in use
and it's carrying amount to perform meaningful comparison.

10.1.2 Order of allocating impairment loss to assets of CGU

(a) First, reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU or group of units.
(b) Then, to other assets of the unit (group of units) pro rata on the basis of carrying amount of
each asset in the unit (group of units)

Carrying amount of individual asset within CGU shall
not be reduced below the highest of

RO ES
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If any particular asset carrying amount becomes zero after impairment, the remaining impairment loss
should be allocated to other assets on pro rata basis as if the asset does not exist.

11. Goodwill

For impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination shall, from the acquisition date, be
allocated to each of the acquirer's CGU or groups of C6Us that are expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination on non-arbitrary basis, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree
are assigned to those units or groups of units.

111 Size of CGU to which goodwill is allocated

shall

I
I |

[ CGU or Group of CGU to which goodwill is allocated ]

Represent the lowest level Not be larger than an
within the entity at which the operating segment as per Ind
goodwill is monitored for AS 108

internal management purpose

11.2 Timing of impairment test of Goodwill
(a) The annual impairment test for a CGU to which goodwill has been allocated may be performed at any
time during an annual period, provided the test is performed at the same time every year.
(b) Different C6Us may be tested for impairment at different times.
If the initial allocation of goodwill acquired in a business combination cannot be completed before the
end of the annual period in which the business combination is effected, that initial allocation shall be
completed before the end of the first annual period beginning after the acquisition date.

If the initial accounting for a business combination can be determined only
provisionally by the end of the period in which the combination is effected,
the acquirer -

(@) Accounts for the combination using the provisional values.

(b) Recognises any adjustments to provisional values as a result of
completing the initial accounting within measurement period, which
will not exceed 12 months from the date of acquisition

11.3 Disposal of operation with CGU to which goodwill has been allocated
Goodwill associated with the operation disposed shall be

Ind AS 36 1FIN by Indigo Learn 8.11



(a) Included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal

(b) Measured on the basis of relative values of the operation disposed of and portion of CGU retained
unless the entity can demonstrate that some other method better reflects the goodwill associated
with the operation disposed of.

11.4 Change in composition of C6U to which goodwill has been allocated
In some cases, the entity reorganises the composition of C6Us (i.e., merging and demerging of CGUs) for
corporate reporting purpose. In such case,
(a) Goodwill shall be reallocated to the units affected.
(b) Reallocation shall be performed using a relative value apprroach unless the entity can demonstrate
some other better method.

115 Testing CGU with goodwill for impairment

Situation When to Test?
When goodwill is related to the CGU but not | Only when there is an indication that it may be
allocated impaired.
When goodwill is allocated to the CGU (a) Annually &
(b) whenever there is an indication that CGU is
impaired.

§§ If CGU includes in carrying amount an intangible asset that has ‘
indefinite useful life or not yet available for use, that asset can be
tested for impairment only as a part of CGU and unit also to be tested
for impairment annually.

11.6 Priority for testing impairment

If the assets in CGU to which goodwill has been | Individual assets shall be tested
allocated are tested for impairment at the same | before the unit

time as the unit
If the CGUs constituting a group of CGUs tfo | Individual units shall be tested
which goodwill has been allocated are tested for | before the group of units

impairment at the same time as the unit

11.7 Two Step approach for goodwill allocated to a group of C6Us
When goodwill is allocated o a group of C6Us for the purpose of impairment testing but cannot be
allocated on a non-arbitrary basis to individual C6Us, the individual C6Us must be tested for impairment
before the group of CGUs containing the associated goodwill.

11.8 Rolling forward detailed calculations from a preceding period

Goodwill:
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The most recent detailed calculation made in a preceding period of the recoverable amount of a cash-

generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated may be used in the impairment test of that unit in the

current period provided all the following criteria are met:

a) the assets and liabilities making up the unit have not changed significantly since the most recent
recoverable amount calculation

b) Inthe most recent calculation, recoverable amount > carrying amount (substantially)

c) The likelihood that a current recoverable amount determination would be less than the asset's
carrying amount is remote.

Intangible Assets:
The most recent detailed calculation of such an asset’s recoverable amount made in a preceding period
may be used in the impairment test for that asset in the current period, provided all of the following
criteria are met:

(a) If the intangible asset does not generate cash inflows from continuing use that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets and is therefore tested for impairment
as part of the C6U to which it belongs, the assets and liabilities making up that unit have not
changed significantly since the most recent recoverable amount calculation

(b) In the most recent calculation, recoverable amount > carrying amount (substantially)

(c) The likelihood that a current recoverable amount determination would be less than the asset's
carrying amount is remote.

12. Corporate Assets

Corporate assets include group or divisional assets. They do not generate cash inflows independently of other
assets or groups of assets and their carrying amount cannot be fully attributed to the cash-generating unit
under review.

For Example:
Head office building, EDP equipment, research centre.

ecoverable amount of individual corporate asset cannot be
determined unless it is disposed of.

Corporate assets are tested for impairment in the context of the CGU or group of C6Us to which asset belongs.
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12.1 Allocation of corporate assets to C6Us for impairment

[Allocating Corporate Assets to CGU for Impairment

!

: Can corporate assets be allocated to CGU on reasonable and consistent basis ]
|

Yes No
/ q \ / \\
. Compare the total carrying amount of CGU \ /| Compare the carrying amount of CGU \
along with corporate assets with the | [ (Excluding Corporate assets) with the
recoverable amount. recoverable amount.
If there is any impairment loss -
Il If there is any impairment loss - Apply first on goodwill and remaining on
Apply the impairment loss first on pro rata basis
Goodwill and the remaining loss should be
on the assets of CGU (including corporate Il. Identify smallest group of CGUs to which
assets) on pro rata basis of their carrying corporate asset can be allocated on a
\ amounts y reasonable and consistent basis
Ill.  Compare the carrying amount of CGUs
(including corporate assets) with recoverable

\ amount of group of assets and allocate

\_ impairment loss. //
N

13. Reversal of an Impairment Loss

At every balance sheet date, entity should assess whether there is any indication that the impairment loss
recognised in the previous years may be decreased or no longer exist.
Entity must estimate recoverable amount of that asset if any such indication exists.

mpairment loss recognised for goodwill shall not be reversed
in a subsequent period.

13.1 Change in Estimates
Impairment loss recognised in prior periods for an asset other than goodwill shall be reversed if, and
only if, there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset's recoverable amount
since the last impairment loss was recognised
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[ Examples for changes in estimates ]

Change in the

A change in the basi amount or timing of Chapge in the
for recoverable future cash flows or estimate of .
amount. (i.e., discount rate components fair
whether based on value less cost of
FVLCD or Value in disposal
N\ J

\ use) J

13.2 Unwinding of Discount
> Asset's value in use may become greater than the asset's carrying amount simply because the
present value of future cash inflows increases as they become closer.
> However, the service potential of the asset has not increased.
> Insuch cases, an impairment loss is not reversed just because of the passage of time even if the
recoverable amount is > carrying amount.

13.3 Indicators of reversal of Impairment Loss

External Indicators Internal Indicators

(i) Significant increase in market value (i) Significant change in the way the asset is
used or expected to be used.

(ii) Significant changes in technological, (ii) Evidence from internal reporting that

economic, legal, market environment which | indicates that the economic performance of

have positive effect on the entity. the asset is /will be better than expected.
(iii) Decrease in market interest rates and | (iii) Withdrawal of commitment for
those are likely to affect discount rates restructuring, discontinuing operations etc,

which gives positive effect to entity.

13.4 Reversal of Impairment in case of Individual Asset

13.4.1 If NO Revaluation done in prior periods:

(a) Reverse the impairment loss by recording below journal entry

Dr. Asset A/c
Cr. Impairment Loss
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S

. The increased carrying amount of an asset shall NOT exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net of amortisation or
depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years.

. Maximum impairment loss reversal = Impairment loss previously
recognised

13.4.2 If Revaluation done in prior periods:
Any reversal of an impairment loss of a revalued asset shall be treated as a revaluation increase.

A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in other comprehensive income and increases the
revaluation surplus for that asset. However, to the extent that an impairment loss on the same revalued
asset was previously recognised in profit or loss, a reversal of that impairment loss is also recognised in
profit or loss.

Dr. Asset A/c
Cr. Impairment Loss (P&L) (to the extent recognised in P&L)
Cr. Revaluation Surplus (Balancing figure)

Depreciation (Amortisation) charge for the asset should be computed prospectively i.e., on the revised
carrying amount after deducting residual value, over the remaining useful life of the asseft.

13.5 Reversal of Impairment in case of CGU

A reversal if an impairment loss for a CGU should be allocated to all assets in CGU except goodwill on a
pro rata basis of the carrying amount

The increase in carrying amount of Individual Assets in CGU shall
not be increased above the lower of

Actual carrying amount as if
impairment loss had not been
recognised previously

Its Recoverable Amount (If
determinable)

The amount of the reversal of the impairment loss should be allocated to each asset on a pro rata basis.
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14. Non-Controlling Interests - The impact on goodwill impairment testing

Goodwill acquired in business combination is allocated to acquirer's CGU or group of C6Us which are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the business combination.

The amount of goodwill recorded by an entity when it acquires a controlling stake in a subsidiary that is less
than 100% of its equity depends on which of the two following methods have been used to calculate it.

Fair Value Method:
If non-controlling interest is measured at its acquisition-date fair value, it means that NCI share of goodwill
is recognised in consolidated in financial statements.

Proportionate interest in Net Identifiable Assets:

(a) If an entity measures non-controlling interest as its proportionate interest in the net identifiable
assets of the subsidiary at the acquisition date, goodwill attributable to the non-controlling interest
is included in the recoverable amount of the CGU but is not recognised in the parent’s consolidated
financial statement.

(b) Acquirer shall gross up the carrying amount of goodwill to the CGU tfo include goodwill attributable to
the non-controlling interest.

(c) The adjusted carrying amount is then compared with the recoverable amount of the unit to determine
whether the CGU is impaired.

If a subsidiary is itself a CGU, the impairment loss is allocated between the parent and the
non-controlling interest in the same proportion of profit and loss allocation.

15. Disclosures

15.1 Generadl

> An entity is required to disclose the amount of impairment losses and reversals of impairment
losses recognised in profit or loss and in OCI during the period for each class of assets.

15.2 Entities Reporting Segment Information
> An entity shall disclose the amount of impairment losses and reversals of impairment losses
recoghised in profit or loss and in OCT during the period for each reportable segment

15.3 Recognition / Reversal of material impairment losses
(a) An entity is required to disclose
> the events and circumstances that led to the recognition or reversal
> the amount of the impairment loss recognised or reversed
» Some additional disclosures w.r.t individual asset and CGU are as follows
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For CGU
Description of CGU
Amount of impairment loss recognised or
reversed by class of assets & by
reportable segment
e Description of the current and former way

For Individual asset
¢ Nature of the asset .
e Reportable segment to which
the asset belongs
e Recoverable amount

of aggregating assets and the reasons for
changing
e Recoverable amount

15.4 Other impairment losses/reversals material in aggregate to the financial statements
(a) An entity shall disclose
> the main classes of assets affected by impairment losses and reversals of impairment losses
> The main events and circumstances that led to the recognition of these impairment losses
and reversals of impairment losses.

15.5 Unallocated Goodwill
An entity shall disclose the amount of unallocated goodwill along with reasons

15.6 Information to be disclosed for CGUs to which significant goodwill or indefinite - life intangible
assets have been allocated
(a) An entity is required to disclose the following information
> Carrying amount of goodwill, intangible assets with indefinite useful life allocated to the unit

Ind AS 36

(group of units)

> Basis on which the unit's (group of units’) recoverable amount has been determined
» If the recoverable amount of unit is based on value in use / FVCD, disclose the following

Value in use

Key assumptions on cash flow projections

Description of management's approach to
determining the values assigned to each key
assumption

Period over which management has projected
cash flows and explanations for why longer
period (> 5 years) is justified

Growth rates used along with justifications if
any

Discount rates applied

1FIN by Indigo Learn

Fair value less cost of disposal
Key assumptions on determination of Fair value
less cost of disposal
Description of management's approach to
determining the values assigned to each key
assumption
Level of the fair value hierarchy (Ind AS 113)

Any change in valuation techniques along with
reasons
If FVCD is measured using discounted cash flow
projections, disclose

v the period over which management has

projected cash flows
v" the growth rate used
v" the discount rate(s) applied

8.18



(b) If areasonably possible change in a key assumption would cause the unit's carrying amount to exceed its
recoverable amount
> the amount by which recoverable amount exceeds its carrying amount
> the value assigned to the key assumption
» the amount by which the value assigned to the key assumption must change, after incorporating
any consequential effects of that change on the other variables used to measure recoverable
amount, in order for the unit's recoverable amount o be equal to its carrying amount.

15.7 Information to be disclosed for CGUs to which insignificant goodwill or indefinite-life intangible
assets have been allocated

(a) The amount so allocated to each unit (group of units) is not significant in comparison with the entity's
total carrying amount of goodwill or intangible assets with indefinite useful lives, that fact shall be
disclosed, together with the aggregate carrying amount of goodwill or intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives allocated to those units (groups of units).

(b) In addition, if the recoverable amounts of any of those units (groups of units) are based on the same
key assumptions and the aggregate carrying amount of goodwill or intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives allocated to them is significant in comparison with the entity's fotal carrying amount of
goodwill or intangible assets with indefinite useful lives, an entity shall disclose that fact, together
with:

> the aggregate carrying amount of goodwill, intangible assets with indefinite useful lives
allocated to those units
> adescription of the key assumptions
> Description of management's approach to determining the values assigned to each key
assumption
> If areasonably possible change in the key assumptions would cause the aggregate of the units
carrying amounts to exceed the aggregate of their recoverable amounts
o the amount by which the aggregate of the units recoverable amounts exceeds the
aggregate of their carrying amounts
o the values assigned to the key assumptions
¢ the amount by which the values assigned to the key assumptions must change, after
incorporating any consequential effects of the change on the other variables used to
measure recoverable amount, in order for the aggregate of the units recoverable
amounts to be equal to the aggregate of their carrying amounts.

16. Significant Differences between Ind AS 36 with AS 28

Applicability Applies to financial assets classified Does not apply to the above assets
as subsidiaries, associates, joint

ventures.

Biological Asset Excludes biological assets related to | Does not specifically exclude
agricultural activity.
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Impairment testing for an
intangible asset with an
indefinite useful life
Reversal of Goodwill

Allocation of Goodwill

Additional Guidance

Annual impairment festing

Prohibits the recognition of reversal

Goodwill is allocated to CGUs that are
benefit from the
synergies of the business combination.

expected to

Gives additional guidance on following
aspects:
(a) Estimating Value in use
(b) Reasonableness of the
assumptions on which cash
flows are based
(c) Present value techniques

No annual impairment testing

Impairment loss recognised for
goodwill should be reversed in a
subsequent period when it was caused
by a specific external event of an
exceptional nature that is not
expected to recur and subsequent
external events that have occurred

that reverse the effect of that event

When goodwill cannot be allocated
reasonably and consistently to the
CGU, two levels of impairment tests
are carried out, viz., bottom-up test
and fop-down test.

Does not provide such guidelines.

Illustrations

1. Illustration

Apex Ltd. is engaged in manufacturing of steel utensils. It owns a building for its headquarters. The building

used to be fully occupied for internal use. However, recently the company has undertaken a massive downsizing

exercise as a result of which 1/3rd of the building became vacant. This vacant portion has now been given for

on lease for 6 years. Determine the CGU of the building.

2. Illustration

Mars Ltd. gives the following estimates of cash flows relating to property, plant and equipment on 31st March,

20X4. The discount rate is 15%

Year Cash Flow (X in lakh)
20X4-20X5 2,000

20X5-20X6 3,000

20X6-20X7 3,000

20X7-20X8 4,000

20X8-20X9 2,000

Residual Value at 31st March, 20X9 500

Ind AS 36
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Property, plant & equipment was purchased on 1st April, 20X1 for 2 20,000 lakh
Useful Life was 8 Years

Residual Value estimated at the end of 8 years - X 500 lakh

Fair value less cost to disposal - ¥ 10,000 lakh

YV V V V

Calculate impairment loss, if any on the property, plant and equipment. Also calculate the revised carrying
amount and revised depreciation of property, plant and equipment

3. TIllustration

Saturn India Ltd is reviewing one of its business segments for impairment. The carrying value of its net assets
is 40 million. Management has produced two computations for the value-in-use of the business segment. The
first value of % 36 million excludes the benefit to be derived from a future reorganization, but the second
value of % 44 million includes the benefits to be derived from the future reorganization. There is not an active
market for the sale of the business segments.

Whether the business segment needs to be Impaired?

4. Tllustration

On 31st March, 20X1, XYZ Ltd. makes following estimate of cash flows for one of its asset located in USA:

Year Cash flows

20X1-20X2 Us $ 80

20X2-20X3 Us $ 100

20X3-20X4 Us $ 20
Following information has been provided:

Particulars India USA

Applicable discount rate 15% 10%
Exchange rates are as follows:

As on Exchange rate

31st March, 20X1 345/Us $

As on Expected Exchange

rate

31st March, 20X2 348/Us $

31st March, 20X3 3¥51/US $

31st March, 20X4 Z55/US $

Calculate value in use as on 31st March, 20X1.

B. Illustration

Cash flow of % 1,000 may be received in one year, two years or three years with probabilities of 10%, 60% and
30%, respectively. Calculate expected cash flows assuming applicable discount rate of 5%, 5.25% and 5.5% in
year 1, 2 and 3, respectively.

6. TIllustration

From the following details of an asset, find out:
(a) Impairment loss and its treatment.
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(b) Current year depreciation for the year end

Particulars of assets:

Cost of asset ¥ 56 lakh
Useful life 10 years
Salvage value Nil

Carrying value at the beginning of the year % 27.30 lakh
Remaining useful life 3 years
Recoverable amount at the beginning of the year 212 lakh
Upward revaluation done in last year 2 14 lakh

7. Illustration

On 1*" January Year 1, Entity Q purchased a machine costing ¥ 2,40,000 with an estimated useful life of 20
years and an estimated zero residual value. Depreciation is computed on straight-line basis. The asset had
been re-valued on 1 January Year 3 to % 2,50,000, but with no change in useful life at that date. On 1 January
Year 4 an impairment review showed the machine's recoverable amount to be % 1,00,000 and its estimated
remaining useful life to be 10 years.

Calculate:
a) The carrying amount of the machine on 31°" December Year 2 and the revaluation surplus arising on 1°'
January Year 3.
b) The carrying amount of the machine on 31°' December Year 3 (immediately before the impairment).
c) The impairment loss recognised in the year to 31°" December Year 4 and its treatment thereon
d) The depreciation charge in the year to 31°" December Year 4.

Note: During the course of utilization of machine, the company did not opt to transfer part of the revaluation
surplus to retained earnings.

8. Tllustration

PQR Ltd. is the company which has performed well in the past but one of its major assets, an item of equipment,
suffered a significant and unexpected deterioration in performance. Management expects to use the machine
for a further four years after 31st March 20X6, but at a reduced level. The equipment will be scrapped after
four years. The financial accountant for PQR Ltd. has produced a set of cash-flow projections for the
equipment for the next four years, ranging from optimistic to pessimistic. CFO thought that the projections
were too conservative, and he intended to use the highest figures each year. These were as follows:

2'000
Year ended 31st March 20X7 276
Year ended 31st March 20X8 192
Year ended 31st March 20X9 120
Year ended 31st March 20Y0 114

The above cash inflows should be assumed to occur on the last day of each financial year. The pre-tax discount
rate is 9%. The machine could have been sold at 31st March 20X6 for % 6,00,000 and related selling expenses
in this regard could have been ¥ 96,000. The machine had been revalued previously, and at 31st March 20X6
an amount of ¥ 36,000 was held in revaluation surplus in respect of the asset. The carrying value of the asset
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at 31st March 20X6 was  6,60,000. The Indian government has indicated that it may compensate the company
for any loss in value of the assets up to its recoverable amount.

Calculate impairment loss, if any and revised depreciation of asset. Also suggest how Impairment loss, if any
would be set of f and how compensation from government be accounted for?

9. Illustration

A company operates a mine in a country where legislation requires that the owner must restore the site on
completion of its mining operations. The cost of restoration includes the replacement of the overburden, which
must be removed before mining operations commence. A provision for the costs to replace the overburden was
recognised as soon as the overburden was removed. The amount provided was recognised as part of the cost
of the mine and is being depreciated over the mine's useful life. The carrying amount of the provision for
restoration costs is ¥ 500, which is equal to the present value of the restoration costs.

The entity is testing the mine for impairment. The cash-generating unit for the mine is the mine as a whole.
The entity has received various offers to buy the mine at a price of around 2 800. This price reflects the fact
that the buyer will assume the obligation to restore the overburden. Disposal costs for the mine are negligible.
The value in use of the mine is approximately % 1,200, excluding restoration costs. The carrying amount of the
mine is ¥ 1,000. How the impairment loss is to be accounted for?

10. Illustration

Entity A acquires Entity B for 2 50 million, of which % 35 million is the fair value of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. The acquisition of B Ltd. is to be integrated into two of Entity A's CGUs with
the net assets being allocated as follows

Z in million
CGU 1 C6U 2 Total
Fair value of acquired identifiable tangible and intangible assets | 25 10 35

In addition to the net assets acquired that are assigned to CGU 2, the acquiring entity expects CGU 2 to
benefit from certain synergies related to the acquisition (e.g. C6U 2 is expected to realise higher sales of its
products because of access to the acquired entity's distribution channels). There is no synergistic goodwill
attributable to other CGUs.

Entity A allocated the purchase consideration of the acquired business to C6U 1 and CGU 2 as 33 million and
% 17 million respectively.

Determine the allocation of goodwill to each CGU?

11. Example

An entity sells for ¥ 100 an operation that was part of a cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated. The goodwill allocated to the unit cannot be identified or associated with an asset group at a level
lower than that unit, except arbitrarily. The recoverable amount of the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained is ¥ 300.
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Since the goodwill allocated to the cash-generating unit cannot be non-arbitrarily identified or associated with
an asset group at a level lower than that unit, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is
measured on the basis of the relative values of the operation disposed of and the portion of the unit retained.
Therefore, 25 per cent of the goodwill allocated to the cash-generating unit is included in the carrying amount
of the operation that is sold.

12.Example

Goodwill had previously been allocated to cash-generating unit A. The goodwill allocated to A cannot be
identified or associated with an asset group at a level lower than A, except arbitrarily. A is to be divided and
intfegrated into three other cash-generating units, B, C and D.

Since the goodwill allocated to A cannot be non-arbitrarily identified or associated with an asset group at a
level lower than A, it is reallocated to units B, C and D on the basis of the relative values of the three portions
of A before those portions are integrated with B, C and D.

13.Example

Earth Infra Ltd has two cash-generating units, A and B. There is no goodwill within the units' carrying values.
The carrying values of the CGUs are CGU A for 20 million and CGU B for T 30 million. The company has an
office building which it is using as an office headquarter and has not been included in the above values and can
be allocated to the units on the basis of their carrying values. The office building has a carrying value of % 10
million. The recoverable amounts are based on value-in-use of % 18 million for CGU A and % 38 million for CGU
B.

Determine whether the carrying values of CGU A and B are impaired.

14, Example
Assets Carrying | Fair Value less cost | Impairment Revised
Amount of disposal carrying amount
Plant & Machinery 1,00,000 50,000
Building 80,000 85,000
Electric Equipment 40,000 -
Goodwill 50,000 NA
Patents 20,000 NA
Other Monetary 60,000 60,000
assets
Total 3,50,000
Recoverable amount 2,00,000

15. Illustration

ABC Ltd. has three cash-generating units: A, B and C, the carrying amounts of which as on 31st March, 20X1
are as follows:

Cash-generating units Carrying amount (R in crore)

Remaining useful life
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A 500 10
B 750 20
C 1,100 20
ABC Ltd. also has two corporate assets having a remaining useful life of 20 years

(R incrore)
Corporate asset | Carrying amount | Remarks
X 600 The carrying amount of X can be allocated on a
Y 200 reasonable basis (i.e., pro rata basis) to the

individual cash-generating units.
The carrying amount of Y cannot be allocated on a
reasonable basis to the individual cash- generating

units.

Recoverable amount as on 31st March, 20X1 is as follows:
Cash-generating units Recoverable amount (Z in crore)
A 600
B 900
C 1,400
ABC Ltd. 3,200

Calculate the impairment loss, if any. Ignore decimals.

16. Illustration

XYZ Limited has a cash-generating unit ‘Plant A" as on 1st April, 20X1 having a carrying amount of ¥ 1,000
crore. Plant A was acquired under a business combination and goodwill of ¥ 200 crore was allocated to it. It is
depreciated on straight line basis. Plant A has a useful life of 10 years with no residual value. On 31st March,
20X2, Plant A has a recoverable amount of 2 600 crore. Calculate the impairment loss on Plant A. Also,
prescribe its allocation as per Ind AS 36.

17 . Illustration

A machine has suffered physical damage but is still working, although not as well as before it was damaged.
The machine's fair value less costs of disposal is less than its carrying amount. The machine does not generate
independent cash inflows. The smallest identifiable group of assets that includes the machine and generates
cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets is the production line to which
the machine belongs. The recoverable amount of the production line shows that the production line taken as a
whole is not impaired.

Scenario 1 - budgets/forecasts approved by management reflect no commitment of management to replace
the machine.

Scenario 2 - budgets/forecasts approved by management reflect a commitment of management to replace the
machine and sell it in the near future. Cash flows from continuing use of the machine until its disposal are
estimated to be negligible.

How to account for the impairment loss of machine in above scenarios?
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18. Illustration

E Ltd. owns a machine used in the manufacture of steering wheels, which are sold directly to major car
manufacturers.

The machine was purchased on 1st April, 20X1 at a cost of % 5,00,000 through a vendor financing
arrangement on which interest is being charged at the rate of 10% per annum.

During the year ended 31st March, 20X3, E Ltd. sold 10,000 steering wheels at a selling price of ¥ 190
per wheel.

The most recent financial budget approved by E Ltd.'s management, covering the period 1st April, 20X3
- 31st March, 20X8, including that the company expects to sell each steering wheel for ¥ 200 during
20X3-20X4, the price rising in later years in line with a forecast inflation of 3% per annum.

During the year ended 31st March, 20X4, E Ltd. expects to sell 10,000 steering wheels. The number
is forecast to increase by 5% each year until 31st March, 20X8.

E Ltd. estimates that each steering wheel costs X 160 to manufacture, which includes % 110 variable
costs, X 30 share of fixed overheads and % 20 transport costs.

Costs are expected to rise by 1% during 20X4-20X5, and then by 2% per annum until 31st March,
20X8.

During 20X5-20X6, the machine will be subject to regular maintenance costing Z 50,000.

In 20X3-20X4, E Ltd. expects to invest in new technology costing ¥ 1,00,000. This technology will
reduce the variable costs of manufacturing each steering wheel from % 110 to ¥ 100 and the share of
fixed overheads from % 30 to X 15 (subject to the availability of technology, which is still under
development).

E Ltd. is depreciating the machine using the straight-line method over the machine's 10 year estimated
useful life. The current estimate (based on similar assets that have reached the end of their useful
lives) of the disposal proceeds from selling the machine is ¥ 80 000 net of disposal costs. E Ltd. expects
to dispose of the machine at the end of March, 20X8.

E Ltd. has determined a pre-tax discount rate of 8%, which reflects the market's assessment of the
time value of money and the risks associated with this asset.

Assume a tax rate of 30%. What is the value in use of the machine in accordance with Ind AS 36?

19. Illustration

A Ltd. purchased an asset of 2 100 lakh on 1st April, 20X0. It has useful life of 4 years with no residual value.
Recoverable amount of the asset is as follows

As on Recoverable amount
31st March, 20X1 Z 60 lakh
31st March, 20X2 % 40 lakh
31st March, 20X3 % 28 lakh

Calculate the amount of impairment loss or its reversal, if any, on 31st March, 20X1, 31st March, 20X2 and
31st March, 20X3.

20.

Illustration
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On 1st April 20X1, Venus Ltd acquired 100% of Saturn Ltd for X 4,00,000. The fair value of the net identifiable
assets of Saturn Ltd was % 3,20,000 and goodwill was ¥ 80,000. Saturn Ltd is in coal mining business. On 31st
March, 20X3, the government has cancelled licenses given to it in few states.

As a result Saturn’s Ltd revenue is estimated to get reduce by 30%. The adverse change in market place and
regulatory conditions is an indicator of impairment. As a result, Venus Ltd has to estimate the recoverable
amount of goodwill and net assets of Saturn Ltd on 31st March, 20X3.

Venus Ltd uses straight line depreciation. The useful life of Saturn's Ltd assets is estimated to be 20 years
with no residual value. No independent cash inflows can be identified fo any individual assets. So, the entire
operation of SaturnLtd is to be treated as a CGU. Due to the regulatory entangle it is not possible to determine
the selling price of Saturn Ltd as a CGU. Its value in use is estimated by the management at % 2,12,000.
Suppose by 31st March, 20X5 the government reinstates the licenses of Saturn Ltd. The management expects
a favourable change in net cash flows. This is an indicator that an impairment loss may have reversed. The
recoverable amount of Saturn's Ltd net asset is re-estimated. The value in use is expected to be % 3,04,000
and fair value less cost to disposal is expected to be X 2,90,000.

Calculate the impairment loss, if any. Also show the accounting treatment for reversal of impairment loss and
the subsequent depreciation thereon.

21.Illustration

Elia limited is a manufacturing company which deals in o manufacturing of cold drinks and beverages. It is
having various plants across India. There is a Machinery A in the Baroda plant which is used for the purpose
of bottling. There is one more machinery which is Machinery B clubbed with Machinery A. Machinery A can
individually have an output and also sold independently in the open market. Machinery B cannot be sold in
isolation and without clubbing with Machine A it cannot produce output as well. The Company considers this
group of assets as a Cash Generating Unit and an Inventory amounting to ¥ 2 Lakh and Goodwill amounting to X
1.50 Lakhs is included in such CGU.

Machinery A was purchased on 1st April 2013 for 2 10 Lakhs and residual value is ¥ 50 thousands. Machinery B
was purchased on 1st April, 2015 for % 5 Lakhs with no residual value. The useful life of both Machine A and B
is 10 years. The Company expects following cash flows in the next 5 years pertaining fo Machinery A. The
incremental borrowing rate of the company is 10%.

Year Cash Flows from Machinery A

1 1,50,000

2 1,00,000

3 1,00,000

4 1,50,000

5 1,00,000 (excluding Residual Value)
Total 6,00,000

On 31st March, 2018, the professional valuers have estimated that the current market value of Machinery A
is X 7 lakhs. The valuation fee was X 1 lakh. There is a need to dismantle the machinery before delivering it to
the buyer. Dismantling cost is % 1.50 lakhs. Specialised packaging cost would be ¥ 25 thousand and legal fees
would be ¥ 75 thousand.

The Inventory has been valued in accordance with Ind AS 2. The recoverable value of CGU is % 10 Lakh as on
31st March, 2018. In the next year, the company has done the assessment of recoverability of the C6U and
found that the value of such CGU is % 11 Lakhs ie on 31st March, 2019. The Recoverable value of Machine A is
% 4,50,000 and combined Machine A and B is ¥ 7,60,000 as on 31st March, 2019

Required:
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a) Compute the impairment loss on CGU and carrying value of each asset after charging impairment loss
for the year ending 31st March, 2018 by providing all the relevant working notes to arrive at such
calculation.

b) Compute the prospective depreciation for the year 2018-2019 on the above assets.

c) Compute the carrying value of CGU as at 31st March, 2019.

22. Illustration

A Ltd acquires 80% shares of a subsidiary B Ltd. for X 3,200 thousand. At the date of acquisition, B Ltd.'s
identifiable net assets is % 3,000 thousand. A elects to measure NCT at proportionate share of net identifiable
assets. It recognizes

Zin'000

Purchase Consideration 3,200
NCI (3,000 x 20%) 600
3,800

Less: Net Assets (3,000)
Goodwill 800

At the end of next financial year, B Ltd.'s carrying amount is reduced to 2 2,700 thousand (excluding goodwill).
Recoverable amount of B Ltd.'s assets is

Case (i) % 2,000 thousand,

Case (ii) ¥ 2,800 thousand

Calculate impairment loss allocable to Parent and NCI in both the cases.

23. Illustration

Sun Ltd is an entity with various subsidiaries. The entity closes its books of account at every year ended on
31st March. On 1st July, 20X1, Sun Ltd acquired an 80% interest in Pluto Ltd. Details of the acquisition were
as follows:

Sun Ltd acquired 800,000 shares in Pluto Ltd by issuing two equity shares for every five acquired. The fair
value of Sun Ltd's share on 1st July, 20X1 was X 4 per share and the fair value of a Pluto's share was % 1.40
per share. The costs of issue were 5% per share.

Sun Ltd incurred further legal and professional costs of 2 100,000 that directly related to the acquisition.
The fair values of the identifiable net assets of Pluto Ltd at 1st July, 20X1 were measured at % 1.3 million. Sun
Ltd initially measured the non-controlling interest in Pluto Ltd at fair value. They used the market value of a
Pluto Ltd share for this purpose. No impairment of goodwill arising on the acquisition of Pluto Ltd was required
at 31st March, 20X2 or 20X3.

Pluto Ltd comprises three cash generating units A, B and C. When Pluto Ltd was acquired the directors of Sun
Ltd estimated that the goodwill arising on acquisition could reasonably be allocated to units A:B:C on a 2:2:1
basis. The carrying values of the assets in these cash generating units and their recoverable amounts are as

follows:

Unit Carrying value Recoverable
(before goodwill amount
allocation)

3'000 3'000
A 600 740
B 550 650
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C 450 400
Required:
0) Compute the carrying value of the goodwill arising on acquisition of Pluto Ltd in the consolidated
Balance Sheet of Sun Itd at 31st March, 20X4 following the impairment review.
(i) Compute the total impairment loss arising as a result of the impairment review, identifying how
much of this loss would be allocated to the non-controlling interests in Pluto I+d.

24. TIllustration

Parent acquires an 80% ownership interest in Subsidiary for ¥ 2,100 on 1st April, 20X1. At that date,
Subsidiary’s net identifiable assets have a fair value of 2 1,500. Parent chooses to measure the non-controlling
interests as the proportionate interest of Subsidiary's net identifiable assets. The assets of Subsidiary
together are the smallest group of assets that generate cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash
inflows from other assets or groups of assets. Since other cash-generating units of Parent are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination, the goodwill of ¥ 500 related to those synergies has been
allocated to other cash-generating units within Parent. On 31st March, 20X2, Parent determines that the
recoverable amount of cash-generating unit Subsidiary is X 1,000. The carrying amount of the net assets of
Subsidiary, excluding goodwill, is ¥ 1,350. Allocate the impairment loss on 31st March, 20X2.
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Ind AS 105

NON- CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

1 Introduction

A fixed asset which was being used in the production, supply of goods and services, for administrative purposes
or earn rentals or for capital appreciation kept aside for sale by the entity is called as non-current asset held
for sale.
Ind AS 105 will be applicable for

o Property, Plant and Equipment

o Intangible Assets

o Investment Property

o Investment in Other Companies
When the entity wants to sell group of assets like

o Unit of a Company

o Branch

o Division

o Cash Generating Unit
o Segment

Such group of assets is known as Disposal Group
1.1 Objective

[ Objective of Ind AS 105 ]

I |

[ Measurement ] [ Classification ] [Presentation ]

| | I |

- Non-Current Assets held
for Sale

- Disposal Group

1.2 Scope
o Classification & Presentation - All recognised non-current asset and all disposal groups
o Measurement - All recognised non-current asset and all disposal groups except few

1.2.1 Measurement Provisions not applicable (Scoped Out Non-Current Assets)
Deferred tax assets under Ind AS 12

Assets arising from Employee Benefits - Ind AS 19

Financial Assets - Ind AS 109

Non-Current Assets related to Agricultural - Ind AS 21

Contractual Rights under Insurance Contract - Ind AS 104

O O O O O

1.3 Impairment of Assets vs Non-Current Assets held for Sale

Impairment Non-Current Assets held for sale
Impairment happens when the asset is being | These assets are determined only after the
used usage is stopped
Depreciation is charged even after Depreciation is not charged after such
impairment classification
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2 Important Terms

2.1 Non-Current Asset
Asset which is not a Current Asset

2.2 Current Asset
An Asset which
o expects to realise the asset, or intends to sell or consume it, in
* its normal operating cycle
= within 12 months after the reporting period;
o is held primarily for the purpose of trading;
o is cash or a cash equivalent, except
= if it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period.

2.3 Disposal Group

A cash generating unit including the following
e Group of assets of a business combination _ T
e liabilities directly associated with those assets disposal group, it will be
e Goodwill allocable to the business combination presented as disposal

disposed in a single transaction of sale / transfer

)
When entity decides to sell

group held for sale.

(

A disposal group may be a group of cash-generating units, a single cash-
generating unit, or part of a cash-generating unit.

{ Disposal Group }

I
I |

Non-Current Assets (NCA) Current Assets
I
I I
Scoped-in Scoped-out
NCA NCA

3 When to Classify a NCA as “Held for Sale"

An entity is required to classify a non-current asset (or disposal group) as held for sale if its
carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than
through continuing use
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As long as the future economic benefits to the entity are received from the usage of asset, the asset cannot
be classified as "Held for Sale".

3.1 Conditions for classification
Asset must be
. available for immediate sale in its present condition and
. Sale must be highly probable
If asset is not saleable in the present condition (if an asset needs repair to sell it), then it cannot be classified
as "Held for Sale"
Conditions
e The appropriate level of management must be committed to a plan to sell
e Active engagement to find the buyer should have been initiated - like advertisement for auction / sale
e Asset / disposal group should be actively marketed for sale at reasonable price
e Sale is expected to be completed within one year from date of classification
e Significant changes to or withdrawal from plan to sell are unlikely

The probability of shareholders’ approval (if required in the jurisdiction) should be
considered as part of the assessment of whether the sale is highly probable.

3.2 Events or circumstances may extend the period to complete the sale beyond one year.
Entity can continue to classify such asset as held for sale if
e delay is caused by events or circumstances beyond the entity's control and
e entity is committed fo sell - sufficient evidence to exist.
Examples for delay - regulatory approvals

3.3 Examples

3.3.1 An entity is committed to its selling plan of a manufacturing facility in its present condition and so
classifies it as held for sale. After a firm purchase commitment, the buyer's inspection identifies
environmental damages not previously known to exist. The entity is required by the buyer to make good
the damage, which will extend the timeframe of one year to complete the sale within one year. However,
the entity has initiated actions o make good the damage and satisfactory rectification is highly
probable. In this situation, exception to one-year requirement will be meft.

3.3.2 An entity in the mining industry is committed to a plan to sell a disposal group that represents a
significant portion of its regulated operations. The sale requires regulatory approval, which could
extend the period required to complete the sale beyond one year. Actions necessary to obtain that
approval cannot be initiated until after a buyer is known and a firm purchase commitment is obtained.
However, a firm purchase commitment is highly probable within one year. In this situation, the
exception to one-year requirement will be met.

3.3.3 A company is committed to a plan to sell a non-current asset and classifies the asset as held for sale
at that date. During the initial one-year period, the market conditions that existed at the date the
asset was classified initially as held for sale deteriorate and, as a result, the asset is not sold by the
end of that period. During that period, the company actively solicited but did not receive any
reasonable offers to purchase the asset and, in response, reduced the price. The asset continues to
be actively marketed at a price that is reasonable given the change in market conditions. In this
situation, the exception to the one-year requirement will be met. At the end of the initial one-year
period, the asset would continue to be classified as held for sale.

4 Other Aspects

4.1 Sale includes Exchanges
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Sale transactions include exchanges of non-current assets for other non-current assets when the exchange
has commercial substance in accordance with Ind AS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment.

4.2 Asset acquired for subsequent disposal
Asset acquired exclusively with a view to subsequent disposal can be classified as “"Held for Sale” as at the
acquisition date, if
0] The one year requirement is met (subject to exceptions above)
(i) It is highly probable that any other condition that is not met at the time of acquisition, will be met
within a short period (usually within three months).

4.3 Held for Distribution to Owners is "Held for Sale"
A non-current asset (or disposal group) is classified as held for distribution to owners when the entity is
committed to distribute the asset (or disposal group) to the owners.
All the requirements of Ind AS 105 applicable to a non-current asset held for sale shall apply to a non-current
asset held for distribution
Conditions
0] assets must be available for immediate distribution in their present condition and
(i) the distribution must be highly probable i.e.
a. actions to complete the distribution must have been initiated
b. distribution is expected to be completed within one year from the date of classification.
c. it is unlikely that significant changes to the distribution will be made or that the distribution
will be withdrawn.
d. The probability of shareholders’ approval (if required in the jurisdiction) should be considered
as part of the assessment of whether the distribution is highly probable.

4.4 Non-current assets to be abandoned
Non-current assets (or disposal groups) to be abandoned include
e non-current assets (or disposal groups) that are to be used to

the end of their economic life and i “’

e non-current assets (or disposal groups) that are to be closed An entity shall  not ‘
rather than sold. classify as held for sale
If the disposal group is to be abandoned, the entity shall present the a non-current asset (or

results and cash flows of the disposal group as discontinued operations,
if it meets the criteria prescribed in Ind AS 105, at the date on which
it ceases to be used.

disposal group) that is
to be abandoned.

4.5 Non-current Asset temporarily taken out of use

A non-current asset that has been temporarily taken out of use will not be treated as
e Held for sale; or
e abandoned.
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5 Measurement Principles

s A
Measured @ Carrying Amount
Non-current asset lower of ’7& )
(or disposal group) '
s A
held for sale L
FV (-) costs to sell

5.1 Steps
(i) Measure carrying amount (prior to classification) in accordance with applicable Ind AS i.e., AS 16 for
PPE or AS 40 for Investments
(ii) Determine Fair value less cost to sell
(iii) Value of non-current asset (or disposal group) is lower of (i) or (ii)
Note: For Non-current asset held for distribution, fair value less cost to distribute is considered

I

Cost to Sell

Cost to sell are the incremental costs excluding income taxes and
finance costs. If sale or disposal is expected to happen after 1 year, then
present value concept is to be applied to “costs to sell” i.e., in step (ii) consider
“Fair Value - present value of costs to sell”

If a non-current asset is acquired as business combination for subsequent disposal, such asset is measured at
Fair Value less costs of sell.

5.2 Disposal Group - Subsequent measurement

Disposal
Group
I
l
Scoped in Scoped out
Assets Assets
Measure as Measure individual assets as per
per this respective Ind AS

standard

The carrying amount of disposal group is compared with the Fair value less costs to sell.
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6 Recognition of Impairment losses and reversals

Loss - An entity shall recognise an impairment loss for any initial or subsequent write-down of the asset (or
disposal group) to fair value less costs to sell.

Gain - An entity shall recognise a gain for any subsequent increase in fair value less costs to sell of an assetf,
but not in excess of the cumulative impairment loss that has been recognised (under Ind AS 105 or Ind AS
36)

Disposal Group - The impairment loss (or any subsequent gain) recognised for a disposal group shall be allocated

e First to goodwill ﬁ;_

. Next to other a.f:se‘rs in the r‘g‘no to their carrying amounts. Reversal of
A gain or loss not previously recognised by the date of the sale of a non- . i ]
current asset (or disposal group) shall be recognised at the date of impairment loss is
derecognition. not allowed on

goodwill. ‘J

Depreciation on non-current assets held for sale

An entity shall not depreciate (or amortise) a non-current asset while it is classified as
held for sale or while it is part of a disposal group classified as held for sale.

7 Reclassification
PPE Non-current
asset held
for sale /
distribution
to owners

Remeasure at lower of
e Carrying amount before classification after adjusting depreciation/ amortisation/revaluation, etc.
(which would have been provided) and
e Recoverable amount (i.e., higher of value in use and FV less cost to sell)
The difference of carrying amount and remeasured value is adjusted to P&L A/c.
If the asset was measured at revaluation model, difference will be revaluation increase / decrease.

7.1 Held for sale to Held for distribution and vice-versa
If an entity reclassifies an asset (or disposal group) directly
. from being held for sale to being held for distribution fo owners, or
. from being held for distribution o owners to being held for sale,
apply the classification, presentation and measurement requirements in this Ind AS that are applicable o
the new method of disposal as per Ind AS 105.

7.2 Individual Assets in the group re-classified
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If an entity removes an individual asset or liability from a disposal group classified as held for sale /
distribution to owners, the remaining assets and liabilities of the disposal group to be sold shall continue to be
measured as a group.

The remaining non-current assets of the group shall be measured individually at the lower of their carrying
amounts and fair values less costs to sell (or costs to distribute) at that date.

8 Presentation and Disclosure Requirement

8.1 Presentation

. Non-current assets held for sale separately from other assets in the balance sheet

. Assets and Liabilities of disposal group should be presented separately from other assets and
liabilities in balance sheet

. Income or expense recognised in OCI relating to non-current assets held for sale should be

presented separately.

Presentation
Presentation is required only for major classes of assets and liabilities

Exception: Disposal group is a newly acquired subsidiary

Loss on Assets held for sale should be presented in P&L under “Profits from continuing operations”

8.2 Comparative Amounts
Comparative amounts for non-current assets (or disposal group) for prior periods are not to be reclassified or
represented.

8.3 Disclosure
An entity should disclose the following in the notes to the financial statements in the period in which a non-
current asset (or disposal group) has been either classified as held for sale or sold:

(a) Description of the non-current asset (or disposal group):

(b) Description of facts and circumstances (ex: decrease in demand, obsoletion, competition, etc.) of the
sale, or leading to the expected disposal and the expected manner and timing of that disposal;

(c) Gain or loss recoghised and if not presented separately on the face of the statement of profit and

loss, the caption in the statement of profit and loss that includes that gain or loss.

(d) If applicable, the reportable segment in which the non-current asset (or disposal group) is presented
in accordance of Ind AS 108 Operating Segments.

(e) If there is a change of plan to sell, a description of facts and circumstances leading to the decision
and the effect of the decision on the results of operations for the period and any prior periods presented.

9 Discontinued Operations
(i) Disposed off; or _ _
Component of an . . Discontinued
Entity (if) Classified as Operations

held for sale

Discontinued Operation is a component of an entity that either has been disposed of or is classified as held
for sale and:

(a) represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations; or

(b) is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations; or
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(c) is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

A component of an entity is a cash generating unit or a group of cash-
generating units while being held in use.

|
9.1 Separate Presentation Y
Profits and Losses from discontinued operations shall be presented ~\r7~
separately to enable the users to evaluate the impact of discontinued %

operations. Information related to
An entity shall disclose a single amount in the statement of profit and discontinued operations
loss Compl"iSing the total Of: Sha” be presented on

(a) the post-tax profit or loss of discontinued operations; and

(b) the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the measurement to fair value
less costs to sell or on the disposal of the assets or disposal group(s)
constituting the discontinued operation

the face of the FS.

Presentation in FS:
Particulars Note No [20X2-20X3 [20X1-20x2
Profit before tax
Tax expense

1. Current tax

2. Deferred tax
Profit(loss) for the period from continuing operation
Profit(loss) for the period from discontinuing
operations
Tax expense of discontinuing operations
Profit(loss) from discontinuing operations

‘ Discontinued Operations

I
l I

[ Disposed Off ] Held for Sale

Measure at lower of :
(i) Carrying amount
(ii) FV less cost to sell

Profit / loss on sale
presented in FS as
single amount

Profit / Loss presented
as single amount
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10  Disclosures - Discontinued Operations

Profit or loss from discontinued operations should be broken into the following in the notes or in the statement

of profit and loss

0] Revenue

(i) Expense

(iii)  Pre-tax profit

(iv) Gain or loss on disposal or on

measurement
) Related tax expense

10.1 Consolidated Financial Statements &
Discontinued Operations

In CFS, entity must disclose amount attributable to

the parent from continuing operations and discontinued operations

10.2 Cash Flow Statement
Disclose attributable net cashflows of discontinued operations in the Cash Cf

Flow Statement under

(i) Operating Activities
(i) Investment Activities
(iii) Financing Activities

10.3 EPS

EPS of discontinued operation shall be disclosed separately.

\OII
/_\
€

Analysis is not required for

newly acquired subsidiaries
classified as held for sale
on the date of acquisition

owners of

Disclosure may be
in notes or in cash
flow statements

EPS computed as per Ind AS 33 from discontinued operations shall be
disclosed in addition to disclosure of EPS from continuing operations.

10.4 Previous Comparative Periods
When the amounts relating to discontinued operations are presented separately, the comparative figures for
prior periods are also re-presented, so that the disclosures relate to all operations that have been

discontinued.

Adjustment to Prior Period disposals

Adjustments in current period related to discontinued operation in prior
period shall be shown separately

10.5 Reclassification of discontinued operations
When a discontinued operation is reclassified as continuing operation, profit and loss should be shown as part
of continuing operation. Prior period amounts should be re-presented.

1 IND AS 105 vs AS 24

LSy AS 24 IND AS 105
differences
Scope (i) Talks about discontinuing (i) Talks about discontinued

operations

(iif)Doesn't deal with non-current

assets held for sale

operations

asset held for sale

(ii)Deals with non-current

Initial disclosure
event

Specifies about the initial disclosure

event in respect to a discontinuing | disclosure event.

operation.

Doesn't mention about initial

Period for sale
completion

Doesn't specify any fime period with | Sale is expected to be

regards to expected sale completion

completed within lyear to

Ind AS 105
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classify as asset as held for

sale
Measurement Measurement referred to other | Non-current assets held for
relevant Ind AS sale are measured at lower of

e Carrying amount
e Fair value less cost to

sell
Abandonment of | Can be classified discontinuing operation | Should not be classified as
Assets held for sale.
Change of plan to | Does not provide any specific guidance | Provides guidance regarding
sell changes to the plan

Illustrations

1. Illustration

Recognise the loss / gain on the recognised value of Disposal group held for sale from the following details:

Assets Carrying amount | Carrying amount
at reporting remeasured just
date before before
classification classification

Goodwill 1,500.00 1,500.00

PPE (Revaluation Model) 4,600.00 4,000.00

Building (at cost) 5,700.00 5,700.00

Inventory 2,400.00 2,200.00

Investments in Equity Sh. 1,800.00 1,500.00

Total Carrying amount 16,000.00 14,900.00

The entity has estimated that FV less costs to sell will be 13,000.00

2. Illustrations

A freehold property was originally acquired for Rs.40,00,000. Some years later, after cumulative depreciation
of Rs.11,00,000 has been recognised, an impairment loss of Rs.3,50,000 is recognised, taking the carrying
amount to Rs.25,50,000, which represents the estimated value in use of the property. Shortly thereafter, as
a consequence of a proposed move to new premises, the freehold property is classified as held for sale.
At the time of classification as held for sale:

e carrying amount is Rs.25,50,000; and

e fair value less costs to sell is assessed at Rs.25,00,000.
Accordingly, the initial write-down on classification as held for sale is Rs.50,000 and the property is carried
at Rs.25,00,000. Following classification as held for sale, no further depreciation is recognised.
At the next reporting date, the property market has improved and fair value less costs to sell is reassessed
at Rs.26,50,000.
Six months after that, the property market has continued to improve, and fair value less costs to sell is now
assessed at Rs.30,00,000.
Subsequently, the property is sold for Rs.30,00,000, at which time a gain of Rs.1,00,000 is recognised.

3. Illustrations

11.1.1 Following is the extract of the consolidated financial statements of A Ltd. for the year ended on:

Asset/ (liability) Carrying amount as on 31st

March, 20X1 (In '000)
Attributed goodwill 200
Intangible assets 950
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Financial asset measured at fair value through other 300
comprehensive income

Property, plant & equipment 1100
Deferred tax asset 250
Current assets - inventory, receivables, and cash balances 600
Current liabilities (850)
Non-current liabilities - provisions (300)
Total 2,250

On 15th September 20X1, Entity A decided to sell the business. It noted that the business meets the condition
of disposal group classified as held for sale on that date in accordance with Ind AS 105. However, it does not
meet the conditions to be classified as discontinued operations in accordance with that standard.

The disposal group is stated at the following amounts immediately prior to reclassification as held for sale.

Asset/ (liability) Carrying amount as on
15th September 20X1
(In '000)
Attributed goodwill 200
Intangible assets 930
Financial asset measured at fair value through other 360

comprehensive income

Property, plant & equipment 1020
Deferred tax asset 250
Current assets - inventory, receivables, and cash

balances 520
Current liabilities (870)
Non-current liabilities - provisions (250)
Total 2160

Entity A proposed to sell the disposal group at Rs.19,00,000. It estimates that the costs to sell will be
Rs.70,000. This cost consists of professional fee to be paid to external lawyers and accountants.

As at 31st March 20X2, there has been no change to the plan to sell the disposal group and entity A still
expects to sell it within one year of initial classification. Mr. X, an accountant of Entity A remeasured the
following assets/ liabilities in accordance with respective standards as on 31st March 20X2:

Available for sale: (In '000)
Financial assets 410
Deferred tax assets 230
Current assets- Inventory, receivables, and 400
cash balances
Current liabilities 900
Non- current liabilities- provisions 250

The disposal group has not been trading well and its fair value less costs to sell has fallen to 16,50,000.
Required:

What would be the value of all assets/ labilities within the disposal group as on the following dates in
accordance with Ind AS 105?

(a) 15 September, 20X1 and

(b) 31st March, 20X2

4. Illustrations

S Ltd purchased a property for 6,00,000 on 1st April, 20X1. The useful life of the property is 15 years. On
31st March, 20X3, S Ltd classified the property as held for sale. The impairment festing provides the
estimated recoverable amount of 4,70,000.

The fair value less cost to sell on 31st March, 20X3 was 4,60,000.31190 On 31st March, 20X4 management
changed the plan, as property no longer met the criteria of held for sale. The recoverable amount as at 31st
March, 20X4 is 5,00,000.
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Provide the accounting treatment of events for the year ending 31st March, 20X3 and 31st March, 20X4 and
value the property at the end of 20X3 and 20X4

5. Illustrations

11.1.2 On February 28, 20X1, Entity X becomes committed to a plan to sell a property. However, it plans
certain renovations fo increase its value prior to selling it. The renovations are expected to be
completed within a short span of time i.e., 2 months.

11.1.3 Can the property be classified as held for sale at the reporting date i.e. 31st March, 20X1?

6. Illustrations

On 1st March, 20X1, entity R decides to sell one of its factories. An agent is appointed and the factory is
actively marketed. As on 31st March, 20X1, it is expected that the factory will be sold by 28th February,
20X2. However, in May 20X1, the market price of the factory deteriorated. Entity R believed that the market
will recover and thus did not reduce the price of the factory. The company's accounts are authorised for issue
on 26th June, 20X1. Should the factory be shown as held for sale as on 31st March, 20X1?

7. Illustration
Identify which of the following is a disposal group at 31 March 20X1:

e On 21 March 20X1, XYZ announced the Board's intention to sell its shares in a subsidiary company,
Alpha, contingent upon the approval of Alpha's shareholders. It seems unlikely that approval will be
granted in the near future and no specific potential buyer has been identified.

8. Illustration
Identify which of the following is a disposal group at 31 March 20X1:

e PQR has entered into a contract to sell the entire delivery fleet of vehicles operated from its
warehouse o a competitor, ABC, on 14 March 20X1. The assets will be transferred on 28 April 20X1
from which date the Group will outsource its delivery activities to another company, LMN

9. Illustration
Identify which of the following is a disposal group at 31 March 20X1:

e On 16 January 20X1, DEF's management and shareholders approved a plan to sell its retail business in
Mumbai and a consultant is hired fo manage the sale. As at 31 March 20X1 heads of agreement had
been signed although due diligence and the negotiation of final terms are still in process. The
transaction is expected to be completed in April 20X1.

10. Illustration

On 1st June, 20X1, entity X plans to sell a group of assets and liabilities, which is classified as a disposal group.
On 31st July, 20X1, the Board of Directors approves and becomes committed to the plan to sell the
manufacturing unit by entering into a firm purchase commitment with entity V.

However, since the manufacturing unit is regulated, the approval from the regulator is needed for sale. The
approval from the regulator is customary and highly probable to be received by 30th November, 20X1 and the
sale is expected to be completed by 31st March, 20X2. Entity X follows December year end.

The assets and liabilities attributable to this manufacturing unit are as under:

Particulars Carrying value as | Carrying value
on 31st December, |as on 31st July,

20X0 20X1
Goodwill 500 500
Plant and Machinery 1,000 900
Building 2,000 1,850
Debtors 850 1,050
Lnventory 700 400
Creditors (300) (250)
Loans (2,000) (1,850)
2,750 2,600

The fair value of the manufacturing unit as on 31st December, 20X0 is 2,000 and as on 31st July, 20X1 is
1,850. The cost to sell is 100 on both these dates. The disposal group is not sold at the period end i.e., 31st
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December, 20X1. The fair value as on 31st December, 20X1 is lower than the carrying value of the disposal
group as on that date.
Required:

1. Assess whether the manufacturing unit can be classified as held for sale and reasons there for. If

yes, then at which date?

2. The measurement of the manufacturing unit as on the date of classification as held for sale.

3. The measurement of the manufacturing unit as at the end of the year.
11. Illustration
CK Ltd. prepares the financial statement under Ind AS for the quarter year ended 30th June, 20X1. During
the 3 months ended 30th June, 20X1 following events occurred:
On 1st April, 20X1, the Company has decided to sell one of its divisions as a going concern following a recent
change in its geographical focus. The proposed sale would involve the buyer acquiring the non-monetary assets
(including goodwill) of the division, with the Company collecting any outstanding trade receivables relating to
the division and settling any current liabilities:
On 1st April, 20X1, the carrying amount of the assets of the division were as follows:

e Purchased Goodwill - 60,000

e Property, Plant & Equipment (average remaining estimated useful life two years) - 20,00,000

e Inventories - 10,00,000
From 1st April, 20X1, the Company has started to actively market the division and has received number of
serious enquiries. On 1st April, 20X1 the directors estimated that they would receive Rs. 32,00,000 from the
sale of the division. Since 1st April, 20X1, market condition has improved and as on 1st August, 20X1 the
Company received and accepted a firm offer to purchase the division for 33,00,000.

The sale is expected to be completed on 30th September, 20X1 and 33,00,000 can be assumed to be a
reasonable estimate of the value of the division as on 30th June, 20X1. During the period from 1st April to
30th June inventories of the division costing 8,00,000 were sold for 12,00,000. At 30th June, 20X1, the
total cost of the inventories of the division was 9,00,000. All of these inventories have an estimated net
realisable value that is in excess of their cost.

The Company has approached you to suggest how the proposed sale of the division will be reported in the
intferim financial statements for the quarter ended 30th June, 20X1 giving relevant explanations.

12. Illustration

11.1.4 A Ltd. Is to sell a non-current asset, being a piece of land. The piece of land has been contaminated
and require the entity to carry out 2 1,00,000 of work in order to rectify the contamination. If the
land was not contaminated, it could be sold for 3,00,000. With the contamination it is worth only 2
2,00,000. The work that is needed to rectify the contamination will extend the period of sale by one
year from the date the land is first marketed for sale.

Required: In the following situations, examine with suitable reasons whether land can be classified as held

for sale in accordance with Ind AS 105

Situation 1 - The land is marketed for ¥ 3,00,000 and A Ltd. Was not aware of the contamination till the time

a firm purchase agreement was signed with a purchaser. The purchaser found contamination through a survey.

The purchaser signed the firm purchase commitment on condition that the contamination damage will be

rectified.

Situation 2 - A Ltd. Marketed the land for 23,00,000, knowing about the contamination when the proposal to

sale the land went in the market. However, A Ltd. Marketed with an agreement that it would carry out the

rectification work within few months from signing the firm purchase commitment.

Situation 3 - A Ltd. Knew about the contamination prior to float the proposal to sell the land and markets it

for % 2,00,000 with no obligation on itself to rectify or fix the contamination.

13. Illustration

PB Limited purchased a plastic bottle manufacturing plant for X 24 lakh on 1st April, 2015. The useful life of

the plant is 8 years. On 30th September, 2017, PB Limited temporarily stops using the manufacturing plant

because demand has declined. However, the plant is maintained in a workable condition and it will be used in

future when demand picks up.
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The accountant of PB Limited decided to treat the plant as held for sale until the demand picks up and
accordingly measures the plant at lower of carrying amount and fair value less cost to sell. The accountant has
also stopped charging depreciation for rest of the period considering the plant as held for sale. The fair value
less cost to sell on 30th September, 2017 and 31st March, 2018 was % 13.5 lakh and X 12 lakh respectively.
The accountant has made the following working.

Carrying amount on initial classification as held for £4 £4
sale
Purchase price of Plant 24,00,000
Less: Accumulated Depreciation [(324,00,000/8)x2.5 7,50,000 [16,50,000
years]
Fair value less cost to sell as on 31st March 2017 12,00,000
The value lower of the above two 12,00,000

Balance Sheet extracts as on 31st March, 2018

Particulars Ed

Assets

Current Assets

Other Current Assets
Assets classified as held for sale 12,00,000

Required: Analyze whether the above accounting treatment is in compliance with the Ind AS. If not, advise
the correct treatment showing necessary workings.

14. Tllustration

Determine whether the following are discontinued operations

S. No Particulars

1. MNO disposes of a component of the entity by selling the underlying assets. The sales
transaction is incomplete at the reporting date.

2 PQR has ceased activities that meet the definition of a discontinued operation without
selling any assets

3. STU ceases activities and has already completed the sale of the underlying assets at the
reporting date.

4. VWX will sell or has sold assets that are within the scope of Ind AS 105, but does not
discontinue any of its operations

15. Illustration

Sun Ltd is a retailer of takeaway food like burger and pizzas. It decides to sell one of its outlets located in
Chandani Chowk in New Delhi.

The company will continue to run 200 other outlets in New Delhi.

All Ind AS 105 criteria for held for sale classification were first met at 1st October, 20X1. The outlet will be
sold in June, 20X2.

Management believes that outlet is a discontinued operation and wants to present the results of outlet as
‘discontinued operations'. Analyse

16. Illustration - Nov 22 [8 Marks]

Violet Limited is a beverages manufacturing company having various plants across India. There is Machinery A
in the Surat plant which is used for the purpose of bottling. There is one more machinery which is Machinery
B clubbed with Machinery A. Machinery A can individually have an output and also be sold independently in the
open market. Machinery B cannot be sold in isolation and without clubbing with Machinery A it cannot produce
output as well. The company considers this group of assets as a Cash Generating Unit and an Inventory
amounting to Rs. 1.65 lakhs and Goodwill amounting o

Rs. 1.50 lakhs is included in such CGU.

Machinery A was purchased on 1st April 2016 for Rs. 12 lakhs and residual value is

Ind AS 105 1FIN by Indigo Learn 9.14



Rs. 60 thousand. Machinery B was purchased on 1st April, 2018 for Rs. 5 lakhs with no residual value. The
useful life of both Machinery A and B is 10 years. The company expects following cash flows in the next 5
years pertaining to Machinery A. The incremental borrowing rate of company is 10% p.a.

Year  Cash Flows from Machinery A

1 2,00,000
2 1,50,000
3 1,00,000
4 1,50,000
5 1,00,000 (Excluding Residual Value)

Total 7,00,000

On 31st March, 2021, the professional valuers have estimated that the current market value of machinery A
is Rs. 8.5 lakhs. There is a need to dismantle the machinery before delivering it to the buyer. Dismantling cost
is Rs. 1.60 lakhs. Specialized packaging cost would be Rs. 30,000 and legal fees would be Rs. 68,000.

The inventory has been valued in accordance with Ind AS 2. The recoverable value of CGU is Rs. 10 lakhs as on
31st March, 2021. In the next year, the company has done the assessment of recoverability of the CGU and
found that the value of such CGU is

Rs. 11 lakhs i.e. on 31st March, 2022. The recoverable value of Machinery A is Rs. 550,000 and combined for
Machinery A and Machinery B is Rs. 8,00,000 as on 31st March, 2022.

You are required to:

0) Compute the impairment loss on CGU and carrying value of each asset after charging impairment loss
for the year ending 31st March, 2021 by providing all the relevant working notes to arrive at such calculation.
(i) Compute the carrying value after considering prospective depreciation for the year 2021-2022 on the
above assets.

(iii)  Compute the carrying value of CGU as at 31st March, 2022.

(Note: Present value factor of Rs. 1 should be taken upto 4 decimals for the purpose of calculation)

Ind AS 105 1FIN by Indigo Learn 9.15



Ind AS 116
LEASES

1 1Identifying a Lease

Lease
[ [ [ : l
( that ) of an for a
ntr i ifi ' i
orapart | | avieme | U asset ) ("ime. ] | inexchange for
P erig consideration

of contract to
control

the use

An entity assess whether a contract is / contains a lease at inception of a contract. An entity shall
reassess whether a contract is, or contains, a lease only if the terms and conditions of the contract are
changed.

1.1 Identified Asset

A contract contains a lease only if it relates to an identified asset. An asset
can be either
o explicitly specified in a contract or
e implicitly specified at the time it is made available for use by the customer.
111  Substantive Substitution Rights (SSR)
A customer does not have right to use an identified asset if the supplier has substantive substitution
right to substitute the asset throughout the period of use. SSR should be checked at inception of
contract and should not be based on future events.
Conditions for SSR
e The supplier has practical ability to substitute alternative assets throughout the period of use
and
e The supplier would benefit economically from the exercise of its right to substitute the asset.

Cases when SSR does not exist
e Right arises after a period of time or on occurrence of an event (say an asset breakdown)
e If the customer cannot determine whether or not the supplier has substantive substitution
right
Note - AS 19 does not have any requirement of SSR.

1.1.2  Assets not physically distinct

An identified asset is generally physically distinct.

A portion or part of an asset or its capacity that is not physically distinct (e.g. in case of shared
pipelines, tanks, optic fibres) is not an identified asset unless it represents significantly all (generally
about 90%+) of the capacity of the asseft.
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1.2 Right to Control
A contract conveys the right to control the use of an asset to the customer if the customer has
e The right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from the use of an identified
asset throughout the period of use and
e The right to direct the use of the identified asset.

Note - AS 19 does not provide guidance regarding right to direct and considers only right to use an
identified asset.

An entity should consider all forms of service contracts, supply contracts and lease arrangements to
evaluate right to control the use of an asset.

If customer has the right to control the use of an asset for only a portion of the term of the contract,
then the contract contains lease for that portion of lease term.

1.2.1 Right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits
A customer can obtain economic benefits either directly or indirectly by using, holding or subleasing the
asset. An entity must consider economic benefits that arise from the defined scope of right to use the
asset.
Economic benefits include

e asset’s primary outputs (goods and service)

e by-products (including renewal credits generated)

o benefits from using the asset that is realised in a commercial transaction with a third party (e.g.

sub-leasing)

Customer can obtain substantially all of the economic benefits even in case of following -

Supplier's protective clauses - A contract that contains a clause that protects supplier’s interest (e.g to
prevent unauthorised use of the asset) in the asset.

Supplier/Third party payment - A contract requiring payment of a variable amount to supplier or to a third
party based on cash flows generated from the use of an asset

1.2.2 Right to direct the use of the identified asset is with customer if

How and for what
purpose the asset is
used

Decision Right with

Predetermined
customer

| |

Customer has right to

operate the asset Customer has designed
without supplier the asset
interference
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e If the customer has the right to direct how and for what purpose the asset is used throughout the
period of use; or

e if the relevant decisions about how and for what purpose the asset is used are predetermined and:

the customer has the right to operate the asset (or to direct others to operate the asset in

o

a manner that it determines) throughout the period of %’

use, without the lessor having the right to change those
operating instructions; or

the customer designed the asset in a way that
predetermines how and for what purpose the asset will be

)
Right to direct is more‘
important than the right

used throughout the period of use. to use.
Rights Examples
To change the output that is produced by e Deciding whether to use containers for tfransportation
the asset or storage
e Deciding the mix of products to be sold from a reftail
outlet

Change when the output is produced

Deciding when an item of machinery would be used

Change where the output is produced

¢ Deciding the destination for a vehicle
o Deciding the location of usage of machinery

Decide whether to produce the output

Whether to operate a particular asset to produce output.

Decide the quantity of output

How much of quantity of output to be produced

2 Inception and Commencement of Lease

Customers and suppliers must determine whether a contract contains a lease at the inception of lease.

{Inception of Iease]

[ Earlier Date of ’

Lease
Agreement

Commitment by parties to

Principal T&C

Commencement date is the date on which lessor makes an underlying asset available for use by the lessee
(irrespective of whether the lessee has started operations or has started rental payments)

Inception date

Commencement Date

Entity assesses whether the contract
contains lease

Entity recognises lease related transactions

Lease period begins at this date
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3 Lease term

Can the lessor/lessee terminate the 3.1 Non-Cancellable Period
contract without permission from other ?

Non-Cancellable period is the period during
[ which the contract is enforceable.

Is significant penalty Enforceable ]
. Yes
involved?

5

[ Not enforceable ]

Option to Option to

Non extend Terminate Lease

Cancellable
Period (Reasonably (Reasonably Term

Certain - Yes) certain -No)

3.2 Relevant Factors

e Lease term begins at lease commencement date
e If only the lessor has the right to terminate the lease, the period covered by the option is considered
as non-cancellable.
o Lease term is aggregate of non-consecutive period if the lease is taken for non-continuous period.
e Option to extend/terminate to be assessed at lease commencement date. Assessment is
o based on facts and circumstances.
o Not based on just intentions or past practices

Considerations to assess options

Contractual Terms Asset Related Factors
Lease rentals in optional period Specialised Asset

Variable or contingent payment Location of underlying asset
T&C after initial optional period Leasehold improvements
Cost of replacement Availability of alternatives
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3.3

3.4

Longer the lease term, more difficult it is to assess whether the option would be exercised or not.
Significance of underlying asset to the lessee's operation impacts the lessee's decision to extend the
lease

Option o extend or terminate might be linked with other contractual terms like residual value
guaranteed

Reassessment of reasonable certainty by lessee
If asignificant event or change in circumstance occurs which
e iswithin the control of the lessee and
o affects whether the lessee is reasonably certain
o to exercise (the option to extend) or
o not fo exercise (the option to terminate)

Revision of the lease ferm

The entity will revise the lease term if there is a change in the non-cancellable period of a lease.
Option to extend (Not included*) Option to Terminate (Included*)
Lessee exercises at a later date Does not exercise at a later date
An event occurs which obliges the lessee to An event occurs which prevents the
exercise lessee to exercise

*In determining the lease term

4 |essee Accounting

Lessee is an entity that obtains the right to use an underlying asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

At the commencement of lease, the lessee recognises Right-of-use Asset (ROU Asset) and a Lease Liability.
There is no distinction in accounting treatment irrespective of whether it is an operating lease or finance lease
(Under AS 19, the accounting differs on whether the lease is an operating lease or finance lease)

4.1

ROU Asset & Lease Liability

Right of Use Asset =

Lease Liability PV of Lease payments to be paid discounted at rate implicit in the

lease or incremental borrowing cost (if implicit rate is not known)

+ Lease payment made at / before Advance lease payments
commencement

- Lease incentives received

+ Initial Direct Cost Incurred by lessee

+

PV of estimated dismantling, Similar to decommissioning costs under Ind AS 16. Liability

restoration cost accounted as per Ind AS 37
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4.2 Lease Payments to be paid

Lease Payments =
Fixed Lease payments Generally determined in the contract
+ In substance fixed lease payments Though variable, considered as fixed (like minimum variable

payment)

- Lease incentives received

+ Variable payments dependent on index Variable based on rates like LIBOR, annual increment etc are
or rate considered.

Performance based variable payments are excluded.

+ Residual value guaranteed by lessee

+ Exercise price of purchase option If the lessee is likely to exercise the purchase option

For determining the liability only unpaid lease payments are considered.

4.3 Subsequent Measurement

[ ROU Asset }

I
I 1

[ Cost Model } [ Revaluation Model }
1 1 e | l
[ Depreciation ] Remeasure [ Ind AS 16 Guidance }
ment

I . (discussed

1
Asset later)
Transferred - Other Cases -
Lower of

Useful life Lease Term

and
Useful life

[ Lease Liability]

|
| 1 1
Increased by Finance || Reduced by Lease { Remeasurement

Cost Payments (Discussed later)

4.4 TImportant Points
= Interest on the lease liability in each period during the lease term shall be the amount that produces
a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the lease liability (also referred to
as interest rate implicit in the lease or IRR) - Refer example in class
*  Amounts to be debited to Profit and Loss
o Interest expense (unless it meets the capitalisation requirement)
o Variable lease payment
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4.5 Remeasurement of Lease Liability

e ™
Reassessment of Lease

{Revised Discount . Term - Exercise of option )

Rate

(Reassessment of Purchase |
Option

J

Remeausrement ~

(Adjust ROU and
Lease Liability)

( . . )
| Change in Residual Value

Guarantees
g J

Original Discount _(Variable - now Insubstance )
Rate fixed

. J

Index or Rate - Except
variable interest rate

* The remeasurement of lease liability is adjusted to ROU Asseft (increase or decrease). There is no
impact on P&L.
= If ROU asset has Nil' carrying amount, reduction in lease liability is recognised in P&L.

B Lease Modifications

Accounting for lease modifications

{ Yes H Separate Lease J

Increase Additional ROU & || ( \
Price Commensurate Remeasure
— Lease Liability
and Adjust ROU
i
Scope | | - ~
(ROU) ( ) No P&L on
| Remeasure Liability using — Imbact
revised Discount Rate S P )
N _ Y,
(
L ROU Asset reduced
L proportionately
( )
— Difference to P&L
g J
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-
Remeasure Lease Liability using revised rate and

Adjust ROU
K

No P&L on Impact

\
Scope | | e )
(Term) | Remeasure Liability using
revised Discount Rate
N\ J
\_____
' N
Decrease || ROU Asset reduced
proportionately
\_ J
s N
— Difference to P&L
\_ J

For any other lease modifications (e.g change in considerations) there is no impact to P&L. All adjustments
are made to ROU Asset & Lease Liability Account.

A Lease modification is a change in the scope of a lease or the consideration for a lease that was not a part
of the original terms and conditions of the lease.

* Lease Extension

* Early termination of lease

= Change in timing of lease payment

* Additional space

* Surrendering part of asset

6 Separation of Lease & Non-Lease components

6.1 Separate Lease components (More than one ROU asset in a single contract)

Separate Lease Component

Benefit from asset
- either on its own or

- with other resources readily available

Asset is neither highly interdependent not
interrelated with other assets in contract.
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If both of above conditions are not satisfied, then the right to use multiple assets is considered as a single
component.

E.g. A contract to lease computer monitor and cpu would be considered as a single ROU. A contract to lease a
truck and a car would be considered as having fwo ROUs - one for truck and other for car.

6.2 Separating lease components from non-lease components

A contract may contain lease component (ROU Asset) and an agreement to supply other (related) goods and
services (non-lease component).

Lease Component Non Lease Component

Right to use Property Maintenance services like utility, security,
cleaning efc.

Right to use coffee machine Supply of consumables like coffee beans

Right to use a Truck Service of drivers

The non-lease component are identified and accounted for separately from lease component. The non-lease
component should involve transfer of goods or services from the lessor to lessee.

6.3 Optional exemption (using practical expedient) - only to lessee
A lessee can make an accounting policy election by class of underlying asset to account for each separate
lease component of a contract and any associated non-lease components as a Single Lease Component.

[ Lease Components ]

I
| |

[ Single with non lease componentsJ More than one with non lease
components
‘ Available ’
‘ Not Available

6.4 Determining and allocating the consideration in the contract - Lessee

Allocation of consideration in the contract are allocated to lease component(s) and non-lease component(s) on
a relative stand-alone price basis.
Basis of Allocation :

e Observable/estimated lease consideration

e Observable/estimated fair value of components

6.5 Contract Combination

Same or

Two or Near the Single
related g

parties

more same

. contract
contracts time

Two or more contracts entered into at or near the same time with the same counterparty (or related
parties of counterparty) is considered as a single contract if any one of the following criteria is met.
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Combination criteria

Negotiation | - Contracts are negotiated as a package
- With overall commercial objective
Consideration | Consideration paid in one contract is dependent on consideration
paid on another.
Lease Component | ROU assets under different contract are a single lease component

I

An entity may apply practical expedient to use portfolio approach for leases with
similar characteristics if it is reasonably expected that the effects on financial
statements would not differ materially.

AS-19 does not provide guidance on separation of lease and non lease component. Enti,
the non-lease component would be accounted as leased under AS-19

including

7 Presentation

Balance Sheet | - Separately from other assets/liabilities
ROU Assets & Lease | - If presented together with owned assets/other liabilities,
Liabilities | disclosure about the line items
- Investment Property is disclosed as Investment property (not as
ROUV)
- ROU assets and lease liabilities are not netted off.

Profit & Loss | Separately disclose interest on expense and lease liability
Cashflow | Repayment of Lease Liabilities and Interest - Financing Activity

Short term/low value lease payments - Operating Activity
Variable lease payment - Operating Activity

8 Disclosure Requirements - Lessee

8.1 Quantitative disclosures for the following -

Balance Sheet Profit & Loss

Additions to ROUs Interest Expenses

Carrying value of ROUs by class Short term/Low value lease expense
Maturity Analysis of lease liabilities Variable lease payments expensed

separately from other liabilities

Income from subleasing
Gains or losses arising from sale and
leaseback

e If lessee has applied short term /low value lease exemption, the fact has to be disclosed.

e Lease commitments of short term lease if the portfolio of short ferm lease is different from the
portfolio to which practical expedient is applied.

e If ROU asset meets the criteria of Ind AS 40, disclosures required by Ind AS 40

e If revaluation model is applied, disclosures required by Ind AS 16

8.2 Qualitative disclosures
e A summary of the nature of the entity's leasing activities;
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e Potential cash outflows the entity is exposed to that are not included in the measured lease
liability, including:
o Variable lease payments;
o Extension options and termination options;
o Residual value guarantees; and
o Leases not yet commenced to which the lessee is committed.
e Restrictions or covenants imposed by leases; and
e Sale and leaseback transaction information.

9  Lessor Accounting - Lease Classification

Lease classification is done at inception and is not reassessed unless there is a lease modification.

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an underlying asset.

A lease is classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset.

—[Ownership transfer at the end of lease term ]
p
— Option to purchase and lessee likely to exercise J
)
|\
]
2| )
| © [{-Lease term for a major part of economic life of asset
00 i \ J
£
+ \ ) ( N\
5 — PV of lease pamyents is substantially all of the fair value of asset
g a L J
< . . h
S . —[Speuallsed Asset
% J
Q oTy)
- £
_J Y g If none of above conditions are satisfied
o
@)

9.1 Finance Lease Examples

* the lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the lessee by the end of the lease term;

* the lessee has the option to purchase the underlying asset at a price that is expected to be sufficiently
lower than the fair value at the date the option becomes exercisable for it to be reasonably certain, at
the inception date, that the option will be exercised:;

* the lease term is for the major part of the economic life of the underlying asset even if title is not
transferred;

» at the inception date, the present value of the lease payments amounts to at least substantially all of
the fair value of the underlying asset; and

* the underlying asset is of such a specialised nature that only the lessee can use it without major
modifications.

If any one of the above criteria is met, the lease is classified as a finance lease.

Additional Conditions which can lead to a finance lease
= if the lessee can cancel the lease, the lessor's losses associated with the cancellation are borne by

the lessee;

Ind AS 116 1FIN by Indigo Learn 10.11



* gains or losses from the fluctuation in the fair value of the residual accrue to the lessee (for
example, in the form of a rent rebate equalling most of the sales proceeds at the end of the lease);
and

* the lessee has the ability to continue the lease for a secondary period at a rent that is substantially
lower than market rent.

Basically, these conditions indicate that lessee takes, in substance, the ownership of the asset for the lease
term.

9.2 (Classification for land and buildings
* The classification for land and buildings is done separately as land normally has an indefinite useful
life.
* The lessor allocates lease payments between the land and the buildings elements in proportion to the
relative fair values of the elements at the inception date.

9.3 Key Concepts for lessor accounting
Net investment in the lease is the gross investment in the lease discounted at the interest rate implicit in
the lease.

Gross Investment in Lease = Lease Payments + UGRV

Lease Payments =

Fixed Lease payments

+ In substance fixed lease payments

- Lease incentives paid

+ Variable payments dependent on index or rate

+ Residual value guaranteed by lessee

+ Residual value guaranteed by third party unrelated to lessor
(capable of fulfilling the obligation)

+ Exercise price of purchase option
UGRV (Unguaranteed residual value) is that portion of the residual value of the underlying asset, the
realisation of which by a lessor is not assured or is guaranteed solely by a party related o the lessor.

9.4 Other Considerations
* Lease rentals based on a market rate for use of asset - Operating Lease
* Lease rentals based on a financing rate for use of funds - financing lease
= Put (option to sell) and call (Option to buy) options
o Predetermined rate - Finance Lease
o Market rate - Operating lease
» Lease of land and building - To be assessed separately.
* Lease classification is reassessed only in case of lease modification.

10 Lessor Accounting - Recognition

10.1 Finance Lease
At lease commencement a lessor accounts for a finance lease as follows

Dr. Lease Receivable Recognises net investment in the lease

Cr. Asset Derecognises the carrying amount of the underlying
asset.

Profit / Loss Recognises selling profit or loss in P/L

(Bal figure)
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10.1.1  Net investment in lease

Net Investment in Lease is the PV of Lease payments and UGRV discounted using the interest rate implicit in
the lease (discount rate)

10.1.2 Interest Rate Implicit in the lease

The rate of interest which makes the following two equal

PV of | ' Sum of
e ™ e ™
¢ Lease payments * FV of asset
e UGRV ¢ IDC* of lessor
N J N J

*In case of manufacturer/dealer lessor, IDC is not considered to computed IRR. Since IDC is included in
computation of IRR, the interest rate would be less and the finance income recognised would automatically
be lesser.

Students are not required to compute IRR in exams and this would be provided.

10.1.3 Finance Lease - Subsequent Measurement

= Recognise finance income over the lease term (the pattern should reflect constant periodic return on
the net investment in lease)

* Lease payment are applied to reduce the lease receivable and to recognise finance income.

= Derecognition and impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 are applied.

= If there is a reduction in estimated UGRV, the lessor shall revise the income allocation over the
lease term.

= Variable lease payments that are not included in net investment in the lease are recognised in P&L.

10.2 Operating Lease - Initial & Subsequent

Recognise Explanation

Cr. Income Lease payments on SLM basis or any other systematic
basis
Variable lease payments

Dr. Depreciation On asset as per applicable Ind AS

Dr. Asset Initial direct cost and recognise the cost as expense in

same manner as lease income.

11 Manufacturer - Dealer Lessor

Finance Lease

Recognise Explanation
Revenue Lower of
- Fair value of underlying asset and
- PV of lease payments
Cost of sale Cost / carrying amount less PV of UGRV
Selling Profit or loss Difference between Revenue and Cost of Sale
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= Profit / Loss should represent profit/loss from an outright sale.
= If artificially low interest rates are quoted, Lessor recognises profit considering market rates of
interest.
= Cost incurred by lessor are expensed at commencement and are not considered to be a part of Initial
Direct Cost.
Operating Lease
No Profit / Loss is recoghised in case of an operating lease.

12 Lease Modification

12.1 Finance Lease Modification

Account
— for as
ves separate Termination
lease of Existing
Lease
Meets
Separate SR
Lease B Lease would { Yes } '
Criteria have been ( Underlying
classified as Asset = Net
operating || Investment
N/ lease since H in lease
inception before
based on \ modification /
modified
terms? _[ NoO
Apply Ind AS
109

12.2 Operating Lease Modification
= Accounted as a new lease
=  Any prepaid or accrual of lease payments - treated as payment for new lease

13 Lessor - Presentation and Disclosure

13.1 Presentation
Finance Lease Operating Lease
Receivable Follow principles given under Ind AS 16/38
- Net Investment in Lease
- Classification as current and non-current

13.2 Disclosures
Finance Lease Operating Lease
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- Selling profit or loss; - Lease income, separately disclosing variable

- Finance income on the net investment; lease payments;

- Income from variable lease payments; - Disclosure requirements of Ind AS 16 for

- Qualitative and quantitative leased assets, separating leased assets from
explanation of changes in the net non-leased assets;
investment. and - Other applicable disclosure requirements

- Maturity analysis of lease payments based on the nature of the underlying asset
receivable. (eg. Ind AS 36, Ind AS 38, Ind AS 40 and

Ind AS 41); and
- Maturity analysis of lease payments.

14 sub-Leases

Original Head First Lessge / Sub Second
Intermediate Lessee / Sub-
Lessor Lease Lessor Lease Lessee

14.1 A'Sub-lease’ is defined as a transaction for which an underlying asset is re-leased by a lessee
('intermediate lessor’) to a third party, and the original lease (‘head lease’) between the head lessor
and lessee remains in effect.

14.2 Accounting for Sub-Lease
o Intermediate lessor uses interest rate implicit in lease. If the same cannot be determined, the
intferest rate in head lease can be used after adjusting for initial direct cost.
e Combination criteria to be checked.
e Exemption under low value lease cannot be applied.

e a
Derecognise

ROU
\ J

KRecognise Net )
Sub Lease - { Finance Lease ] Investment in

~[ Other Cases ] Apply normal \ lease )
Criteria [Operating Lease] 4 A
Lease Liability
— Continues
\. J
Separate
Accounting for
Operating Lease

Head Lease

Short Term ] [ . ] [ No Impact on J
Operating Lease .
Lease original Lease
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15 sale and Leaseback transactions

A sale and leaseback transaction involves the transfer of an asset by an entity (the seller-lessee) to another
entity (the buyer-lessor) and the leaseback of the same asset by the seller-lessee.

The seller-lessee and buyer-lessor should apply principles under IndAS 115 o determine whether the
transaction qualifies as a sale transaction - Test of transfer of control.

15.1 Fair Value Adjustments
Sale proceeds are adjusted if the transaction is not at fair value i.e,
* The value of consideration for sale of an asset does not equal to the fair value of asset or
* The payment for lease are not at market rates.
How to adjust for fair value differences?
Step 1 - Check which is more determinable
» Difference between sale consideration and Fair value of Asset
» Difference between PV of lease rentals and PV of market lease rentals
Step 2 - Treatment of difference
* Sale price is less or PV of lease rentals is less
o Difference added to sale consideration and
o Considered as prepayment for measurement of ROU asset
* Sale price is greater or PV of lease rentals is greater
o Difference reduced from sale consideration and
o Considered as additional financing received.

£ N
S
S g J 1\ J
[g0)
()]
wv
[g0)
8 H
Seller continues
o : & P,
w to recognise
A underlying
asset
— Control Not :
Buyer will not
Passed .
recognise asset
s ~
. . p .
Financing INdAS 109
Transaction L )
N J

15.2 Disclosures
» Additional quantitative and qualitative disclosures.
* (ains and losses from sales and lease back separately
* Lessee's reason for sale and lease back transactions
= Key terms and conditions of sale and leaseback
= Payments not included in measurement of lease liability
* Cash flow effect of sale and lease back transactions.
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16 Transition Approach

16.1 Definition
The Lessee can choose either of the following
= Apply the lease definition to all contracts (old and new)
=  Apply the lease definition to only new contracts (Practical expedient)
A single choice has to be made for all contracts. Disclosures to be made as per Ind AS 8

16.2 Transition approach - Lessee

Transition option

for lessee
1
1 1
4 )
Full Retrospective MOd'ﬂEd.
Approach Retrospective
Approach
Y,
| ) | | Frer
Difference
ReSt?te ) between asset and
comparatives as if Do not restate liability recosnised
Ind AS 116 always comparatives in{) eni%
applied P &

Retained Earnings
1

[ 1
( A

Finance Lease

Operating under under Previous

Previous GAAP

GAAP
\
: 1 l
(
Lease Liability = PV R“(Zg”?tndals_ea;re
of remaining lease ROU Asset yasp
previous GAAP
payments
values
\ J

Option 2 - Lease
Liability +/-
prepaid/accrued
Lease payment

Option 1 - Carrying
amount as per Ind
AS 116

16.3 Transition approach - Lessor

A lessor is not required to make any adjustments on transition for leases except in case of intermediate
lessor for sub leases.

In case of subleases which were classified as operating leases applying Ind AS 17 but finance leases applying
Ind AS 116, the sublease will be accounted as a new finance lease on the date of initial application.

Gain or loss arising is included in cumulative catch-up adjustment to retained earnings.

16.4 Other points
e An entity shall not reassess sale and leaseback transactions entered into before the date of initial
application to determine whether the transfer of the underlying asset satisfies the requirements

under Ind AS 115,
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17 scope and Exclusions

Ind As 116 applies to all leases including leases of ROU assets in a sublease except for

Exclusions Covered by

Leases to explore for or use minerals, oil, Ind AS 106

natural gas and similar non-

regenerative resources

Leases of biological assets held by lessee Ind AS 41

Service concession arrangements Appendix D of Ind AS 115
Licences of Intellectual Property Ind AS 115

Rights held by a lessee under licensing Ind AS 38

agreements for such items as motion
picture films, video recordings, plays,
manuscripts, patents and copyrights

18 Recognition Exemptions

A lessee can elect not to apply Ind AS 116's recognition requirements tfo:
1. Short-term leases (Option to be taken by class of asset)
A lease that has a lease term of 12 months or less and does not include an option fo purchase the
underlying asset.

2. Leases for which the underlying asset is of low-value (entity's judgement) [E.g - Mobile phone]

Conditions for low-value exemption
o Lessee can benefit from the use of underlying asset on its own or together with resources
that are readily available to lessee
e Underlying asset is not highly dependent on or highly interrelated with other assets.
Head lease do not qualify as low value assets.

18.1 Accounting Treatment

The lease payments shall be recognised as an expense on either a Straight-line basis over the lease term or
another systematic basis, if that basis is more representative of the pattern of the lessee's benefit.

If a lessee accounts for “short-term leases” as per the approach mentioned above, it shall consider the lease
to be a "new lease” for the purposes of Ind AS 116 if:

(a) there is a lease modification; OR

(b) there is any change in the lease term

Indian Accounting Standard 116 - LEASES ILLUSTRATIONS

1. Illustration

Customer XYZ enters a 10-year contract with Supplier ABC for the use of rolling stock specifically designed
for Customer XYZ.

The rolling stock is designed to transport materials used in Customer XYZ's production process and is not
suitable for use by other customers.

The rolling stock is not explicitly specified in the contract but, Supplier ABC owns only one rolling stock that
is suitable for Customer XYZ's use.
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If the rolling stock does not operate properly, the contract requires Supplier ABC to repair or replace the
rolling stock.

Whether there is an identified asset?

2. Illustration

Customer XYZ enters a ten-year contract with Supplier ABC for the use of a car. The specification of the car
is specified in the contract (i.e. brand, type, colour, options, etc.)

At inception of the contract, the car is not yet built.

Whether there is an identified asset?

3. TIllustration

An electronic data storage provider (supplier) provides services through a centralised data centre that involve
the use of a specified server (Server No. 10). The supplier maintains many identical servers in a single
accessible location and determines, at inception of the contract, that it is permitted to and can easily
substitute another server without the customer’s consent throughout the period of use.

Further, the supplier would benefit economically from substituting an alternative asset, because doing this
would allow the supplier to optimise the performance of its network at only a nominal cost.

In addition, the supplier has made clear that it has negotiated this right of substitution as an important right
in the arrangement, and the substitution right affected the pricing of the arrangement.

Whether the substitution rights are substantive and whether there is an identified asset?

4. Tllustration

Assume the same facts as in earlier Scenario except that Server No. 10 is customised, and the supplier does
not have the practical ability to substitute the customised asset throughout the period of use.

Additionally, it is unclear whether the supplier would benefit economically from sourcing a similar alternative
asset.

Whether the substitution rights are substantive and whether there is an identified asset?

B. Illustration

Customer XYZ enters into a 15-year contract with Supplier ABC for the right to use five fibres within a fibre
optic cable between Mumbai and Pune.

The contract identifies five of the cable’s 25 fibres for use by Customer XYZ.

The five fibres are dedicated solely to Customer XYZ's data for the duration of the contract ferm. Assume
that Supplier ABC does not have a substantive substitution right.

Whether there is an identified asset?

6. TIllustration
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Customer XYZ enters into a ten-year contract with Supplier ABC for the right to transport oil from India to
Bangladesh through Supplier ABC's pipeline.

The contract provides that Customer XYZ will have the right to use of 95% of the pipeline’s capacity
throughout the term of the arrangement.

Whether there is an identified asset?

7. Illustration

Entity X, a garment manufacturer enters into an arrangement with a warehouse facility Y for the right to
store the ready garments in a specified storage warehouse.

The warehouse has twenty rooms serially numbered and the rooms one to eleven are contractually allocated to
Entity X with exclusive right to use.

Y does not have substitution rights. The storage space which is allocated to Entity X represents the 55% of
the total storage capacity of VY.

Whether the storage space (capacity portion) used by Entity X meets the criterion of an identified asset?

8. Tllustration

Entity X (PNG provider) enters into an arrangement for 15 years with Entity Y for using 60 % of the capacity
of a gas pipeline.

The quantity of gas which is to be sent in the pipeline is decided by Entity X. Entity Y makes all decisions
regarding operation and maintenance of the pipeline.

Entity X pays a fixed capacity charge per month and a variable amount which depends on the quantity of gas
transported.

Entity Y may allow third parties to use the remaining unused 40 % capacity only if Entity X refuses to utilise
the same, i.e., Entity X has the right of first refusal.

Whether the pipeline meets the criterion of an identified asset?

9. Illustration

Entity Y owns a large shopping centre. Customer X enters into a contract to lease a specified retail space for
five years.

Under the contract, Entity Y can require X to relocate to another retail space within the shopping centre.
Entity Y would need to pay for costs of relocation and provide X with another space of similar attributes.

Entity Y would only benefit economically from relocating X if a major new tenant were to move in, taking up a
large amount of space at a sufficiently higher rate than the existing tenants.

Although it is possible that those circumstances may arise, at inception of the contract, it is not likely that
those circumstances will arise.

Whether Entity Y has substantive substitution rights?

10. Illustration
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Company MNO enters into a 15-year contract with Power Company PQR to purchase all of the electricity
produced by a new solar farm.

PQR owns the solar farm and will receive tax credits relating to the construction and ownership of the solar
farm, and MNO will receive renewable energy credits that accrue from use of the solar farm.

Who has the right to substantial benefits from the solar farm?

11. Illustration

Entity A contracts with Supplier H to manufacture parts in a facility.
Entity A designed the facility and provided its specifications. Supplier H owns the facility and the land.
Entity A specifies how many parts it needs and when it needs the parts to be available.

Supplier H operates the machinery and makes all operating decisions including how and when the parts are to
be produced, as long as it meets the contractual requirements to deliver the specified number on the specified
date.

Assuming supplier H cannot substitute the facility and hence is an identified asset.

Which party has the right to control the use of the identified asset (i.e., equipment) during the period of use?

12. Illustration

Entity X (customer) enters into a contract for six years with Entity ¥ (supplier). As per contract, Entity Y is
required to install an air-conditioning plant in its office premises.

Air-conditioning plant is designed as per the specifications provided by Entity X.

To optimize the efficiency of the air conditioning plant, Entity Y provides operation and maintenance services
on regular basis and as and when required throughout the contract period.

However, Entity X decides and directs the hours of operation and the floors of the building on which and at
what time the cooling is required and the tfemperature to be maintained by the air conditioning plant.

Whether Entity X has right to direct the use of the air conditioning plant?

13. Illustration

Entity X, a utility company (customer) enters into a contract for twenty years with Entity ¥, a power company
(supplier) to install, operate and maintain a solar power station to fulfil the power requirements of Entity X.
The team of professionals engaged by Entity X determined the location of the power station and the
specifications of the power station. The power station is to be constructed as per the design and other
specifications provided by Entity X.

Entity X has the exclusive right to receive and the obligation to take any energy produced.

Whether Entity X has right to direct the use of the solar power station?

14 Tllustration

Entity X takes on lease a crossover which is explicitly specified in the contract, for a period of two years. As
per the contract, Entity X can drive it only up to a maximum of 1,50,000 kilometres during the period of two
years.
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Considering the cap on the number of kilometres that the crossover can be driven by it, whether Entity X
obtains substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the crossover?

15. Illustration

Entity ABC enters into a lease for equipment that includes a non-cancellable term of six years and a two-year
fixed-priced renewal option with future lease payments that are intended to approximate market rates at
lease inception.

There are no termination penalties or other factors indicating that Entity ABC is reasonably certain to
exercise the renewal option. What is the lease term?

16. Illustration

Entity XYZ enters into a lease for a building that includes a non-cancellable term of eight years and a two-
year, market-priced renewal option.

Before it takes possession of the building, Entity XYZ pays for leasehold improvements.

The leasehold improvements are expected to have significant value at the end of eight years, and that value
can only be realised through continued occupancy of the leased property.

What is the lease term?

17 . Illustration

Entity PQR enters into a lease for an identified retail space in a shopping centre.

The retail space will be available to Entity PQR for only the months of October, November and December
during a non-cancellable term of seven years.

The lessor agrees to provide the same retail space for each of the seven years. What is the lease term?

18. Illustration

Retailer M enters into a five-year lease for a building floor, followed by two successive five-year renewal
options.

On the commencement date, Retailer M is not reasonably certain to exercise the extension option.

At the end of third year, Retailer M extended to include another floor from year 4 due to a business
acquisition.

For this purpose, the lessee concludes a separate seven-year lease for an additional floor in the building already
leased.

TIs Retailer M required to reassess the lease term in this case?

19. Illustration

Company N has taken 10 vehicles on lease for an initial period of 5 years with an extension option at the option
of the lessee for a further period of 5 years at the same rental amount.

The remaining useful life of the vehicles as on the commencement date of the lease is 15 years. Company N
has determined at the commencement date that it is reasonably certain to exercise the extension option and
hence it has taken a period of 10 years for the lease.
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At the end of 4th year, there is an announcement by the government that all the cars of this particular model
have to be discontinued from the road within 1 year due to the change in the pollution norms in the country.
Will the lease term be reassessed in this case?

20. TIllustration

Given,

e Fair Value of the car, currently - Rs.40 lakhs

e Instalment payments at the end of each year for the first three years - Rs.10 lakhs
e Incentive for extension - Rs.1 lakh

e Instalment Payments for year 4 and 5 - Rs.5 lakhs

e Amount payable for usage - Rs.5 per km driven and minimum per year - Rs.1 lakh

o Option exercisable at end of 5™ year - Purchase car at Rs.5 lakh

e Useful life of the car - 10 years

Compute the lease liability using implicit rate of return.

21. Illustration

Entity Q enters into a seven-year lease for a piece of machinery. The contract sets out the lease payments as
follows.

- If Q uses the machinery within a given month, then an amount of 2,000 accrues for that month.

- If Q does not use the machinery within a given month, then an amount of 1,000 accrues for that month.
What is considered as lease payment in this case?

22. Illustration

Entity P enters into a five-year lease for office space with Entity Q.
The initial base rent is Rs.1 lakh per month.

Rents increase by the greater of 1% of Entity P's generated sales or 2% of the previous rental rate on each
anniversary of the lease commencement date. What are the lease payments for purposes of measuring lease
liability?

23. Illustration

Company N leases a production line.

The lease payments depend on the number of operating hours of the production line - i.e., N has to pay Rs.1,000
per hour of use.

The annual minimum payment is Rs.10,00,000.

The expected usage per year is 1,500 hours

24. TIllustration

An entity enters into a 10-year lease of property. The lease payment is to be done at the beginning of each
year. The lease payment for the first year is Rs. 1,000.

The lease payments are linked to the consumer price index (CPI), i.e., not a floating interest rate. The CPI at
the beginning of the first year is 100.
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Lease payments are updated at the end of every second year. At the end of year one, the CPI is 105. At the
end of year two, the CPI is 108.

You are required compute the lease liability at the commencement of the lease and at the lease payment is
adjusted assuming a discount rate of 8%.

25. Illustration

Entity L enters into a lease for 10 years, with a single lease payment payable at the beginning of each year.
The initial lease payment is Rs.100,000.

Lease payments will increase by the rate of LIBOR each year. At the date of commencement of the lease,
LIBOR is 2 per cent.

Assume that the interest rate implicit in the lease is 5 per cent. How lease liability is initially measured?

26. Illustration

Entity XYZ is a medical equipment manufacturer and a supplier of the related consumables. Customer ABC
operates a medical centre. Under the agreement entered into by both parties, Entity XYZ grants Customer
ABC the right to use a medical laboratory machine at no cost and Customer ABC purchases consumables for
use in the equipment from Entity XYZ at Rs. 100 each.

The consumables can only be used for that equipment and Customer ABC cannot use other consumables as
substitutes. There is no minimum purchase amount required in the contract.

Based on its historical experience, Customer ABC estimates that it is highly likely to purchase at least 8,000
units of consumables annually. Customer ABC has appropriately assessed that the arrangement contains a lease
of medical equipment. There are no residual value guarantees or other forms of consideration included in the
contract. Whether these payments affect the calculation of lease liability and ROU Asset? How does Entity
XYZ and Customer ABC would allocate these lease payments?

27. Illustration

An entity (a lessee) enters into a lease and guarantees that the lessor will realise Rs. 20,000 from selling the
asset to another party at the end of the lease.

At lease commencement, based on the lessee’s estimate of the residual value of the underlying asset, the
lessee determines that it expects that it will owe Rs.8,000 at the end of the lease.

Whether the lessee should include the said payment of Rs.8,000 as a lease payment?

28. Illustration

Entity Y and Entity Z execute a 12-year lease of a railcar with the following terms on 1 January, 20X1:
The lease commencement date is 1 February 20X1.
Entity Y must pay Entity Z the first monthly rental payment of Rs. 10,000 upon execution of the lease.
Entity Z will pay Entity Y Rs. 50,000 cash incentive to enter into the lease payable upon lease execution.

Entity Y incurred Rs. 1,000 of initial direct costs, which are payable on 1 February 20X1. Entity Y calculated
the initial lease liability as the present value of the lease payments discounted using its incremental borrowing
rate because the rate implicit in the lease could not be readily determined; the initial lease liability is Rs.
8,50,000.
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How would Lessee Company measure and record this lease?

29. Illustration

Company H leases an aircraft for a period of 5 years. The aircraft must undergo a planned check after every
100,000 flight hours. At the end of the lease, company H must have a check performed (or refund the costs
to the lessor), irrespective of the actual number of flight hours.

What are the lease payments for purposes of calculating ROU asset?

30. TIllustration

Entity ABC (lessee) enters into a three-year lease of equipment. Entity ABC agrees to make the following
annual payments at the end of each year:

Rs. 20,000 in year one
Rs. 30,000 in year two
Rs. 50,000 in year three.

For simplicity purposes, there are no other elements to the lease payments (like purchase options, lease
incentives from the lessor or initial direct costs). Assumed a discount rate of 12% (which is Entity ABC's
incremental borrowing rate because the interest rate implicit in the lease cannot be readily determined).
Entity ABC depreciates the ROU Asset on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

How would Entity ABC would account for the said lease under Ind AS 116?

31.Illustration

Company EFG enters into a property lease with Entity H. The initial ferm of the lease is 10 years with a 5-
year renewal option. The economic life of the property is 40 years and the fair value of the leased property
is Rs. 50 Lacs.

Company EFG has an option to purchase the property at the end of the lease term for Rs. 30 lacs. The first
advance annual payment is Rs. 5 lacs with an increase of 3% every year thereafter. The implicit rate of interest
is 9.04%. Entity H gives Company EFG an incentive of Rs. 2 lacs (payable at the beginning of year 2), which is
to be used for normal tenant improvement.

Company EFG is reasonably certain to exercise that purchase option. How would EFG measure the right-of-use
asset and lease liability over the lease term?

32. TIllustration

Given,

e Lease Term - 10.00 years

e Annual Lease Payment (beginning) Rs.2,00,000

e First lease payment before commencement of lease:
o Initial direct cost (Lessee) Rs.20,000
o Reimbursement of IDC by Lessor Rs.5,000

e Implicit rate of return in lease is not readily determinable
o Incremental borrowing rate @ 6%

Ind AS 116 1FIN by Indigo Learn 10.25



Show accounting in books of lessee at commencement of lease

33. TIllustration

Entity W entered into a contract for lease of retail store with Entity J on January 01/01/20X1. The initial
term of the lease is 5 years with a renewal option of further 3 years.

The annual payments for initial term and renewal term is Rs. 100,000 and Rs. 110,000 respectively. The annual
lease payment will increase based on the annual increase in the CPI at the end of the preceding year. For
example, the payment due on 01/01/20X2 will be based on the CPT available at 31/12/20X]1.

Entity W's incremental borrowing rate at the lease inception date and as at 01/01/20X4 is 5% and 6%
respectively and the CPI at lease commencement date and as at 01/01/20X4 is 120 and 125 respectively.

At the lease commencement date, Entity W did not have a significant economic incentive to exercise the
renewal option. In the first quarter of 20X4, Entity W installed unique lease improvements into the retail
store with an estimated five-year economic life.

Entity W determined that it would only recover the cost of the improvements if it exercises the renewal
option, creating a significant economic incentive to extend.

Is Entity W required to remeasure the lease in the first quarter of 20X4?

34. TIllustration

Lessee enters into a 10-year lease for 5,000 square metres of office space. The annual lease payments are Rs.
1,00,000 payable at the end of each year. The interest rate implicit in the lease cannot be readily determined.

Lessee's incremental borrowing rate at the commencement date is 6% p.a.

At the beginning of Year 7, Lessee and Lessor agree to amend the original lease by extending the contractual
lease term by four years. The annual lease payments are unchanged (i.e., Rs. 1,00,000 payable at the end of
each year from Year 7 to Year 14).

Lessee's incremental borrowing rate at the beginning of Year 7 is 7% p.a.

How should the said modification be accounted for?

35. TIllustration

Lessee enters into a 10-year lease for 5,000 square metres of office space. The annual lease payments are Rs.
50,000 payable at the end of each year. The interest rate implicit in the lease cannot be readily determined.
Lessee's incremental borrowing rate at the commencement date is 6% p.a.

At the beginning of Year 6, Lessee and Lessor agree to amend the original lease to reduce the space to only
2,500 square metres of the original space starting from the end of the first quarter of Year 6. The annual
fixed lease payments (from Year 6 to Year 10) are Rs. 30,000. Lessee's incremental borrowing rate at the
beginning of Year 6 is 5% p.a.

How should the said modification be accounted for?

36. TIllustration

Lessee enters into a 10-year lease for 5,000 square metres of office space. At the beginning of Year 6, Lessee
and Lessor agree to amend the original lease for the remaining five years o reduce the lease payments from
Rs. 1,00,000 per year to Rs. 95,000 per year. The interest rate implicit in the lease cannot be readily
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determined. Lessee's incremental borrowing rate at the commencement date is 6% p.a. Lessee's incremental
borrowing rate at the beginning of Year 6 is 7% p.a. The annual lease payments are payable at the end of each
year.

How should the said modification be accounted for?

37. TIllustration

Lessee enters into a 10-year lease for 2,000 square metres of office space. The annual lease payments are Rs.
1,00,000 payable at the end of each year. The interest rate implicit in the lease cannot be readily determined.
Lessee's incremental borrowing rate at the commencement date is 6% p.a.

At the beginning of Year 6, Lessee and Lessor agree to amend the original lease to:

(a) include an additional 1,500 sq. mtr of space in the same building starting from the beginning of Year 6
and

(b) reduce the lease term from 10 years to eight years. The annual fixed payment for the 3,500 square
metres is Rs. 1,50,000 payable at the end of each year (from Year 6 to Year 8).

Lessee's incremental borrowing rate at the beginning of Year 6 is 7% p.a.

The consideration for the increase in scope of 1,500 square metres of space is not commensurate with the
stand-alone price for that increase adjusted to reflect the circumstances of the contract. Consequently,
Lessee does not account for the increase in scope that adds the right to use an additional 1,500 square metres
of space as a separate lease.

How should the said modification be accounted for?

38. TIllustration

Calculate of Lease liability and ROU Asset at commencement when,

e Lease Term is 2 years

o Date of commencement is 1" April 2019

e Lease payment at end of every quarter is Rs.1,00,000
o Discount factor per annum is 8%

39. Illustration
Computation for low value assets

e Lease Term - 3 years

e Lease payment each year
o Year1-Rs.2,000
o Year 2 -Rs.2,500
o Year 3-Rs.2,100

40. TIllustration

Entity X (lessee) manufactures phone handsets. X enters into a 10-year lease contract with Entity ¥ (lessor)
of a non-specialised machine to be used in manufacturing parts for phone Al. It expects this model of phone
to remain popular with customers until it completes development and testing of an upgrade model - phone A2,
which is expected to be launched in near future, i.e., within one year. The current machine can be easily
replaced and the cost to install it in X's manufacturing facility is not significant. X and Y each have the right
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to terminate the lease without a penalty on each anniversary of the lease commencement date. The lease
agreement does not provide any purchase option in respect of the leased asset to Entity X.

Whether the recognition exemption for 'short term leases’ as per paragraph 5 of the Ind AS 116 is available
to Entity X?

Would the answer be different, if the development and testing of the upgraded model is expected to be
completed in three years rather than one year?

41, TIllustration

Entity L rents an office building from Landlord M for a term of 10 years. The rental contract stipulates that
the office is fully furnished and has a newly installed and tailored HVAC system. It also requires Landlord M
to perform all common area maintenance (CAM) during the term of the arrangement. Entity L makes single
monthly rental payment and does not pay for the maintenance separately. The office building has a useful life
of 40 years and the HVAC system and office furniture each has a life of 15 years.

What are the units of account in the lease?

42. TIllustration

Scenario A:

A lessee enters into a five-year lease of equipment, with fixed annual payments of Rs. 10,000. The contract
contains fixed annual payments as follows: Rs. 8,000 for rent, Rs. 1,500 for maintenance and Rs. 500 of
administrative tasks. How the consideration would be allocated?

Scenario B:

Assume the fact pattern as in scenario A except that, in addition, the contract requires the lessee to pay for
the restoration of the equipment to its original condition. How the consideration would be allocated?

43. TIllustration

A lessee enters info a lease of an equipment. The contract stipulates the lessor will perform maintenance of
the leased equipment and receive consideration for that maintenance service. The contract includes the
following fixed prices for the lease and non-lease component:

Lease Rs. 80,000
Maintenance Rs. 10,000
Total Rs. 90,000

Assume the stand-alone prices cannot be readily observed, so the lessee makes estimates, maximising the use
of observable information, of the lease and non-lease components, as follows:

Lease Rs. 85,000
Maintenance Rs. 15,000
Total Rs. 1,00,000

In the given scenario, assuming lessee has not opted the practical expedient, how will the lessee allocate the
consideration to lease and non-lease component?
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44, TIllustration

A Lessee enters into a ten-year lease contract with a Lessor to use an equipment. The contract includes
maintenance services (as provided by lessor). The Lessor obtains its own insurance for the equipment. Annual
payments are Rs. 10,000 (Rs. 1,000 relate to maintenance services and Rs. 500 to insurance costs).

The Lessee is able to determine that similar maintenance services and insurance costs are offered by third
parties for Rs. 2,000 and Rs. 500 a year, respectively. The Lessee is unable to find an observable stand-alone
rental amount for a similar equipment because none is leased without related maintenance services provided
by the lessor.

How would the Lessee allocate the consideration to the lease component?

45. TIllustration

Entity X (lessee) entered into a lease agreement (‘lease agreement’) with Entity Y (lessor) to lease an entire
floor of a shopping mall for a period of 9 years. The annual lease rent of Rs. 70,000 is payable at year end.

Entity X simultaneously entered into another agreement (‘facilities agreement’) with Entity Y for using certain
other facilities owned by Entity Y such as passenger lifts, DG sets, power supply infrastructure, parking space
etc., which are specifically mentioned in the agreement, for annual service charges amounting to Rs. 1,00,000.
As per the agreement, the ownership of the facilities shall remain with Entity Y. Lessee's incremental
borrowing rate is 10%.

The facilities agreement clearly specifies that it shall be co-existent and coterminous with ‘lease agreement’.
The facility agreement shall stand terminated automatically on termination or expiry of ‘lease agreement’.

Entity X has assessed that the stand-alone price of ‘lease agreement’ is Rs. 1,20,000 per year and stand-alone
price of the 'facilities agreement’ is Rs. 80,000 per year. Entity X has not elected to apply the practical
expedient to separate non-lease component(s) from lease component(s)

How will Entity X account for lease liability as at the commencement date?

46. TIllustration

Entity X is an Indian entity whose functional currency is Indian Rupee. It has taken a plant on lease from
Entity Y for 5 years to use in its manufacturing process for which it has to pay annual rentals in arrears of
USD 10,000 every year. On the commencement date, exchange rate was USD = Rs. 68. The average rate for
Year 1 was Rs. 69 and at the end of year 1, the exchange rate was Rs. 70. The incremental borrowing rate of
Entity X on commencement of the lease for a USD borrowing was 5% p.a.

How will entity X measure the right of use (ROU) asset and lease liability initially and at the end of Year 1?

47. TIllustration

A Dealer-Lessor enters into a 10-year lease of equipment with Lessee. The equipment is not specialised in
nature and is expected to have alternative use to Lessor at the end of the 10-year lease ferm. Under the
lease:

e Lessor receives annual lease payments of Rs 15,000, payable at the end of the year. Lessor expects
the residual value of the equipment to be Rs 50,000 at the end of the 10-year lease term.

e Lessee provides a residual value guarantee that protects Lessor from the first Rs 30,000 of loss for
a sale at a price below the estimated residual value at the end of the lease term (i.e., Rs 50,000).

¢ The equipment has an estimated remaining economic life of 15 years, a carrying amount of Rs.1,00,000
and a fair value of Rs 1,11,000.
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¢ The lease does not transfer ownership of the underlying asset to Lessee at the end of the lease term
or contain an option to purchase the underlying asset.
o The interest rate implicit in the lease is 10.078%.

How should the Lessor account for the same in its books of accounts?

48. TIllustration
Following details regarding a lease are given

e Commencement: Year 1

e Lease Term: 5 years

o Lease payments: Fixed Rs.2,00,000
e Residual value: Rs.2,50,000

e Guaranteed by lessee: Rs.2,00,000

¢ Unguaranteed RV Rs.50,000

e Fair value of the asset: Rs.10,00,000
e Useful life of the car: 6 years

It is unlikely that the Rs.50,000 of unguaranteed RV will be available at the end of year 2. Compute the loss
due to the revised residual value.

49. TIllustration

Lessor L enters into an eight-year lease of 40 lorries with Lessee M that commences on 1 January 2018. The
lease term approximates the lorries’ economic life and no other features indicate that the lease transfer or
does not transfer substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the lorries. Assuming
that substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the lorries are transferred, L
classifies the lease as a finance lease.

During the COVID-19 pandemic, M's business has contracted. In June 2020, L and M amend the contract so
that it now terminates on 31 December 2020.

Early termination was not part of the original terms and conditions of the lease and this is therefore a lease
modification.

How this will be accounted for by lessor?

50. Illustration
Entity X (lessee) entered into a contract with Entity Y (lessor) to lease an office equipment for a period of 5

years.

The following is the information about the lease and the leased assets at lease inception.
Lease term 5 years (no renewal option held by either party)

Purchase option None

Annual lease payments INR 1,95,000

Payment date Annually on April 1

Fair value of the leased equipment INR 12,00,000
Entity Y's carrying amount of the

leased equipment INR 12,00,000
Estimated RV INR 4,00,000

GRV INR 3,00,000
Implicit rate in the lease 5%

Economic life of the leased

equipment 10 years

Other Title to the asset remains with Entity V.

At the end of year 1 of the lease, Entity X and Entity Y agree to modify the lease to shorten the lease term
by two years.

The relevant information at the modification is given below

Modification date Beginning of year 2

Ind AS 116 1FIN by Indigo Learn 10.30



Remaining modified lease term 2 years
Remaining economic life of the

leased equipment 7 years
Purchase option None
Annual lease payments INR 1,90,000
Payment date Annually on April 1

Fair value of the leased equipment INR 10,00,000
Estimated residual value at the end

of next 2 years INR 7,00,000
Residual value guarantee at the end

of next 2 years INR 3,50,000
Interest Rate implicit lease 5.43%

B1. Illustration

Lessor L leases retail space to Lessee Z and classifies the lease as an operating lease. The lease includes fixed
lease payments of Rs. 10,000 per month.

Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, L and Z agree on a rent concession that allows Z to pay no rent in the period
from July, 2020 to September 2020 but to pay rent of 20,000 per month in the period from January 2021 to
March 2021. There are no other changes to the lease.

How this will be accounted for by lessor?

B2. TIllustration

Lessor M enters into a 10-year lease of office space with Lessee K, which commences on 1 April 2015. The
rental payments are 15,000 per month, payable in arrears. M classifies the lease as an operating lease. M
reimburses K's relocation costs of K of 600,000, which M accounts for as a lease incentive. The lease incentive
is recognised as a reduction in rental income over the lease ferm using the same basis as for the lease income
- in this case, on a straight- line basis over 10 years.
On 1 April 2020, during the COVID-19 pandemic, M agrees to waive K's rental payments for May, June and
July 2020.
This decrease in consideration is not included in the original terms and conditions of the lease and is therefore
a lease modification.
How this will be accounted for by lessor?
53.  Illustration
Entity X (lessee) enters into an arrangement with Entity Y to lease 10,000 square feet of office space for a
period of 10 years. The annual lease payments are INR 1,00,000 in the first year, increased by 5 percent each
year thereafter, payable in arrears. The economic life of office space if 40 years.
The present value of office space is not substantially all of the fair value of the office space. Furthermore,
the title does not transfer to Entity X as a consequence of the lease and the lease does not contain an option
for Entity X to purchase the office space.
At the beginning of Year 6, Entity X and Entity Y agree to amend the original lease for the remaining 5 years
to include an additional 10,000 square feet of office space in the same building for an additional annual fixed
payment of INR 1,50,000.
How would Entity Y account for the modification in the lease contract?

54, Illustration

An entity (Seller-lessee) sells a building to another entity (Buyer-lessor) for cash of Rs. 30,00,000.
Immediately before the transaction, the building is carried at a cost of Rs. 15,00,000. At the same time,
Seller-lessee enters into a contract with Buyer-lessor for the right to use the building for 20 years, with
annual payments of Rs. 2,00,000 payable at the end of each year.

The terms and conditions of the transaction are such that the transfer of the building by Seller- lessee
satisfies the requirements for determining when a performance obligation is satisfied in Ind AS 115 '‘Revenue
from Contracts with Customers'.
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The fair value of the building at the date of sale is Rs. 27,00,000. Initial direct costs, if any, are to be ignored.
The interest rate implicit in the lease is 12% p.a., which is readily determinable by Seller-lessee.
Buyer-lessor classifies the lease of the building as an operating lease.

How should the said transaction be accounted by the Seller-lessee and the Buyer-lessor?

Bb. Illustration

A retailer (lessee) entered into 3-year lease of retail space beginning at 1 April 2017 with three annual lease
payments of Rs. 2,00,000 due on 31 March 2018, 2019, and 2020, respectively. The lease is classified as an
operating lease under Ind AS 17. The retailer initially applies Ind AS 116 for the first time in the annual period
beginning at 1 April 2019. The incremental borrowing rate at the date of the initial application (i.e., 1 April
2019) is 10% p.a. and at the commencement of the lease (i.e., 1 April 2017) was 12% p.a. The ROU asset is
subject to straight-line depreciation over the lease term. Assume that no practical expedients are elected,
the lessee did not incur initial direct costs, there were no lease incentives and there were no requirements for
the lessee to dismantle and remove the underlying asset, restore the site on which it is located or restore the
underlying asset to the condition under the terms and conditions of the lease.
What would be the impact for the lessee using all the following transition approaches:

a. Full Retrospective Approach

b. Modified Retrospective Approach
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Ind AS 37

PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS

1 Objective

The objective of Ind AS 37 is to ensure that

I
I l

- . A Y4 R
appropriate recognition criteria and sufficient information is disclosed in
measurement bases are applied to the notes to enable users to
-provisions, understand their
-contingent liabilities and -nature,

-contingent assets and -timing and
-amount.
. 8 7 & J
2 Scope

Ind AS 37 should be applied by all entities in accounting for provisions, contingent liabilities and
contingent assets, except:

1) for executory contracts, except where the contract is onerous; and

2) financial instruments that are within the scope of Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments;

3) those covered by another Standard such as:

Exclusion Covered by
Revenue from contracts with Ind AS 115
customers (Onerous contracts covered under Ind AS 37)
Income Taxes Ind AS 12
Leases Ind AS 116
(Onerous contracts covered under Ind AS 37)
Employee Benefits Ind AS 19
Insurance Contracts Ind AS 104

Contingent consideration ina Ind AS 103
business combination

3 Important Terms

3.1 Executory Contract
> Executory contracts are contracts under which _ _
e neither party has performed any of its obligations or Ind AS 37 is applied
e both parties have partially performed their obligations to an to executory
equal extent contracts only if they
are onerous.
3.2 Onerous Contract ——~ ‘J

> is a contract in which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligation
> exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under the contract
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3.3 Liability

> is a present obligation of the entity

> arising from past events,

» the settlement of which is expected to result

> inan outflow from the entity of resources embodying economic benefits.

3.4 Obligating Event
> is an event that creates a legal or constructive obligation
» that results in an entity having no realistic alternative to settling that obligation.

‘ Obligation ’
|
[ |
‘ Legal ’ [ Constructive
Contract L Other Based on
(through [ Legislation J operation past Commitmnet

explicit or
implicit
terms

of Law Practice

Example: X Ltd. is engaged in the manufacture of fertilisers. Effluents discharged in the
manufacturing process have polluted the river near the manufacturing plant. The residents of the
nearby locality launched a massive agitation against the pollution as a result X Ltd. agreed to their
demands fo reduce the water pollution by installing the necessary Effluent Treatment Plant.
However, during the year no steps are taken to install the plant. No legislation requiring the company
to reduce its pollution is in existence.

In this case, though there is no law but by promising to take steps to reduce pollution, X Ltd. has
created a valid expectation on the part of public that it will discharge its responsibilities. So, the
obligation in this case is a constructive obligation.

4 Provisions

A provisionis a liability of uncertain timing or amount.

‘ Provision ’
[
[ I
Liability ’ [ Of uncertain ’
Present obligations Outflow of .
- . timing or amount
arising from past resource is
events probable

A reliable estimation
can be made
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4.1 Recognition of Provision
provision should be recognised when all the conditions are satisfied

a) anentity has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,

b) it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation; and

¢) a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Reliable
estimate

Recognise

as a result outflow of
of a past resources
event is probable

Present
a

obligation can be

made

Provision

4.1.1 Past Event and Present Obligation
> A past event that leads to a present obligation is called an obligating event.

> Obligating event, is the event where the entity has no realistic alternative to settling the
obligation created by the event. This is the case only:

a) where the settlement of the obligation can be enforced by law; or
b) inthe case of a constructive obligation, where the event (which may be an action of the entity)
creates valid expectations in other parties that the entity will discharge the obligation.

Past Event

[ |
leading to present ( not leading to
obligation Where it is not clear present obligation
| whether there is a |
[ recognise provision (if present obligation,
recognition criteria are met); |

g

past event shall be

evaluated based on
the available

-

don't recognise
provision

evidence
| : |
where it is probable that a where it is more likely that
present obligation exists at no present obligation
the end of the reporting exists at the end of the
period, reporting period

recognise provision (if disclose a contingent

recognition criteria are liability (if outflow of
met); resources is not remote)
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= No provision is recognised for costs that need to be incurred by an entity
to operate in the future.

=> Only those obligations arising from past events existing independently
of an entity’s future actions (i.e., the future conduct of its business) that
should be recognised as provisions

S

Example 1: Refurbishment costs

Case(i): No legislative requirement

A furnace has a lining that needs to be replaced every five years for technical reasons. At the end
of the reporting period, the lining has been in use for three years. It is assumed that a reliable
estimate can be made of any outflows expected.

Present obligation as a result of a past obligating event - No present obligation

Conclusion - No provision is recognised.

Note: The cost of replacing the lining is not recognised because, at the end of the reporting period,
no obligation to replace the lining exists (even if the company has plans to replace the linings)

Case(ii): legislative requirement

An airline is required by law to overhaul its aircraft once every three years. It is assumed that a
reliable estimate can be made of any outflows expected.

Present obligation as a result of a past obligating event - There is no present obligation.

Conclusion - No provision is recognised.

Note: The costs of overhauling aircraft are not recognised as a provision for the same reasons as
the cost of replacing the lining is not recognised as a provision in Case(i) on refurbishment costs.
Even a legal requirement to overhaul does not make the costs of overhaul a liability, because no
obligation exists to overhaul the aircraft - the entity could avoid the future expenditure by its
future actions, for example by selling the aircraft.

> The entity can avoid the future expenditure by its future actions. In such a case, it has no
present obligation for that future expenditure and no provision is recognised.

Example 2: Legal requirement to fit smoke filters

Under new legislation, an entity is required to fit smoke filters to its factories by September 30,
20X1. The entity has not fitted the smoke filters. It is assumed that a reliable estimate can be
made of any outflows expected.

(a) At March 31, 20X1, the end of the reporting period

Present obligation as a result of a past obligating event - There is no obligation because there is no
obligating event either for the costs of fitting smoke filters or for fines under the legislation.

Conclusion - No provision is recognised for the cost of fitting the smoke filters.

(b) At March 31, 20X2, the end of the reporting period
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Present obligation as a result of a past obligating event - There is still no obligation for the costs of
fitting smoke filters because no obligating event has occurred (the fitting of the filters). However,
an obligation might arise fo pay fines or penalties under the legislation because the obligating event
has occurred (the non-compliant operation of the factory).

An outflow of resources embodying economic benefits in settlement - Assessment of probability of
incurring fines and penalties by non-compliant operation depends on the details of the legislation and
the stringency of the enforcement regime.

Conclusion - No provision is recognised for the costs of fitting smoke filters. However, a provision
is recognised for the best estimate of any fines and penalties that are more likely than not to be
imposed.

4.1.2 Probable Outflow of Resources Embodying Economic Benefits

> For a liability to qualify for recognition
e there must be not only a present obligation i
o but also, the probability of an outflow of | For the purpose of Ind AS
resources embodying economic benefits to settle | 37, an outflow of resources

that obligation.
> Where it is not probable that a present obligation

or other event is regarded
as probable, if the event is

exists,

o an entity discloses a contingent liability, more likely than not to

e unless the possibility of an outflow of resources | occur, i.e., the probability
embodying economic benefits is remote. that the event will occur is

Example 3: Refurbishment costs - legislative greater than the probability

requirementAn entity in the oil industry causes | thatitwill not.
contamination but cleans up only when required to do

so under the laws of the particular country in which it =~ ~A—""—""—"\_/

operates.

One country in which it operates has had no legislation requiring cleaning up, and the entity has
been contaminating land in that country for several years.

At March 31, 20X1, it is virtually certain that a draft law requiring a clean-up of land already
contaminated will be enacted shortly after the year-end. It is assumed that a reliable estimate
can be made of any outflows expected.

Present obligation as a result of a past obligating event - The obligating event is the
contamination of the land because of the virtual certainty of legislation requiring cleaning up.

An outflow of resources embodying economic benefits in settlement - Probable.

Conclusion - A provision is recognised for the best estimate of the costs of the clean-up.

Example 4: Contaminated land and constructive obligation

An entity in the oil industry (having 31 March year-end) causes contamination and operates in a
country where there is no environmental legislation.

However, the entity has a widely published environmental policy in which it undertakes to clean
up all contamination that it causes. The entity has a record of honouring this published policy.
It is assumed that a reliable estimate can be made of any outflows expected.

Present obligation as a result of a past obligating event- The obligating event is the
contamination of the land, which gives rise to a constructive obligation because the conduct of
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the entity has created a valid expectation on the part of those affected by it that the entity
will clean up contamination.

An outflow of resources embodying economic benefits in settlement-Probable.

Conclusion- A provision is recoghised for the best estimate of the costs of clean-up.

Example 5: Offshore oilfield

An entity operates an of fshore oilfield where its licensing agreement requires it o remove the
oil rig at the end of production and restore the seabed. 90% of the eventual costs relate to the
removal of the oil rig and restoration of damage caused by building it, and 10% arise through
the extraction of oil.

At the end of the reporting period, the rig has been constructed but no oil has been extracted.
It is assumed that a reliable estimate can be made of any outflows expected.

Present obligation as a result of a past obligating event - The construction of the oil rig creates
a legal obligation under the tferms of the license to remove the rig and restore the seabed and
is Thus an obligating event.

At the end of the reporting period, however, there is no obligation to rectify the damage that
will be caused by extraction of the oil.

An outflow of resources embodying economic benefits in settlement - Probable.

Conclusion - A provision is recognised for the best estimate of 90% of the eventual costs that
relate to the removal of the oil rig and restoration of damage caused by building it. These costs
are included as part of the cost of the oil rig.

The 10% of costs that arise through the extraction of oil are recognised as a liability when the
oil is extracted.

4.2 Changes in Provisions

>

>

>

Provisions should be reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the
current best estimate

If it is no longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required o settle the obligation, provision should be reversed.

Where discounting is used, the carrying amount of a provision increases in each year. This
increase is recognised as borrowing cost / finance cost.

4.3 Use of Provisions

A provision should be used only for expenditures for which the provision was originally recognised.
Repurposing of the provisions is not allowed.

4.4 Provisions & Other Liabilities

Since there is uncertainty about the tfiming or amount of the future expenditure required in
settlement of the provisions, they are different from liabilities. By contrast:
a) trade payables are liabilities to pay for goods or services that have been received or supplied.
b) accruals are liabilities to pay for goods or services that have been received or supplied but have

not been paid.

4.4.1 Examples on provisions and other liabilities:
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utilities like electricity,
gas, efc.

Nature of obligation Recognition | Reasons
as
provision
(Yes/No)
Amount payable for | No It represents an accrual of liability to pay for services that

have been received and
the amount and timing of payment can be determined with
a reasonable certainty.

Goods or  services | No It represents trade payables even if invoice has not been

received, but not received and

invoiced the amount and timing of payment would be driven by the
terms agreed with the supplier.

Financial guarantee | No Financial guarantees are within the scope

given by the parent to of Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments

lenders for loan taken

by its subsidiary

Warranty obligations Yes It is additional cost that the seller may have to incur to

rectify product defects. This is in the nature of provision
as there is an uncertainty associated with the amount and
timing of the liability.

5 Contingent Liabilities

> A Contingent Liability is

e a possible obligation that arises from past events and

wholly within the control of the entity.

o whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence Y ,
: An entity should not
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future eventsnot ' '
recognise a contingent
(or) liability, it should

e a present obligation that arises from past events but is not
recognised because:

e Outflow of resources embodying economic benefits to settle
the obligation are rot probable; or

embodying
benefits is not remote

e Reliable estimation cannot be made.

Example:

e

A tax case pending before the court, the liability for payment arising or not in respect of which
depends on the outcome of court decision is a possible obligation that arises from past events and
whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the entity.
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The principles describing provisions and contingent liabilities is as follows:
( ) ( )

( . )
There is a present obligation that L Disclosures
. A provision is are required
probably requires an outflow of .
recognised. for the
L resources. ) § ) | provision.
e A ) Disc|
There is a possible obligation or a Is¢ osu.resd
present obligation that may, but No provision arefgc:gtﬁlere
probably will not, require an outflow of is recognised. contingent
resources.. liability
- J - J :
) A N . ( ) ( )
There is a possible obligation or a - ,
o o No provision No disclosure
present obligation where the likelihood . ) . )
. is recognised. is required.
_ of an outflow of resources is remote. L ) L )

> If it becomes probable that an outflow of future economic benefits will be required for an item
previously dealt with as a contingent liability, a provision should be recognised in the financial
statements of the period in which the change in probability occurs.

6 Contingent Assets

> Contingent Asset is
e a possible asset that arises from past events and
e whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more

uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity

> An entity should not recognise a contingent asset

> A contingent asset should be disclosed, where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

> Contingent assets are assessed continually fo ensure that developments are appropriately
reflected in the financial statements.

> If it has become virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise, the asset and
the related income are recognised in the financial statements of the period in which the change
occurs.

Likelihood of Probability Contingent liability Contingent asset
outcome

Virtually certain >95% Recognise provision Recognise asset
Probable 50% - 95% Recognise Provision Disclose
Possible  but not | 5% - 50% Disclose the | No disclosure
probable contingency

Remote <5% Ignore Ignore

Example: X Ltd. filed a legal suit against a supplier of goods for compensation against damages on
non-supply of contracted goods.

This meets the definition of a contingent asset since there is a possible asset (compensation against
damages) that arises from past event (contract with the supplier) and whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of uncertain future event not wholly within the
control of the entity (i.e., the outcome of the legal suit).
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7 Measurement

7.1 Best Estimate

> The amount recognised as a provision should be the best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period.
» The estimates of outcome and financial effect are determined using
e the judgement of the management of the entity,
e experience of similar transactions,
e reports from independent experts,
e Subsequent events

[ Estimate ]

|

[ Range of Outcome ] [ Single Outcome ]
[ Use Probability ] [ Expected Value ] [ Smgloeul\t/lczsrtnlgkely ]

Example 1:

An entity faces a single legal claim, with a 40 per cent likelihood of success with no cost and a 60
percent likelihood of failure with a cost of 21 million.

Expected value is not valid in this case because the outcome will never be a cost of 600,000 (60
percent x X1 million); the outcome will either be nil or X1 million.

Ind AS 37 indicates that the provision may be estimated at the individual most likely outcome. In
this case, it is more likely that a cost of %1 million will result and, therefore, a provision for 1 million
should be recognised.

Example 2:

An entity is required to replace a major component of an asset under warranty. Each time
replacement costs Z 1 million. From experience, there is a 30 per cent chance of a single failure, a
50 per cent chance of two failures, and a 20 per cent chance of three failures.

In the given case the most likely outcome is two failures, costing 2 2 million. The expected value is
% 1.9 million [(30 percent x % 1 million) + (50 per cent x % 2 million) + (20 per cent x % 3 million)].

The expected value supports the provision 2 million.

7.2 Risk and Uncertainties
> Risks and uncertainties should be taken into account in reaching the best estimate of a provision.
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> A risk adjustment should be made for the amount that the entity would pay in excess of the
expected present value of outflows due fo uncertainty attached with the actual outcome.
> Risk adjustment can be accounted for in number of ways such as:
e Adding it to the expected present value of future outflows.
e Adjusting the estimates of future outflows.
e Adjusting the discount rate.

7.3 Present value

» The amount of a provision should be the present value of the expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation.

» The discount rate (or rates) should be a pre-tax rate (or rates) that reflect(s) current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability.

7.4 Future Events

Future events that may affect the amount required to settle an obligation should be reflected in
the amount of a provision where there is sufficient objective evidence that they will occur.

7.5 Expected Disposal of Asset

Gains on the expected disposal of assets should not be taken into account in measuring a provision,
even if the expected disposal is closely linked to the event giving rise to the provision.

Example:
At the end of 20X1, an entity is demonstrably committed to the closure of some facilities, having
drawn up a detailed plan and made appropriate announcements. The expected impact of the plan is
as follows:

20X2 20X3
Committed closure costs Z10,00,000
Gain from sale of property %2,00,000
The provision required at the end of 20X1 is ¥ 10,00,000 (ignoring discounting). The expected gain
on the sale of the property is dealt with separately under the derecognition criteria in Ind AS 16.

8 Reimbursements

» Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed
by another party, the reimbursement should be recognised when, and only when, it is virtually
certain that reimbursement will be received if the entity settles the obligation.

> The reimbursement should be treated as a separate asset.

> The amount recognised for the reimbursement should not exceed the amount of the provision.

> Inthe statement of profit and loss, the expense relating to a provision may be presented net of
the amount recognised for a reimbursement.

9 Application of Recognition & Measurement Rules

9.1 Future Operating Losses

> Provisions should not be recognised for future operating losses
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> as future operating losses do not meet the definition of a liability

9.2 Onerous Contracts

» contract in which unavoidable cost of meeting the obligation exceed the economic benefits
expected to be received from such contract

> Provision fo be created at Lower of:
» Damages payable if exited from the contract or
= Net loss that arises if the contract is executed

Example 1: Contract not onerous

An entity has a contract to purchase one million units of gas at 23p per unit, giving a contract price
of 2 2,30,000. The current market price for a similar contract is 16p per unit, giving a price of
1,60,000.

The gas will be used to generate electricity, which will be sold at a profit. The economic benefits
from the contract include the benefits to the entity of using the gas in its business and, because
the electricity will be sold at a profit, the contract is not onerous.

Example 2: Impairment of assets

The contract's ferms and market prices are the same as in example 1.

However, the electricity is sold at a loss, and the entity makes an overall operating loss. All of the
gas purchased by the entity is used to generate electricity using dedicated assets. The electricity
is sold to a wide range of customers. The entity first considers whether the assets used o generate
electricity are impaired.

To the extent that there is still a loss after the assets have been written down, a provision for an
onerous contract should be recorded.

Example 3: Sale to third party at below purchase price

The contract terms and market price are the same as in example 1.

However, in this example, the entity sells the gas under contract, which it no longer needs, to a third
party for 18p per unit (5p below cost). The entity determines that it would have to pay % 55,000 to
exit the purchase contract.

The only economic benefit from the purchase contract costing X 2,30,000 are the proceeds from
the sales contract, which are % 1,80,000.

Therefore, a provision should be made for the onerous element of ¥ 50,000, being the lower of the
cost of fulfilling the contract and the penalty cost of cancellation (X 55,000).

9.3 Restructuring

> is a programme that is planned and controlled by management, and materially changes either
a) the scope of a business undertaken by the entity; or
b) the manner in which that business is conducted.
Examples,
a) sale or termination of a line of business;
b) closure of business locations in a country or region or the relocation of business activities
from one country or region to another;
c) changes in management structure, for example, eliminating a layer of management; and
d) fundamental reorganisations that have a material effect on the nature and focus of the
entity’'s operations
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> A provision for restructuring costs should be recognised only when the general recognition
criteria for provisions set out the standard are met.
> A constructive obligation to restructure arises only when an entity:
a) has a detailed formal plan for the restructuring identifying at least:
i. business or part of a business concerned;
ii. principal locations affected:;
iii. location, function, and approximate number of employees who will be compensated for
terminating their services;
iv. expenditures that will be undertaken; and
v. when the plan will be implemented; and
b) has raised a valid expectation in those affected that it will carry out the restructuring by
starting to implement that plan or announcing its main features to those affected by it.

» A restructuring provision should include only include the direct expenditure arising from the
restructuring, which are:
e necessarily entailed by the restructuring; and
¢ not associated with the on-going activities of the entity.
> A restructuring provision does not include such cost as:
e retraining or relocating continuing staff;
e Marketing; or
e Investment in new system and distribution networks.
Example 1: Closure of a division - no implementation before end of the reporting period
On March 12, 20X1 the board of an entity decided to close down a division. Before the end of the
reporting period (March 31, 20X1) the decision was not communicated to any of those affected and
no other steps were taken to implement the decision. it is assumed that a reliable estimate can be
made of any outflows expected.

Present obligation as a result of a past obligating event - There has been no obligating event and so
there is no obligation.

Conclusion - No provision is recognised.

Example 2: Closure of a division - communication/implementation before end of the reporting period
On March 12, 20X1, the board of an entity decided to close down a division making a particular
product. On March 20, 20X1 a detailed plan for closing down the division was agreed by the board:;
letters were sent to customers warning them to seek an alternative source of supply and redundancy
notices were sent to the staff of the division. It is assumed that a reliable estimate can be made of
any outflows expected.

Present obligation as a result of a past obligating event - The obligating event is the communication
of the decision to the customers and employees, which gives rise to a constructive obligation from
that date, because it creates a valid expectation that the division will be closed.

An outflow of resources embodying economic benefits in settlement - Probable.

Conclusion - A provision is recognised at March 31, 20X1 for the best estimate of the costs of closing
the division.

10 Disclosure Requirements

> For each class of provision, an entity should disclose:
o the carrying amount at the beginning and end of the period;
e additional provisions made in the period, including increases to existing provisions;
e amounts used (i.e., incurred and charged against the provision) during the period;
e unused amounts reversed during the period; and

Ind AS 37 1FIN by Indigo Learn 11.12



e the increase during the period in the discounted amount arising from the passage of time and
the effect of any change in the discount rate.
> An entity should disclose the following for each class of provision:
e a brief description of the nature of the obligation and the expected timing of any resulting
outflows of economic benefits;
e anindication of the uncertainties about the amount or timing of those outflows.
e the amount of any expected reimbursement, stating the amount of any asset that has been
recognised for that expected reimbursement.
> Unless the possibility of any outflow in settlement is remote, an entity should disclose for each
class of contingent liability at the end of the reporting period a brief description of the nature
of the contingent liability and, where practicable:
e an estimate of its financial effect, measured in the standard;
e anindication of the uncertainties relating to the amount or timing of any outflow; and
e the possibility of any reimbursement.
> When an entity is creating a class of provisions, the entity should aggregate similar items
» Where an inflow of economic benefits is probable, an entity should disclose a brief description
of the nature of the contingent assets at the end of the reporting period, and, where
practicable, an estimate of their financial effect, measured using the principles set out for
provisions in the standard.

11 Levies- Appendix C of Ind AS 37

11.1 What is Levy?

» A charge imposed by governments on entities in accordance with laws and/or regulations. It leads
to outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
It excludes,
e outflows of resources that are within the scope of other Ind AS
e fines or other penalties that are imposed for breaches of the legislation
e payment made to the government for acquiring assets or for rendering services as per the
contractual agreement
e liabilities that arise from emissions trading schemes.

Other relevant examples:
Example 1: A Court case
After a wedding in 20X1-20X2, ten people died, possibly as a result of food poisoning from products
sold by the entity. Legal proceedings are started seeking damages from the entity but it disputes
liability.
Up to the date of approval of the financial statements for the year 031 March 20X2 for issue, the
entity's lawyers advise that it is probable that the entity will not be found liable.
However, when the entity prepares the financial statements for the year to 31 March 20X3, its
lawyers advise that, owing to developments in the case, it is probable that the entity will be found
liable. It is assumed that a reliable estimate can be made of any outflows expected.

(a) At 31 March 20X2
Present obligation as a result of a past obligating event - On the basis of the evidence available when
the financial statements were approved, there is no obligation as a result of past events.
Conclusion - No provision is recognised. The matter is disclosed as a contingent liability unless the
probability of any outflow is regarded as remote.

(b) At 31 March 20X3
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Present obligation as a result of a past obligating event - On the basis of the evidence available,
there is a present obligation.

An outflow of resources embodying economic benefits in settlement - Probable.

Conclusion - A provision is recognised for the best estimate of the amount to settle the obligation.
Example 2: Warranty

A manufacturer gives warranties at the time of sale fo purchasers of its product. Under the terms
of the contract for sale the manufacturer undertakes to make good, by repair or replacement,
manufacturing defects that become apparent within three years from the date of sale.

On past experience, it is probable (i.e., more likely than not) that there will be some claims under
the warranties. It is assumed that a reliable estimate can be made of any outflows expected.
Present obligation as a result of a past obligating event - The obligating event is the sale of the
product with a warranty, which gives rise to a legal obligation.

An outflow of resources embodying economic benefits in settlement - Probable for the warranties
as a whole.

Conclusion - A provision is recognised for the best estimate of the costs of making good under the

warranty products sold before the end of the reporting period.

12 significant differences in IND AS 37 & AS 29

Sasis of IND AS 37 AS 29
differences

Definition Specifically defines | doesn't define specifically.

Constructive “constructive obligation”.

Obligations, A provision is a liability uncertain | Provision is a liability which can

Provision and amount or timing. be measured only by using

Obligating Event substantial degree of

estimation.
Specifically talks about | Doesn't talk about obligating
obligating event. event.

Discounting When the effect of time value | Discounting is not permitted
of money is material, discounting | except for decommissioning,
is required. restoration and similar

liabilities associated with PPE

Contingent Not recognised but disclosed in | Neither recognised nor

asset the financial statements whenan | disclosed in  the financial
inflow of economic benefits is | statements and are usually
probable. disclosed in the report of the

approving authority.

Onerous Makes it clear that before a| There is no such specific

Contracts separate  provision for an | provision
onerous contract is established,
an entity should recognise any
impairment  loss  that has
occurred on assets dedicated to
that contract in accordance with
Ind AS 36.

Additional gives guidance on: Does not give such

guidance (a) Rights to Interests arising | guidance.
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from Decommissioning,
Restoration and Environmental
Rehabilitation Funds

(b) Liabilities arising from
Participating in a Specific
Market — Waste Electrical and
Electronic Equipment

(c) Levies (imposed by
government).

13 summary

The amount of a provision should be the present value of the

expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation.

The discount rate should be a pre-tax rate.

Decision

Present obligation No

as a result of an
obligating event?

tree:

No

Possible obligation

|

Yes l

Yes

v

No
[ Probable outflow? ]—,[

Yes l

Yes

Remote?

[ Reliable estimate? ]

Yes l

No (rare) v

No

[ Recognise provision ]

Important Points:

Disclose
contingent liability

v

[ Do nothing ]

No provision is recognised for costs that need to be incurred by an entity to operate in the future.

Only those obligations arising from past events existing independently of an entity’s future actions
(i.e., the future conduct of its business) that should be recognised as provisions

Ind AS 37
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The entity can avoid the future expenditure by its future actions. In such a case, it has no present
obligation for that future expenditure and no provision is recognised.

not meet the definition of a liability

Provisions should not be recognised for future operating losses as future operating losses do

4

provision

Gains on the expected disposal of assets should not be taken into account in measuring a

4

Provisions should be reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect
the current best estimate.

Provision should be reversed, if it is no longer probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation

4

ILLUSTRATIONS

1. Illustration

X Ltd. is engaged in the manufacture of fertilisers. Effluents discharged in the manufacturing
process have polluted the river near the manufacturing plant. The residents of the nearby locality
launched a massive agitation against the pollution. X Ltd. agreed to their demands to reduce the
water pollution by installing the necessary Effluent Treatment Plant. However, during the year no
steps are taken fo install the plant. No legislation requiring the company to reduce its pollution is in
existence.

2. Illustration

ABC Limited is an automobile component manufacturer. The automobile manufacturer has specified
a delivery schedule, non-adherence to which will entail a penalty. As on 31st March, 20X1, the
reporting date, the manufacturer has a delivery scheduled for June 20X2. However, the
manufacturer is aware that he will not be able to meet the delivery schedule in June 20X2.
Determine whether the entity has a present obligation as at 31st March, 20X1, requiring recognition
of provision.
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3. Illustration

The government introduces a number of changes to the income tax system. As a result of these
changes, an entity in the financial services sector will need to retrain a large proportion of its
administrative and sales workforce in order to ensure continued compliance with financial services
regulation. At the end of the reporting period, no retfraining of staff has taken place. It is assumed
that a reliable estimate can be made of any outflows expected.

Should the provision be recognised?

4. Tllustration

Under new legislation, an entity is required to fit smoke filters fo its factories by September 30,
20X1. The entity has not fitted the smoke filters till March 31, 20X2. It is assumed that a reliable
estimate can be made of any outflows expected. Should the provision be recognised?

5. Illustration

A furnace has a lining that needs to be replaced every five years for technical reasons. At the end
of the reporting period, the lining has been in use for three years. It is assumed that a reliable
estimate can be made of any outflows expected. Should the provision be recognised?

6. Illustration

An airline is required by law to overhaul its aircraft once every three years. It is assumed that a
reliable estimate can be made of any outflows expected. Should the provision be recognised?

7. Illustration

X Shipping L1d. is required by law to overhaul its shipping fleet once in every 3 years. The company's
finance team was of the view that recognising the costs only when paid would prevent matching of
revenue earned all the time with certain costs of large amounts which are incurred occasional.
Thereby, it has formulated an accounting policy of providing in its books of account for the future
cost of maintenance (overhauls, annual inspection etc.) by calculating a rate per hours sailed on sea
and accumulating a provision over time. The provision is adjusted when the expenditure is actually
incurred. Is the accounting policy of X Shipping Ltd. correct?

8. Illustration

An entity operates an offshore oilfield where its licensing agreement requires it to remove the oil
rig at the end of production and restore the seabed. 90% of the eventual costs relate to the removal
of the oil rig and restoration of damage caused by building it, and 10% arise through the extraction
of oil. At the end of the reporting period, the rig has been constructed but no oil has been extracted.
It is assumed that a reliable estimate can be made of any outflows expected.

9. Illustration

After a wedding in 20X1-20X2, ten people died, possibly as a result of food poisoning from products
sold by the enftity. Legal proceedings are started seeking damages from the entity but it disputes
liability. Up to the date of approval of the financial statements for the year to 31 March 20X2 for
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issue, the entity's lawyers advise that it is probable that the entity will not be found liable. However,
when the entity prepares the financial statements for the year to 31 March 20X3, its lawyers advise
that, owing to developments in the case, it is probable that the entity will be found liable. It is
assumed that a reliable estimate can be made of any outflows expected. Should the provision be
recognised?

10. Illustration

An entity sells goods with a warranty under which customers are covered for the cost of repairs of
any manufacturing defects that become apparent within the first six months after purchase. If
minor defects were detected in all products sold, repair costs of 2 1 million would result. If major
defects were detected in all products sold, repair costs of X 4 million would result. The entity's past
experience and future expectations indicate that, for the coming year, 75% of the goods sold will
have no defects, 20% of the goods sold will have minor defects and 5% of the goods sold will have
major defects. In accordance with the standard, an entity assesses the probability of an outflow
for the warranty obligations as a whole.

11. Illustration

An entity faces a single legal claim, with a 40 per cent likelihood of success with no cost and a 60
percent likelihood of failure with a cost of % 1 million. Expected value is not valid in this case because
the outcome will never be a cost of ¥ 600,000 (60 percent x X 1 million); the outcome will either be
nil or 2 1 million. Ind AS 37 indicates that the provision may be estimated at the individual most
likely outcome. In this example, it is more likely that a cost of X 1 million will result and, therefore,
a provision for 2 1 million should be recognised.

12. Illustration

X Solar Power Ltd., a power company, has a present obligation to dismantle its plant after 35 years
of useful life. X Solar Power Ltd. cannot cancel this obligation or transfer to third party. X Solar
Power Ltd. has estimated the total cost of dismantling at ¥ 50,00,000, the present value of which is
% 30,00,000. Based on the facts and circumstances, X Solar Power Ltd. considers the risk factor of
5% i.e., the risk that the actual outflows would be more from the expected present value. How should
X Solar Power Ltd. account for the obligation?

13. Illustration

ABC Ltd. has an obligation to restore the seabed for the damage it has caused in the past. It has to
pay X 10,00,000 cash on 31st March 20X3 relating to this liability. ABC Ltd.'s management considers
that 5% is an appropriate discount rate.

Calculate the amount to be provided for at 31st March 20X1 for the costs of restoring the seabed.

14, Illustration

At the end of 20X1, an entity is demonstrably committed to the closure of some facilities, having
drawn up a detailed plan and made appropriate announcements. The expected impact of the plan is
as follows:

20X2 20X3

Ind AS 37 1FIN by Indigo Learn 11.18



Committed closure costs Z10,00,000
Gain from sale of property %2,00,000

The provision required at the end of 20X1 is ¥ 10,00,000 (ignoring discounting). The expected gain
on the sale of the property is dealt with separately under the derecognition criteria in Ind AS 16.

15. Illustration

X Beauty Solutions Ltd. is selling cosmetic products under its brand name 'B', but it is getting its
product manufactured from Y Ltd. It has an understanding (enforceable agreement) with Y Ltd. that
if the company becomes liable for any damage claims, due to any injury or harm to the customer of
the cosmetic products, 30% will be reimbursed to it by ¥ Ltd. During the financial year 20X1-20X2,
a claim of ¥ 30,00,000 becomes payable to customers by X Beauty Solutions Ltd. How should X
Beauty Solutions Ltd. account for the claim that becomes payable?

16. Illustration

An entity has a contract to purchase one million units of gas at 23p per unit, giving a contract price
of ¥ 2,30,000. The current market price for a similar contract is 16p per unit, giving a price of
1,60,000. The gas will be used to generate electricity, which will be sold at a profit. Is this an onerous
contract?

17. Illustration

An entity has a contract to purchase one million units of gas at 23p per unit, giving a contract price
of 2 2,30,000. The current market price for a similar contract is 16p per unit, giving a price of
1,60,000. What if electricity sold at a loss?

18. Illustration

An entity has a contract to purchase one million units of gas at 23p per unit, giving a contract price
of 2 2,30,000. The current market price for a similar contract is 16p per unit, giving a price of
1,60,000. Assume the entity sells the gas under contract, which it no longer needs, to a third party
for 18p per unit. The entity determines that it would have to pay ¥ 55,000 to exit the purchase
contract. What is the provision o be made?

19. Illustration

X Sugars Ltd. has entered into a sale contract of ¥ 3,00,00,000 with Y Chocolates Ltd. for the supply
of sugar during 20X1-20X2. As per the contract the delivery is o be made within 2 months from
the date of contract.

In case of failure to deliver within the schedule, X Sugars Ltd. has to pay a compensation of 2
30,00,000 to Y Chocolates Ltd.

During the transit, the vehicle carrying the sugar met accident and X Sugar Ltd. lost the entire
consignment.

It is, however covered by an insurance policy.

According to the report of the surveyor, the amount is collectible, subject to the deductible clause
[i.e., 15% of the claim] in the insurance policy.
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The cost of goods lost was % 2,50,00,000.

Before the financial year end, X Sugars Ltd. received informal information from the insurance
company that their claim had been processed and the payment had been dispatched for 85% of the
claim amount. Meanwhile Y Chocolates Ltd. has made demand of ¥ 30,00,000 since the goods were
not delivered on fime.

What provision or disclosure would X Ltd. need to make at year end?

20.Illustration

The annual reporting period of ABC Ltd. ends on March 31. As per the legislation of the State
government, a levy is imposed on ABC Limited in full when it generates revenue in financial year 2016-
17. The levy imposed by the government is calculated by reference to revenue generated by ABC
Ltd. in previous financial year. ABC Ltd. had generated revenue of X 200 crores in financial year
2015-16. For financial year 2016-17, it starts to generate revenue on April 5, 2016.

ABC Ltd. paid the levy on July 10, 2016. What is the obligatory event that gives rise to recognition
of a liability to pay a levy in the present case?

What are the principles for recognising the levy in the annual financial statements and interim
financial report?

21. Illustration

X Ltd. is operating in the telecom industry. During the Financial Year 20X1-20X2, the Income Tax
authorities sent a scrutiny assessment notice under Section 143(2) of the Income-tax Act, 1961, in
respect to return filed under Section 139 of this Act for Previous Year 20X0-20X1 (Assessment
Year 20X1-20X2) and initiated assessment proceedings on account of a deduction claimed by the
company which in the view of the authorities was inadmissible.

During the financial year 20X1-20X2 itself, the assessment proceedings were completed and the
assessing officer did not allow the deduction and raised a demand of % 1,00,00,000 against the
company. The company contested such levy and filed an appeal with the Appellate authority. At the
end of the financial year 20X1-20X2, the appeal had not been heard. The company is not confident
whether that the company would win the appeal. However, the company was advised by its legal
counsel that on a similar matter, two appellate authorities of different jurisdictions had given
conflicting judgements, one in favour of the assessee and one against the assessee. The legal counsel
further stated it had 50% chance of winning the appeal. Please advise how the company should
account for these transactions in the financial year 20X1-20X2.

22.Illustration

Entity A is a dealer in washing machines. Entity A offers to its customers a scheme whereby it states
that after a period of 3 years, the entity offers to buy back the washing machine at a fixed price
which is expected to be less than the fair value of the machine at the end of three years. The credit
emanating therefrom will be required to be used by the customer for buying a new washing machine,
i.e., new washing machine will be sold at a discounted price. Past experience indicates that customers
generally opt for this scheme. At the time of sale of the first washing machine should entity A
recognise any provision in this regard?

23.Illustration
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U Ltd. is a large conglomerate with a number of subsidiaries. It is preparing consolidated financial
statements as on 31st March 20X2 as per the notified Ind AS. The financial statements are due to
be approved for issue on 15th May 20X2. Following are a few fransactions that have taken place in
some of its subsidiaries during the year:

G Ltd. is a wholly-owned subsidiary of U Ltd. engaged in management consultancy services. On 31st
January 20X2, the board of directors of U Ltd. decided to discontinue the business of G Ltd. from
30th April 20X2. They made a public announcement of their decision on 15th February 20X2.

G Ltd. does not have many assets or liabilities and it is estimated that the outstanding trade
receivables and payables would be settled by 31st May 20X2. U Ltd. would collect any amounts still
owed by G Ltd.'s customers after 31st May 20X2. They have offered the employees of G Ltd.
termination payments or alternative employment opportunities.

Following are some of the details relating to G Ltd.:

- On the date of public announcement, it is estimated by G Ltd. that it would have to pay ¥ 540 lakhs
as termination payments to employees and the costs for relocation of employees who would remain
with the Group would be % 60 lakhs. The actual termination payments totalling to ¥ 520 lakhs were
made in full on 15th May 20X2. As per latest estimates made on 15th May 20X2, the total relocation
cost is X 63 lakhs.

- G Ltd. had taken a property on operating lease, which was expiring on 31st March 20X6. The present
value of the future lease rentals (using an appropriate discount rate) is ¥ 430 lakhs. On 15th May
20X2, 6 Ltd. made a payment to the lessor of X 410 lakhs in return for early termination of the
lease.

The loss after tax of 6 Ltd. for the year ended 31st March 20X2 was % 400 lakhs. G Ltd. made
further operating losses totalling X 60 lakhs till 30th April 20X2.

What are the provisions that the Company is required to make as per Ind AS 37?

24 .Illustration

A company manufacturing and supplying process control equipment is entitled to duty draw back if
it exceeds its furnover above a specified limit. To claim duty drawback, the company needs to file
application within 15 days of meeting the specified turnover. If application is not filed within
stipulated time, the Department has discretionary power of giving duty draw back credit. For the
year 20X1-20X2 the company has exceeded the specified limit of turnover by the end of the
reporting period. However, duty drawback can be claimed on filing of application within the stipulated
time or on discretion of the Department if filing of application is late. The application for duty
drawback is filed on April 20, 20X2, which is after the stipulated time of 15 days of meeting the
turnover condition. Duty drawback has been credited by the Department on June 28, 20X2 and
financial statements have been approved by the Board of Directors of the company on July 26, 20X2.
What would be the treatment of duty drawback credit as per the given information?

25.Illustration

Entity XYZ entered into a contract to supply 1000 television sets for X 2 million. An increase in the
cost of inputs has resulted into an increase in the cost of sales to ¥ 2.5 million. The penalty for non-
performance of the contract is expected to be % 0.25 million. Is the contract onerous and how much
provision in this regard is required?

26.Illustration

Ind AS 37 1FIN by Indigo Learn 11.21



Marico has an obligation o restore environmental damage in the area surrounding its factory. Expert
advice indicates that the restoration will be carried out in two distinct phases; the first phase
requiring expenditure of 2 2 million Yo remove the contaminated soil from the area and the second
phase, commencing three years later from the end of first phase, to replant the area with suitable
trees and vegetation. The estimated cost of replanting is X 3.5 million. Marico uses a cost of capital
(before taxation) of 10% and the expenditure, when incurred, will attract tax relief at the company's
marginal tax rate of 30%. Marico has not recognised any provision for such costs in the past and
today's date is 31 March 20X2. The first phase of the clean up will commence in a few months time
and will be completed on 31 March 20X3 when the first payment of X 2 million will be made. Phase 2
costs will be paid three years later from the end of first phase. Calculate the amount to be provided
at 31 March 20X2 for the restoration costs.

27.Illustration

Sun Limited has entered into a binding agreement with Moon Limited to buy a custom-made machine
for 3 4,00,000. At the end of 2017-18, before delivery of the machine, Sun Limited had to change
its method of production. The new method will not require the machine ordered which is to be
scrapped after delivery. The expected scrap value is nil. Given that the asset is yet to be delivered,
should any liability be recognized for the potential loss? If so, give reasons for the same, the amount
of liability as well as the accounting entry.

28.Illustration

Mini Ltd. took a factory premises on lease on 1.4.2016 for ¥ 2,00,000 per month. The lease is
operating lease. During March 2017, Mini Ltd. relocates its operation to a new factory building. The
lease on the old factory premises continues to be live up to 31.12.2019.The lease cannot be cancelled
and cannot be sub-let to another user. The auditor insists that lease rent of balance 33 months up
to 31.12.2019 should be provided in the accounts for the year ending 31.3.2017. Mini Ltd. seeks your
advice.

29.Illustration

Vishnu Company has at its financial year ended 31st March, 2017, fifteen law suits outstanding none
of which has been setftled by the time the accounts are approved by the directors.

The directors have estimated the possible outcomes as below:

Result Probability | Amount
of loss

For first ten cases

Win 0.6

Loss-low damages 0.3 90,000

Loss-High damages 0.1 1,60,000

For remaining five cases

Win 0.5

Loss-low damages 0.3 60,000

Loss-High damages 0.2 95,000

The directors believe that the outcome of each case is independent of the outcome of all the others.
Estimate the amount of contingent loss and state the accounting treatment of such contingent loss.
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Ind AS 19
Employee Benefits

1 Objective

» to prescribe the accounting and disclosure for employee benefits.
> Ind AS 19 requires an entity to recognise:
e aliability for advance services received from an employee; and
e an expense for consumption of economic benefits raised from the service provided by an
employee in exchange for employee benefits.

2 Scope

> The employee benefits to which this Standard applies include those provided:

e under formal plans or other formal agreements between an entity and individual
employees, groups of employees or their representatives;

e under /egislative requirements, or through industry arrangements; or

o by those informal practices that give rise to a constructive obligation.

> This Standard does not deal with reporting by employee benefit plans (e.g by provident fund
trusts)

» This Standard shall be applied by an employer in accounting for all employee benefits,
except those to which Ind AS 102, Share-based Payment, applies

3 Employee benefits

> Employee benefits means all forms of consideration given by an entity
e inexchange for service rendered by employees or
e for the termination of employment.

Employee benefits includes

Short Term Post Employee Other Long Termination
Benefits Benefits Term Benefits Benefits
A s N [ N
- N\ Other than short- Provided in
term. post- exchange for the
Expected to be Payable after the P termination of an
settled wholly completion of em.ployment anq employee’s
before 12 months employment termination benefits employment
\ JARN J Y,
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Employee benefits Employee benefits may be An employee may provide
Include benefits settled by payments made services to an entity on a-
provided either to either-
employees; or directly to the employees; or | full-time; or
their dependants; or their spouses; or part-time; or
their beneficiaries. their children; or permanent; or
their other dependants; or casual; or
others, such as insurance temporary basis.
companies
4 Short term employee benefits
> Short-term employee benefits include items expected to be settled wholly before twelve
months affer the end of the annual reporting period in which the employees render the
related services.
» Short term employee benefits include
e wages, salaries and social security contributions;
e paid annual leave and paid sick leave;
e profit-sharing and bonuses; and
e non-monetary benefits
> Reclassification of a short-term employee benefit is not required if the entity’'s expectations of

the timing of settlement of such benefits changes temporarily.

4.1 Short-term paid absences
An employer may compensate an employee for absence for various reasons including holidays,
sickness and short-term disability, maternity or paternity
Entitlement to paid absences fall into two categories as follows:

4.11 Non-accumulating Paid Absences

>

>
>

These are the absences that do not carry forward and they will lapse if the current period's
entitlement is not used in full by the employee.

They do not entitle employees to a cash payment for unused entitlement on leaving the entity.
No specific accounting treatment is needed.

412 Accumulating Paid Absences

>

These are the absences that are carried forward and can be used in future periods if the
employee is not able o use them in current period.
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Accumulating Paid
Absences

[
l |

[ Vesting J [ Non-vesting J

entitled to a cash-payment
for the unutilised
entitlement at the time of
leaving the entity

not entitled to a cash
payment for unused
entitlement on leaving.

> An entity shall measure the expected cost of accumulating compensated absences as the
additional amount that the entity expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that
has accumulated at the end of the reporting period

{ Short-term paid absences }

I
I l

Non-accumulating Accumulating Paid
Paid Absences Absences

Can be carried
forward

{ Do not carry forward }

No a(.jd't'(;) dn't‘ Vesting: Cash Nos(—)vs:strl]ng:
expentse |n|a ition paymnet for Nocash
O Salary unused leaves pay

unused leaves

Liability created
based on Amount
of cash expected to
be provided to
unused leaves

Liability to be created
for expected cost of
unused leaves

4.2 Profit-sharing and Bonus Plans

> An entity may pay employees a percentage of profits as remuneration (generally called as bonus)
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> Expected costs of profit-sharing and bonus plans shall be recognised when,

o the entity has a present obligation (legal or constructive) to make such payments as a result
of past events; and
o a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made by the entity.

> An obligation under profit-sharing and bonus plans results from employee service and not from a
transaction with the entity's owners.

> An entity recognises the cost of profit-sharing and bonus plans not as a distribution of profit
but as an expense.

4.3 Recognition and Measurement of Short-term Benefits
> Accounting for short term benefits has two characteristics:
e Measured on an undiscounted basis; and
¢ Do not require any actuarial valuation for their measurement.

» The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for
that service shall be recognised:
o As aliability after deducting any amount already paid.
e Asanasset (if amount paid exceeds the undiscounted amount of the benefits for the period)
o as an expense, if it doesn't form part of the cost of an asset as per any other Ind AS.

4.4 Disclosure of Short-term employee benefits

Ind AS 19 does not require specific disclosures

Other Ind AS may require disclosures.

Examples Ind AS 24: Requires disclosures about employee benefits for
key management personnel
Ind AS 1. Presentation of Financial Statements, requires
disclosure of employee benefits expense.

5 Post-employment benefits

> Post-employment benefits include:
e Retirement benefits such as pensions and lump sum payments on retirement
e Other post-employment benefit such as post-employment life insurance and post-employment
medical care.
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{Post Employment Benefits Plans}

I
I |

[ Defined Contribution } [ Defined Benefit }

Contribution to be

: Benefit to be paid to
made t(;yefeinmep()jloyer 'S employees is defined

I
I |

Empoyer bears
actuarial and
investment risks

No further risks
borne by the
employer

Any shortfall is made
good by employer

5.1 Defined contribution plans

> The entity's obligation (legal or constructive) is limited to the amount that it agrees to
contribute to the fund.
» The amount of the post-employment benefits received by the employee is determined by the
amount of contribution paid by an entity
» Under defined contribution plan
o actuarial risk (that benefits will cost more than expected)and
o Investment risk (assets invested will be insufficient to meet expected benefits)
o will fall on the employee
> Discounting should be done if contribution is payable after 12 months from reporting date

5.2 Defined Benefit plans

> The entity's obligation is to provide the agreed benefits (Benefits are defined) to current and
former employees;

» The actuarial risk and investment risk fall on the entity

> If actuarial or investment experience are worse than expected, the entity's obligation may be
increased.

Differences

Particulars Defined Contribution Plans Defined Benefit Plans

Entity's Limited to the amount that it | To provide the agreed benefits

obligation agrees to contribute to the |fo  current and  former
fund. employees.
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Determination determined by the amount of | Pre-determined / as agreed
of the amount of | contribution paid by an entity
post-employment | and employee + return on it

benefit
Risk bearer Actuarial risk and investment | These risks fall on entity
risk fall on the employee

5.3 Accounting for Defined Contribution Plans
» The reporting entity's obligation for each period is determined by the amounts to be contributed
for that period.

Particulars Debit Credit
Compensation Expenses Dr. XXXX
To Liability / Bank (Payable/Paid) XXXX

> No actuarial assumptions are required to measure the obligation or the expense and there is no
possibility of any actuarial gain or loss.

> The obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis, except where the obligation falls due
after twelve months after the end of the annual reporting period

5.3.1  Recognition and measurement
> When an employee has rendered service to an entity during a period, the entity shall

Recognise the contribution payable to a defined contribution plan in exchange for that

service

As an asset (prepaid expense) if contribution already | pg an
paid under a defined contribution plan exceeds the|expense  if
contribution due for service before the end of the|not included
reporting period

As a liability
(accrued
expense), after

deducting any in the cost of

contribution Asset to be recognised at the PV of any economic|an asset as
already paid benefits available in the form of a cash refund or a|per other Ind
reduction in future payments AS

5.3.2 Disclosure

Anentity  the amount recognised as an expense for defined
shall contribution plans.
disclose

information about contributions to defined contribution
plans for key management personnel (as per Ind AS 24).

5.4 Accounting for Defined Benefit Plans
Accounting for defined benefit plans is complex because -

e actuarial assumptions are required to measure the obligation and the expense;

e there is a possibility of actuarial gains and losses,

e the obligations are measured on a discounted basis because they may be settled many years
after the employees render the related service.

5.4.1 Recognition and measurement
> Defined benefit plans can be:
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e unfunded or
e funded.
> The payment of funded benefits when they fall due depends on
e the financial position and the investment performance of the fund; and
e anentity's ability to make good any shortfall in the fund's assets.
> The entity underwrites the actuarial and investment risks associated with the plan i.e. the entity
assumes ultimate liability.
> The expense recognised for a defined benefit plan is not always equal to the amount of the
contribution due for the period.

54.2 Actuarial Assumptions

» The benefit payable to beneficiaries depends on multiple factors (variables)

» Actuarial assumptions are an entity's best estimates of the variables that will determine the
ultimate cost of providing post-employment benefits

» Actuarial assumptions shall be unbiased and mutually compatible.

Actuarial assumptions comprise of

Demographic e Average age of employees

Assumptions Mortality- during and after employment
e Rate of employee furnover, disability & early retirement
e Proportion of plan member with dependants
e Length of service etc.

Financial e Discount rate

Assumptions e Future salary & benefit levels
e Inflation rates
e Incase of medical benefits, future medical cost,

including claim handling costs etc.

5.4.3 Discount rate

> The rate which is used to discount post-employment benefit obligations is determined by
reference to market yields on government bonds at the end of the reporting period

» Subsidiaries, associates, joint ventures and branches domiciled outside India shall discount post-
employment benefit obligations arising on account of post-employment benefit plans using the
rate determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on Aigh quality
corporate bonds

54.4 Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO)

4 ) ( )

Defined Benefit Obligation under a defined benefit plan
Obligation
g J - J
4 A ( R
PV of Defined PV of obligation resulting from employee service
Benefit Obligation in current and prior periods
N J - J
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How to calculate DBO?

Particulars Amount (Rs.)
Opening Balance- DBO XXXX
(+) Current Service cost XXXX
(+) Interest cost XXXX
(+/-) Past Service Cost XXXX
(+) Actuarial Loss XXXX
(-) Actuarial Gain XXXX
(-) Benefit Payment XXXX
(-) Gain on Settlement XXXX
(+) Loss on Settlement XXXX
Closing balance- DBO XXXX

545 Current service cost

Current service cost is an increase in present value of DBO resulting from employee service during
the current period.

Increase in the present value of defined benefit obligation:

Particulars Debit Credit
Employee Benefit Cost A/c Dr. | XXXX
To Defined Benefit Obligation XXXX

5.4.6 Interest Cost
Interest cost is the increase in DBO due to passage of time. Interest is computed by multiplying
opening balance of DBO with the discount rate.

Particulars Debit Credit
Employee Benefit Cost A/c (Interest) Dr. XXXX
To Defined Benefit Obligation XXXX

5.4.7 Past service cost
Change in the present value of the defined benefit obligation for employee service in prior
periods resulting from a plan amendment or curtailment is known as past service cost

e ) o . . )
the introduction or withdrawal of, or changes

to, a defined benefit plan

f N @ . L h
a significant reduction by the entity in the number

of employees covered by a plan
N\ J \_ J

Plan amendment

Curtailment

> An entity shall recognise past service cost as an expense at the earlier of the following dates:
e when the plan amendment or curtailment occurs; and
¢ when the entity recognises related restructuring costs
> Past service cost may be,
o Positive- when benefits are introduced or changed so that the present value of the defined
benefit obligation increases or
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o Negative- when benefits are withdrawn or changed so that the present value of the defined

benefit obligation decreases.

Increase in the present value of defined benefit obligation:

Particulars Debit Credit
Employee Benefit Cost A/c Dr. | XXXX
To Defined Benefit Obligation XXXX
Decrease in the present value of defined benefit obligation:
Particulars Debit Credit
Defined Benefit Obligation A/C Dr. | XXXX
To Employee Benefit Cost A/c XXXX

5.4.8 Gain or loss on settlement

> A settlement occurs when an entity enters into a transaction that eliminates all further legal
or constructive obligation for part or all of the benefits provided under a defined benefit plan

» The gain or loss on a settlement is the difference between:

e the present value of the defined benefit obligation on the date of settlement; and

¢ the settlement price.

» Gain or loss on the settlement of a defined benefit plan is recognised by the entity when the

settlement occurs.

Loss on Settlement

Particulars Debit Credit
Employee Benefit Cost A/C Dr. XXXX
To Defined benefit liability A/c XXXX
Gain on Settlement
Particulars Debit Credit
Defined benefit liability A/C Dr. XXXX
To Employee Benefit Cost A/C XXXX

Service 1 Current
Cost [ | Service Cost

5.4.9 Actuarial gains and losses

> Actuarial gains and losses are changes in the present value of the

defined benefit obligation resulting from:

e experience adjustments (the effects of differences between

Past
IZEZI Service
Cost

Gain/loss

on
settlement

Actuarial
will be recognised in
Other Comprehensive

gain/loss

the previous actuarial assumptions and what has actually
occurred); and
e the effects of changes in actuarial assumptions.

Income

y - S

Actuarial Loss
Particulars Debit Credit
Other Comprehensive Income A/c Dr. XXXX
To Defined Benefit Liability A/C XXXX
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Actuarial Gain

Particulars Debit Credit
Defined Benefit Liability A/C Dr. XXXX
To Other Comprehensive Income A/c XXXX

5.4.10 Benefit Payment
Payment of Employee benefits

Particulars Debit Credit
Defined Benefit Obligation A/C Dr. XXXX
To Bank A/c XXXX

5.4.11 Steps involved in accounting by an entity for defined benefit plans
Determine the deficit or surplus PUCM (Projected Unit Credit Method)
Discounting
Fair value of plan assets

Determine the amount of the net As the amount of the deficit or surplus
defined benefit liability (asset)

Determine the amounts to be recognised Current service cost
in Profit or Loss Past service cost
Net interest
Determine the remeasurements of the Actuarial Gain or Loss
net defined benefit liability (asset) Return on Plan Assets
Any Change in effect of Asset Ceiling

Projected Unit Credit Method (PUCM)

Each period of service as which rise to additional unit of benefit entitlement
and measures each unit separately to build up final obligation

S

—
5.5 Components of Defined Benefit Cost

‘ Defined Benefit Cost ’

|
| | |

[ Service cost ] Net interest cost ] [ Loss or gain on

remeasurement
s ~
a) Current service Statement of Other comprehensive
b) Past Service Cost Profit and loss income

¢) Loss or Gain on settlement
\_ J

Statement of Profit and loss
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5.6 Net interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset)

> The change during the period in the net defined benefit liability (asset) that arises from the
passage of time

> An entity shall determine net interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset) by multiplying
the net defined benefit liability (asset) by the discount rate.

> If anentity remeasures the net defined benefit plan (asset), the entity shall determine interest
for the remainder of the annual reporting period after plan amendment.

5.7 Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability (asset)
Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability (asset) comprise:
e actuarial gains and losses; e

e Actual Return - Expected Return Recognise  remeasure
o thereturnonplan assets, excluding amounts included gain/loss in other
in net interest on the net defined benefit liability comprehensive income
(asset);
e any change in the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding —

amounts included in net inferest on the net defined benefit liability (asset).

Particulars Net Liability
Opening Balance XXXX
Add:

Current Service cost XXXX
Past Service Cost XXXX
Net Finance Cost XXXX
Loss on Settlement XXXX
Less:

Gain on Settlement Benefits Paid XXXX
Expected Closing Balance XXXX
Actual Closing Balance XXXX
Gain/(Loss) on remeasurement XXXX

6 Plan Assets

Plan assets comprise

a) assets held by a long-term employee benefit fund and
b) qualifying insurance policies

6.1 Assets held by a long-term employee benefit fund

Assets (other than non-transferable financial instruments issued by the reporting entity) that:

> are held by an entity (a fund) that is legally separate from the reporting entity and exists solely
to pay or fund employee benefits; and

> are available to be used only o pay or fund employee benefits, are not available to the reporting
entity's own creditors (even in bankruptcy), and cannot be refturned to the reporting entity,
unless either:
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i.  the remaining assets of the fund are sufficient to meet all the related employee benefit
obligations of the plan or the reporting entity; or

ii. the assets are returned to the reporting entity to reimburse it for employee benefits
already paid.

6.2 Qualifying insurance policies
> Insurance policy issued by an insurer that is not a related party of the reporting entity
> if the proceeds of the policy:
a) can be used only to pay or fund employee benefits under a defined benefit plan; and
b) are not available to the reporting entity's own creditors (even in bankruptcy) and cannot be
paid to the reporting entity, unless either:
i.  the proceeds represent surplus assets that are not needed for the policy to meet all
the related employee benefit obligations; or
ii. the proceeds are returned to the reporting entity fo reimburse it for employee
benefits already paid.

Contribution by an employer to the fund

Particulars Debit Credit
Plan Asset A/C Dr. XXXX
To Bank A/c XXXX

Payments to employees by the fund

Particulars Debit Credit
Employee Benefit Obligation A/C Dr. XXXX
To Plan Asset A/c XXXX

6.3 Refurn on plan assets
Interest, dividends and other income derived from the plan assets, together with realised and
unrealised gains or losses on the plan assets, less:
e any costs of managing plan assets; and
e any tax payable by the plan itself, other than tax included in the actuarial assumptions used
to measure the present value of the defined benefit obligation.

Return on plan assets

Particulars Debit Credit
Plan Asset A/C Dr. XXXX
To Employee Benefit Cost A/c XXXX

Plan 1
() ()=o) S
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6.4 Deficit or surplus in benefit plan
PV of DBO > Fair value of Plan Assets Deficit  — Net liability
PV of DBO > Fair value of Plan Assets Surplus —  Net Asset

Asset > Obligation Overfunded plan
Asset < Obligation Underfunded plan

Asset ceiling: PV of any
economic benefits available in
the form of a refunds from the
plan or a reduction in future
contributions to plan

An entity shall recognise the net defined benefit liability
(asset) in the balance sheet at Lower of

e the surplus in the defined benefit plan; and

e the asseft ceiling, determined using the discount rate
6.5 Net defined benefit liability (asset)
The deficit or surplus, adjusted for any effect of limiting a net
defined benefit asset to the asset ceiling

7 Types of Defined Benefit Plan / Defined Contribution Plan

7.1 State Plan
» Established by legislation
> Operated by government (CG/S6/Autonomous)
Examples
e Statutory Provident Fund
¢ National Pension Scheme

Generally, State plans are
defined contribution plans

7.2 Multi-Employer Plan
Plans other than state plans

> Pool of assets are contributed by various entities that are not under common control/

> Use those assets to provide benefits to employees of more than one entity, on the basis that
contributions and benefits are determined without regard to the identity of the entity that
employs the employees

7.3 Accounting for Multi-Employer Plan

\ Multi-Employer Plan

I
| ]

Defined Benefit plan ]

[Deﬁned Contribution plan

Actuarial risk and

investmen risk fall on the Actuarial risk and

investment risk fall on

nti
entity the employee
Recognise proportionate share in, . L
& prop Recognise contribution
a) Plan assets paid as expense

b) Denifed benefit obligation
c) Cost associated with the plan
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> Sufficient information is not available to use defined benefit accounting, account for the plan
as if it were a defined contribution plan

7.4 Group Administration Plan

> Aggregation of single employer plans combined to allow participating employers to pool their
assets for investment purposes

> Reduce investment management and administration costs.

» Group administration plans are classified as a defined contribution plan or a defined benefit plan
in accordance with the terms of the plan

7.5 Defined Benefit Plans that Share Risks between Entities under Common Control
7.5.1 For Defined Benefit plan

Particulars Debit Credit
Employee benefit cost A/C Dr. XXXX
To Contribution Payable A/c XXXX

7.5.2 For Defined Contribution plan

There is a contractual Recognise cost in the statement of Profit and loss in
agreement individual financial statements
If no such agreement » Recognise cost in financial statements of sponsoring
employer for the plan (group entity)
> Other group entities recognise cost equal to
contribution payable

7.6 Insured Benefits

‘ Insured Benefits ’
l

Defined Contribution plan ] [ Defined Benefit plan

Vs N (.. . . =3\
Employer pays  fixed Entity has obligation to pay
premiums and has no -further amount (Shartfall)
obligation  to  pay -employee benefits directly
benefits to the when they fall due
employees

N\ J \& P,

Account for a qualifying
insurance policy as a
plan asset
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8 Presentation of Post-Employment Benefits.

8.1 Offset
An asseft relating to one plan will be offset against a liability relating to another plan when, and only
when, the entity:
> has a /egally enforceable right to use a surplus in one plan to settle obligations under the
other plan; and
» there is an intention either to settle the obligations on a net basis, or to realise the surplus
in one plan and settle its obligation under the other plan simultaneously.

8.2 Current/Non-current
Ind AS 19 does not specify whether an entity should distinguish current and non-current portions
of assets and liabilities arising from post-employment benefits.

9 Disclosures

9.1 Disclosures of Defined Benefit plan

An entity shall disclose information that:

a) explains the characteristics of its defined benefit plans and risks associated with them;

b) identifies and explains the amounts in its financial statements arising from its defined benefit
plans; and

¢) describes how its defined benefit plans may affect the amount, timing and uncertainty of the
entity’'s future cash flows.

9.2 Disclosures of Multi-employer plans
If an entity participates in a multi-employer defined benefit plan, it shall disclose:
a) a description of the funding arrangements, including the method used to determine the entity's
rate of contributions and any minimum funding requirements;
b) a description of the extent fo which the entity can be liable to the plan for other entities’
obligations under the terms and conditions of the multi-employer plan;
c) adescription of any agreed allocation of a deficit or surplus on:
i. the entity's withdrawal from the plan.
ii.  if wind-up of the plan; or
d) If the entity accounts for that plan as if it were a defined contribution plan in accordance with
paragraph 34, it shall disclose the following,
i.  the fact that the plan is a defined benefit plan.
ii.  the reason why sufficient information is not available to enable the entity to account for
the plan as a defined benefit plan.
iii.  the expected contributions o the plan for the next annual reporting period
iv.  information about any deficit or surplus in the plan that may affect the amount of
future contributions,
v. anindication of the level of participation of the entity in the plan compared with other
participating entities.
9.3 Disclosures of Defined Benefit Plans that share risks between entities under common control
If an entity participates in a defined benefit plan that shares risks between entities under
common control, it shall disclose:
a) the contractual agreement or stated policy for charging the net defined benefit cost or the
fact that there is no such policy.
b) the policy for determining the contribution to be paid by the entity.
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c) Disclosure of defined benefit cost (reconciliation etc) or defined contribution payable as

applicable
d) Cross reference to another entity’s financials statements can be done if the information about

plan is available and group’s entity financial statements are available

10 Other Long Term Employee Benefits

Settlement >12 months from the end of financial reporting period
Benefits Other than

Short-term employee benefits

Post-Employee benefits

Termination benefits

Long-term paid absences

Jubilee/Long term service benefits

Long-term disability benefits

profit-sharing and bonus plan

deferred remuneration.

Example

YV V VY VY|V VYV

10.1 Accounting for other long-term employee benefits
For other long-term employee benefits, an entity shall recognise the net total of the following
amounts in profit or loss,

a) service cost;

b) net interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset); and

c) remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability (asset).

11 Termination benefits

Termination benefits result from either:
> an entity's decision to terminate the employment or
> an employee's decision to accept an of fer of benefits in exchange for the termination of

employment.

_— b

Termination benefits does not Include,

+ Employee benefits resulting from termination of employment at the
request of the employee without an entity’s offer

+ as aresult of mandatory retirement requirements

V

11.1 Recognition of termination benefits

> Recognise a liability and expense for termination benefits
Expected to be settled Apply the requirements for short-term employee
before 12 months benefits
Expected to be settled Apply the requirements for /ong-term employee benefits
before 12 months

» An entity is required o recognise a liability and expense for termination benefits at the

earlier of the following dates:
a) when the entity can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits; and
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b) when the entity recognises costs for a restructuring which is within the scope of Ind AS 37
and involves the payment of termination benefits.

12 Appendix B

Issues addressed are
a) Refund from a plan
b) Reduction in future contributions
¢) Minimum funding requirement
Right to refund > Available only if the entity has unconditional right to
a refund
» The amount of refund is determined as the full
amount or a proportion of the surplus — no
adjustment for time value of money
» If therefund if fixed amount — consider time value
of money
Economic benefit > No minimum requirement
available as a contribution > Economic benefits — Reduction in future cost
reduction
Minimum funding The minimum amount or the level of contribution that
requirement must be given to a plan over the given period

Prepayment — reduces future minimum funding
requirement contributions

13 significant differences between Ind AS 19 and AS 15

Basis of differences IND AS 19 AS 15
Constructive InInd AS 19, employee benefits | AS 15 does not deal with
Obligations arising  from  constructive | the same

obligations are also covered
Definition of Ind AS 19 the term ‘employee’ | As per AS 15, the term
Employee includes directors ‘employee’ includes
whole-time directors
Other Definitions Definitions  of  short-term | Different definitions are

employee benefits, other long- | given in AS 15
term employee benefits, and
past service cost is different in

Ind AS 19
Contractual Deals with contractual | AS 15 does not deal with
Agreement between a | agreement it

Multi-employer Plan
and its Participants
Participation in a Covered Not covered
Defined Benefit Plan
Sharing Risks
Between Various
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Entities under
Common Control

Recognition of
Past Service Cost

Past  service should be
recognised immediately

Recognise past service cost
as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the average
period until the benefits
become vested.

To the extent that the
benefits are already vested
immediately following the
infroduction of, or changes
to, a defined benefit plan, an
enterprise should recognise
past service cost
immediately.

Frequency of
Actuarial valuation

Ind AS 19 does not specify
sufficient regularity

Detailed actuarial valuation
to determine the PV of DBO
Is carried out at least once
every 3 years and fair value
of plan  assets are
determined at each balance
sheet date.

Recognition of
Actuarial Gains
and Losses

Shall be recognised in other
comprehensive income

Recognise immediately in the
statement of profit and loss

Financial
Assumptions

shall be based on market
expectations, at the end of the
reporting period, for the period
over which the

obligations are to be settled

AS 15 does not clarify the
same

Discounting of Post-
employment
Benefit Obligations

Special guidance on the discount
rate for subsidiaries associates
joint ventures and branches
domiciled outside India

Rate used to for discounting
should always be determined
by reference to market
yields at the balance sheet
date on government bond.

Contribution from
employee or third
parties to defined
benefit plans

Specific guidance under Ind AS
19

No specific guidance

Guidance on
Interaction of
Ceiling of Asset
Recognition and
Minimum Funding
Requirement

Specific guidance under Ind AS
19

No specific guidance

Ind AS 19
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Indian Accounting Standard 19 - Employee Benefits

ILLUSTRATIONS

1. Tllustration

Mr. Rajan is working for Infotech Ltd. Consider the following particulars:

Annual salary of Mr. Rajan = ¥ 30,00,000
Total working days in 20X0-X1 = 300 days

Leaves allowed in 20X0-X1 as per policy = 10 days
Leaves utilized by Mr. Rajan in 20X0-X1 = 8 days

The unutilized leaves are settled by way of payment and accordingly, carry forward of such leaves
to the subsequent period is not allowed.

Compute the total employee benefit expense for Infotech Ltd. in respect of 20X0-X1.

2. Illustration

Mr. Niranjan is working for Infotech Ltd. Consider the following particulars:

20X0-X1 20X1-X2
Annual salary 30,00,000 30,00,000
Working days 300 days 300 days
Leave allowed 10 days 10 days
Leave taken 7 days 13 days
Leave unutilized carried forward to next year 3 days NIL

Scenario I

Based on past experience, Infotech Ltd. assumes that Mr. Niranjan will avail the unutilized leaves
of 3 days of 20X0-20X1 in 20X1-20X2.

Infotech Ltd. contends that it will record Rs. 30,00,000 as employee benefits expense in each of
the years 20X0-20X1 and 20X1-20X2, stating that the leaves will, in any case, be utilized by 20X1-
20X2.

Comment on the accounting treatment proposed to be followed by Infotech Ltd. Also pass journal
entries for both the years.

Scenario IT

Based on past experience, Infotech Ltd. assumes that Mr. Niranjan will avail the unutilized leaves
of 2 days of 20X0-20X1 subsequently. However, in 20X1-20X2, Mr. Niranjan availed in actual all 3
days of brought forward leave.

Compute the expense to be recognised in 20X0-20X1 and 20X1-20X2. Also pass journal entries for
both the years.

3. Illustration

Sundaram Ltd. has a headcount of 100 employees in 20X0-20X1. As per the employee policy, the
employees are entitled to:

e 30 casual leaves out of which 10 casual leaves may be carried forward o the next year; and
e 10 sick leaves out of which 2 sick leaves may be carried forward as paid leave.
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At 31st March, 20X1, the average unused entitlement is 5 days per employee for casual leaves and 1
day per employee for sick leave. On an average, it is found that the number of such employees who
would be claiming casual leaves would be 30 and 10 employees who would claim sick leaves.

Compute the liability to be recognised in respect of sick leaves and casual leaves by the entity at
the end of the financial year 20X0-20X1.

4. Tllustration

An entity has 100 employees, who are each entitled to ten working days of paid sick leave for each
year. Unused sick leave may be carried forward for one financial year. Sick leave is taken first out
of the current year's entitlement and then out of any balance brought forward from the previous
year (a LIFO basis).
At 31 March 20X1, the average unused entitlement is two days per employee. Based on past
experience, the management expects that only 20% of the employees will use 1 day from their
carried forward leave. Salary per day is Rs. 2,500.
Compute the expenses in respect of the short-term compensated absences, if they are assumed to
be

(a) vested short-term compensated absences, and

(b) non-vested short-term compensated absences.

B. Illustration

Acer L1d. has 350 employees (same as a year ago). The average staff attrition rates observed during
past 10 years represents 6% per annum. Acer Ltd. provides the following benefits to all its
employees:

Paid vacation - 10 days per year regardless of date of hiring. Compensation for paid vacation is 100%
of employee's salary and unused vacation can be carried forward for 1 year.

As of 31st March, 20X1, unused vacation carried forward was 3 days per employee, average salary
was Rs. 15,000 per day and accrued expense for unused vacation in 20X0-20X1 was Rs. 65,00,000.
During 20X1-20X2, employees took 9 days of vacation in average. Salary increase in 20X1-20X2 was
10%.

How would Acer Ltd. recognize liabilities and expenses for these benefits as of 31st March, 20X2?.
Pass the journal entry to show the accounting treatment.

6. Tllustration

An entity has 100 employees, who are each entitled to five working days of paid sick leaves for each
year. Unused sick leave may be carried forward for one calendar year. Sick leave is taken first out
of the current year's entitlement and then out of any balance brought forward from the previous
year (LIFO basis).

At 31st March, 20X1, the average unused entitlement is two days per employee. The entity expects,
on the basis of experience that is expected to continue, that 92 employees will take no more than
five days of paid sick leaves in 20X1-20X2 and that the remaining eight employees will take an
average of six and a half days each.

Would the entity require to recognize any liability in respect of leaves?

7. Illustration

Laxmi Mills is a profit-making entity and has reported profit of Rs.200 crore in the financial year
20X1-20X2.

According to its profit-sharing plan, it distributes and pays 5% as its portion of profit to its
employees if they complete 1 year with the organisation.
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Under this plan, an entity is under an obligation fo pay if the employees complete a specified period
with the organisation. Laxmi Mills has estimated that due to staff furnover in the organisation, the
estimated pay-out would be around 4.5%.

Compute the liability and expense of the company under this plan.

8. Tllustration

Acer Ltd. has 350 employees (same as a year ago). The average staff attrition rates as observed
during past 10 years represents 6% per annum. Acer provides the following benefits to all its
employees:

Annual bonus - during past 10 years.

Acer paid bonus to all employees who were in service during the entire financial year. Bonus was paid
in June following the financial year-end. Amount of bonus for 20X1-20X2 paid in June 20X2
represented Rs. 1,25,000 per employee. Acer Ltd. used fo increase amount of bonus based on of ficial
inflation rate which is 8.5% for 20X2-20X3, although there was no legal obligation to increase the
bonus by such inflation rate.

How would Acer Ltd. recognize liabilities and expenses for these employee benefits as on 31st
March, 20X3? Pass the journal entry fo show the accounting treatment.

9. Tllustration

A company pays each employee a lump-sum one-time benefit upon retirement. This benefit is
computed based on the employee's years in service in the company and the final salary prior to
retirement. To cover its liabilities from this remuneration, the company contributes 3% of annual
gross salaries to the fund. Would this obligation represent a defined contribution plan or a defined
benefit plan and why?

10.Illustration

In accordance with applicable legislation, company contributes 12% and employees 12% of annual
gross salaries to the provident and pension fund. Upon retirement, the employees will get the
accumulated balance that is calculated based on employee's years of service and his average salary
for past 15 years before retirement. The pension will be paid out of the state fund assets and the
company has no further obligation except to make contributions. Would this obligation represent a
defined contribution plan or a defined benefit plan?

11. Tllustration

Acer Ltd. provides lump-sum remuneration upon retirement to its employees. Remuneration is paid
out of the fund to which Acer Ltd. contributes 12% of annual gross salaries. Contributions are made
twice a year i.e., in November of the related financial year and in June after the financial year- end.
Total annual gross salaries for 20X0-X1 amounted to Rs. 50 crores. Contribution made by Acer Ltd.
in November 20XO0 was Rs. 2.8 crores. Remuneration depends on the humber of employee's service
and amount of cash in the fund at retirement date (Acer Ltd. has no further obligations except for
contributions).

How should this transaction appear in the financial statements of Acer Ltd. as of 31 March 20X1?

12.Illustration

In 2017-18, Diana Ltd. has 3,000 employees in the company.

As per the company policy, the employees are given 30 days of Privilege Leave (PL), 12 days of Sick
Leave (SL) and 12 days of Casual Leave. Out of the total PL and SL, 10 PL and 5 SL can be carried
forward to next year. On the basis of past trends, it has been noted that 1,000 employees will take
5 days of PL and 2 days of SL and 2,000 employees will avail 10 as PL and 5 as SL.
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Also, the company has been incurring profits since incorporation. It has been decided in 2017-18 to
distribute profits to its employees @ 8% during the year. However, due to the employee turnover in
the organisation, the expected pay-out of the Diana Ltd. is to be around 7%. The profits earned
during 2017-18 is Rs. 12,000 lakh.

Diana Ltd. also has a post-employment benefit plan available which is in the nature of defined
contribution plan where contribution to this fund amounts to Rs. 500 lakh which will fall due within
12 months from the end of accounting period. The company has paid Rs. 120 lakh to its employees in
2017-18. What is the treatment for the short-term compensating absences, profit-sharing plan and
the defined contribution plan by Diana Ltd. as per the provisions of relevant Ind AS? [May 19 (N), 5
marks]

13.Illustration

A company has an employee benefit plan which involves a lump sum payment to employee on
termination of service and that is equal to 1 per cent of final salary for each year of service. Consider
the salary in year 1 is Rs. 10,000 and is assumed to increase at 7 per cent (compound) each year.
Taking a discount rate at 10 per cent per year, you are required to show

(a) benefits attributed (year on year) and

(b) the obligation in respect of this benefit (year on year)

for an employee who is expected to leave at the end of year 5.

14 Tllustration

AKJ Ltd is a listed company engaged in the business of manufacturing of electronic equipment. The
company has various branch offices spread out across India and has 1,000 employees.
As per the statutory requirements, gratuity shall be payable to an employee on the termination of
his employment after he has rendered continuous service for not less than five years -

(a) on his superannuation, or

(b) on his retirement or resignation, or

(c) on his death or disablement due to accident or disease.
The completion of continuous service of five years shall not be necessary where the termination of
the employment of any employee is due to death or disablement.
The amount payable is determined by a formula linked to number of years of service and last drawn
salary. The amount payable to an employee shall not exceed Rs.10,00,000.
How should the amount of employee benefit, if any, be attributed to each year of service?

15. Illustration

OPQ Ltd is a listed company having its corporate office at Nagpur. The company has a branch office
at Chennai. The company has been operating in Indian market for the last 10 years.

The company operates a pension plan that provides a pension of 2.5% of the final salary for each
year of service. The benefits become vested after seven years of service.

On 1st April, 20X8, the company increased the pension to 3% of the final salary for each year of
service starting from 1st April, 20X1. On the date of the improvement, the present value of the
additional benefits for service from 1st April, 20X1 to 1 April 20X8 was as follows:

e Employees with more than seven years' service on 1 January 20X8 - Rs. 2,75,000

e Employees with less than 7 years of service - Rs. 2,21,000 (average 4 years to go)

What would be the accounting treatment in this case?

16.Illustration
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RKA Private Ltd is an old company established in 19XX. The company started with a very small capital
base and today it is one of the leading companies in India in its industry. The company has an annual
turnover of Rs.11,000 crores and planning fo get listed in the next year.

The company has a large employee base. The company provided a defined benefit plan to its
employees. Following is the information relating to the balances of the fund's assets and liabilities
as on 1" April X1 and 31" March X2 (Rs. Lacs)

Particulars 15" April 31" March
Present Value of benefit obligation 1,400 1,580
Fair Value of plans assets 1,140 1,275

For the financial year ended 31st March, 20X2, service cost was Rs. 55 lacs. The company made a
contribution of an amount of Rs. 111 lacs to the plan. No benefits were paid during the year.
Consider a discount rate of 8%.

You are required to -

(a) Compute the balance(s) of the company fo be included its balance sheet as on 31st March,
20X2 and amounts fo be recognized in the statement of profit and loss and other
comprehensive income for the year ended 31st March, 20X2.

(b)  Give the journal entries in respect of amount(s) to be recognized.

17.Illustration

SA Pvt Ltd is engaged in the business of retail having 100 retail outlets across Northern and
Southern India. The company's head office is located at Chennai.

SA Pvt Ltd is a subsidiary of SAG Ltd. SAG Ltd is listed on the National Stock Exchange in India.
Following information is available for SA Pvt Ltd:

Plan Assets

On 1st April, 20X1, the fair value of plan assets was % 10,000.
Contribution to the plan assets done on 31st March, 20X2 - % 3,000
Amount paid on 31st March, 20X2 - % 300

On 31st March, 20X2, the fair value of plan assets was % 14,700
Actual return on plan assets - ¥ 2,000

Defined Benefit Obligation

On 1st April, 20X1, present value of the defined benefit obligation was % 12,000.
On 31st March, 20X2, present value of the defined benefit obligation was % 15,500.
Actuarial losses on the obligation for the year ended 31st March, 20X2 were Z 100.
Current Service Cost - 2,500

Benefit paid - X 300

Discount rate used fo calculate defined benefit liability - 10%.

As per Ind AS 19, please suggest if there is any amount based on the above-mentioned information
that would be taken to other comprehensive income (with workings). Also compute net interest on
the net defined benefit liability (asset).

18.Illustration

A Ltd. prepares its financial statements to 31st March each year. It operates a defined benefit

retirement benefits plan on behalf of current and former employees. A Ltd. receives advice from
actuaries regarding contribution levels and overall liabilities of the plan to pay benefits. On 1st April,
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20X1, the actuaries advised that the present value of the defined benefit obligation was 2
6,00,00,000. On the same date, the fair value of the assets of the defined benefit plan was
5,20,00,000. On 1st April, 20X1, the annual market yield on government bonds was 5%. During the
year ended 31st March, 20X2, A Ltd. made contributions of ¥ 70,00,000 into the plan and the plan
paid out benefits of ¥ 42,00,000 to retired members. Both these payments were made on 31st
March, 20X2.

The actuaries advised that the current service cost for the year ended 31st March, 20X2 was
62,00,000. On 28th February, 20X2, the rules of the plan were amended with retrospective effect.
These amendments meant that the present value of the defined benefit obligation was increased by
% 15,00,000 from that date.

During the year ended 31st March, 20X2, A Ltd. was in negotiation with employee representatives
regarding planned redundancies. The negotiations were completed shortly before the year end and
redundancy packages were agreed. The impact of these redundancies was to reduce the present
value of the defined benefit obligation by ¥ 80,00,000. Before 31st March, 20X2, A Ltd. made
payments of 2 75,00,000 to the employees affected by the redundancies in compensation for the
curtailment of their benefits. These payments were made out of the assets of the retirement
benefits plan.

On 31st March, 20X2, the actuaries advised that the present value of the defined benefit obligation
was X 6,80,00,000. On the same date, the fair value of the assets of the defined benefit plan were
% 5,60,00,000.

Examine and present how the above event would be reported in the financial statements of A Ltd.
for the year ended 31st March, 20X2 as per Ind AS. Finance cost is to be computed on the opening
balances.

19.Illustration

On 1 April 20X1, the fair value of the assets of XYZ Ltd’s defined benefit plan were valued at X
20,40,000 and the present value of the defined obligation was % 21,25,000. On 31st March,20X2 the
plan received contributions from XYZ Ltd amounting to ¥ 4,25,000 and paid out benefits of
2,55,000. The current service cost for the financial year ending 31 March 20X2 is % 5,10,000. An
interest rate of 5% is to be applied to the plan assets and obligations. The fair value of the plan’s
assets at 31 March 20X2 was X 23,80,000, and the present value of the defined benefit obligation
was % 27,20,000.

Provide a reconciliation from the opening balance to the closing balance for Plan assets and Defined
benefit obligation. Also show how much amount should be recognised in the statement of profit and
loss, other comprehensive income and balance sheet?
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tual Framework for Financial Reporting under Ind AS

1 Objective of General Purpose Financial Reporting

e The objective of general purpose financial reporting is to provide financial information about
the reporting entity that is useful to
o existing and potential investors,
o lenders and
o other creditors in making decisions relating to providing resources to the entity.
e Those decisions involve decisions about:
o buying, selling or holding equity and debt instruments;
o providing or settling loans and other forms of credit; or
o exercising rights to vote on, or otherwise influence, management's actions that affect
the use of the entity's economic resources.

Users of
FS

| I I I I ] ]

[Investors} [Lenders} [Govt.} {Public} [Employees} [Customers} [Suppliers}

2 Limitation of General Purpose Financial Reporting

e Do Not provide all information that the users require. An improvement to address this issue
is integrated reporting.

e Do not provide specific information required by users like regulators, members of public etc.

e Do not show value created

e Based on historical information

3 Information Provided by General Purpose Financial Reporting

Financial Economic Resources - Assets
Position

Claims or Obligations - Liabilities

Effects of Financial Performance - Income

transactions

and other Cash flows

events Changes not resulting from financial performance

3.1 Economic Resources and Claims

Information about the nature and amounts of a reporting entity's economic resources and claims can
help users to identify the reporting entity's financial strengths and weaknesses. That information
can help users to:
= assess the reporting entity's:
o liquidity and solvency,
o its needs for additional financing and
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o how successful it is likely to be in obtaining that financing
» assess management's stewardship of the entity's economic resource
» predict how future cash flows will be distributed among those with a claim against the
reporting entity
3.2 Changes in Economic Resources and Claims
Changes in a reporting entity's economic resources and claims result from:
* that entity’s financial performance and
= other events or fransactions such as issuing debt or equity instruments.

3.3 Changes in economic resources and claims not resulting from financial performance

A reporting entity's economic resources and claims may also change for reasons other than financial
performance, such as issuing debt or equity instruments. Information about this type of change is
necessary to give users a complete understanding of why the reporting entity's economic resources
and claims changed and the implications of those changes for its future financial performance.

4 Financial Statements

The objective of financial statements is to provide financial information about the reporting entity's:
» assefts, liabilities and equity; and
= income and expenses

The information is provided in

* in the balance sheet, by recognising assets, liabilities and equity:;
* in the statement of profit and loss, by recognising income and expenses; and
= in other statements and notes, by presenting and disclosing information abouft:
o recognised assefts, liabilities, equity, income and expenses, including information about
their nature and about the risks arising from those recognised assets and liabilities;
o assets and liabilities that have not been recognised, including information about their
nature and about the risks arising from them;
» cash flows;
= contributions from holders of equity claims and distributions to them; and
* the methods, assumptions and judgements used in estimating the amounts presented or
disclosed, and changes in those methods, assumptions and judgements

5 Elements of Financial Statements

Information Element of  Definition or description
provided by financial
general purpose  statements
financial reports
Economic Asset A present economic resource controlled by the
Resources entity as a result of past events.
An economic resource is a right that has the
potential to produce economic benefits.
Liability A present obligation of the entity to transfer an
economic resource as a result of past events.
Claim
Equity The residual interest in the assets of the entity
after deducting all its liabilities.
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Income Increases in assets, or decreases in liabilities,

Changes in that result in increases in equity, other than
economic those relating to contributions from holders of
resources and equity claims.
claims,reflecting
financial
performance

Expenses Decreases in assets, or increases in liabilities,

that result in decreases in equity, other than
those relating to distributions to holders of

equity claims
Other Changes Contributions from holders of equity claims, and
in resources and distributions to them.
claims Exchanges of assets or liabilities that do not

result in increases or decreases in equity.

Meaning of Control
> It is the present ability to direct the use of the economic resource
> obtain the economic benefits that may flow from it
> if one party controls an economic resource, no other party controls that resource.

Obligation
» To pay cash

> To deliver goods or services
» To exchange economic resources with another party on unfavourable terms
» To fransfer economic resource if an event occurs
» To issue financial instrument which will oblige the entity to fransfer economic resource
Asset = Liability + Equity
Income Expense
Assets Increase Decrease
Liabilities - Decrease Increase
Equity Increase Decrease

Exclusion : Contribution from holders of | Distribution to holders of
equity equity

6 Recognition Process

6.1 Meaning of Recognition

Recognition is the process of capturing for inclusion in the balance sheet or the statement of profit
and loss an item that meets the definition of one of the elements of financial statements—an asset,
a liability, equity, income or expenses.

Conceptual Framework 1FIN by IndigoLearn 13.3



6.2 Recognition Criteria

= Only items that meet the definition of an asset, a liability or equity are recognised in the
balance sheet.
= Only items that meet the definition of income or expenses are recognised in the statement
of profit and loss.
* An asset or liability is recognised only if recognition provides users of financial statements
with information that is useful, i.e. with:
o relevant information; and
o a faithful representation
o of the asset or liability and of any resulting income, expenses or changes in equity.

6.3 Derecognition

Derecognition is the removal of all or part of a recognised asset or liability from an entity's balance
sheet. Derecognition normally occurs when that item no longer meets the definition of an asset or
of a liability:

7 Qualitative Characteristics of Financial Statements

If financial information is to be useful, it must be relevant and faithfully represent what it
purports to represent. The usefulness of financial information is enhanced if it is comparable,
verifiable, timely and understandable.

7.1 Relevance
7~ N\

Relevance

~
SN S

Predictive Value Confirmatory
Value

NN

* Financial information is relevant if it is capable of making a difference in decisions made by
users.

* Financial information has predictive value if it can be used as an input to processes employed
by users fo predict future outcomes.

= Financial information with predictive value is employed by users in making their own
predictions.

* Financial information has confirmatory value if it provides feedback about (confirms or
changes) previous evaluations.

* The characteristic of 'relevance’ also includes the concept of materiality. Information is
material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial reports make on the basis of
those reports, which provide financial information about a specific reporting entity

7.2 Faithful Representation
The financial information must faithfully present the substance of the events and
transactions.

Fundamental Characterstics
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= Complete - A complete depiction includes all information necessary for a user fo
understand the phenomenon being depicted, including all necessary descriptions and
explanations

* Neutral - A neutral depiction is without bias in the selection or presentation of
financial information.

* Free from Error - Free from error means there are no errors or omissions in the
description of the phenomenon, and the process used to produce the reported
information has been selected and applied with no errors in the process. In this
context, free from error does not mean perfectly accurate in all respects.

Enhancing Qualitative Characterstics
= Comparability: Information about a reporting entity is more useful if it can be
compared with similar information about other entities and with similar information
about the same entity for another period or another date.

= Verifiability: Verifiability means that different knowledgeable and independent
observers could reach consensus, although not necessarily complete agreement, that a
particular depiction is a faithful representation. Verification can be direct or
indirect.

= Timeliness: Timeliness means having information available to decision-makers in time
to be capable of influencing their decisions. Generally, the older the information is
the less useful it is.

» Understandability: Classifying, characterising and presenting information clearly and
concisely makes it understandable. Excluding information about complex events from
financial reports might make the information in those financial reports easier to
understand.

8 The Cost Constraint on Useful Financial Information

Cost is a pervasive constraint on the information that can be provided by financial reporting.
Reporting financial information imposes costs, and it is important that those costs are justified by
the benefits of reporting that information.

Both the providers and users of financial information incur costs in reporting and analysing financial
information.

In applying the cost constraint, the ICAT assesses whether the benefits of reporting particular
information are likely to justify the costs incurred to provide and use that information.

Because of the inherent subjectivity, different individuals' assessments of the costs and benefits
of reporting particular items of financial information will vary. ICAT seeks to consider costs and
benefits in relation to financial reporting generally, and not just in relation to individual reporting
entities.
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9 Measurement of Elements

Measurement is the process of determining money value at which an element can be recognised in
the balance sheet or statement of profit and loss. The framework recognises four alternative
measurement bases.
e Historical Cost
o Asset - Consideration Paid + Transaction Price
o Liability - Consideration Received - Transaction Cost
e Current Value
o Entry Value - Current Cost
o Exit Value
- Fair value
- Value in use for assets /Fulfilment value for liabilities

l Factors for selection of measurement basis |

l Relevance | l Faithful representation |

Asset or liability Contribution to future . ,
" Consistency Certainty
characteristics cash flows

10 Capital Maintenance

Capital refers to net assets of a business.
P=(CA-CL)-(OA-0L)-C+D
Where: Profit = P
e Opening Assets = OA and Opening Liabilities = OL
e Closing Assets = CA and Closing Liabilities = CL
e Introduction of capital = C and Drawings / Dividends = D
e Retained Profit=P-D=(CA-CL)-(OA-0L)-C

A business should ensure that Retained Profit (RP) is not negative, i.e. closing equity should not be
less than capital to be maintained, which is sum of opening equity and capital introduced.
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IND AS 1

PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 Objective

e Prescribes the basis for presentation of general purpose financial statements to ensure
comparability with the previous years of the entity and with other enfities.

e Overall requirements for the presentation of financial statements

e Structure and minimum requirements for the content of financial statements

2 Scope

This Ind AS is applicable to

e All types of entities preparing and preparing and presenting general purpose financial
statements. This includes both consolidated and separate financial statements. (but does not
apply to structure and content of condensed interim financial statements prepared in
accordance with Ind AS 34 except few points. )

e All types of entities including profit and non profit oriented and entities whose share capital
is not considered as equity.

e This Standard uses terminology that is suitable for profit-oriented entities, including public
sector business entities.

e Ifanynonprofit oriented entity is preparing Ind AS financial statements, it needs to modify
the terminology as needed.

3 Definitions

3.1 General purpose financial statements
General purpose financial statements are those intended to meet the needs of users who are not in
a position to require an entity to prepare reports tailored to their particular information needs.
3.2 Owners
Owners are holders of instruments classified as equity. It means a holder of redeemable preference
share capital cannot be called as owner, as redeemable preference share capital is a liability but not
equity.
3.3 Other Comprehensive Income
The other comprehensive income section should present line items for the amounts of other
comprehensive income classified by nature and grouped info those that, in accordance with other
Ind AS:

e Will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss; and

e Will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when specific conditions are meft.

4 Complete set of financial statements

A complete set of financial statements comprises:
¢ abalance sheet as at the end of the period
o astatement of profit and loss for the period
o statement of changes in equity for the period
e astatement of cash flows for the period
e notes, comprising Material Accounting Policies and other explanatory information
e comparative information in respect of the preceding period
e a balance sheet as at the beginning of the preceding period when
o anentity applies an accounting policy retrospectively or
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o makes a refrospective restatements of items in its financial statements, or
o when it reclassifies items in its financial statements.

An entity shall present a single statement of profit and loss, with profit or loss and other
comprehensive income presented in two sections. The sections shall be presented together, with the
profit or loss section presented first followed directly by the other comprehensive income section.

Many entities present reports and statements (generally in annual reports) such as financial reviews
by management, environmental reports, and value added statements that are outside the financial
statements. Such reports and statements that are outside the financial statements are outside the
scope of Ind AS.

5 General features of financial statements

5.1 Presentation of True and Fair view and compliance with Ind AS
Financial statements shall present a true and fair view of the financial position and financial
performance and cash flows of the entity.

Presentation of true and fair view requires the faithful representation of the effects of
transactions, other events and conditions in accordance with the definitions and recognition criteria
for assets, liabilities, income and expenses set out in the Framework.

The application of Ind AS, with additional disclosure when necessary, is presumed to result in
financial statements that present a true and fair view.

Presentation of a true and fair view also requires an entity:

e To select and apply accounting policies in accordance with Ind AS 8 'Accounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors’. Ind AS 8 sets out a hierarchy of authoritative
guidance that management considers in the absence of an Ind AS that specifically applies to an
item.

e To present information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant,
reliable, comparable and understandable information.

e To provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in Ind AS is
insufficient to enable users to understand the impact of particular transactions, other events
and conditions on the entity's financial position and financial performance.

An entity cannot rectify inappropriate accounting policies either by disclosure of the accounting
policies used or by notes or explanatory material.

5.1.1 Departure from compliance of Ind AS

In the extremely rare circumstances in which management concludes that compliance of an Ind AS
would be so misleading that it would conflict with the objective of financial statements set out in
the Framework. An entity shall depart from Ind AS requirement if the relevant regulatory
framework requires, or otherwise does not prohibit, such a departure.

When an entity departs from a requirement of an Ind AS, it shall disclose:
(a) that the financial statements present a true and fair view as per management conclusion.
(b) that it has complied with applicable Ind AS, except the departure.
(c) Departed Ind AS information. Such as
e The title of the Ind AS from which the entity has departed.
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¢ The nature of the departure, including the treatment that the Ind AS would require, the
reason why that treatment would be so misleading in the circumstances that it would
conflict with the objective of financial statements set out in the Conceptual Framework,
and the treatment adopted; and
(d) For each period presented, the financial effect of the departure on each item in the financial
statements that would have been reported in complying with the requirement

5.2 Going Concern

While preparing the financial statements, management is required to assess, the entity's ability to
continue as a going concern, and this assessment should cover the entity's prospects for at least 12
months from the end of the reporting period.

In general, an entity is assumed to be a going concern unless there is significant information to the
contrary or there is no realistic alternative.

In making such assessment, they should consider all material uncertainties related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the entity's ability to continue as a going concern.
The entity should disclose such uncertainties.

When an entity does not prepare financial statements on a going concern basis, disclose
e The fact that entity does not have going concern.
e Basis of preparation of the financial statements.
e The reason why the entity is not regarded as a going concern.

If the management believes that an entity may no longer be a going concern,
e The entity should account for all its assets at net realizable value or a liquidation basis but
not on the historical cost basis.
e It should disclose the basis of preparation of financials.
e The difference between the carrying amount and net realizable value should be taken to P&L
a/c.

5.3 Accrual basis of accounting

An entity shall prepare its financial statements, except for cash flow information, using the accrual
basis of accounting. It means to record the transaction whenever transaction occurs irrespective of
flow of cash.

When the accrual basis of accounting is used, an entity recognises items as assefts, liabilities, equity,
income and expenses (the elements of financial statements) when they satisfy the definitions and
recognition criteria for those elements in the framework.

5.4 Materiality and aggregation (Clubbing the items as one)

An entity shall present separately each material class of similar items. An entity shall present
separately items of a dissimilar nature or function unless they are immaterial except when required
by law.

Financial statements result from processing large numbers of transactions or other events that are
aggregated into classes according to their nature or function. The final stage in the process of
aggregation and classification is the presentation of condensed and classified data, which form line
items in the financial statements. If a line item is not individually material, it is aggregated with
other items either in those statements or in the notes. An item that is not sufficiently material to
warrant separate presentation in those statements may warrant separate presentation in the notes.
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An entity need not provide a specific disclosure required by an Ind AS if the information is not
material except when required by law.
5.5 Offsetting

e An entity shall not offset assets and liabilities or income and expenses, unless required or
permitted by an Ind AS.

e Anentity reports separately both assets and liabilities, and income and expenses. Measuring
assets net of valuation allowances — for example, obsolescence allowances on inventories and
doubtful debts allowances on receivables—is not of fsetting.

e Ind AS 115, 'Revenue from Contracts with Customers’, requires an entity fo measure revenue
from contracts with customers at the amount of consideration to which the entity expects
to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or services.

For example:

The amount of revenue recognized reflects any trade discounts and volume rebates the entity
allows. An entity undertakes, in the course of its ordinary activities, other transactions that
do not generate revenue but are incidental fo the main revenue-generating activities. An
entity presents the results of such transactions, when this presentation reflects the
substance of the transaction or other event, by netting any income with related expenses
arising on the same ftransaction.

e Anentity presents on a net basis gains and losses arising from a group of similar transactions,
for example, foreign exchange gains and losses or gains and losses arising on financial
instruments held for trading. However, an entity presents such gains and losses separately if
they are material.

5.6 Frequency of reporting
An entity shall present a complete set of financial statements (including comparative information)
at least annually.
When an entity changes the end of its reporting period and presents financial statements for a
period longer or shorter than one year, an entity shall disclose, in addition to the period covered by
the financial statements:

e the reason for using a longer or shorter period, and

e the fact that amounts presented in the financial statements are not entirely comparable

5.7 Comparative information
Minimum comparative information
e An entity should present comparative information in respect of the preceding period for all
amounts reported in the current period's financial statements except when Ind AS permit or
require otherwise.
e Comparative information for narrative and descriptive information should be included if it is
relevant to understand the current period's financial statements.
e Anentity shall present, as a minimum:
v' 2 Balance Sheets
2 Statement of Profit and Loss
2 Statement of Cash Flows
2 Statement of Changes in Equity and
Related Notes

ANEANER NI

Additional comparative information

An entity may present comparative information in addition to the minimum comparative financial
statements required by Ind ASs, as long as that information is prepared in accordance with Ind AS.
This comparative information may consist of one or more statements referred fo in ‘Complete set
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of financial statements’ but need not comprise a complete set of financial statements. When this is
the case, the entity shall present related note information for those additional statements.

Third Balance Sheet date
If current year ended is 31-03-20X8, previous year comparative is 31-03-20X7 & opening balance
sheet of previous year is 01-04-20X7.
An entity shall present a third balance sheet as at the beginning of the preceding period in addition
to the minimum comparative financial statements required if:
e It applies an accounting policy retrospectively, makes a retrospective restatement of items
in its financial statements or reclassifies items in its financial statements; and
e The retrospective application, retrospective restatement or the reclassification has a
material effect on the information in the balance sheet at the beginning of the preceding
period.
An entity shall reclassify the comparative amounts also unless it is impracticable. If it reclassifies,
it should disclose the following
e The nature of reclassification
e The amount of each item or class of items that is reclassified
e The reason for reclassification
In case of impracticability, disclose the reason and nature of adjustments that would have been
reclassifies.

5.8 Consistency of Presentation
An entity shall retain the presentation and classification of items in the financial statements from
one period o the next unless:

e it is apparent, following a significant change in the nature of the entity's operations or a
review of its financial statements, that another presentation or classification would be more
appropriate having regard to the criteria for the selection and application of accounting
policies in Ind AS 8; or

e anInd AS requires a change in presentation

6 Identification of Financial Statements

An entity shall clearly identify the financial statements and distinguish them from other information
in the same published document. Ind AS apply only to financial statements, and not necessarily o
other information presented in an annual report, a regulatory filing, or another document though
they may be useful to users.
An entity shall display the following information prominently:

e the name of the reporting entity or other means of identification, and any change in that

information from the end of the preceding reporting period

e whether the financial statements are of an individual entity or a group of enfities;

e reporting date or the reporting period

e the presentation currency

e the level of rounding used in presenting amounts in the financial statements.
Usage of any unit of the presentation currency is acceptable as long as the entity discloses the level
of rounding and does not omit material information.
An entity meets above requirements by presenting appropriate headings for pages, statements,
notes, columns and the like. Judgement is required in determining the best way of presenting such
information.
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An entity often makes financial statements more understandable by presenting information in
thousands or millions of units of the presentation currency. This is acceptable as long as the entity
discloses the level of rounding and does not omit material information.

7 Balance Sheet

At a minimum, the balance sheet shall include following items:
a) Property, plant and equipment
b) Investment property
c) Intangible assets
d) Financial assets (excluding amounts shown under (e, h &i)
e) Investments accounted for using the equity method
f) Biological assets
g) Inventories
h) Trade and other receivables
i) Cash and cash equivalents
j) The total of assets classified as held for sale and assets included in disposal groups classified
as held for sale in accordance with Ind AS 105 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations
k) Trade and other payables
I) Provisions
m) Financial liabilities (excluding amounts shown under k and 1)
n) Liabilities and assets for current tax, as defined in Ind AS 12 Income Taxes
o) Deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets, as defined in Ind AS 12
p) Liabilities included in disposal groups classified as held for sale in accordance with Ind AS
105
q) Non-controlling interests, presented within equity
r) Issued capital and reserves attributable to owners of the parent
Additional line items, headings and subtotals in the balance sheet should be presented when such
presentation is relevant to an understanding of the entity's financial position.
The descriptions of the line items, and the order in which they are shown, can be adapted according
to the entity's nature and its transactions.

8 Current/Non-current distinction

An entity shall present current and non-current assets, and current and non-current liabilities, as
separate classifications in its balance sheet.

8.1 Current Assets
An entity shall classify an asset as current when:
e Itexpects torealise the asset, or intends to sell or consume it, in its normal operating cycle;
e It holds the asset primarily for the purpose of trading;
e It expects fo realise the asset within twelve months after the reporting period; or
e The asset is cash or a cash equivalent (as defined in Ind AS 7) unless the asset is restricted
from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period.

Operating Cycle:

The operating cycle of an entity is the time between the acquisition of assets (raw materials) for
processing and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents. When the entity's normal operating cycle
is not clearly identifiable, it is assumed to be twelve months.
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Current assets include assets (such as inventories and trade receivables) that are sold, consumed or
realised as part of the normal operating cycle even when they are not expected fo be realised within
twelve months after the reporting period. Current assets also include assets held primarily for the
purpose of trading.

An entity shall classify all other assets as non-current.

This Standard uses the term 'non-current' to include tangible, intangible and financial assets of a
long-term nature. It does not prohibit the use of alternative descriptions as long as the meaning is
clear.

9 Current Liabilities

An entity shall classify a liability as current when:

e It expects to settle the liability in its normal operating cycle;

e It holds the liability primarily for the purpose of trading;

e The liability is due o be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

e It does not have anunconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the
counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its
classification.

An entity shall classify all other liabilities as non-current.

Some current liabilities, such as trade payables and some accruals for employee and other operating
costs, are part of the working capital used in the entity's normal operating cycle.

An entity classifies such operating items as current liabilities even if they are due to be settled
more than twelve months after the reporting period.

The same normal operating cycle applies to the classification of an entity's assets and liabilities.
When the entity’'s normal operating cycle is not clearly identifiable, it is assumed to be twelve
months.

Other current liabilities which are not settled as part of the normal operating cycle, but are due for
settlement within twelve months after the reporting period or held primarily for the purpose of
trading

Financial liabilities that provide financing on a long-term basis (i.e. are not part of the working capital
used in the entity's normal operating cycle) and are not due for settlement within twelve months
after the reporting period are non-current liabilities.

An entity classifies its financial liabilities as current when they are due to be settled within twelve
months after the reporting period, even if:
e the original term was for a period longer than twelve months, and
e an agreement to refinance, or to reschedule payments, on a long-term basis is completed
after the reporting period and before the financial statements are approved for issue.
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Does entity has option to
refinance a current Obligation

Maturity beyond 12 { Maturity within 12 } {

months months current }

Non Current { Current 1

If an entity expects, and has the discretion, to refinance or roll over an obligation for at least twelve
months after the reporting period under an existing loan facility, it classifies the obligation as non-
current, even if it would otherwise be due within a shorter period. However, when refinancing or
rolling over the obligation is not at the discretion of the entity (for example, there is no arrangement
for refinancing), the entity does not consider the potential to refinance the obligation and classifies
the obligation as current.

When an entity breaches a provision of a long-term loan arrangement on or before the end of the
reporting period with the effect that the liability becomes payable on demand, the entity does not
classify the liability as current, even if the lender agreed, after the reporting period and before
the approval of the financial statements for issue, not to demand payment as a consequence of the
breach.

However, an entity classifies the liability as non-current if the lender agreed by the end of the
reporting period to provide a period of grace ending at least twelve months after the reporting
period, within which the entity can rectify the breach and during which the lender cannot demand
immediate repayment

10 Information to be presented either in balance sheet or in notes

An entity shall disclose, either in the balance sheet or in the notes, further sub-classifications of
the line items presented, classified in a manner appropriate to the entity's operations.
The detail provided in sub-classifications depends on the requirements of Ind AS and on the size,
nature and function of the amounts involved.
An entity shall disclose the following, either in the balance sheet or in the statement of changes in
equity which is part of the balance sheet, or in the notes:

o for each class of share capital:

v" the number of shares authorised;

the number of shares issued and fully paid, and issued but not fully paid;
par value per share, or that the shares have no par value;
a reconciliation of the number of shares
the rights, preferences and restrictions attaching to that class including restrictions
on the distribution of dividends and the repayment of capital;
shares in the entity held by the entity or by its subsidiaries or associates; and
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v' shares reserved for issue under options and contracts for the sale of shares, including
terms and amounts; and
e adescription of the nature and purpose of each reserve within equity.
An entity whose capital is not limited by shares e.g., a company limited by guarantee, shall disclose
information, showing changes during the period in each category of equity interest, and the rights,
preferences and restrictions attaching to each category of equity interest.

11 Statement of Profit and Loss

The statement of profit and loss shall present, in addition to the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income sections:
(a) profit or loss;
(b) total other comprehensive income;
(c) Comprehensive income for the period, being the total of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
An entity shall present (in case of consolidated statement of profit and loss) the following items as
allocation of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the period:
(a) profit or loss for the period attributable to:
¢ Non-controlling interests, and
e Owners of the parent.
(b) Comprehensive income for the period attributable to
¢ Non-controlling interests, and
e Owners of the parent.

12 Information to be presented in the profit or loss section of the statement of profit and loss
In addition to items required by other Ind AS, the profit or loss section of the statement of profit
and loss should include line items that present the following amounts for the period:
(a) revenue, presenting separately interest revenue calculated using the effective interest
method
(b) gains and losses arising from the derecognition of financial assets measured at amortised
cost
(c) finance costs
(d) impairment losses (including reversals of impairment losses or impairment gains)
(e) share of the profit or loss of associates and joint ventures accounted for using the equity
method
(f) If financial asset is reclassified out of the amortised cost measurement category so that it
is measured at fair value through profit or loss, any gain or loss arising from a difference
between the previous amortised cost of the financial asset and its fair value at the
reclassification date
(9) if a financial asset is reclassified out of the fair value through other comprehensive income
measurement category so that it is measured at fair value through profit or loss, any
cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in other comprehensive income that is
reclassified to profit or loss
(h) tax expense
(i) asingle amount for the total discontinued operations

13 Information to be presented in Other Comprehensive Income Section

The other comprehensive income section should present line items for the amounts of other
comprehensive income classified by nature and grouped info those that, in accordance with other
Ind AS

e will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss; and

e will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when specific conditions are met.
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An entity shall present additional line items, headings and subtotals in the statement of profit and
loss, when such presentation is relevant to an understanding of the entity's financial performance.

When an entity presents subtotals, those subtotals shall:
e be comprised of line items made up of amounts recognised and measured in accordance with
Ind AS;
e be presented and labelled in a manner that makes the line items that constitute the sub total
clear and understandable;
e be consistent from period to period; and
e not be displayed with more prominence than the subtotals and totals required in Ind AS for
the statement of profit and loss.
An entity shall present the line items in the statement of profit and loss that reconcile any sub
totals presented with the subtotals or fotals required in Ind AS for such statement.
An entity shall not present any items of income or expense as extraordinary items, in the statement
of profit and loss or in the notes

14 Profit and Loss for the period

With regard to profit or loss for the period, the Standard requires the recognition of all items of
income and expense in a period in profit or loss unless an Ind AS requires or permits otherwise.

15 Other Comprehensive income for the period

With regard to other comprehensive income for the period, the Standard requires to disclose the
amount of income tax relating to each item of other comprehensive income, including reclassification
adjustments, either in the statement of profit and loss or in the notes.
An entity may present items of other comprehensive income either:

(a) net of related tax effects, or

(b) before related tax effects with one amount shown for the aggregate amount of income tax

relating to those items.

The Standard further prescribes that an entity should disclose reclassification adjustments relating
to components of other comprehensive income.
Other Ind AS specify whether and when amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss. Such reclassifications are referred to in this Standard as
reclassification adjustments.
A reclassification adjustment is included with the related component of other comprehensive income
in the period that the adjustment is reclassified to profit or loss.

16 Information to be presented in the statement of Profit and Loss or in notes

When items of income or expense are material, an entity shall disclose their nature and amount
separately.
Circumstances that would give rise to the separate disclosure of items of income and expense
include:
e Write-downs of inventories fo net realisable value or of property, plant and equipment to
recoverable amount, as well as reversals of such write-downs.
e restfructurings of the activities of an entity and reversals of any provisions for the costs of
restructuring;
e disposals of items of property, plant and equipment;
e disposals of investments;
e discontinued operations;
e litigation settlements; and
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e Other reversals of provisions.
An entity shall present an analysis of expenses recognised in profit or loss using a classification
based on the nature of expense method.

17 Statement of Changes in Equity

An entity shall present a statement of changes in equity which includes all changes in equity. It
includes both - relating to performance and owner changes in equity (from ftransactions and events
that increase or decrease equity but are not part of performance). The statement of changes in
equity includes the following information:
a. total comprehensive income for the period, showing separately the fotal amounts attributable
to owners of the parent and o non-controlling interests.
b. for each component of equity, the effects of retrospective application or retrospective
restatement recognised in accordance with Ind AS 8.
c. for each component of equity, a reconciliation between the carrying amount at the beginning
and the end of the period, separately disclosing each change resulting from:
o profit or loss
e each item of other comprehensive income
e Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners, showing separately contributions
by and distributions to owners and changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in a loss of control; and
e Any item recognised directly in equity such as amount recognised directly in equity as
capital reserve with Ind AS 103.

18 Information to be presented in the statement of changes in equity or in the notes

An entity shall present, either in the statement of changes in equity or in the notes, an analysis of
other comprehensive income by item.

An entity shall present, either in the statement of changes in equity or in the notes, the amount of
dividends recognised as distributions to owners during the period, and the related amount of
dividends per share.

Ind AS 8 requires retrospective adjustments to effect changes in accounting policies, to the extent
practicable, except when the transition provisions in another Ind AS require otherwise. Ind AS 8
also requires restatements to correct errors to be made retrospectively, to the extent practicable.
Retrospective adjustments and retrospective restatements are not changes in equity but they are
adjustments to the opening balance of retained earnings, except when an Ind AS requires
retrospective adjustment of another component of equity.

Disclosure in the statement of changes in equity of the total adjustment to each component of equity
resulting from changes in accounting policies and, separately, from corrections of errors. These
adjustments are disclosed for each prior period and the beginning of the period.

19 Statement of Cash Flows

Cash flow information provides users of financial statements with a basis to assess the ability of
the entity to generate cash and cash equivalents and the needs of the entity fo utilise those cash
flows.

An entity should present a statement of cash flows in accordance with Ind AS 7, Statement of Cash
Flows.

Structure

The notes shall:
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a. Present information about the basis of preparation of the financial statements and the
specific accounting policies used.
b. Disclose the information required by Ind AS that is not presented elsewhere in the financial
statements; and
c. Provide information that is not presented elsewhere in the financial statements but is
relevant to an understanding of any of them.
An entity shall present notes in a systematic manner. In determining a systematic manner, the entity
shall consider the effect on the understandability and comparability of its financial statements.
An entity shall cross-reference each item in the balance sheet, in the statement of changes in equity,
in the statement of profit and loss, and statement of cash flows to any related information in the
notes.

20 Disclosures

20.1 Disclosure of accounting policies

An entity shall disclose its Material Accounting policies. Accounting policy information is material if
it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions made by users of financial statements.
Accounting policies related to immaterial fransactions are not required to be disclosed.

Accounting policy information would be considered to be material if -

e The events related to material transactions, events or conditions

e Entity changed its accounting policy during the reporting period and this has resulted in a
material change to the information in FS.

e Entity chose accounting policy from options permitted by Ind AS

e Accounting policy was developed in accordance with Ind AS in the absence of applicable Ind
AS

e It relates to an area where entity is required to make significant judgement or assumptions

e Accounting required for the items is complex and would be difficult for the users to
understand.

If a disclosure is required by a specific Ind AS it must be disclosed even if the management
considers it to be immaterial

An entity must disclose along with its Material Accounting policies or other notes, the judgments,
apart from those involving estimations, that management has made in the process of applying the
entity’'s accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
financial statements.

Sources of estimation uncertainty:

An entity must disclose, in the notes, information about the assumptions made concerning the future,
and other important sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have
a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year. Disclosures about nature of such assets and their carrying
amount as at the end of the reporting period should also be made.

Capital

An entity shall disclose information that enables users of its financial statements to evaluate the
entity's objectives, policies and processes for managing capital.
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20.2 Puttable financial instruments classified as equity (You will understand this after learning
Financial Instruments)
For puttable financial instruments classified as equity instruments, an entity shall disclose (to the
extent not disclosed elsewhere):
a. Summary quantitative data about the amount classified as equity
b. Its objectives, policies and processes for managing its obligation to repurchase or redeem
the instruments when required to do so by the instrument holders, including any changes from
the previous period.
c. The expected cash outflow on redemption or repurchase of that class of financial
instruments; and
d. Information about how the expected cash outflow on redemption or repurchase was
determined.

20.3 Other Disclosures
An entity must disclose the amount of dividends proposed or declared before the financial
statements were approved for issue but not recognised as a distribution to owners during the period,
and the related amount per share and the amount of any cumulative preference dividends not
recognised.
Ind AS 1 requires certain other disclosures, if not disclosed elsewhere in information published with
the financial statements:

a) the domicile and legal form of the entity, its country of incorporation and the address of its

registered office (or principal place of business, if different from the registered office)

b) a description of the nature of the entity's operations and its principal activities

c) the name of the parent and the ultimate parent of the group: and

d) if it is a limited life entity, information regarding the length of its life.

21 Comparison with AS-1

The following are not covered in AS-1
e Complete set of financial statements
e Purpose and general features of FS
e Off-setting requirement (Specific AS prescribe requirement)
e Frequency of reporting
e Structure and content of FS
e Balance Sheet line items
e Statement of P&L line items
e Reclassification of items
e Statements of changes in equity
e Comparative information
e Classification of long-term loan arrangement
* Rectification of accounting policies (hot covered by AS-1)
e Sources of estimation uncertainty

AS 1 requires disclosures if the fundamental accounting assumption of going concern, consistency

and accrual are not followed in preparation of FS. Ind AS 1 does not have such requirement. Ind
AS 1 requires entity to follow accrual basis of accounting and compliance with all Ind AS.
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22 Carve Out from IAS1

IAS 1 required that in case of a loan liability, if any condition of the loan agreement which was
classified as non-current is breached on or before the reporting date, such loan liability should be
classified as current even if the breach is rectified after balance sheet date.

Ind AS 1 requires that where there is such breach and the lender agreed before the approval of

financial statements for issue not to demand payment as a consequence of breach, the entity shall
not classify such loan as current.

Illustrations

1. Illustration

Entity XYZ is a large manufacturer of plastic products for the local market. On 1st April, 20X6 the
newly elected government unexpectedly abolished all import tariffs, including the 40 per cent tariff
on all imported plastic products. Many other economic reforms implemented by the new government
contributed to the value of the country's currency Rs. appreciating significantly against most other
currencies. The currency appreciation severely reduced the competitiveness of the entity's
products.

Before 20X6 entity XYZ was profitable. However, because it was unable o compete with low priced
imports, entity XYZ went into losses. As at 31st March, 20X7, entity XYZ's equity was Rs. 1,000.
During the second quarter of financial year ended 31 March 20X7, the management restructured
entity's operations. That restructuring helped reduce losses for the third and fourth quarters to
Rs. 400 and Rs. 380, respectively. During the year ended 31st March, 20X7, entity XYZ reported a
loss of Rs. 4,000. In January 20X7, the local plastic industry and labour union lobbied government
to reinstate tariffs on plastic. On 15th March, 20X7, the government announced that it would
reintroduce limited plastic import tariffs at 10 percent in 20X8. However, it emphasised that those
tariffs would not be as protective as the tariffs enacted by the previous government. In its latest
economic forecast, the government predicts a stable currency exchange rate in the short term with
a gradual weakening of the jurisdiction's currency in the longer term.

Management of the entity XYZ undertook a going concern assessment at 31st March, 20X7.
Management projects / forecasts that imposition of a 10 per cent tariff on the import of plastic
products would, at current exchange rates, result in entity XYZ returning fo profitability. How
should the management of entity XYZ disclose the information about the going concern assessment
in entity XYZ's 31st March, 20X7 annual financial statements?

Hint: XYZ's liabilities could exceed its assets by the end of financial year 20X7-20X8. But entity
XYZ is a going concern.

2. Illustration

In 20X8 entity 'Superb’ was acquired by entity 'Happy Go Luck’. To align its reporting date with that
of its parent, Superb changed the end of its annual reporting period from 31stJanuary to 31st March.
Consequently, entity Superb's reporting period for the year ended 31st March, 20X8 is 14 months.
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On the basis of these facts, what disclosure would be appropriate?
Hint: Comparative amounts for the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in
equity, statement of cash flows and related notes are not entirely comparable.

3. Illustration

An entity produces whisky from barley, water, and yeast in a 24-month distillation process. At the
end of the reporting period the entity has one month's supply of barley and yeast raw materials, 800
barrels of partly distilled whisky and 200 barrels of distilled whisky. Determine whether they are
current assets.

Hint: Current Assets

4. Tllustration

An entity owns a machine with which it manufactures goods for sale. It also owns the building in
which it carries out its commercial activities. Determine whether they are current assefts.

Hint: Non-Current Assets
B. Illustration

On 31 December 20X2, an entity replaced a machine in its production line. The replaced machine was
sold to a competitor for Rs,3,00,000. Payment is due 15 months after the end of the reporting
period. Determine the nature of payment due.

Hint: Receivable is a non-current asset

6. Illustration

On 1st April, 20X2, XYZ Ltd invested Rs.15,00,000 surplus funds in corporate bonds that bear
interest at 8 percent per year. Interest is payable on the corporate bonds on 1st April, of each year.
The principal is repayable in three annual instalments of Rs.5,00,000 starting from 1st April, 20X3.
Determine if it is a current liability?

Hint: Rs.5,00,000 (repayable on 31/3/20X3)- Current assets & remaining Rs.10 lakhs non-current
assets

7. Illustration

On 1st April, 20X3, Charming Ltd issued 100,000 Rs. 10 bonds for Rs. 1,000,000. On 1st April, each
year interest at the fixed rate of 8 percent per year is payable on outstanding capital amount of
the bonds (ie the first payment will be made on 1st April, 20X4). On 1st April each year (i.e from 1st
April, 20X4), Charming Ltd has a contractual obligation to redeem 10,000 of the bonds at Rs. 10 per
bond. In its statement of financial position at 31st March, 20X4. How should this be presented in
the financial statements?

Hint: Rs.9,00,000 non-current liability & Rs.1,80,000 current liabilities
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8. Illustration

X Ltd provides you the following information:
e Raw material stock holding period: 3 months
e Work-in-progress holding period: 1 month
e Finished goods holding period: 5 months
e Debtor's collection period : 5 months
The trade payables of the Company are paid in 12.5 months. Should these be classified as current
or non-current?
Hint: Trade payables - Current Liabilities

9. Illustration

Entity A has two different businesses, real estate and manufacturing of passenger vehicles. With
respect to the real estate business, the entity constructs residential apartments for customers and
the normal operating cycle is three to four years. With respect to the business of manufacture of
passenger vehicles, normal operating cycle is 15 months. Under such circumstance where an entity
has different operating cycles for different types of businesses, how classification into current and
non-current be made?

Hint: Classification should be based the normal operating cycle that is relevant to that particular
asset / liability.

10. TIllustration

An entity has placed certain deposits with various parties. How the following deposits should be
classified, i.e., current or non-current?

(@)  Electricity Deposit

(b) Tender Deposit/Earnest Money Deposit [EMD]

(c)  GST Deposit paid under dispute or GST payment under dispute.

Hint: (a) Non-Current (b) EMD based on terms of deposit (c) ST Deposit depend’s on facts of case

11.Illustration

Paragraph 69(a) of Ind AS 1 states "An entity shall classify a liability as current when it expects to
settle the liability in its normal operating cycle”. An entity develops tools for customers and this
normally takes a period of around 2 years for completion. The material is supplied by the customer
and hence the entity only renders a service. For this, the entity receives payment upfront and credits
the amount so received to "Income Received in Advance". How should this "Income Received in
Advance" be classified, i.e., current or non- current?

Hint: Current Liability

12. TIllustration
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An entity has taken a loan facility from a bank that is to be repaid within a period of 9 months from
the end of the reporting period. Prior to the end of the reporting period, the entity and the bank
enter info an arrangement, whereby the existing outstanding loan will, unconditionally, roll into the
new facility which expires after a period of 5 years.

(a) How should such loan be classified in the balance sheet of the entity?

(b)  Will the answer be different if the new facility is agreed upon after the end of the reporting
period?

(c) Will the answer to (a) be different if the existing facility is from one bank and the new
facility is from another bank?

(d)  Will the answer to (a) be different if the new facility is not yet tied up with the existing
bank, but the entity has the potential to refinance the obligation?

Hint: (a)Non-Current (b) Current (c) Current Liability (d) Current

13. TIllustration

In December 20X1 an entity entered info a loan agreement with a bank. The loan is repayable in
three equal annual instalments starting from December 20X5. One of the loan covenants is that an
amount equivalent to the loan amount should be contributed by promoters by March 24 20X2, failing
which the loan becomes payable on demand. As on March 24, 20X2, the entity has not been able to
get the promoter’s contribution. On March 25, 20X2, the entity approached the bank and obtained
a grace period up to June 30, 20X2 to get the promoter's contribution.

The bank cannot demand immediate repayment during the grace period. The annual reporting period
of the entity ends on March 31, 20X2.

(@)  Ason March 31, 20X2, how should the entity classify the loan?

(b)  Assume that in anticipation that it may not be able to get the promoter's contribution by due
date, in February 20X2, the entity approached the bank and got the compliance date extended up
to June 30, 20X2 for getting promoter’'s contribution. In this case will the loan classification as on
March 31, 20X2 be different from (a) above?

Hint: (a) Current (b) Non-Current

14. TIllustration

OMN Ltd has a subsidiary MN Ltd. OMN Ltd provides a loan to MN Ltd at 8% interest to be paid
annually. The loan is required to be paid whenever demanded back by OMN Ltd.

How should the loan be classified in the financial statements of OMN Ltd? Will it be any different
for MN Ltd?

Hint: Current

15. TIllustration

An entity manufactures passenger vehicles. The time between purchasing of underlying raw materials
to manufacture the passenger vehicles and the date the entity completes the production and delivers
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to its customers is 11 months. Customers settle the dues after a period of 8 months from the date
of sale.

(a) Will the inventory and the ftrade receivables be current in nature?

(b)  Assuming that the production time was say 15 months and the time lag between the date of
sale and collection from customers is 13 months, will the answer be different?

Hint: (a) Current if realisable within normal operating cycle (b) No

16. TIllustration

Company A has taken a long term loan from Company B. In the month of December 20X1, there has
been a breach of material provision of the arrangement. As a consequence of which the loan becomes
payable on demand on March 31, 20X2. In the month of May 20X2, the Company started negotiation
with the Company B for not fo demand payment as a consequence of the breach. The financial
statements were approved for the issue in the month of June 20X2. In the month of July 20X2,
both the companies agreed that the payment will not be demanded immediately as a consequence of
breach of material provision.

Advise on the classification of the liability as current / non-current.

Hint: Liability to be classified as current as at March 31, 20X2.

17. TIllustration

Entity A has undertaken various transactions in the financial year ended March 31, 20X1. Identify
and present the transactions in the financial statements as per Ind AS 1.

Remeasurement of defined benefit plans 2,57,000
Current service cost 1,75,000
Changes in revaluation surplus 1,25,000

Gains and losses arising from translating the monetary assets inf 75,000
foreign currency

Gains and losses arising from translating the financial 65,000
statements of a foreign operation

Gains and losses from investments in equity instruments 1,00,000
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income

Income tax expense 35,000
Share based payments cost 3,35,000

Hint: ITtems impacting (a) P&L - Service cost, transilation gains/losses on forex, income tax, share
based payments cost (b) OCI - Remeasurement, changes in surplus, transilation gains / losses from
foreign operations, gains / losses from investments.

18. TIllustration

XYZ Limited (the 'Company’) is intfo the manufacturing of tractor parts and mainly supplying
components to the Original Equipment Manufacturers (OEMs). The Company does not have any
subsidiary, joint venture or associate company. During the preparation of financial statements for
the year ended March 31, 20X1, the accounts department is not sure about the
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treatment/presentation of below mentioned matters. Accounts department approached you to
advice on the following matters.

S. No. Matters
(i) There are qualifications in the audit report of the Company with reference to
two Ind AS.
(ii) Is it mandatory to add the word "standalone” before each of the components of

financial statements?

(iii) The Company is Indian Company and preparing and presenting its financial
statements in Rs. Is it necessary to write in the financial statements that the
financial statements has been presented in Rs.

(iv) The Company had sales transactions with 10 related party parties during previous|
year. However, during current year, there are no transactions with 4 related
parties out of aforesaid 10 related parties. Hence, Company is of the view that
it need not disclose sales transactions with these 4 parties in related party
disclosures because with these parties there are no tfransactions during current
year.

Evaluate the above matters with respect to preparation and presentation of general-purpose
financial statement.
Hint: (i) Yes (ii) No (iii) Yes (iv) No

19. TIllustration

A Company presents financial results for three years (i.e one for current year and two comparative
years) internally for the purpose of management information every year in addition to the general
purpose financial statements. The aforesaid financial results are presented without furnishing the
related notes because these are not required by the management for internal purpose. During
current year, management thought why not they should present third year statement of profit and
loss also in the general purpose financial statements. I 1 will save time and will be available easily
whenever management needs this in future.

With reference to above background, answer the following:

(i) Can management present the third statement of profit and loss as additional comparative in
the general-purpose financial statements?

(i)  If management present third statement of profit and loss in the general-purpose financial
statement as comparative, is it necessary that this statement should be compliant of Ind AS?

(iii)  Can management present third statement of profit and loss only as additional comparative in
the general-purpose financial statements without furnishing other components (like balance sheeft,
statement of cash flows, statement of change in equity) of financial statements?

Hint: (i) Yes (ii) Yes (iii) Yes
20. TIllustration
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A Company while preparing the financial statements for Financial Year (FY) 20X1-20X2, erroneously
booked excess revenue of Rs. 10 Crore. The total revenue reported in FY 20X1-20X2 was Rs. 80
Crore. However, while preparing the financial statements for 20X2- 20X3, it discovered that excess
revenue was booked in FY 20X1-20X2 which it now wants to correct in the financial statements.
However, management of the Company is not sure whether it need to present the third balance sheet
as additional comparative.

With regard to the above background, answer the following:

(i) Is it necessary to provide the third balance sheet at the beginning of the preceding period
in this case?

(i)  The Company wants to correct the error during FY 20X2-20X3 by giving impact in the figures
of current year only. Is the contention of management correct?

Hint: (i) No (ii) No

21. TIllustration

XYZ Limited (the ‘Company’) is into construction of turnkey projects and has assessed its operating
cycle to be 18 months. The Company has certain trade receivables and payables which are receivable
and payable within a period of twelve months from the reporting date, i.e, March 31, 20X2.

In addition to above there are following items/transactions which took place during financial year
20X1-20X2.
S. Items/transactions
No.
(1)  |[The Company has some trade receivables which are due after 15 months from the

date of balance sheet. So the Company expects that the payment will be received
within the period of operating cycle.

(2) |The Company has some trade payables which are due for payment after 14 months
from the date of balance sheet. These payables fall due within the period of|
operating cycle. Though the Company does not expect that it will be able to pay|
these payable within the operating cycle because the nature of business is such
that generally projects gets delayed and payments from customers also gets
delayed.

(3) |The Company was awarded a contract of Rs. 100 Crore on March 31, 20X2. As per
the terms of the contract, the Company made a security deposit of 5% of the
contract value with the customer, of Rs. 5 crore on March 31, 20X2. The contract|
is expected to be completed in 18 months’' time. The aforesaid deposit will be
refunded back after 6 months from the date of the completion of the contract.

(4) |The Company has also given certain contracts to third parties and have received
security deposits from them of Rs. 2 Crore on March 31, 20X2 which are repayable
on completion of the confract but if contract is cancelled before the contract|
term of 18 months, then it becomes payable immediately. However, the Company

does not expect the cancellation of the contract.
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Considering the above items/transactions answer the following:

(i) The Company wants fo present the trade receivable as current despite the fact that these
are receivables in 15 months' time. Does the decision of presenting the same as current is correct?
(i)  The Company wants to present the trade payables as non-current despite the fact that these
are due within the operating cycle of the Company. Does the decision of presenting the same as non-
current is correct?

(iii)  Can the security deposit of Rs. 5 Crore made by the Company with the customers be
presented as current?

(iv)  Can the security deposit of Rs. 2 Crore taken by the Company from contractors be presented
as non-current?

Hint: (i) Yes (i7) No (ii7) No (iv) No

22. Illustration

Is offsetting permitted under the following circumstances?

(@) Expenses incurred by a holding company on behalf of subsidiary, which is reimbursed by the
subsidiary - whether in the separate books of the holding company, the expenditure and related
reimbursement of expenses can be offset?

(b)  Whether profit on sale of an asset against loss on sale of another asset can be offset?

(o) When services are rendered in a transaction with an entity and services are received from
the same entity in two different arrangements, can the receivable and payable be offset?

Hint: (a) Yes, if in substance is in nature of reimbursement (b) Yes unless material (c) Yes if entity
has legal right
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Ind AS7
Cash Flow Statement

1. Introduction

1.1 Objective
e Provides information about historical changes in cash and cash equivalents.
e Assess the ability to generate cash and cash equivalents.
e Understand timing and certainty of cash flow generation.

1.2 Benefits of cash flow information
e Provides information enabling evaluation of changes in net assets and financial structure.
e Assesses the ability to manage the cash.
e Assess and compare the present value of future cash flows.
e Compares the efficiency of different entities.

1.3 Scope
The standard requires all the entities to present a statement of cash flows.

2. Definitions

2.1 Cash
Comprises cash on hand and demand deposits.

2.2 Cash equivalents
Short- term, high liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and

which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Bank Overdraft
-
1 1
Not payable on Payable on
demand demand
Financing Cash and Cash
Activity Equivalent

3. Classification of Cash Flows

[ Operating activities ] [ Investing activities ] [ Financing activities ]

3.1 Operating activities
Cash flows from operating activities are primarily derived from the principal revenue producing

activities of the entity and other activities that are not investing or financing activities.

\ Operating Cash Inflows \ Operating Cash Outflows \
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e Cash receipts from sale of goods and e Cash payments to suppliers for
rendering services goods and services

e Cash receipts from royalties, fee, e Cash payments to and on behalf of
commission and other revenue employees

e Cash receipts and cash payments of an e Cash payments or refunds of income
insurance entity from premiums and taxes unless they can be specifically
claims, annuties and other policy identified with  financing and
benefits investing activities

e Cash receipts and payments from
contracts held for dealing or trading
purposes

3.2 Investing activities

Activities that result in the acquisition and disposal of long-term assets and other
investments that are not included under cash or cash equivalents.

Cash Inflow from Investing Activities Cash Outflow from Investing Activities

e Cash receipts from sale of property, e Cash payments fo acquire property,
plant and equipment, intangibles and plant and equipment, intangibles and
other long-term assets other long-term assets

e Cash receipts from sale of equity or e Cash payments to acquire equity or
debt instruments (other than those debt instruments (other than those
considered to be cash equivalents or considered to be cash equivalents or
those held for dealing or trading those held for dealing or trading
purposes) purposes)

e Cash receipts from repayment of e Cash advances and loans made (other
advances and loans ( other than than advances and loans made by
advances and loans of financial financial institution)
institution) e Cash payments from future contracts,

e Cash receipts from future contracts, forward contracts, option contracts
forward contracts, option contracts and swap contracts ( except when held
and swap contracts ( except when for dealing or ftrading purposes, or the
held for dealing or trading purposes, receipts are classified as financing
or the receipts are classified as activities)
financing activities)

3.3 Financing activities
Activities that result in changes in the size and composition of the contributed equity and

borrowings of the enftity.

Cash Inflows from Financing Activity Cash Outflows from Financing Activity
e Cash proceeds from issuing shares or e Cash payments owners fo acquire or
other equity instruments redeem the entity's shares
e Cash proceeds from issuing e Cash repayments of amount borrowed
debentures, loans, notes, bonds, e Cash payments by a lessee for the
mortgages and other short-term or reduction of the outstanding liability
long- tferm borrowings relating to finance lease
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4. Reporting of Cash Flows

Reporting of
Cash Flows
| -
[ —1 |
Operating Investing Financing
activities activities activities
Direct method J— Indirect L Direct method L Direct method

method

4.1 Reporting of cash flows from operating activities

Direct Method Indirect Method

In the method major classes of gross *Profit or loss is adjusted for the effects

cash receipts and gross cash payments of transactions of a non-cash nature,

are disclosed. any deferals or accruals of past or

*Non-cash expenses, losses, gains not to future operating cash receipts or

be considered payments, and items of income or
expenses associated with investing or
financing cash flows

Cash flow from operating XXX Profit after tax XXX
activities XXX Add/(less)- Adjustments

Cash flow from investing XXX a. Non-cash transactions XXX
activities b. Items associated with XXX
Cash flow from financing XXX investing and financing

activities activities XXX
Increase or decrease in cash and | xxx c. Working capital adjustments

cash equivalent Cash generated from operating | xxx
Add: opening cash and cash activities

equivalent

Closing cash and cash equivalent | xxx

4.2 Reporting of cash flows from investing and financing activities
An entity is required to report separately major classes of gross cash receipts and gross cash

payments arising from investing and financing activities, except to the extent that cashflows are
permitted to be reported on a net basis.

4.3 Reporting of cash flows on gross basis
If nothing is specifically mentioned, then the cash flows will be presented on gross basis. Gross

basis means the receipts would be shown separately and payments will be shown separately.

Example: If in the year 2021-2022, some machinery is purchased for Rs 8 crore and another
machinery is sold for Rs 5 crore then while presenting the information, the entity shall show
separately outflow of Rs 8 crore and inflow of Rs 5 crore.
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4.4 Reporting of cash flows on net basis
4.4.1 Cash flows arising from the following operating, investing or financing activities may be
reported on net basis:

a. Cash receipts and payments on behalf of customers when the cash flows reflect the  activities of the
customer rather than those of the entity

*Examples:

*the acceptance and repayment of demand deposits of a bank

«funds held for customers by an investment entity

*rents collected on behalf of, and paid over to, the owners of properties

b. Cash receipts and payments for items in which the turnover is quick, the amounts are large, and the
maturities are short

*Examples:

sprincipal amounts relating to credit card customers

*the purchase and sale of investments

«other short term borrowings( those which have maturity period of three months or less)

4.4.2 Cash flows arising from each of the following activities of a financial institutions may be
reported on net basis:

e cash receipts and payments for the acceptance and repayment of deposits with a fixed
maturity date

e the placement of deposits with and withdrawl of deposits from other financial institutions

e cash advances and loans made to customers and the repayment of those advances and
loans.

5. Foreign currency cash flows

Foreign currency cash flows

Arising from transactions in of a foreign subsidiary
foreign currency

recorded in an entity's translated at the exchange
functional currency by rate at the dates of the cash
applying exchange rate at the flows

date of the cash flow
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e Unrealized exchange gain or loss from changes in foreign currency exchange rates are not
cash flows. However, the effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalent held
or due in a foreign currecy is reported in the statement of cash flows in order to reconcile
cash and cash equivalent at the beginning and at the end of the period.

5.1 Treatment of foreign exchange differences arising from unsettled transactions relating
to operating activities

Under indirect method, the exchange differences that arise on translation at the balance
sheet date, for monetary items that form part of operating activities, will require no
adjustment in the reconciliation of profit to net cash flow from operating activities.

6. Interest and Dividends

Financing company Other company
Interest paid Cash flow from operating activity | Cash flow from financing activity
Interest Cash flow from operating activity | Cash flow from investing activity
received
Dividend Cash flow from operating activity | Cash flow from investing activity
received
Dividend paid Cash flow from financing activity | Cash flow from financing activity

7. Taxes onincome

Cash flows arising from taxes on income shall be separately disclosed and shall be classified as
cash flows from operating activities unless they can be specifically identified with financing and
investing activities in which case the tax cash flow is classified as an investing or financing

activity.
Example:
Capital gain tax Investing activity
Tax on business income Operating activity
Dividend distribution tax Financing activity

8. Non-Cash Transactions

Investing and financing transactions that do not require the use of cash or cash equivalents shall
be excluded from a statement of cash flows.
Examples of non-cash ftransactions:

e Conversion of debt fo equity

e Acquisition of assets either by assuming directly related liabilities or by means of a lease

e Acquisition of an entity by means of an equity issue

9. Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
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Accounted for by use of the equity or
cost method

Reporting its interest in an associate or a
joint venture using the equity method

«an investor restricts its reporting in the

statement of cash flows to the
cashflows between itself and the
investee, for example, dividends and
advances.

*Includes in its statement of cash flows

in respect of investments in the
associate or joint venture, and
distributions and other payments or
receipts between it and the associate or
joint venture.

10. Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries

10.1 Classification of cash flows as investing activity

o The aggregate cash flows arising from obtaining or losing control of subsidiaries or other

businesses shall be presented separately and classified as investing activities.

e An entity shall disclose, in aggregate, in respect of both obtaining and losing control of

subsidiaries or other businesses during the period each of the following:

> The total consideration paid or received

> The portion of the consideration consisting of cash and cash equivalents

> The amount of cash and cash equivalents in the subsidiaries or other businesses
over which control is obtained or lost

» The amount of the assets and liabilities other than cash or cash equivalents in the
subsidiaries or other businesses over which control is obtained or lost, summarised

by each major category.

10.2 Classification of cash flows as financing activity

e Cash flows arising from changes in ownership interests in a subsidiary that do not result in
a loss of control shall be classified as cash flows from financing activities, unless the
subsidiary is held by an investment entity and is required to be measured at fair value

through profit or loss.

Ind AS 7

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries and other businesses

Separate financial statement

L classified as investing activity (provided
subsidiary not held by investment
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Consolidated Financial statement

Subsidiary held by Subsidiary held by an entity
investment entity other than investment entity
Accounted at falr value Acquisition or no change in
through prqf!t or loss Loss of control control
and classified as
opearting activity / /
outflow or inflow such investment
classified as or sale classified
investing activity as financing
activity

11. Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

An entity shall disclose the following changes in liabilities arising from financing activities:

Changes from Changes arising from obtaining or The effect of changes
financing cash flows losing control of subsidiaries or other in foreign exchange
businesses rates

[ Changes in fair values ] [ Other changes ]

12. Disclosures

e An entity shall disclose the components of cash and cash equivalents and shall present a
reconciliation of the amounts in the statement of cash flows with the equivalent items
reported in the balance sheet.

e An entity shall disclose, together with a commentary by management, the amount of
significant cash and cash equivalent balances held by the entity that are not available for
use by the group.

e Additional information may be relevant to users in understanding the financial position and
liquidity of an entity. It may include:

» The amount of undrawn borrowing facilities that may be available for future
operating activities and fo settle capital commitments, indicating any restrictions on
the use of these facilities.

> The aggregate amount of cash flows that represent increases in operating capacity
separately from those cash flows that are required to maintain operating capacity it
will help the stakeholders to know whether entity is paying proper attention for
maintenance also.

> The amount of the cash flows arising from the operating, investing, and financing
activities of each reportable segment (Ind AS 108 Operating Segments).
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13. Difference between Ind AS 7 and IAS 7

Particulars

Ind As7

IAS7

Dividend paid

Classified as a part of financing
activity only

Gives an option to classify the
dividend paid as an item of
operating activity

Dividend received

Financial Institutions- operating
activity
Other entities-investing activity

Gives an option to classify the
dividend received as an item
of

operating activity

Interest paid

Financial Institutions- operating
activity
Other entities-financing activity

Gives an option to classify the
interest paid as an item of
operating activity

Interest received

Financial Institutions- operating
activity
Other entities-investing activity

Gives an option to classify the
interest received as an item
of

operating activity

14, Difference between Ind AS 7 and AS 3

Particulars

Ind AS7

AS 3

Bank overdraft repayable on
demand

Includes as a part of cash
and cash equivalents

AS 3 is silent on this aspect

Cash payments to
manufacture or acquire
assets held for rental to
others and subsequently
held for sale in the ordinary
course of business

Cash flow from operating
activity

AS 3 does not contain such
requirements

Profit or loss for the
effects of undistributed
profits of associates and
non controlling interest

Adjustment while
determining net cash flow
from operating activities
using indirect method

AS 3 does not contain such
requirements

Cash flows relating to an
investment in joint ventures,
subsidiaries, and associates

Guidance available

No specific guidance

Cash flows associated with
Extraordinary Activities

Does not contain this
requirement

Separately classified as
arising from operating,

investing, and financing

activities

ILLUSTRATIONS

1. Tllustration

Company has provided the following information regarding the various assets held by company on
31st March 20X1. Find out, which of the following items will be part of cash and cash equivalents
for the purpose of preparation of cash flow statement as per the guidance provided in Ind AS 7

Sr.No. | Name of the Security Additional Information

1. Fixed deposit with SBT 12%, 3 years maturity on 1st January
20X4
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2. Fixed deposit with HDFC 10%, original term was for 2 years, but
due for maturity on 30th June 20X1

3. Redeemable Preference shares in ABC Itd | Acquired on 31st January 20X1 and the
redemption is due on 30th April 20X1

4. Cash balances at various banks All branches of all banks in India

5. Cash balances at various banks All international branches of Indian banks

6. Cash balances at various banks Branches of foreign banks outside India

7. Bank overdraft of SBI Fort branch Temporary overdraft, which is payable on
demand

8. Treasury Bills 90 days maturity

2. Illustration

From the following transactions, identify which transactions will be qualified for the calculation of

operating cash flows, if company is into the business of trading of mobile phones.

Sr. | Nature of Transaction

Receipt from sale of mobile phones

Purchases of mobile phones from various companies

Employees expenses paid

Credit sales of mobile

Miscellaneous charges received from customers for repairs of mobiles

1
2
3
4 Advertisement expenses paid
5
6
7

Loss due to decrease in market value of the closing stock of old mobile

phones
8 Payment to suppliers of mobile phones
9 Depreciation on furniture of sales showrooms

10 | Interest paid on cash credit facility of the bank

11 Profit on sale of old computers and printers, in exchange of new laptop
and printer

12 Advance received from customers

13 Sales Tax and excise duty paid

3. Illustration

From the following transactions taken from a private sector bank operating in India, identify which

transactions will be classified as operating and which would be classified as Investing activity.

S. No. Nature of fransaction paid

1 Interest received on loans

2 Interest paid on Deposits

3 Deposits accepted

4 Loans given to customers

5 Loans repaid by the customers

6 Deposits repaid

7 Commission received

8 Lease rentals paid for various branches
9 Service tax paid

10 Furniture purchased for new branches
Ind AS 7 1Fin by IndigoLearn
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11 Implementation of upgraded banking software

12 Purchase of shares in 100% subsidiary for opening a branch in Abu
Dhabi

13 New cars purchased from Honda dealer, in exchange of old cars and
remaining amount paid in cash

14 Provident fund paid for the employees

15 Issued employee stock options

4. TIllustration

From the following fransactions taken from a parent company having multiple businesses and
multiple segments, identify which transactions will be classified as Operating, Investing and
Financing:

S.No | Nature of Transaction

1 Issued preference shares

2 Purchased the shares of 100 % subsidiary company

3 Dividend received from shares of subsidiaries

4 Dividend received from other companies

5 Bonus shares issued

6 Purchased license for manufacturing of special drugs

7 Royalty received from the goods patented by the company

8 Rent received from let out of building (letting out is not main business)
9 Interest received from loans or advances given

10 Dividend paid

11 Interest paid on security deposits

12 Purchased Goodwill

13 Acquired assets by issuing equity shares

14 Interim dividends paid

15 Dissolved the 100% subsidiary and received the amount in final settlement

5. Illustration

Find out the cash from operations by direct method and indirect method from the following
information

Operating statement of ABC Ltd. for the year ended 31.3.20X2

Particulars Amount in
g
Sales
5,00,000.00
Less: Cost of goods sold
3,50,000.00
Administration & Selling Overheads 55,000.00
Depreciation 7,000.00
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Interest Paid 3,000.00
Loss on sale of asset 2,000.00
Profit before tax 83,000.00
Tax (30,000.00)
Profit After tax 53,000.00

Balance Sheet as on 31st March

20X2 | 20x1

Assets
Non-current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 75,000.00 65,000.00
Investment 12,000.00 10,000.00
Current Assets
Inventories 12,000.00 13,000.00
Trade receivables 10,000.00 7.,000.00
Cash and cash equivalents 6,000.00 5,000.00
Total 1,15,000.00 | 1,00,000.00
Equity and Liabilities
Shareholders' Funds 60,000.00 50,000.00
Non-current Liabilities 33,000.00 35,000.00
Current Liabilities
Trade Payables 12,000.00 8,000.00
Payables for Expenses 10,000.00 7,000.00
Total 1,15,000.00 | 1,00,000.00

6. Illustration

Use the following data of ABC Ltd. to construct a statement of cash flows using the direct and

indirect methods:

20X2 20X1
Cash 4,000 14,000
Accounts Receivable 25,000 32,500
Prepaid Insurance 5,000 7,000
Inventory 37,000 34,000
Fixed Assets 3,16,000 2,70,000
Accumulated Depreciation (45,000) (30,000)
Total Assets 3,42,000 3,27,500
Accounts Payable 18,000 16,000
Wages Payable 4,000 7,000
Debentures 1,73,000 1,60,000
Equity Shares 88,000 84,000
Retained Earnings 59,000 60,500
Total Liabilities & Equity 3,42,000 3,27,500
Profit and Loss 20X2
Sales 2,00,000
Ind AS 7 1Fin by IndigoLearn
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Cost of Goods Sold (1,23,000)
Depreciation (15,000)
Insurance Expense (11,000)
Wages (50,000)
Net Profit 1,000

During the financial year 20X2 company ABC Ltd. declared and paid dividend of % 2,500.
During 20X2, ABC Ltd. paid ¥ 46,000 in cash to acquire new fixed assets. The accounts payable was
used only for inventory. No debt was retired during 20X2.

7. Illustration
Following is the balance sheet of Kuber Limited for the year ended 31 March, 20X2

20X2 20X1
Zin lakhs Zin lakhs
Assets
Non-Current assets
Property, plant and equipment 13,000 12,500
Intangible assets 50 30
Other financial assets 145 170
Deferred Tax Asset (het) 855 750
Other non-current assets 800 770
Total non-current assets | 14,850 14,220
Current assets
Financial assets
Investments 2,300 2,500
Cash and cash equivalents 220 460
Other current assets 195 85
Total current assets | 2,715 3,045
Total assets | 17,565 17,265
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 300 300
Other equity 12,000 8,000
Total equity 12,300 8,300
Liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Financial liabilities

Long-term borrowings 2,000 5,000
Other non-current liabilities 2,740 3,615
Total non-current liabilities | 4,740 8,615

Current liabilities

Financial liabilities

Trade payables 150 90

Bank overdraft 75 60
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Other current liabilities 300 200
Total current liabilities | 525 350
Total liabilities | 5,265 8,965
Total equity and liabilities | 17,565 17,265

Additional Information:

(1) Profit after tax for the year ended March 31, 20X2 - % 4,450 lacs

(2) Interim dividend paid during the year - X 450 lacs

(3) Depreciation and amortisation charged in the statement of profit and loss during the
current year are as under

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment - 2 500 lacs
(b) Intangible Assets - X 20 lacs

(4) During the year ended March 31, 20X2 two machineries were sold for 2 70 lacs. The

carrying amount of these machineries as on March 31, 20X2 is % 60 lacs.

(5) Income taxes paid during the year 105 lacs
(6) Other non-current / current assets and liabilities are related to operations of Kuber Ltd.

and do not contain any element of financing and investing activities.

Using the above information of Kuber Limited, construct a statement of cash flows under indirect

method.

8. Illustration

Z Ltd. has no foreign currency cash flow for the year 20X1. It holds some deposit in a bank in the
USA. The balances as on 31.12.20X1 and 31.12.20X2 were US$ 100,000 and US$ 102,000
respectively. The exchange rate on December 31, 20X1 was US$1 = % 45. The same on 31.12.20X2
was US$1 = 2 50. The increase in the balance was on account of interest credited on 31.12.20X2.
Thus, the deposit was reported at ¥ 45,00,000 in the balance sheet as on December 31, 20X1. It
was reported at X 51,00,000 in the balance sheet as on 31.12.20X2. How these transactions should

be presented in cash flow for the year ended 31.12.20X2 as per Ind AS 7?

9. Illustration

During the financial year 2019-2020, Akola Limited have paid various taxes & reproduced the
below mentioned records for your perusal:
> Capital gain tax of T 20 crore on sale of office premises at a sale consideration of 2 100

crore.

» Income Tax of X 3 crore on Business profits amounting X 30 crore (assume entire business
profit as cash profit).
> Dividend Distribution Tax of Z 2 crore on payment of dividend amounting 2 20 crore to its

shareholders.

> Income tax Refund of % 1.5 crore (Refund on taxes paid in earlier periods for business

profits).

You need to determine the net cash flow from operating activities, investing activities and

financing activities of Akola Limited as per relevant Ind AS.

Ind AS 7
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10.Illustration

Entity A acquired a subsidiary, Entity B, during the year. Summarised information from the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and Balance Sheet is provided, fogether with some
supplementary information.

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss

Amount in
Revenue 3,80,000
Cost of sales (2,20,000)
Gross profit 1,60,000
Depreciation (30,000)
Other operating expenses (56,000)
Interest cost (4,000)
Profit before taxation 70,000
Taxation (15,000)
Profit after taxation 55,000

Consolidated Balance Sheet

20X2 20X1

Assets Amount inX Amount inX
Cash and cash equivalents 8,000 5,000
Trade receivables 54,000 50,000
Inventories 30,000 35,000
Property, plant and equipment 1,60,000 80,000
Goodwill 18,000 —
Total assets 2,70,000 1,70,000
Liabilities

Trade payables 68,000 60,000
Income tax payable 12,000 11,000
Long term debt 1,00,000 64,000
Total liabilities 1,80,000 1,35,000
Shareholders' equity 90,000 35,000
Total liabilities and shareholders’ 2,70,000 1,70,000

Other information

All of the shares of entity B were acquired for X 74,000 in cash. The fair values of assets acquired

and liabilities assumed were:

Particulars Amount )

Inventories 4,000
Trade receivables 8,000
Cash 2,000
Property, plant and equipment 1,10,000
Trade payables (32,000)
Long term debt (36,000)
Goodwill 18,000
Cash consideration paid 74,000

Prepare the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year 20X2, as per Ind AS 7.

Ind AS 7 1Fin by IndigoLearn

15.14


http://www.indigolearn.com/

11. Tllustration

The relevant extracts of consolidated financial statements of A Ltd. are provided below:
Consolidated Statement of cash flows

For the year ended (R in
Lakhs)
31st March | 31st March
20X2 20X1
Assets
Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 4,750 4,650
Investment in Associate 800 -
Financial Assets 2,150 1,800
Current Assets
Inventories 1,550 1,900
Trade Receivables 1,250 1,800
Cash and Cash Equivalents 4 650 3,550
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Trade Payables | 1,550 3,610
Extracts from Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
for the year ended 31st March 20X2
Particulars Zin Lakhs
Revenue 12,380
Cost of goods sold (9,860)
Gross Profit 2,520
Other Income 300
Operating Expenses (450)
Other expenses (540)
Interest expenses (110)
Share of Profit of Associate 120
Profit before Tax 1,840

The below information is relevant for A Ltd Group.
1. A Ltd had spent % 30 Lac on renovation of a building. A Ltd charged the entire renovation
cost to profit and loss account.
2. On 1st April 20X1, A Ltd acquired 100% shares in S Ltd, for cash of ¥ 300 Lac. Fair value of
the assets acquired and liabilities assumed under the acquisition are as under:

Property, Plant and Equipment 140 Lakhs
Inventories 60 Lakhs
Trade receivables 30 Lakhs
Cash and cash equivalents 20 Lakhs
Total Assets 250 Lakhs
Less: Trade Payables (50 Lakhs)
Net Assets on acquisition 200 Lakhs
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3. ALtd's property, plant and equipment comprise the following:

Carrying amount on 1st April 20X1 4,650 Lakhs
Addition (at cost) including assets in S Ltd 800 Lakhs
Revaluation Surplus 80 Lakhs
Disposal (Sale) of Assets (490 Lakhs)
Depreciation for the year (290 Lakhs)
Carrying Amount on 31st March 20X2 4,750 Lakhs

A Ltd constructed a machine that is a qualifying asset and incurred construction costs of X 40
Lakhs that has been charged to other expenses. Of the interest cost of X 110 Lakhs charged to
profit or loss statement, X 10 Lakhs includes interest cost on specific borrowings that need to be
capitalized.
Property, plant and equipment was sold at 630 Lac. Gain on disposal is adjusted against operating
expenses.
4. A Ltd. purchased 30% interest in an Associate (6 Ltd) for cash on 1st April 20X1. The
associate reported profit after tax of ¥ 400 Lac and paid a dividend of % 100 Lac for the

year.

5. Impairment test was conducted on 31st March 20X2. The following were impaired as under:
Goodwill impairment loss X 265 Lakhs
Intangible Assets impairment loss 2 900 Lakhs

The goodwill impairment relates to 100% subsidiaries.

Assume that interest cost is all paid in cash.

You are required to determine cash generated from operations for group reporting purposes for
the year ended 31st March 20X2.

12.Illustration

Company A acquires 70% of the equity stake in Company B on July 20, 20X1. The consideration paid
for this transaction is as below:

(a) Cash consideration of ¥ 15,00,000

(b) 200,000 equity shares having face of % 10 and fair value of X 15 per share.

On the date of acquisition, Company B has cash and cash equivalent balance of * 2,50,000 in its
books of account.

On October 10, 20X2, Company A further acquires 10% stake in Company B for cash consideration
of ¥ 8,00,000.

Advise how the above transactions will be disclosed/presented in the statement of cash flows as
per Ind AS 7.

13.Illustration

From the following data of Galaxy Ltd., prepare statement of cash flows showing cash generated
from Operating Activities using direct method as per Ind AS 7:

31.03.20X2 31.03.20X1
(amount in ) (amount in )

Current Assets:

Inventory 1,20,000 1,65,000
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Trade receivables 2,05,000 1,88,000
Cash & cash | 35,000 20,500
equivalents

Current Liabilities:

Trade payable 1,95,000 2,15,000
Provision for tax 48,000 65,000

Summary of Statement of Profit and Loss *

Sales 85,50,000

Less: Cost of sales (56,00,000) ‘ 29,50,000
Other Income

Interest income 20,000

Fire insurance claim | 1,10,000 1,30,000
received

30,80,000

Depreciation (24,000)

Administrative and | (15,40,000)
selling expenses

Interest expenses (36,000)

Foreign exchange loss | (18,000) | (16,18,000)
Net Profit before tax | 14,62,000

and extraordinary

income

Income Tax (95,000)

Net Profit 13,67,000

Additional information:
(i) Trade receivables and Trade payables include amounts relating to credit sale and credit
purchase only.
(i)  Foreign exchange loss represents increment in liability of a long-term borrowing due to
exchange rate fluctuation between acquisition date and balance sheet date.
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Ind AS 115
Revenue from Contracts with Customers

1 Objective

e To establish the principles that an entity shall apply to report useful information about
o Nature
o Amount
o Timing
o Uncertainty

of revenue and cashflows arising from contract with customers .

e Entity shall recognise revenue to depict
o Transfer of goods and services to the customer
o Inan amount (consideration in exchange)

2 Five Step Model

An entity shall apply the five step model to recognise revenue.

4 N +Approved contract

*|dentify each party rights

*ldentify the payment terms
*Commercial Substance

\_ W, *Collection of consideration - Probable

*Performance Obligation - Promise

*Each promise to transfer goods or services to the
customer

Y~ +amount of consideration which an entity expects J

|dentify the contract with
customer

Identify Performance
obligations

Determine the to be entitled to receive in exchange of the goods

transaction price A or performance of services to a customer.

s i )
Allocate the transaction *Allocate the transaction price to each
Price performance obligation.
. I
s N *When the entity satisfies a performance
R ice R obligation

€cognise Revenue by transferring promised goods or services

- J +Customer obtains control of the asset

3 Step 1- Identify the contractwith the customer

Customer - A party that has contracted with an entity to obtain goods or services that are an
output of the entity’s ordinary activities in exchange for consideration.
Contract - An agreement between two or more parties that creates enforceable rights and
obligations. Contract can be oral, written or as per customary business practices.
Recognising a contract
An entity shall account for a contract with customer only if all the following conditions are
satisfied (Paragraph 9)

An entity shall not reassess Step 1 once the criteria under Para 9 are met. This is the case
even if the ability of customer to pay the consideration deteriorates subsequently. /f
collectability is uncertain subsequently, the entity will test receivable for impairment as per Ind
AS 109. Revenue is not reversed in such a case.

4
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Contract is approved by . . . . . .
parties (either orally, Entity can identify eqch Entity can identify the
written or in accordance parties’ rights regarding payment terms for the
with customary business the goods or services to be goods or services to be
transferred transferred
/4

flows is expected to change

The transaction has commercial substance, i.e., It is probable that the entity will
the risk, timing or amount of the future cash collect the consideration to which it

is entitled to

e A contract does not exist if any of the party
has a unilateral enforceable right to terminate a wholly unperformed contract without
compensating the other parties. If both parties can mutually agree and terminate the
contract (even without penalty), a contract exists for the purpose of Ind AS 115,

e A contract is wholly unperformed if

o The entity has not yet transferred any promised goods or services and
o The entity has not yet received or is entitled to receive any consideration in
exchange for goods and services.

determine the duration of contract.

An entity shall apply Ind AS 115 to the duration of contract (contractual period) in
which the parties have enforceable rights and obligations. Hence it is important to

Examples - Whether a contract exists or not?

Case

Answer

Either party can terminate the contract
without penalty

Contract does not exist

Both parties can mutually agree and
terminate the contract

Contract exists

Two parties have entered into a four
year contract. Neither party can
terminate the contract in the first year.
Either party can terminate the contract
after first year without penalty.

Contract exists and is enforceable for
the first year.

Contract is for 4 year and customer can
terminate at each year end with
substantive penalty

Contract exists for 4 years

Contract can be terminated at each
month end at option of customer without
penalty

Contract exists and is considered as a
month on month contract [e.g. Netflix
subscription]

Contract is for 1 year and customer can
terminate the contract with penalty in
the first year.

Contract exists for 1 year
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[ Termination ]

[ By either party

[ Both Party Mutually ]

With Penalty
penalty (Substantive)

Without

Contract Exist } <«

No Contract ’ [

C - Contract v

R - Rights ¥

P - Payment terms ’/

C - Commercial Substance v
C - Collectability v

Consideration received from customer but Step 1 criteria not met

Recognise Revenue only if any of the
following is satisfied

(Till then recognised a liability)

[ Consideration - Non]

Para 9 Conditions met

refundable
subsequently

4 N\
Entity has no obligations [Contract is terminated
remaining to transfer
goods/services

. J

g N

Substantially all
Consideration received

- J

Reassessment of Step 1

If a contract with a customer meets the criteria in paragraph 9 at contract inception, an entity
shall not reassess those criteria unless there is an indication of a significant change in facts and
circumstances.

Example - If a customer’s ability to pay the consideration deteriorates significantly, an entity
would reassess whether it is probable that the entity will collect the consideration to which the
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entity will be entitled in exchange for the remaining goods or services that will be transferred to
the customer.

Combination of contracts
Two or more contracts may need to be accounted for as a single contract if they are entered into
at or near the same time with same customer if any of the following is satisfied:
e R
Contracts are negotiated as a package with a single commercial objective

e A
Amount of consideration in one contract depends on price or

performance of another

Goods and Services promised are single performance obligation

- J

Contract Modifications
A contract modification exists if three conditions are satisfied:

There is a change in the That change is approved The change is
scope, price, or bothin a by both the entity and enforceable
contract the customer

[ Accounting for Contract Modification ]

1
I |

[ Not a Separate ]

[ Separate contract J

contract
_ 4 )
Treated as a seperate contract if both )
the conditions are satisfied: If goods or services to Other cases
: be provided after
- Increases thfa scope by adding new modification are distinct
goods or services. from goods or services
- Increase in the contract price reflects that were  already Account for the
the stand-alone price of the additional provided. modification on a
goods and services. cumulative
C )\ J

catch-up Dbasis
 (retrospectively)

s N

Account for the
modifiction
prospectively

)

4 Step 2 - Identifying performance obligation

Criteria for identifying performance obligation
At contfract inception, an entity shall assess:

The goods and services Shall identify performance
promised in a contract with obligation under each promise to be
a customer, and transferred to the customer.

e Promises under the contract can be
o Explicit- which are promised o be provided in the future.
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o Implicit- which are implied by the customary business practice.
Performance obligation
It is a promise to transfer either :
e A good or service or a (bundle of goods or services) that is distinct; or
e A series of distinct goods or services that are substantially the same and that have the
same pattern of transfer to the customer

[ Performance Obligation ]

[Satisfied over a period of]

: [ Satisfied at point of time ]
time

Distinct performance obligation
A good or service that is promised to a customer is distinct if both of the following criteria are
met:

Separately identifiable from other

Customer can benefit on its own or with

promises in the contract

other readily available resources

Factors to consider:

A customer can benefit from a good e No significant integration
or service if the good or service could service

be used, consumed, sold for an ¢ No significant modification or
amount that is greater than scrap customisation

value or otherwise held in a way that e Goods or services are not
generates economic benefits. highly interdependent or

highly interrelated.

Promise to transfer a series of distinct goods or services
There might be cases, where distinct goods or services are provided continuously over a period of
time. For e.g. security services, or bookkeeping services.
A series of distinct goods or services has the same pattern of transfer to the customer if both of
the following criteria are met:
e each distinct good or service in the series that the entity promises to transfer to the
customer would meet the criteria to be a performance obligation satisfied over time; and
e the same method would be used to measure the entity's progress towards complete
satisfaction of the performance obligation to transfer each distinct good or service in the
series to the customer.

5. Step 3 - Determination of transaction price

Transaction price-
= is the amount of consideration
* to which an entity expects
* to be entitled
= inexchange for transferring promised goods or services to a customer,
= excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties (for example, sales taxes).
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Consideration promised in a contract may be fixed or variable or both.
When determining the transaction price, an entity shall consider the effects of all of the
following:

Variable Constraining Estimates of Significant financing
consideration Variable consideration component
Consideration payable to Non-cash consideration
customer

5.1 Variable consideration

)
Variable
Consideration

;I_/

I | ]

( N
Discounts & Price Contingent .
; . . Penalties
concessions considerations

\§ J

t Incentives & If it is integral part
Performance graip

of a contract
bonuses

* An entity shall estimate the amount of consideration to which the entity will be entitled in
exchange for transferring the promised goods or services to a customer.

* Anentity shall include in the transaction price some or all of an amount of variable
consideration estimated only to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant
reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the
uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved

( ) ( )
Range of Amounts Probability weighted
N average
Estimation of Variable N
consideration s
J
Two possible ourcomes Most Likely Outcomes
& J . J

5.1.1 Penalties
Where the penalty is inherent in determination of transaction price, it shall form part of variable
consideration.

5.1.2 Estimating the amount of variable consideration
An entity shall estimate an amount of variable consideration by using either of the following methods:
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The Expected Value

The most likely amount

*The expected value is the sum of
probability-weighted amounts in a
range of possible consideration

*It is the single most likely amount in
a range of possible consideration
amounts (ie the single most likely

outcome of the contract)

*This method is appropriate if the
contract has only two possible
outcomes .

amounts.

*This method is appropriate if an
entity has large number of contracts
with similar characteristics.

An entity shall apply one method consistently throughout the contract when estimating the effect
of an uncertainty on an amount of variable consideration to which the entity will be entitled.

5.1.3 Refund liabilities
An entity shall recognise a refund liability if
* the entity receives consideration from a customer and
= expects fo refund some or all of that consideration to the customer.
A refund liability is measured at the amount of consideration received (or receivable) for which
the entity does not expect to be entitled (i.e. amounts not included in the ftransaction price).
5.1.4 Constraining estimates of variable consideration
An entity shall include variable consideration, in the transaction price only to the extent that it is
highly probable that a significant reversal will not occur.
Factors that could increase the likelihood of a revenue reversal include -
* the amount of consideration is highly susceptible to factors outside the entity's influence.
* The uncertainty about the amount of consideration is not expected to be resolved for a long
period of time
* The entity's experience (or other evidence) with similar types of contracts is limited, or
that experience (or other evidence) has limited predictive value
* The entity has a practice of either offering a broad range of price concessions or changing
the payment tferms and conditions of similar contracts in similar circumstances
= The contfract has a large number and broad range of possible consideration amounts

5.1.5 Reassessment of variable consideration
At the end of each reporting period, an entity shall update the estimated transaction price (including
updating its assessment of whether an estimate of variable consideration is constrained) to
represent faithfully the circumstances present at the end of the reporting period and the changes
in circumstances during the reporting period.

5.2 Sale with a right of return

Ind AS 115 1FIN by Indigo Learn 16.7



Recognise

|
I | ]

Revenue for the Refund Liabilit An asset for right to
transferred Products y recover products

Amt of consideration
: Update at end of .
entity expects to be . Adjust to cost of sales.
entitled each period

For the transfer of products with a right of return (and for some services that are provided
subject to a refund), an entity shall recognise :
o revenue for the transferred products in the amount of consideration to which the

entity expects to be entitled;

a refund liability; and

an asset (and corresponding adjustment to cost of sales) for its right fo recover

products from customers on settling the refund liability.
Exchanges by customers of one product for another of the same type, quality, condition, and
price (for example, one colour or size for another) are not considered returns for the
purposes of applying this Standard.

5.3 Significant financing component

If there is a significant component financing, time value of money is adjusted from the agreed
amount of consideration.
Either party may benefit from financing:
o customer may pay before the entity performs its obligation (a customer loans to the
entity)
o customer may pay after the entity performs its obligation (a loan by the entity to the
customer
Recognise revenue at the expected cash price.
Financing component is recognised separately from revenue.
Factors to determine whether financing component is significant
o The difference, if any, between the amount of promised consideration and the cash
selling price; and
o The combined effect of both of the following:
> the expected length of time between when the entity transfers the promised
goods or services and when the customer pays; and
> the prevailing interest rates in the relevant market.
Entity shall use the discount rate that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the entity and its customer at contract inception.
After contract inception, an entity shall not update the discount rate for changes in interest
rates or other circumstances.
An entity need not adjust the the effects of a significant financing component if the entity
expects, at contract inception, that the period between:
o When the entity transfers a promised good or service to a customer and
o When the customer pays for that good or service
o will be one year or less.
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A contract with a customer would not have a significant financing component if any of the following
factors exist:

mer i for th . .
customer  paid 1o t‘e A substantial amount of Difference between
goods or services in . A . . . )
.. consideration is variable promised consideration and
advance and the timing of . ) .
based on future event that cash selling price arises for
the transfer ofthose goods . .
. . is not within the control of reasons other than the
or services is at the . - .
. . the customer or the entity. provision of finance.
discretion of the customer.

[ L

Under AS-9, there is no specific requirement to identify and separate the significant financing
component.

5.4 Non-cash consideration
e Sometimes a customer promises to pay for a good or service in a form other than cash, such
as shares of common stock or other equity instruments, advertising, or equipment.
e To determine the transaction price, an entity shall:

If it cannot estimate fair
value , it shall measure at
standalone selling price of
goods or services given

In the first instance,
measure the non-cash
consideration at fair value

5.4.1 Subsequent measurement of non-cash consideration

If the fair value of the non-cash consideration

If the fair value of the non-cash consideration

varies after contract inception because of its varies for reasons other than only the form of

form consideration
*Entity does not not adjust transaction price for +Entity shall apply the guidance on variable
any such change. consideration and the constraint when

determining the transaction price.

5.4.2 Customer-provided goods or services
e If acustomer contributes goods or services (for example, materials, equipment or labour) o
facilitate an entity’'s fulfilment of the contract, the entity shall assess whether it obtains
control of those contributed goods or services.
e If entity obtains control fair value of goods or services supplied by customer will be added
to transaction price.
5. 5 Consideration payable to a customer
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Consideration payable to a customer includes cash amounts, credit or other items that an entity
pays, or expects to pay or that can be applied against amounts owed fo the entity.

Consideration payable to customer

I
I I

If consideration If consideration does
relates to distinct not relate to distinct
good or service good or service
|
I I
Consideration does Consideration exceeds Account for the
not exceed the fair the fair value of consideration as a
value of distinct good distinct good or reduction of the
or service received service received transaction price

/ /

Acccount for the
excess as a reduction
of the transaction
price

Account the purchases
in the same way that
the entity accounts for
other purchases from
supplier

6. Step 4 - Allocating the transaction price to performance obligations

The entity shall allocate the transaction price to each performance obligation identified in the
contract on a relative stand-alone selling price basis except-

e For allocating discounts

e For allocating variable consideration

6.1 Determining stand-alone selling price

e Stand-alone selling price - the observable price of a good or service when the entity sells
that good or service separately in similar circumstances and to similar customers.

o If stand-alone selling price is not directly observable, an entity shall consider all
information (including market conditions, entity-specific factors and information about the
customer or class of customer) that is reasonably available to the entity.

e An entity shall maximise the use of observable inputs and apply estimation methods
consistently in similar circumstances.

Methods for estimating the stand-alone selling price of a good or service include the following:
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[ Methods ]
[

[
Adjusted market Expected cost Residual
approach plus margin approach

approach

e N\ 4 ) (—Total transaction price Iess\

-Forecast its expected
P sum of observable

costs for each . .
standalone selling prices of

performance obligation . .
and then add  an other goods or services in
contract.

appropriate margin for
that good or service.
Take the market price

Lo -This method is used only if :
in similar market and

adjust those prices to -It may not be a. entity sells the same good
reflect the entity's appropriate: or service to differnet
cost and margins. a. when direct customers for a broad range
fulfillment costs are not of amounts.
easily identifiable, or b. entity has not yet

established a price or such
significant  input  in good or service has not
setting the price previously been sold on a

\_ RN Y, \stand—alonebasis. )

e An entity shall allocate the discount before using the residual approach to estimate the
stand-alone selling price of a good or service where the discount is allocated entirely to one
or more performance obligations in the contract.

6.1.1 Allocation of a discount

¢ Discount relates to all performance obligations - Proportionately based on stand alone selling
price

e Discount relates to one or more (but not all) performance obligation - Allocate to only specific
performance obligation

e When to allocate discount to 'less than all' performance obligations?

o The entity regularly sells each distinct or each bundle of those distinct goods or
services;
o Entity also regularly sells a bundle (or bundles) of some of those distinct goods or
services at a discount; and
o Discount attributable to each bundle of goods or services is substantially the same as
the discount in the contract and an analysis provides evidence of performance
obligations to which the entire discount belongs.
6.1.2 Allocation of variable consideration
e Variable consideration may be attributable to
o the entire contract or
o a specific part of the contract
e How to allocate variable consideration?

b. when costs are not a
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Variable
consideration

Relates to part of Reates to entire
contract contract
Allocate to all
Allocate only to that performance
part obligations in the ratio

of standalone price.

e Anentity shall allocate a variable amount enftirely to a performance obligation or to a distinct
good or service that forms part of a single performance obligation if both of the following
criteria are met:

o The terms of a variable payment relate specifically o the entity's efforts to
satisfy the performance obligation or transfer the distinct good or service.
o allocating the variable amount of consideration entirely to the performance
obligation or the distinct good or service is consistent with the allocation objective
6.2 Changes in fransaction price
* An entity shall allocate to the performance obligations any subsequent changes in the
transaction price on the same basis as at contract inception.
* An entity shall not reallocate the transaction price to reflect changes in standalone selling
prices after contract inception.
* Amounts allocated to a satisfied performance obligation shall be recognised as revenue, or
as a reduction of revenue, in the period in which the transaction price changes.
e If the change in transaction price is the result of a contract modification, the entity should
follow the contract modification guidance.

7. Step 5 - Satisfying performance obligation

e Anentity shall recognise revenue as and when the entity satisfies a performance obligation
by transferring a promised good or service (i.e. an asset) to a customer. An asset is
transferred when the customer obtains control of that asset.

e Questions that need to be answered at contract inception to determine if the seller has
satisfied its performance obligation are:

Does the customer acquire
control over a period of time

Establish what does transfer of control
mean in the context of the arrangement
between the parties? or at a point in time?

7.1 What does fransfer of control mean?
Control of an asset refers to the ability to direct the use and obtain substantially all of the benefits
from the asset or ability to prevent other entities from directing the use of, and obtaining the
benefits from an asset.
An entity shall consider indicators of the transfer of control which are as follows:

o The entity has a present right to payment for the asseft;
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e The customer has legal title fo the asset;
e The entity has transferred physical possession of the asset;

e The customer has the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the asset;
e The customer has accepted the asseft.

7.2 Does the customer acquire control over a period of time or at a point in time?
7.2.1 Transfer of control over a period of time

*+ Criteria (a)- Applied in situations where benefit of seller's performance are immediately

[

time

ransfer of control over a period oq

An entity transfers control of a good or service over time
and satisfies a performance obligation and recognises
revenue over time, if any of the following criteria is met

l

I

Criteria (a)-Customer
simultaneously
receives and
consumes the benefits
provided by entity's
performance as the
entity performs; or

Criteria (b)-Entity's
performance creates
or enhances an asset

that the customer

controls as the asset is
created or enhanced;
or

consumed by customer e.g security service.

* Criteria (b)- Applied in situations Where the customer ordinarily obtains control of the

Criteria (c)-Entity's
performance does not
create an asset with an

alternative use to the
entity and entity has
an enforceable right to
payment for
performance
completed to date
7

asset whose work is in progress - construction done on customer's land

* Criteria (c)- Applied in situations in which an asset is created at customer’s discretion, which
the seller is restricted from using for any other purpose and at the same time, the seller

entity reserves a right to seek payment for work in process.
Conditions for (c)

Ind AS 115

Asset does not have an alternative use to seller - This can arise due to contractual

restrictions or practical limitations.

There is a Legally enforceable right to receive payment for performance completed
to date. This payment should compensate the supplier for costs incurred plus a profit

margin.
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e Methods of measuring progress of a performance obligation satisfied over time:

mmmet  Output based method

*Recognise revenue on the basis of fair value of goods or services transferred to
date relative to remaining goods or services.

*Example: Surveys of performance completed to date,appraisals of results
achieved etc.

mmmm 'NPuUt based method

*Recognise revenue based on the entity's efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of a
performance obligation.

*Example: Resources consumed labour hours expended, cost incurred, time
elapsed or machine hours used

7.2.2 Transfer of control at a point in time

If none of the criteria of over a period of fime is met, the performance obligation is considered to
be discharged at a point in fime.

Indicators to imply the point of fime at which control of goods has been passed to the customer
includes:

A present Physical Legal title Risks and Accepted
obligation possession rewards of the asset
to pay ownership

7.3 Repurchase agreements
A repurchase agreement is a contract in which an entity sells an asset and also promises or has the
option to repurchase the assef.

| Forward: An entity's obligation to repurchase the

asset
Repurchase Call option: An entity's right to repurchase the
agreements asset

Put option: An entity's obligation to repurchase
the asset at the customer's request

7.3.1 Forward or call option:
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Accounting Treatment

(" ) ("
Repurchase price is less
than Original Selling price

g [ _J N\ ]
-
(Contract will be accounted\ .
Contract will be accounted
as a lease as per Ind AS . .
116 as a financing arrangement

NS J N\

Repurchase price is more
than or equal to Original
Selling price

Entity shall continue to
recognise the asset and
also recognise a financial
liability for consideration
received

Difference between
Original Sale price and

e A customer does not obtain control of the asset
e If the option lapses unexercised, an entity shall
revenue.

derecognise the liability and recognise

7.3.2 Put option:

Accounting
Treatment
|
! |
if repurchase price if repurchase price
< Original Selling >= Original Selling
price price
Does the customer Repurchase Repurchase
have significant price> price <=
economic incentive Expected Expected
to exercise the right market price Market price
/
Accounted as
Yes No a financing Does thhe
arrangement customer have
significant
economic
incentive to
Accounte Accounted exercise the
d as per as sale right
Ind AS116 with right
to return
Yes No
[ 7/
Accounted as recognise
a financing revenue
with right
arrangement
to return
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7.4 Bill-and-hold

e Abill-and-hold arrangement is a contract under which an entity bills a customer for a product
but the entity retains physical possession of the product until it is fransferred to the
customer at a point in time in the future.

e Insuch arrangement, the entity shall recognise revenue at the point of time when control is
transferred to the customer.

e For few cases, a customer may obtain control of a product even though that product remains
in an entity's physical possession if all the following criteria is met:

The reason for the bill-and-hold arrangement must be substantive;

The product must be identified separately as belonging to the customer;

The product currently must be ready for physical transfer to the customer; and

|4

the entity cannot have the ability to use the product or to direct it to another
customer.

4

e Where an entity recognises revenue on bill-and-hold basis, the entity shall determine if it has
any additional performance obligations and allocate a portion of transaction price to each
performance obligation.

7.5 Licenses of intellectual property

Licences of intellectual property establish a customer’'s rights to the intellectual property of an
entity and may include licences for any of the following: software and technology, media and
entertainment (e.g. motion pictures and music), franchises, patents, trademarks and copyrights.

License of Intellectual property (IP)

I
| |

Right to Access IP Right to use IP
(over time) (point of time)

/

mlcriteria must be met \ \

If all the criteria for access

1.Entity  is required/reaso_ngple over time are not met then

expected to wundertake activities right to use IP

which can significantly affect the _ _

licensed Ip (customer is able to dlr_ect the
) use of and obtain all

2.License exposes the customer to remaining benefits from the

any effects of entities activities licensed IP i.e static IP)

3.The activities of the entity are not

performance obligatin under

@tra ct /

8. Contract Costs
8.1 Costs to obtain a contract (contract acquisition costs)
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Contract acquisition

cost

l

l

Cost incurred whether or not
contract is obtained or not

Incremental costs incurred to

obtain a contract

Recognise as
Expense

Examples of Contract Acquisition costs:

[

Recognise as asset if
the incremental costs
are expected to be
recovered

If the amortization period of the
asset is one year or less, then
entity may expense oust such

incremental costs

Cost Capitalize Reason

Or

Expense
Commission paid only upon | Capitalize Assuming the entity expects to recover the cost,
successful signing of a the commission is incremental since it would not
contract have been paid if the parties decided not to

enter info the arrangement just before signing.
Travel expenses for sales | Expense Because the costs are incurred regardless of
persons pitching a new client whether the new contract is won or lost, the
contract entity expenses the costs, unless they are
expressly reimbursable.

Legal fees for drafting | Expense If the parties walk away during negotiations, the
terms of arrangement for costs would still be incurred and therefore are
parties to approve and sign not incremental costs of obtaining the contract.
Salaries for sales people | Expense The salaries are incurred regardless of whether
working  exclusively  on contracts are won or lost and therefore are not
obtaining new clients incremental costs to obtain the contract.
Bonus based on quarterly | Capitalize Bonuses based solely on sales are incremental
sales target costs to obtain a contract.
Commission paid to sales | Capitalize The commissions are incremental costs that

manager based on contracts
obtained by the sales
manager's local employees

would not have been incurred had the entity not
obtained the contract. Ind AS 115 does not
differentiate costs based on the function or title
of the employee that receives the commission.

8.2 Costs to fulfil a contract (contract fulfilment costs)

Ind AS 115
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Contract fulfilment cost

I
I I

Cost incurred in fulfiling a contract If cost incurred are not covered
covered under another standard under any Ind AS
Entity accounts those Nentity shall recognise sﬁ
costs in accodance costs as an asset if all the
with the respective criteria be met:
standards 1. cost directly relate to contract
(such as direct material, direct
labour, other indirect cost of
production, etc)

2. cost generate or enhance
resources of entity that will be
used to satisfy performance
obligation in future, and

3. If entity expects to recover
wcost. /

Following costs should be expensed as incurred :

general and administrative costs that are not explicitly chargeable o the customer

costs of wasted materials, labour, or other resources that were not reflected in the contract
price

costs that relate to satisfied performance obligations

costs related to remaining performance obligations that cannot be distinguished from costs
related to satisfied performance obligations.

8.3 Amortisation and impairment

Amortize capitalised contract costs on a systematic basis consistent with the pattern of
transferring the goods or services. Any change in expected pattern, is accounted as a change
in accounting estimate as per Ind AS 8.

recognises an impairment loss in earnings if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds the
remaining amount of consideration less any directly related contract costs yet to be
recognised.

Before recognising an impairment loss under the revenue recognition guidance, an entity
recognises impairment losses associated with assets related to the contract that are
accounted in accordance with another Standard (for example, Ind AS 2, Ind AS 16 and Ind
AS 38)

Reversal of impairment loss is allowed when the impairment conditions no longer exist or have
improved. The increased carrying amount of the asset shall not exceed the amount that would
have been determined (net of amortisation) if no impairment loss had been recognised
previously.

Ind AS 115 1FIN by Indigo Learn 16.18



9. Misc Matters

9.1 Warranties

Warranties

Customer has an option to
purchase warranty separately

Customer does not have
option to purchase warranty
separately

warranty will be a distinct service and
treated as a separate performance . .
obligation and a portion of transaction Account for warranty in accordance with
price should be allocated to it. Ind AS 37.

%warranty is not treated as seperaD

performance obligation and revenue to
be attributable to the product.

N /

In assessing whether a warranty is a separate performance obligation or not, an entity shall
consider factors such as:

Whether warranty is Length of warranty Nat-ure of t?Sk that
: . entity promises  to
required by law coverage period
perform
*If required by law, it *The longer the *Those tasks do not give
indicates that the coverage period, the rise to a performance
promised warranty is more likely it is that the obligation.
not a performance promised warranty is a
obligation. performance
obligation.

9.2 Customer options for additional goods or services

Ind AS 115

An entity may grant a customer the option to acquire additional goods or services in form
of coupons, gift cards and customer award credits etc;

Such option is treated as a separate performance obligation if it provides a material right
to the customer.

The right is material if it results ina discount that the customer would not receive without
entering into the contract.

If the option provides a material right to the customer, the customer in effect pays the
entity in advance for future goods or services and the entity recognises revenue when
those future goods or services are transferred or when the option expires.

Entity shall allocate the transaction price to performance obligations on a relative stand-
alone selling price basis.

If the stand-alone selling price for a customer’s option to acquire additional goods or
services is not directly observable, an entity shall estimate it.

Estimate shall reflect the discount that the customer would obtain when exercising the
option, adjusted for both of the following:
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o any discount that the customer could receive without exercising the option; and
o the likelihood that the option will be exercised.

9.3Long term arrangements
Entities enter info arrangements to provide services on a long-term basis it shall be accounted for

its rights and obligations s for each period in which the contract cannot be cancelled by either party.
In long-term service agreements when the consideration is fixed, the accounting generally will not
change regardless of whether a single performance obligation or multiple performance obligations
are identified.

9.4 Consignment arrangements

Consignment agreement - It is an agreement between a consignee and consignor for the storage,
transfer, sale or resale and use of the goods.

Indicators for evaluating the arrangement as a consignment arrangement:

The product is controlled by the entity until a specified event occurs, such as the sale of the

product to a customer of the dealer or until a specified period expires;
/4

The entity is able to require the return of the product or transfer the product to a third party;

and
| 4

The dealer does not have an unconditional obligation to pay for the product (although it
might be required to pay a deposit)

4

9.5Revenue is recognized when the entity has transferred control of the goods to the consignor or

the end consumer.
A consignment sale differs from a sale with a right of return

]
I ]

sale with right of return consignment sales
L customer has control of consignee does not have
the goods the control

Principal vs agent consideration

When entity is

acting as
|
[ |
Principal Agent
Recognise revenue on Recognise revenue
gross basis on net basis
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Indicators that an entity is a principal include the following:

the entity is primarily responsible for fulfilling the contract.

/4

the entity has inventory risk before the specified good or service has been transferred to a

customer or after transfer of control to the customer.
|4

the entity has discretion in establishing prices for the goods or services.

After an entity identifies its promise and determines whether it is the principal or the
agent, the entity recognises revenue when it satisfies that performance obligation.

In some contracts in which the entity is the agent, control of the goods or services promised by the
agent might transfer before the customer receives the goods or services from the principal.

9.6 Non refundable upfront fees

Non refundable upfront fees

Does not relate to goods or
services which an entity has to
provide at the inception and it is

not a separate performance

obligation

Relates to goods or services which
an entity has to provide at the
inception and it is a separate
performance obligation

Recognise over the period when
the performance obligation is
satisfied

Recognise immediately at
inception

9.7 Sales-based or usage-based royalties
An entity shall recognise revenue for a sales-based or usage-based royalty promised in exchange
for a licence of intellectual property only when (or as) the later of the following events occurs:
e The subsequent sale or usage occurs; and
e The performance obligation to which some or all of the sales-based or usage-based royalty
has been allocated has been satisfied (or partially satisfied).

10. Presentation

Balance Sheet | As a contract liability, a contract asset or a receivable
- contract liability: If the customer has paid consideration, or
if payment is due on reporting date but the entity has not yet
satisfied a performance obligation.
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Profit & Loss

11. Disclosure

- contract asset or a receivable: If its right fo consideration
is conditioned on something other than the passage of time;
otherwise, an entity recognises a receivable.

Recognise revenue

Disclosure area
General

Disaggregation of

revenue

Information about
contract balances

Information about
performance

obligations

Transaction
allocated
remaining
performance
obligations
Timing of satisfaction
of performance

price

to the

Information about
significant judgements

Transaction price and
the amount allocated

to performance
obligations
Assets recognised

from the costs to

Ind AS 115

Summary of requirements

revenue recognised from contracts with customers,
separately from its other sources of revenue.
impairment losses on receivables or contract assets.
categories that depict the nature, amount, timing, and
uncertainty of revenue and cash flows.

sufficient information to enable users of financial
statements fo understand the relationship with
revenue information disclosed for reportable
segments under Ind AS 108.

including opening and closing balances of contract
assets, contract liabilities, and receivables (if not
separately presented)

when the entity typically satisfies performance
obligations

significant payment terms

nature of goods and services

obligations for returns, refunds and similar obligations
types of warranties and related obligations

that are unsatisfied and an explanation of when the
entity expects to recognise such revenue.

performance obligations that an entity satisfies over
time.

performance obligations satisfied at a point in time.
judgements impacting the expected timing of
satisfying performance obligations transaction price
and amounts allocated to performance obligations.
determining the ftransaction price, estimating variable
consideration, adjusting the consideration.

estimate of variable consideration is constrained .
measuring obligations for returns, refunds, and other
similar obligations.

allocating the transaction price, discounts, and
variable consideration.

judgments made in determining costs amount of the
costs incurred to obtain or fulfil a contract with a
customer.
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obtain or fulfil a e amortisation method used for closing balances by
contract main category and amortisation expense.
Practical expedients e existence of a significant financing component.

e incremental costs of obtaining a contract.

12. Service Concession Arrangements

12.1 About Service Concession Arrangement
e Service Concession Arrangement involves a private sector entity (an operator) constructing
the infrastructure used to provide the public service. It also involves operating and
maintaining infrastructure for a specified period of time.
e It is often described as a 'build-operate-transfer’, a ‘rehabilitate-operate-transfer’ or a
‘public-to-private’ service concession arrangement.

/Operator— An entity constructing and operating the infrastructure, the operator\
is responsible for the management of infrastructure and do not merely act as an
agent. The operator is paid for its services over period of arrangement.

Grantor- It is a public sector entity, including a governmental body, or a private
sector entity to which the responsibility for the service has been devolved .

- /

12.2 Accounting Principles

12.3 Treatment of the operator’s rights over the infrastructure

Infrastructure shall not be recognised as property, plant and equipment of the operator because
the operator has no right to control the use of the public service infrastructure to the operator,
however operator has access to operate the infrastructure to provide the public service on behalf
of the grantor in accordance with the terms specified in the contract.

12.4 Recognition and measurement
e Operator acting as a service provider, shall recognise and measure revenue in accordance with
Ind AS 115,
e If the operator performing more than one service (i.e, construction or upgrade services and
operation services) under a single contract or arrangement, consideration received or
receivable shall be allocated on the fair values of the services rendered.

12.5 Consideration given by the grantor to the operator

e If the operator provides construction or upgrade services, the consideration received or
receivable by the operator shall be recognized at its fair value.
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Consideration by grantor to
operator

I
I |

Gnconditional right to recei\D
cash or another financial asset
from grantor for constructing a
public sector asset and then
operating it for a specified

Qariod J

Right to charge users of
public service is not an
unconditional right to
receive cash because
amounts are contigent

Recognise a right to Recognise a right to an
financial asset intangible asset

Account the financial asset Apply Ind AS 38 for measuring

under Ind AS 32 Ind AS 107 intangible asset acquired in
Ind AS109 exchange and amortising such

intangible asset

e If the operator is paid for the construction services partly by a financial asset and partly by
an intangible asset it is necessary to account separately for each component of operator's
consideration.

12.6 Contractual obligations o restore the infrastructure fo a specified level of serviceability

The operator may have contractual obligations it must fulfil as a condition of its licence, like to
maintain or restore infrastructure, except for any upgrade element, which shall be recognised and
measured in accordance with Ind AS 37.

12.7 Borrowing costs incurred by the operator
e Operator has a contractual right to receive an intangible asset: recognise as an expense.
e Operator does not have a contractual right to receive an intangible asset: capitalise during
the construction phase.

Ind AS 115

Revenue from Contracts with Customers
ILLUSTRATIONS

1. Tllustration (SM)

Company A has a customer P which is undergoing restructuring due to issues related to liquidity.
Company A has decided not to do any further business with P. P has informed Company A that it will
get Letter of Credit from a nationalised bank against which the Company A can despatch goods.
Company A has manufactured the goods exclusively for P, but the Letter of Credit has not yet been
arranged because it is in process. When should Company A recognise the revenue?

2. Illustration (SM)

An entity G Ltd. enters into a contract with a customer P Ltd. for the sale of a machinery for
Rs.20,00,000. P Ltd. intends to use the said machinery o start a food processing unit. The food
processing industry is highly competitive and P Ltd. has very little experience in the said industry.
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P Ltd. pays a non-refundable deposit of Rs.1,00,000 at inception of the contract and enters into a
long-term financing agreement with G Ltd. for the remaining 95 per cent of the agreed consideration
which it intends to pay primarily from income derived from its food processing unit as it lacks any
other major source of income. The financing arrangement is provided on a non-recourse basis, which
means that if P Ltd. defaults then G Ltd. can repossess the machinery but cannot seek further
compensation from P Ltd., even if the full value of the amount owed is not recovered from the
machinery. The cost of the machinery for G Ltd. is Rs.12,00,000. P Ltd. obtains control of the
machinery at contract inception.

When should 6 Ltd. recognise revenue from sale of machinery to P Ltd. in accordance with paragraph
9 of Ind AS 1152

3. Illustration (SM)

X Ltd. provides IT support services to its customers from a distant location. Customers call up the
support team of X Ltd., who understand the client's requirement over the phone and provide
necessary advice to the customer to resolve their issue. Before providing advice, the support team
member will understand the client’s problem and inform them about the price for the services to be
provided. Once the problem is resolved, the customer will make the agreed payment to X Ltd. through
online banking mode. X Ltd. considers that collection is probable and the oral contract is enforceable
as per the laws applicable in the jurisdiction of X Ltd. In such a case, whether there is a valid
contract in accordance with Ind AS 115?

4. Illustration (SM)

Company A, a manufacturer of specialised construction equipment enters into a contract with
Customer B to manufacture and deliver a customised boom lift for Rs.95,000. The total cost to
Company A of designing, manufacturing and delivering the boom lift is estimated to be Rs.70,000.
Two days later, Company A enters into another contract with Customer B to deliver four boom lift
tyres that Customer B will use on the customised boom lift in the future after the original tyres
deteriorate. The contract price per tyre is Rs.800, however, the cost of each tyre is estimated at
Rs.900. Whether these two contracts should be treated as a single contract?

5. Illustration (SM)

Manufacturer of airplanes for the air force negotiates a confract to design and manufacture new
fighter planes for a Kashmir air base. At the same meeting, the manufacturer enters into a separate
contract to supply parts for existing planes at other bases.

Would these contracts be combined?

6. Illustration (SM)

Software Company S enters into a contract to license its customer relationship management
software to Customer B. Three days later, in a separate contract, S agrees to provide consulting
services to significantly customise the licensed software to function in B's IT environment. B is
unable to use the software until the customisation services are complete.

Would these contracts be combined?
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7. Illustration (SM)

Manufacturer M enters into a contract to manufacture and sell a cyber security system to
Government-related Entity P. One week later, in a separate contract, M enters into a contract to
sell the same system to Government-related Entity Q. Both entities are contfrolled by the same
government. During the negotiations, M agrees to sell the systems at a deep discount if both P and
Q purchases the security system.

Should these contracts be combined or separately accounted?

8. Illustration (SM)

An entity promises to sell 120 products o a customer for Rs. 120,000 (Rs. 1,000 per product). The
products are transferred to the customer over a six-month period. The entity transfers control of
each product at a point in time. After the entity has transferred control of 60 products to the
customer, the contract is modified to require the delivery of an additional 30 products (a total of
150 identical products) to the customer at a price of Rs. 950 per product which is the standalone
selling price for such additional products at the time of placing this additional order. The additional
30 products were not included in the initial contract.

It is assumed that additional products are contracted for a price that reflects the stand-alone

selling price.
Determine the accounting for the modified contract?

9. Illustration (SM)

Growth Ltd enters into an arrangement with a customer for infrastructure outsourcing deal.

Based on its experience, Growth Ltd determines that customising the infrastructure will take
approximately 200 hours in total to complete the project and charges Z 150 per hour-.

After incurring 100 hours of time, Growth Ltd and the customer agree to change an aspect of the
project and increases the estimate of labour hours by 50 hours at the rate of 2 100 per hour.
Determine how contract modification will be accounted as per Ind AS 115?

10.Illustration (SM)

XYZ Limited enters into a contract with a customer to build a sophisticated machinery. The promise
to transfer the asset is a performance obligation that is satisfied over time. The promised
consideration is ¥ 2.5 crore, but that amount will be reduced or increased depending on the timing
of completion of the asset. Specifically, for each day after 31st March, 20X1 that the asset is
incomplete, the promised consideration is reduced by % 1 lakh. For each day before 31st March, 20X1
that the asset is complete, the promised consideration increases by % 1 lakh.

In addition, upon completion of the asset, a third party will inspect the asset and assign a rating
based on metrics that are defined in the contract. If the asset receives a specified rating, the
entity will be entitled to an incentive bonus of 2 15 lakh.

Determine the ftransaction price.

11. Tllustration (SM)
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AST Limited enters into a contract with a customer to build a manufacturing facility. The entity
determines that the contract contains one performance obligation satisfied over time.
Construction is scheduled to be completed by the end of the 36™ month for an agreed-upon price of
X 25 crore.
The entity has the opportunity to earn a performance bonus for early completion as follows:

o 15 percent bonus of the contract price if completed by the 30™ month (25% likelihood)

e 10 percent bonus if completed by the 32" month (40% likelihood)

o 5 percent bonus if completed by the 34™ month (15% likelihood)
In addition o the potential performance bonus for early completion, AST Limited is entitled to a
quality bonus of X 2 crore if a health and safety inspector assigns the facility a gold star rating as
defined by the agency in the terms of the contract. AST Limited concludes that it is 60% likely that
it will receive the quality bonus.
Determine the ftransaction price.

12.Illustration (SM)

A TV manufacturer sells TV sets to its dealers at the list price of Rs.10,000 per TV. If a dealer
takes more than 8,000 sets during the contract period, then it is eligible for a discount of 5% on
the list price refrospectively (i.e. for all sets purchased since the commencement of the agreement).
The contract period starts in June and ends in May of each year. On the reporting date, i.e., March
31,2018, a particular dealer has purchased 5,000 sets. Based on the past trends, it is expected that
the total purchases to be made by dealer during the contract period up to May 2018 will be more
than 8,000 sets. Should revenue be adjusted for the discount expected to be availed by such a
dealer?

13.Illustration (SM)

HT Limited enters into a contract with a customer on 1st April, 20X1 to sell Product X for % 1,000
per unit. If the customer purchases more than 100 units of Product A in a financial year, the contract
specifies that the price per unit is retrospectively reduced to ¥ 900 per unit. Consequently, the
consideration in the contract is variable.

For the first quarter ended 30th June, 20X1, the entity sells 10 units of Product A to the customer.
The entity estimates that the customer's purchases will not exceed the 100 unit threshold required
for the volume discount in the financial year. HT Limited determines that it has significant
experience with this product and with the purchasing pattern of the customer. Thus, HT Limited
concludes that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the cumulative amount of revenue
recognised (i.e. ¥ 1,000 per unit) will not occur when the uncertainty is resolved (i.e. when the total
amount of purchases is known).

Further, in May, 20X1, the customer acquires another company and in the second quarter ended 30th
September, 20X1 the entity sells an additional 50 units of Product A to the customer. In the light
of the new fact, the entity estimates that the customer's purchases will exceed the 100 unit
threshold for the financial year and therefore it will be required to retrospectively reduce the price
per unit to * 900.

Determine the amount of revenue to be recognise by HT Ltd. for the quarter ended 30th June, 20X1
and 30th September, 20X1.

14 Tllustration (SM)

On 1st April, 20X1, an entity enters into a contract with a client to provide asset management
services for five years. The entity receives a two per cent quarterly management fee based on the
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client's assets under management at the end of each quarter. At 31st March, 20X2, the client's
assets under management are X 100 crore. In addition, the entity receives a performance-based
incentive fee of 20 per cent of the fund's return in excess of the return of an observable market
index over the five-year period. Consequently, both the management fee and the performance fee
in the contract are variable consideration.

Analyse the revenue to be recognised on 31st March, 20X2.

15. Illustration (SM)

An entity enters into 1,000 contracts with customers. Each contract includes the sale of one product
for 3 50 (1,000 total products x ¥ 50 = ¥ 50,000 total consideration). Cash is received when control
of a product transfers. The entity's customary business practice is to allow a customer to return
any unused product within 30 days and receive a full refund. The entity's cost of each product is %
30.

The entity applies the requirements in Ind AS 115 to the portfolio of 1,000 contracts because it
reasonably expects that, in accordance with paragraph 4, the effects on the financial statements
from applying these requirements to the portfolio would not differ materially from applying the
requirements to the individual contracts within the portfolio. Since the contract allows a customer
to return the products, the consideration received from the customer is variable. To estimate the
variable consideration to which the entity will be entitled, the entity decides to use the expected
value method (see paragraph 53(a) of Ind AS 115) because it is the method that the entity expects
to better predict the amount of consideration to which it will be entitled. Using the expected value
method, the entity estimates that 970 products will not be returned.

The entity estimates that the costs of recovering the products will be immaterial and expects that
the refurned products can be resold at a profit.

Determine the amount of revenue, refund liability and the asset to be recognised by the entity for
the said contracts.

16.Illustration (SM)

Entity I sells a piece of machinery to the customer for Z 2 million, payable in 90 days. Entity I is
aware at contract inception that the customer might not pay the full contract price. Entity I
estimates that the customer will pay atleast 2 1.75 million, which is sufficient to cover entity I's
cost of sales (R 1.5 million) and which entity I is willing tfo accept because it wants to grow its
presence in this market. Entity I has granted similar price concessions in comparable contracts.
Entity I concludes that it is highly probable that it will collect X 1.75 million, and such amount is not
constrained under the variable consideration guidance.

What is the transaction price in this arrangement?

17.Illustration (SM)

On 1 January 20X8, entity J enters info a one-year contract with a customer to deliver water
treatment chemicals. The contfract stipulates that the price per container will be adjusted
retroactively once the customer reaches certain sales volume, defined, as follows:

Price per container Cumulative sales volume

100 1-1,000,000 containers

90 1,000,001 - 3,000,000 containers
285 3,000,001 containers and above

Volume is determined based on sales during the calendar year. There are no minimum purchase
requirements. Entity J estimates that the total sales volume for the year will be 2.8 million
containers, based on its experience with similar contracts and forecasted sales to the customer.
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Entity J sells 700,000 containers to the customer during the first quarter ended 31st March 20X8
for a contract price of X 100 per container.
How should entity J determine the transaction price?

18.Illustration (SM)

A commercial airplane component supplier enters into a contract with a customer for promised
consideration of ¥ 70,00,000. Based on an evaluation of the facts and circumstances, the supplier
concluded that % 1,40,000 represented a insignificant financing component because of an advance
payment received in excess of a year before the transfer of control of the product.

State whether company needs to make any adjustment in determining the transaction price.

What if the advance payment was larger and received further in advance, such that the entity
concluded that % 14,00,000 represented the financing component based on an analysis of the facts
and circumstances.

19.Tllustration (SM)

NKT Limited sells a product to a customer for X 1,21,000 that is payable 24 months after delivery.
The customer obtains control of the product at contract inception. The contract permits the
customer to return the product within 90 days. The product is new and the entity has no relevant
historical evidence of product returns or other available market evidence.

The cash selling price of the product is ¥ 1,00,000 which represents the amount that the customer
would pay upon delivery for the same product sold under otherwise identical terms and conditions as
at contract inception. The entity's cost of the product is ¥ 80,000. The contract includes an implicit
interest rate of 10 per cent (i.e. the interest rate that over 24 months discounts the promised
consideration of ¥ 1,21,000 to the cash selling price of % 1,00,000). Analyse the above transaction
with respect to its financing component.

20. Illustration (SM)

VT Limited enters into a contract with a customer to sell equipment. Control of the equipment
transfers to the customer when the contract is signed. The price stated in the contract is 2 1 crore
plus a 10% contractual rate of interest, payable in 60 monthly instalments of X 212,470.

Determine the discounting rate and the transaction price when

Case A—Contractual discount rate reflects the rate in a separate financing tfransaction

Case B—Contractual discount rate does not reflect the rate in a separate financing transaction ie
14%.

21.Tllustration (SM)

ST Limited enters into a contract with a customer to sell an asset. Control of the asset will fransfer
to the customer in two years (i.e. the performance obligation will be satisfied at a point in fime). The
contract includes two alternative payment options:

1) Payment of 25,000 in two years when the customer obtains control of the asset or

2) Payment of % 4,000 when the contract is signed. The customer elects to pay X 4,000 when

the contract is signed.

ST Limited concludes that the contract contains a significant financing component because of the
length of time between when the customer pays for the asset and when the entity transfers the
asset to the customer, as well as the prevailing interest rates in the market.
The interest rate implicit in the transaction is 11.8 per cent, which is the interest rate necessary to
make the two alternative payment options economically equivalent. However, the entity determines
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that, the rate that should be used in adjusting the promised consideration is 6%, which is the entity's
incremental borrowing rate.
Pass journal entries showing how the entity would account for the significant financing component

22. Illustration (SM)

ABC Limited enters into a contract for the construction of a power plant that includes scheduled
milestone payments for the performance by ABC Limited throughout the contract term of three
years. The performance obligation will be satisfied over time and the milestone payments are
scheduled fo coincide with the expected performance by ABC Limited. The contract provides that a
specified percentage of each milestone payment is to be withheld as retention money by the
customer throughout the arrangement and paid o the entity only when the building is complete.
Analyse whether the contract contains any financing component

23. Illustration (SM)

XYZ Limited, a personal computer (PC) manufacturer, enters into a contract with a customer to
provide global PC support and repair coverage for three years along with its PC. The customer
purchases this support service at the time of buying the product. Consideration for the service is
an additional % 3,000. Customers electing to buy this service must pay for it upfront (i.e. a monthly
payment option is not available).

Analyse whether there is any significant financing component in the contract or not.

24. Illustration (SM)

A computer hardware vendor enters into a three-year arrangement with a customer to provide
support services. For customers with low credit ratings, the vendor requires the customer to pay
for the entire arrangement in advance of the provision of service. Other customers pay over time.
Analyse whether there is any significant financing component in the contract or not.

25. Illustration (SM)

An entity enters into a confract with a customer to provide a weekly service for one year. The
contract is signed on 1st April, 20X1 and work begins immediately. The entity concludes that the
service is a single performance obligation. This is because the entity is providing a series of distinct
services that are substantially the same and have the same pattern of transfer (the services
transfer to the customer over fime and use the same method to measure progress — that is, a time-
based measure of progress).

In exchange for the service, the customer promises its 100 equity shares per week of service (a
total of 5,200 shares for the contract). The terms in the contract require that the shares must be
paid upon the successful completion of each week of service.

How should the entity decide the transaction price?

26. Illustration (SM)

RT Limited enters into a contract to build an office building for AT Limited over an 18-month period.
AT Limited agrees to pay the construction entity ¥ 350 crore for the project. RT Limited will receive
a bonus of 10 lakh equity shares of AT Limited if it completes construction of the office building
within one year. Assume a fair value of 2 100 per share at contract inception.

Determine the ftransaction price.

27. Illustration (SM)
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Production Company Y sells a television show to Television Company X. The consideration under the
arrangement is a fixed amount of ¥ 1,000 and 100 advertising slots. Y determines that the stand-
alone selling price of the show would be % 1,500. Based on market rates, Y determines that the fair
value of the advertising slots is % 600.

Determine the ftransaction price.

28. Illustration (SM)

MS Limited is a manufacturer of cars. It has a supplier of steering systems - SK Limited. MS Limited
places an order of 10,000 steering systems on SK Limited. It also agrees to pay ¥ 25,000 per steering
system and contributes tooling to be used in SK's production process.

The tooling has a fair value of X 2 crore at contract inception. SK Limited determines that each
steering system represents a single performance obligation and that control of the steering system
transfers to MS Limited upon delivery.

SK Limited may use the tooling for other projects and determines that it obtains control of the
tooling.

Determine the fransaction price?

29. Illustration (SM)

A producer entity sells energy drinks to a retailer, a convenience store. Producer also pays Retailer
a fee to ensure that its products receive prominent placement on store shelves, to attract the
customer's eyeballs so that chances of sales of it's products are higher. The fee is negotiated as
part of the contract for sale of the energy drinks. In this case, Producer should reduce the
transaction price for the sale of the energy drinks by the amount of slotting fees paid to Retailer.
Producer does not receive a good or service that is distinct in exchange for the payment to Retailer.

30. TIllustration (SM)

An entity that manufactures consumer goods enters info a one-year contract to sell goods to a
customer that is a large global chain of retail stores. The customer commits to buy at least X 15
crore of products during the year. The contract also requires the entity to make a non- refundable
payment of 1.5 crore to the customer at the inception of the contract. The ¥ 1.5 crore payment
will compensate the customer for the changes it needs to make to its shelving fo accommodate the
entity's products. The entity does not obtain control of any rights to the customer's shelves.
Determine the ftransaction price

31.Illustration (SM)

An entity enters into a confract with a customer to sell Products A, B and C in exchange for Rs.
10,000.

The entity will satisfy the performance obligations for each of the products at different points in
time. The entity regularly sells Product A separately and therefore the stand-alone selling price is
directly observable. The stand-alone selling prices of Products B and C are not directly observable.
To estimate the stand-alone selling prices, the entity uses the adjusted market assessment approach
for Product B and the expected cost plus a margin approach for Product C.

The entity estimates the stand-alone selling prices as follows:

Product Stand-alone Method
selling price
Rs.
Product A 5,000 Directly observable
Product B 2,500 Adjusted market assessment approach
Product C 7,500 Expected cost plus a margin approach
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| Total | 15,000 | |

Allocate the transaction price.

[Ans: Product A - Rs. 3,300; Product B - Rs. 2,500; Product C - Rs. 7,500]

32. TIllustration (SM)

An entity regularly sells Products X, ¥ and Z individually, thereby establishing the following stand-
alone selling prices:

Product Stand-alone selling price Rs.
Product X 50,000

Product Y 25,000

Product Z 45,000

Total 1,20,000

In addition, the entity regularly sells Products Y and Z together for Rs. 50,000.

Case A—Allocating a discount o one or more performance obligations

The entity enters into a contract with a customer to sell Products X, Y and Z in exchange for Rs.
100,000. The entity will satisfy the performance obligations for each of the products at different
points in time; or Product Y and Z at same point of fime. Determine the allocation of transaction
price to Product Y and Z.

Case B—Residual approach is appropriate

The entity enters into a contract with a customer to sell Products X, Y and Z as described in Case
A. The contfract also includes a promise to transfer Product Alpha. Total consideration in the
contract is Rs. 130,000. The stand-alone selling price for Product Alpha is highly variable because
the entity sells Product Alpha to different customers for a broad range of amounts (Rs. 15,000 - Rs.
45,000). Determine the stand-alone selling price of Products, X, Y, Z and Alpha using the residual
approach.

Case C—Residual approach is inappropriate

The same facts as in Case B apply to Case C except the transaction price is Rs. 1,05,000 instead of
Rs. 130,000.

[Ans:]

Case A | o If entity fransfers control of Products ¥ and Z at same point in fime:
Entity can account for transfer as single performance obligation and can
allocate Rs. 50,000 to it

o If entity transfers control of Products Y and Z at different point in time:
Allocated Transaction Price for Product Y and Z will be Rs. 17,857 and Rs.
32,143 respectively

Case B | Product X - Rs. 50,000; Product Y and Z Rs. 50,000; Product Alpha - Rs.

30,000

Case C | Determine standalone selling price of Product Alpha using other method and

then allocate transaction price for products based on relative stand-alone
selling prices.

33. TIllustration (SM)

An entity enters into a contract with a customer for two intellectual property licences (Licences A
and B), which the entity determines to represent two performance obligations each satisfied at a
point in time. The stand-alone selling prices of Licences A and B are Rs. 1,600,000 and Rs. 2,000,000,
respectively. The entity transfers Licence B at inception of the contract and transfers Licence A
one month later.

Case A - Variable consideration allocated entirely to one performance obligation
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The price stated in the contract for Licence A is a fixed amount of Rs. 1,600,000 and for Licence B
the consideration is three per cent of the customer's future sales of products that use Licence B.
For purposes of allocation, the entity estimates its sales-based royalties (ie the variable
consideration) to be Rs. 2,000,000. Allocate the transaction price.

Case B - Variable consideration allocated on the basis of stand-alone selling prices

The price stated in the contract for Licence A is a fixed amount of Rs. 600,000 and for Licence B
the consideration is five per ce